
The YouTube channel "City of Franklin WI" will be live streaming the Common Council meeting so
that the public will be able to view and listen to the meeting.

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofFranklinWIGov

*REVISED
CITY OF FRANKLIN

COMMON COUNCIL MEETING
FRANKLIN CITY HALL -- COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS

9229 WEST LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
AGENDA**

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 19, 2023 AT 6:30 P.M.

A.

*B.

C.

D.

*E.

F.

G.
k

*

Call to Order, Roll Call and Pledge ofAllegiance.

Citizen Comment Period.

Approval ofMinutes: Regular Common Council Meeting of December 5, 2023.

Hearings.

Organizational Business - The Mayor has made the following appointments for Council
confirmation:
1. Hotel/Motel Industry Member: Lance A. Schaefer, Everest Hospitality, LLC, 6901 S.

76th St., Aid. Dist. 2 - Tourism Commission for a 1-year term expiring 12/31/2024.
2. Barbara Wesener, 7479 Carter Circle South., Aid. Dist. 5 - Tourism Commission for a

I -year term expiring 12/31/2024.
3. Edward Holpfer, 8058 S. 77th Street, Aid. Dist. 1 - Tourism Commission for a 1-year

term expiring 12/31/2024.
4. Mark Wylie, 7468 Carter Circle S., Aid. Dist. 5 - Tourism Commission for a I-year

term expiring 12/31/2024.
5. Jeffrey Kuderski, 7468 Carter Circle S., Aid. Dist. 5 - Tourism Commission for a 1-year

term expiring 12/31/2024.
6. Mayoral Appointments of Inspectors of Election for 2024 and 2025.

Letters and Petitions.

Reports and Recommendations:
1. Updates to the ROC Ballpark Commons Noise Solutions and Enchant Christmas.
2. Wisconsin State Representative Chuck Wichgers to Provide an Update to the

Common Council Regarding Department ofRevenue Concerns.
3. Presentations of a Draft Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study for

Sanitary Sewer System Facilities and Water System Facilities, Setting Impact Fees
for Same, and Directing a Public Hearing to be Held for Public Comment on the
Needs Assessment and Impact Fees Ordinance Amendment.

4. A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use
Amendment for a Fence Wholesale and Distribution Use with Indoor and Outdoor
Storage, Light Fabrication, and Office Use Upon Property Located at 7407 S. 27th
Street (Master Halco, Applicant).



Common Council Meeting Agenda
December 19, 2023
Page 2

9.

7.

8.

5. An Ordinance to Amend the Unified Development Ordinance Text at Table 15-
3.0603 Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 8041 "Offices and Clinics of
Chiropractors" to Allow Such Use as a Special Use in the M-1 Limited Industrial
District (Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic, Applicant).
A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use
for a Chiropractic Office and Services Business Use Upon Property Located at
11217 W. Forest Home Avenue (By Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic,
Applicant) (ACG Acquisitions #10 LLC (D/B/A Anderson Commercial GRP),
Property Owner).
A Resolution To Amend Resolution No. 2022-7873 Imposing Conditions and
Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use for a Condominium Complex
Development Use Upon Property Located at 12000 W. Loomis Road (Stephen R.
Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, Applicant, Boomtown, LLC, Property
Owner).
A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use
for a Drinking Place (Without Drive-Through Facilities) Use Upon Property Located
at 10064 W. Loomis Road, (Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine; Applicant/Park Place
Holdings, Property Owner).
A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use
for a Meat Smoker Enclosure and Overnight Food Truck Parking Upon Property
Located at 7740 S. Lovers Lane Rd, Suite 400. (By Thomas Green, Jr., Mr. Greens
BBQ, Applicant/Franklin Wyndham LLC, Property Owner).
A Resolution Imposing Conditions and Restrictions for the Approval of a Special Use
for Liquor, Tobacco & Misc. Retail Sales Upon Property Located at 7730 S. Lovers
Lane Rd. (By Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers LLC, Applicant/Franklin
Wyndham LLC, Property Owner).
A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Conservation Easement for
and as Part of the Review and Approval of a Certified Survey Map (By Alex Scheler,
Carma Laboratories, Inc, Applicant, Carma Laboratories, Inc, Property Owner)
(9410 S. 76th Street and 7520 W. Ryan Rd)
A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Landscape Bufferyard
Easement for and as Part of the Review and Approval of a Certified Survey Map (By
Alex Scheler, Carma Laboratories, Inc, Applicant, Carma Laboratories, Inc, Property
Owner) (9410 S. 76th Street and 7520 W. Ryan Rd).
Request Council Approval of a Job Description for a Probationary Firefighter
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) Position.
The Fire Department is Seeking Council Approval and an Emergency Contingency
Appropriation and Budget Amendment for Unexpected Engine Repairs to Paramedic
Ambulance MED 112.

15. Request Council Approval to Authorize a Budget Modification Amendment to
Encumber Funds Allocated in 2023 Capital Outlay Funding for Replacement Source
Capture Diesel Exhaust Systems to the 2024 budget.

16. Review of the Professional Services Agreement Between the City of Franklin and
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. for Quarry Monitoring Services for Calendar Year
2024.

14.

13.

12.

11.

10.

6.

k

k

k

k

*



Common Council Meeting Agenda
December 19, 2023
Page 3

33.

32.

30.

31.

17. A Resolution to be Compensated $250.00 by Wisconsin Department of
Transportation for 50 Square Feet of a Temporary Limited Easement at 7979 W.
Ryan Road (TKN 896 9990 001).

18. Pathway Options for a Wisconsin Department of Transportation Project on S. Lovers
Lane (USH 45) from W. St. Martins Road to W. Rawson Avenue (CTH BB).

19. A Resolution to Award Landmark Structures I, LP a Contract to Construct Elevated
Water Storage Tank (Contract B) at 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road (TKN 801-9986-000)
in the Amount of $6,833,000.

20. A Resolution to Award Domer, Inc. a Contract to Construct Water Transmission
Main (Contract A) along S. Lovers Lane in the Amount of$840,366.

21. An Ordinance to Modify the Municipal Code Section 245-5 D. (4) Designating No
Parking on South Side of W. Forest Hill Avenue in the Vicinity of Forest Park Middle
School (8225 W. Forest Hill Avenue) and Modify the Municipal Code Section 245-5
F. Designating Parking in School Zones for Both Sides of S. 35th Street in the
Vicinity of Southwood Glen Elementary School (9090 S. 35th Street).

22. Geographic Marketing Advantage, LLC Agreement for Geographic Information
System (GIS) Support and Database Maintenance Services for 2024.

23. Request Council Approval of an updated Job Description for the Administrative
Assistant Position that was Formally the Secretary Position.

24. Request Council Approval of an Updated Job Description for the Permit Licensing
Specialist Position that was Formally the Administrative Clerk Position.

25. Authorization to Modify the 457(b) Retirement Savings Option Plans Offered by the
City of Franklin, Including Adding Roth Options.

26. An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, An Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budgets for the General Fund and Capital Outlay Fund to Carry Forward
Appropriations from 2022 for Specifically Identified Projects in the Amount of
$323,187.

27. 2024 Property and Casualty Insurance Coverage.
28. Authorize Staff to Solicit Equipment Considered in the 2024 Highway Equipment

Replacement and Capital Outlay Funds.
29. Authorize the Director of Health and Human Services to sign the University of

Wisconsin La Crosse Affiliation Agreement to Host a Volunteer Student Intern in
2024.
Authorize Promotion and Wage Adjustment for Marion Eeks to Principal Planner
(Grade Level9; Hourly Rate of $35) from Account 01-0621-5111.
Annual Market Adjustment, Market Adjustment to Wage and Salary Rates, and
Progress to Market Wage Adjustment for Non-Represented Employees.
Authorize the Director of Administration to Enter into An Agreement with ClearGov,
Which Includes a Termination at any Time without Penalty Clause to Lock in 2023
Rates for Software that would be Implemented for the City by the 2025 Budget Season
or Sooner.
Request Council Approval and Adoption of a Newly Created Job Description for
Department of Public Works Deputy Clerk Position and to Promote Andrea Stormoen
to Department of Public Works Deputy Clerk.

*



Common Council Meeting Agenda
December 19, 2023
Page4

*

*

*

34.

35.

36.

37.

A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an Agreement to Continue
Professional Environmental Engineering Services to Monitor Compliance at the Metro
Recycling & Disposal Facility to December 31, 2024, with JSA Environmental, Inc.
An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance Adopting the 2023
Annual Budget for the Sewer Fund to Provide Additional Auto Equipment
Appropriations Associated with the Purchase of a Utility Vehicle in the Amount of
$59,784.50.
A Resolution to Purchase a 2023 Ford F550 Super Chassis XL V8 Diesel with
Additional Equipment from Hiller Ford, Inc. for $119,569.00 from the Sewer and
Water Utilities.
Evaluation and Recommendations by the Director of Administration for Proposed Tax
Assessment Services. The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to
Wis. Stat. § 19 .85(1 )(e), Considering the Deliberating or Negotiating the Purchasing of
Public Properties, the Investing of Public Funds, or Conducting Other Specified Public
Business, Whenever Competitive or Bargaining Reasons Require a Closed Session.

H. Licenses and Permits: License Committee Meeting of December 19, 2023.

I. Bills.
Request for Approval ofVouchers and Payroll.

J. Adjournment.

Supporting documentation and details of these agenda 1tems are available m the Common Council Meeting Packet on the City of Franklin
website www franklinw1 gov

[Note Upon reasonable not1ce, efforts wll be made to accommodate the needs of disabled mndrv1duals through appropriate aids and services
For additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at (414) 425-7500]

REMINDERS:

December 21
December 25 & 26
January 1 & 2
January 3
January 4
January 16
January 19

Plan Commission
Closed for Christmas
Closed for New Years
Common Council Meeting (Wednesday)
Plan Commission
Common Council Meeting
Plan Commission

6:00p.m.

6:30p.m.
6:00 p.m.
6:30p.m.
6:00p.m.



ROLL CALL A.

CITIZEN COMMENT B. l.

FIRE CHIEF ADAM B.2.
REMINGTON
PROCLAMATION

MINUTES C. l.
NOVEMBER 21, 2023

SPECIAL COMMON C.2.
COUNCIL MINUTES
NOVEMBER 28, 2023

ORD. 2023-2570 G.l.
AMEND ORD. 2023
2569 2024 ANNUAL
BUDGET FOR
PURCHASE OF FIRE
APPARATUS

RES. 2023-8068 G.2.
SPECIAL USE FOR
BEER & WINE SALES
ESTABLISHMENT AT
7160 S. BALLPARK

fl
·

CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING

DECEMBER 5, 2023
MINUTES

The regular meeting of the Franklin Common Council was held on
December 5, 2023, and was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor
John R. Nelson in the Franklin City Hall Council Chambers, 9229 W.
Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin. On roll call, the following were
present: Alderman Ed Holpfer, Alderman Yousef Hasan,
Alderwoman Courtney Day, Alderman Mike Barber, and Alderman
Jason Craig. Alderwoman Michelle Eichmann was not present. Also
in attendance were Director of Administration Kelly Hersh, City
Engineer Glen Morrow, City Attorney Jesse A. Wesolowski, and City
Clerk Karen Kastenson.

Citizen comment period was opened at 6:31 p.m. and was closed at
7:03 p.m.

Mayor Nelson presented a Proclamation in Recognition of the Service
of Fire ChiefAdam J. Remington.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the minutes of the Common
Council meeting of November 21, 2023, as presented. Seconded by
Alderman Holpfer. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to approve the minutes of the Special
Common Council meeting of November 28, 2023, as presented.
Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2570, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2023-2569, AN
ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2024 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR
THE EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND TO PROVIDE
CARRYFORWARD APPROPRIATIONS TO RESTORE
$723,567.99 TO THE GL ACCOUNT #42-0221-5811 FOR THE
PURCHASE OF FIRE APPARATUS. Seconded by Alderman
Holpfer. On a roll call; all voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8068, A
RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A BEER AND
WINE SALES ESTABLISHMENT WITH AN OUTDOOR PATIO
UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7160 SOUTH BALLPARK



Common Council Meeting
December 5, 2023
Page 2

DR. (BADAX FLATS,
LLC APPLICANT, ZIM
MAR PROPERTIES,
LLC, OWNER)

PURCHASE OF HP G.3.
WARRANTY
EXTENSIONS

CDC PUBLIC HEALTH G.4.
WORKFORCE
DEVELOPMENT
GRANT FOR COVID
19 MITIGATION &
RECOVERY EFFORTS

ORD. 2023-2571 G.5.
AMEND MUNICIPAL
CODE §169-1 LICENSE
AND FEES FOR
SWIMMING POOLS

DRIVE, SUITE 130 (BADAX FLATS, LLC, APPLICANT), AS
PRESENTED TO THE COMMON COUNCIL IN THE
DECEMBER 5, 2023 MEETING AGENDA PACKET ITEM G.2.,
WITH AN AMENDMENT THERETO OF THE FINAL BE IT
FURTHER RESOLVED PROVISION, AS PURSUANT TO $15
9.0103G. OF THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, THE
COMMON COUNCIL DETERMINED THE ESTABLISHMENT
OF THIS SPECIAL USE, DUE TO CURRENT CONSTRUCTION
CONDITIONS, SHALL BE AS SET FORTH IN THE PROVISION
HEREBY AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: "BE IT
FURTHER RESOLVED, PURSUANT TO $15-9.0103G. OF THE
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, THAT THE SPECIAL
USE PERMISSION GRANTED UNDER THIS RESOLUTION
SHALL BE NULL AND VOID UPON THE EXPIRATION OF ONE
YEAR FROM THE DATE OF ADOPTION OF THIS
RESOLUTION, UNLESS THE SPECIAL USE HAS BEEN
ESTABLISHED BY WAY OF THE ISSUANCE OF A BUILDING
PERMIT FOR SUCH USE; AND THAT THEREAFTER, UPON
THE ISSUANCE OF THE BUILDING PERMIT, FORTHWITH
COMMENCEMENT OF CONSTRUCTION AND COMPLETION
OF SUCH CONSTRUCTION UPON THE EXPIRATION OF 20
MONTHS AFTER THE ISSUANCE OF THE BUILDING
PERMIT." Seconded by Alderwoman Day. On a roll call; all voted
Aye except Alderman Hasan who abstained; motion carried 4-1-1.

Alderman Barber moved to authorize the purchase of HP warranty
extensions for data center equipment in the amount of $41,938.11 as
budgeted for in the 2023 Information Services Capital Outlay
Equipment Budget - Account 41-0144-5841. Seconded by Alderman
Hasan. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Hasan moved to authorize the Director of Health and
Human Services to accept the modified Centers for Disease Control
Public Health Workforce Development Grant for COVID-19
mitigation and recovery efforts. Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-2571, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND $169-1, LICENSES REQUIRED, OF
THE MUNICIPAL CODE TO AMEND THE HEALTH
DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION SWIMMING POOL
LICENSE AND FEES CATEGORY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH
THE RECENTLY UPDATED WISCONSIN ADMINISTRATIVE
CODE CHAPTER ATCP 76, SAFETY, MAINTENANCE, AND



Common Council Meeting
December 5, 2023
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL G.6.
HEALTH
SANITARIAN FTE' S
FOR2024

PURCHASEHEALTH G.7.
DEPARTMENT
VEHICLE WITH
GRANT AWARD

UDO REWRITE G.8.
AGMT-HOUSEAL
LAVIGNE
AS SOCIATES LLC

RES. 2023-8069 G.9.
STORM WATER
FACILITIES
MAINTENANCE
AGREEMENT AT
12000 W. LOOMIS RD.

OPERATION OF PUBLIC POOLS AND WATER ATTRACTIONS,
TO INCREASE THE TYPES OF LICENSES REQUIRED AND
FEES THEREFORE. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. All voted
Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve the Director of Health and
Human Services to maintain the 2023 increase of Environmental
Health Sanitarian from .1 FTE to .4 FTE for the 2024 calendar year,
effective January 1, 2024, funding to be covered by a grant from the
health department. Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All voted Aye;
motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to approve the Director of Health and
Human Services to purchase a Health Department vehicle to replace
current 2014 Ford Taurus with Franklin Health Department American
Rescue Plan Coronavirus Fiscal Recovery Grant award. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Holpfer moved to table to a meeting in January, 2024.
Seconded by Alderman Craig. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-8069, A
RESOLUTION FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A STORM WATER
FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND EASEMENTS
FOR PUBLIC RECREATIONAL TRAIL, STORM DRAINAGE,
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT ACCESS, AND WATER MAIN
AT 12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD (TKNS 891-9016-000
THROUGH 891-9040-000). Seconded by Alderman Hasan. All
voted Aye; motion carried.

Attorney Wesolowski vacated his seat at 8:13 p.m., and returned at
8:15 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION G.10. Alderman Hasan moved to go into closed session at 8:15 p.m., with
regard to City personnel performance evaluation of Director of
Administration, to enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat.
§ 19.85(1)(c), considering employment, promotion, compensation or
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the
governing body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility, and to
reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such
matters discussed therein as it deems appropriate. Seconded by
Alderman Barber. On roll call, all voted Aye. Motion carried.



Common Council Meeting
December 5, 2023
Page 4

MISCELLANEOUS
LICENSES

VOUCHERS AND
PAYROLL

H.

I.

Mayor Nelson moved for a five-minute recess at 8:15 p.m., and
returned into closed session at 8:21 p.m.

Upon re-entering open session at 9:09 p.m., No action was taken.

Alderman Craig moved to approve the following licenses of the
License Committee Meeting ofDecember 5, 2023:

Grant 2023-24 Operator License to: Michele Reimann, Annamaria
Robel, & Molly Tengel;
Approve the PUBLIC (People Uniting for the Betterment of Life and
Investment In the Community) Grant to: Franklin Health Dept
Community Events, Park Permits, Spring Walk/Run-5/18/24, Bike
Rodeo-6/1/24, Movie Night-6/21/24, Trunk or Treat-10/24/24, Lions
Legend I, Legend Dr, Schlueter Pkwy; Franklin Lioness Lions Club
St Martin's Fair & Club Monthly Meetings, St Martin's Fair Permit,
Temporary Class "B" Beer and Operators Licenses, Park Permits, 9/1-
9/2/24,Various Summer Dates, St Martin's Labor Day Fair, Lions
Legend I; Franklin Lions Foundation-Fund Raisers & Club Monthly
Meetings, Park Permits-Easter Egg Hunt, Club Meetings, St Martin's
Fair Permit, Temporary Class "B" Beer, Operators Licenses, 3/30/24,
6/11/24, 7/9/24, 9/10/24, 9/1-9/2/24, Lions Legend I, Ken Windl
Pavilion, St Martin's Labor Day Fair; Franklin Park Concerts, Inc
Free Concerts, Park Permits, Band Shell Fees, 6/30/24, 7/14/24,
7/28/24, 8/11/24, & 8/25/24, Lions Legend I; Franklin Police
Citizen's Academy Alumni, St Martin's Fair Permit, 9/1-9/2/24, St
Martin's Labor Day Fair; Franklin Police Department-National Night
Out, Temporary Entertainment & Amusement, Food Licenses, 8/5/24,
Franklin Public Library, 9151 W Loomis Rd; St Martin of Tours
Parish-Vietnamese Lunar New Year Celebration & St Martin's Fair,
Temporary "Class B" Beer & Wine, Temporary Entertainment &
Amusement, Operators Licenses, St Martin's Fair Permit, 2/11/24,
9/1-9/2/24, St Martin of Tours Parish Hall at 7963 S 116" St, St
Martin's Labor Day Fair; and Xaverian Missionaries-Annual Mission
Festival, License Fees-Extraordinary Event, Temporary Class B Beer
& Wine, Operators, Temporary Food & Sign Permits, Xaverian
Missionaries, 4500 W Xavier Dr, 6/22-6/23/24.

Seconded by Alderman Barber. All voted Aye; motion carried.

Alderman Barber moved to approve City vouchers with an ending
date of November 30, 2023, in the amount of $ 1,195,768.17, and
payroll dated December 1, 2023, in the amount of$ 463,191.77 and
payments of the various payroll deductions in the amount of $
244,961.64, plus City matching payments, and estimated payroll dated



Common Council Meeting
December 5, 2023
Page 5

ADJOURNMENT J.

December 15, 2023 in the amount of$ 465,000 and payments of the
various payroll deductions in the amount of $ 250,000, plus City
matching payments. Seconded by Alderman Holpfer. On roll call, all
voted Aye. Motion carried.

Alderman Craig moved to adjourn the meeting of the Common
Council at 9:12 p.m. Seconded by Alderwoman Day. All voted Aye;
motion carried.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

#
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

CORRECTED
REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Mayoral Appointments

MEETING
DATE

12-19-23

ITEM
NUMBER

E.1.-5.

The Mayor has made the following appointments for Council confirmation:

1. Hotel/Motel Industry Member: Lance A. Schaefer, Everest Hospitality, LLC,
6901 S. 76th St., Ald. Dist. 2 -Tourism Commission for a 1 year term expiring
12/31/2024.

2. Barbara Wesener, 7479 Carter Circle S .., Ald. Dist. 5 - Tourism Commission for a
1-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

3. Edward Holpfer, 8058 S. 77th Street, Aid. Dist. 1- Tourism Commission for a I
year term expiring 12/31/2024.

4. Mark Wylie, 7468 Carter Circle S., Aid. Dist. 5 - Tourism Commission for a I-year
term expiring 12/31/2024.

5. Jeffrey Kuderski, 8135 W. High St., Ald. Dist. 1- Tourism Commission for a I
year term expiring 12/31/2024.

COUNCIL ACTION

Motion to confirm the following Mayoral appointments:

1. Hotel/Motel Industry Member: Lance A. Schaefer, Everest Hospitality, LLC, 6901
S. 76th St., Ald. Dist. 2- Tourism Commission for a l-year term expiring
12/31/2024.

2. Barbara Wesener, 7479 Carter Circle S., Ct., Aid. Dist. 5- Tourism
Commission for a I-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

3. Edward Holpfer, 8058 S. 77th Street, Aid. Dist. 1 - Tourism Commission for a
I-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

4. Mark Wylie, 7468 Carter Circle S., Aid. Dist. 5 - Tourism Commission for a I
year term expiring 12/31/2024.

5. Jeffrey Kuderski, 8135 W. High St., Aid. Dist. 1- Tourism Commission for a
l-year term expiring 12/31/2024.

CLERK.DPT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

ORGANIZATIONAL
BUSINESS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Appointments of Election Inspectors for 2024 and
2025.

MEETING
DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

E. o.

Pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute §7.30(4), Stats., the following are appointments of Election
Inspectors and Alternates for 2024 and 2025:

Abbott, Jody Czerniak, Diane Harrold, Paula
Abelmann, Rhoda Dejna, Jason Hasan, Yousef
Ahearn, Jody Dejna, Jeff Haugh, Kathi
Albert, Robert Dejna, Judy Hazlett, David
Amali, Ahalam Devries, Cathy Hedrick, Roger
Anderson, Lucas Dicks, Mary Hedstrom, John
Bartnicki, Mary Dietrich, Claudia Henderson, Melody
Bate, Tim Ditlevson, Kathryn Hilber, Robert
Behling, Norm Donovan, Carole Hintzke, Robert
Behrens, Sue Donovan, Tom Hogan, Patty
Bellin, Bernard Dukat, Gerald Honeck, Terry
Bienzen, Timothy Dunnington, Douglas Hozeska, Ruth
Bohn, Michael Edwards, Wendy Huhn, Sue
Borkenhagen, Noah Ehrke, Elizabeth Jablonowski, Brian
Braatz, Steven Eldredge, Ed Janicek, Diane
Brandenburg, Douglas Eldredge,Suzanne Jennings, Heidi
Brandt, John Elston-Works, Beverly Jensen, Barb
Braunstein, George Felhofer, Mary Jensen, Sharon
Carter, Olivia Felter, Terry Johnson, Jo
Chen (Goecke), Dorothee Fisher, Ray Jones, Jennifer
Chen, Jesse Foreman, Sammy Kehl, Bruce
Christie, Angela Freitag, Gerald Kerr-Gindt, Dana
Christie, Bailey Fricano, Marie Kessen, Ashley
Ciche, Dennis Fuller, Jayne Klimo, Michele
Ciszewski, Deborah Fuller, Tom Klimo, Rick
Claus, Rebecca Garves, Beverly Kosler, Cathy
Clausius, Joyce Gaulke, Cristine Kovacic, Tim
Colla, Mary Golden, Mary Kresovic, Mira
Collins, Janice Gorzalski, Victoria Krukowski, Thaddeus
Cook, Ken Gramza, Danica Kucharski, David
Crass, Daniel Gronland, Vicki Kulinski, Nancy
Crass, Ellen Grove, Trevor Kulinski, Veronica
Cywinski, Donald Guzman, Eddie Ladisa, Maryann
Czaplewski, Lynn Hanson, Joan Larosa, Lynne
Czaplewski, Richard Hardin, Lori Larosa, Paul



Larson, Earl Noll, John Schmidt, Karen
Larson, Marcia (Marcy) Nutter, Laurie Schmidt, Valori
Lawal, Sandra Obermeyer, Jenny Schnagl, Kathy
Lemahieu, Peggy Ohlheiser, Wayne Seizer, Charlotte
Lentz, Jaqueline Oines, Nathan Singh, Maharaj
Liermann, Sue Ortiz, Rick Slama, Kathy
Lockridge, Justin Ortiz, Tracey Sobczak, Lynne
Logsdon, Patti Pagel, Matthew Sobie, Monika
Luedtke, Glenn Pawlowski, Meredith Soczka, Julie
Mabrey, Andrew Pelletier, Marybeth Sopa, Dave
Mach, Francesca Peter, Mary Sopa, Janet
Magarich, Marleen Piwowarczyk, Darlene Sorensen, Gary
Mainella, Ted Plant, Jerald Spars, Donna
Malek, Sue Poole, Cathy Stack, Jody
Manning, Carol Poulakos, Patti Stern, Jacki
Manti, Arrie Priestaf, Mark Stinebaugh, Patsy
Manti, Thomas Probst, Timothy Stys, Janis
Marso, Julie Pulles, Donna Tessler, Janet
Marz, Peter Rabiega, Richard Thompson, Jan
Mathwig, Linda Anne Rani, Rakesh Toll, Barbara
McClure, James Rappold, Cheryl Tucknott, William
McIntyre-Kelly, Laura Reich, Mary Urbanek, Debbie
McKnight, Dennis Richard, Cathleen Utley, Susan
McKnight, Susan Richardson, Ann Valentine, Lynne
McSherry, Mary Richichi, Suzanne VanDernoot, Linda
Meister, Sandra Rivedal, Dag Vega, Samuel
Merritt, Judy Rizvi, Syed Wall, Jerry
Mieding, Judy Roble, Renee Wang, Nancy
Millet, Sonji Rotzenberg, Paul Weber, Craig
Mlodzik, Maryanne Ruffing, Lori Welch, Robert
Muelver, Donna Savagian, Harry Wenz, William
Muelver, Kimberly Scalish, Kristy White, Judith (Judy)
Muelver, Rick Schauer, Diane Wilke, Elizabeth
Nerby, Pam Schefchik, John Williams, Carl
Nichols, Dan Schefchik, Kathy Wittlieff, Barbara
Nichols, Lucas Schefchik, Pam Wittlieff, James
Nichols, Sandy Schlecht, Paul Yank, Mary
Nickolaus, Roger Schlueter, Sue Zimmermann, Alane
Nickolaus, Sharon Schmidt, Daryl Zwitter, Bart

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to Confirm appointments of Election Inspectors and Alternates as submitted for 2024-2025.

CLERK/KK



APPROVAL

l}\(
REPORTS AND

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Updates to the ROC Ballpark Commons
Noise Solutions and Enchant Christmas

MEETING DATE
12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER
p'
er l

The Mayor will provide an update on the solutions to noise issues at the ROC Ballpark Commons. Laura
Nelson with Engage Franklin will provide an update on Enchant Christmas.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

As the Common Council may determine appropriate.

MAYOR- JRN



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

}}. COUNCIL ACTION

REPORTS AND Wisconsin State Representative Chuck
RECOMMENDATIONS Wichgers to Provide an Update to the

Common Council Regarding Department of
Revenue Concerns

MEETING DATE
12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Wisconsin State Representative Chuck Wichgers will update the Common Council on Department of Revenue
Concerns.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

As the Common Council may determine appropriate.

DOA-KH



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Presentation of a draft Public Facilities Needs
Assessment and Impact Fee Study for Sanitary

Sewer System Facilities and Water System
Facilities, setting Impact Fees for same, and

directing a Public Hearing to be held for Public
comment on the Needs Assessment and

Impact Fees Ordinance Amendment

MEETING DATE
December 19, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

Background
Attached is a draft Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study. Page 1 provides the
Purpose and Background for the Study. The Study addresses Water System and Sanitary Sewer
System needs within the City of Franklin.

In 2020, Council approved resetting the Park, Library, Law Enforcement and Municipal Court
Facilities, Transportation Systems Facilities, Fire Protection and Emergency Medical Services
Facilities Fees. The Water Systems Facilities and Sanitary Sewer System Facilities fees were to be
evaluated at a later date.

In 2022, Council moved to table the adoption of an Ordinance to Amend §92-9. Impact Fees, of the
Municipal Code, In Part and Primarily to Update Same Pursuant to the Public Facilities Needs
Assessment and Impact Fee Study dated April 27, 2022.

July 5, 2023, Council approved Resolution No. 2023-8016, approving Ruekert & Mielke, Inc. to
complete a Sanitary Sewer Impact Fee Study. The need for a Water Impact Fee Study was
imperative to the Water Tower Project along with the expiration of the planning period in 2020.
Hence, why the Sanitary Sewer Systems Facilities and Water System Facilities are being reviewed at
this time.

Analysis
Ed Maxwell, the City's consultant from Ruekert & Mielke, Inc. will be present at the December 19,
2023 Common Council Meeting to present this item.

A few important items to consider:
• The Water System Facilities, along with the accompanying impact fees, have not been re

evaluated since being implemented in 2002. Therefore, the planning period of 2000-2020 has
expired and it is imperative to update at this time.

• The Sanitary Sewer System Facilities, along with the accompanying impact fees, have not
been re-evaluated since being implemented in 2013.

• The Common Council may deviate from the study if it determines that additional costs
can/should be funded through other City sources.

• There are changes recommended with regard to impact fee rates due to housing affordability.
• Best practices are to review the fees on a more regular cycle than has been done previously.

Therefore, staff is recommending a 3-5-year cycle for review, unless substantial changes in
planning/projects prompt specific areas to be reviewed more frequently.



The draft study establishes revised impact fees for single-family, two-family, multi-family, commercial
and industrial developments. The study recommends updating the fees as follows:

Table 16 - Summary of Impact fees

Single-family or Two- Multi-family Commercial Unit Industrial Unrt
Tvoe of lmoact Fee family welling Unit ONelllngUnit (per 1,000 so ftl (oer 1.000 so ftl

Proposed Fees
Water (Prop,osed, per equ,volenr merer) $3,181 S3,l8l $3,181 $3,181
Sanitary Sewer (Proposed, southwest only, pet equrvalent $4.276 S4,276 $4,276 $4,276
Transportation (Existlg Fee -- No Change) $824 $536 $278 $136
Fre (Existing Fee -- No Change) $565 $366 $192 $94
Law Enforcement (Existing Fee - NoChange) $645 $420 $219 $108
Parks (£sting fee -- No Change) $2,382 $1,547 N/A N/A
Libra {Exstung Fee -- No Change] $419 $272 N/A N/A

Total of Proposed Fees $12.292 $10,598 $8,146 $7,795

Existing Fees
Water (per equivalent meter) $3,341 $3,341 $3,341 $3,341
Sewer (per equivalent meter) $3,729 $3,729 $3,729 $3,729
Transportation $824 $536 $278 $136
fire $56S $366 $192 $94
Law Enforcement $645 $420 $219 $108
Parks $2,382 $1,547 N/A N/A
Ubrary $419 $272 N/A N

Total Exlsting Fees $11,905 $10,211 $7,759 $7,408

Change from Existing Fees {3s7 $387 $387 $387

Chane from Exlstlnat Fees 3% 4% 5% 5%
"does not indude administratrve fees

Recommendation
Staff recommends acceptance of the Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study, as
well as proceeding with a Public Hearing on the same.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to accept the Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study draft with any
changes the Council deems appropriate and direct that a Public Hearing be held to consider
input and adopt a revised Impact Fee Ordinance;

Finance De t - DB



Public Facilities
Needs Assessment
and Impact Fee
Study

PREPARED FOR:

City of Franklin

9229 W. Loomis Rd

Franklin, WI 53132

PREPARED BY:

Ruekert & Mielke, Inc.

W233N2080 Ridgeview Pkwy
Waukesha, WI 53188

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

November 2I Us

'Raekert- Mielke
© 2022 Copyright Ruekert & Mielke, Inc.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND........ . .. .. . 1

GENERAL...................................................... . 2

Growth Forecast .

Service Area...... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. 2

. 3

WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES 3

SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM FACILITIES

HOUSING AFFORDABILITY .

.. 11

16

SUMMARYAND NEXT STEPS 18

APPENDIXA: SOUTHWEST SANITARY SEWER SERVICE AREA MAP 20

APPENDIX B: TRUNK SEWER BASIN MAP 21

APPENDIX C: REVISED FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR RCI AREA. . . . 22

l'Ruekert- Mielke
TOC-1

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

PUBLIC FACILITIES NEEDS ASSESSMENT AND IMPACT FEE STUDY

PURPOSEANDBACKGROUND

This study is a public facility needs assessment under Wisconsin Statutes § 66.0617(4). This
study develops and recommends impact fees that comply with the impact fee standards in Wis.
Stat. § 66.0617(6).

Ruekert & Mielke, Inc. (RIM) and the City of Franklin (Franklin) have prepared several impact
fee studies and updates:

2002 Public facilities needs assessment and impact fee study for law enforcement &
municipal courts, fire & emergency medical services, library, parks,
transportation, and water facilities.

2004 Amendment to impact fees for law enforcement & municipal court, and fire &
emergency medical services facilities.

2012 Public facilities needs assessment and impact fee study for southwest sanitary
sewer service area (fees adopted in 2013).

2013 Public facilities needs assessment and impact fee study update for parks.

2015 Public facilities needs assessment and impact fee study update for parks.

2020 Public facilities needs assessment and impact fee study for law enforcement &
municipal courts, fire & emergency medical services, library, parks, and
transportation.

The level of detail meets the state statutes, which grant latitude to municipalities in how they
spend impact fee funds. As the footnotes to Wis. Stat. § 66.0617 explain, the law "allows a
municipality to impose impact fees for a general type of facility without committing itself to any
particular proposal before charging the fees." The footnotes to the statutes make explicit that a
"municipality must be allowed flexibility to deal with the contingencies inherent in planning." The
project details that follow in this study represent Franklin's best planning at this time, but
Franklin reserves its statutory right to alter its planning to best suit evolving needs after this
study is finished.

As required by the Wisconsin Statutes, each fee section contains an inventory of existing
facilities, a list of future projects, the service standards, existing deficiencies, and the calculation
of the impact fee. The study also contains the required analysis on the effect the proposed
impact fees would have on housing affordability.

The fees contained in this study do not apply to public school facilities per Franklin's ordinance
§ 92-9.K, which was amended in 2020 to exclude them.

b'Ruekert- Mielke Project II 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

GENERAL

The growth forecast and service area give a common framework for developing impact fees for
specific facility types.

Growth Forecast

We forecast the following population growth through 2043 as shown below.

Population

2043

2023

50,000

45,000 40,787 42,111 _"z"",a400±,as7 3,sss 6s16 42.905

35,000 37,610 /

30,000 /

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

- lot Ot. co0o- lot it-00r- lot ODOM000- lo)
r r y g y 00 ) 00 000 0)0000 0) r r t

oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooOI V I 4 l ll l l l

The US Census Bureau number was used for the 2020 population while the population for each
prior year is based on data from the Wisconsin Department of Administration (DOA)
Demographics Services Center. The DOA's growth rate for 2020 to 2040 was applied to the
forecast, but RIM adjusted the DOA's forecast downward by approximately 25 percent based on
conversations with City staff, including the City's Planning Department.

This forecast assumes an annual growth rate of a little less than 1 percent. If Franklin grows at a
significantly higher or lower rate, especially over the course of several years, Franklin should
update its impact fees to reflect this change.

The population forecast is used to help confirm residential development that is based on recent
customer growth rate among the single-family and multifamily residential classes. The rate of
growth for nonresidential demand is based on recent growth rates in those customer classes as
well. The fees for both the water and sanitary sewer departments are forecast on an equivalent
meters basis. The forecast methodology and the growth rates are explained in detail later in the
study

h'Ruekert-Mielke
2

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

Service Area

Wis. Stat.§ 66.0617(4)(a)2 requires Franklin to base impact fees on an explicitly identified
service area. The service area for the water fees is the entire City of Franklin. The sanitary
sewer impact fees are to be collected in southwest Franklin. See Appendix A for the map
defining Franklin's sanitary-sewer service area for impact fees.

WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES

Franklin plans to continue to impose impact fees to fund water system improvements. Franklin
first imposed impact fees for its water system in 2002. Since then, several projects have been
completed, and the system needs new projects to provide service for future growth.

Below is an inventory of the water system's current infrastructure.

b'Ruekert- Mielke
3

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

Table 1- Water Inventory

Actual Capacity
Primary Purpose

Existing Water Supply Facilities (gallons/minute)
Well8 600 Standby
Total 600

Actual Capacity
Primary Purpose

Existing Booster Pump Stations (gallons/minute)
Drexel Booster Station Pl 1,600 Booster
Drexel Booster Station P2 1,600 Booster
Drexel Booster Station P3 900 Booster
Drexel Booster Station P4 1,400 Booster
Puetz Road Booster Station Pl 1,750 Booster
Puetz Road Booster Station P2 875 Booster
Puetz Road Booster Station P3 1,750 Booster
Puetz Road Booster Station P4 875 Booster
Total 10,750

Existing Storage Facilities Total Capacity (gallons) Type

Tank 1 500,000 Elevated Tank
Tank 2 2,000,000 Elevated Tank
Total 2,500,000

Existing Water Mains
Diameter (inches) Length (ft) Function Material

6 20,935 Supply Other Metal
6 32,698 Supply Other Plastic
8 23,776 Supply Other Metal
8 454,212 Supply Other Plastic

10 3,026 Supply Other Plastic
12 34,744 Transmission Other Metal
12 182,388 Transmission Other Plastic
16 23,241 Transmission Other Metal
16 120,425 Transmission Other Plastic
20 18,989 Transmission Other Metal
24 15,871 Transmission Other Metal

Total 930,305

Source: 2022 PSC Annual Report
Note: Reservoir 8 is no longer in use

All the projects under Phases I and II in the 2002 impact-fee study have been completed, as
have several of the Phase Ill and Phase IV projects. The projects from the study that need to be

B'Ruekert- Mielke
4

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

completed are elevated storage tanks, and oversizing of mains for new growth remains an
ongoing need.

A new water system study was produced in 2009 by Kaempfer & Associates. The study
recommended building three tanks to serve new growth, the same one on Puetz Road that the
2002 impact fee study had included and two on Lovers Lane instead of just one that the original
study had included.

For the two towers on Lovers Lane, the 2009 study recommended a combined size of 1.5
million gallons. A storage alternatives evaluation conducted in 2018 by Kaempfer produced a
different conclusion: construct two 1-million gallon-tanks and take one of Franklin's current tanks
out of service, a 500,000-gallon tank. The net increase is still 1.5 million gallons of storage
capacity. Since one-half of one of the new tanks is essentially replacement, one-half of that cost
is excluded.

The 2009 study also included a 16-inch transmission main on St. Martins Road, 12-inch
transmission main on Church Street, and a building expansion for the water and sewer utility's
shared facility. However, only the building expansion was identified as being needed for
servicing future growth; the other projects were deemed essential for augmenting reliability for
service to existing customers. The other projects are therefore considered existing deficiencies
and are not eligible for impact fees.

The project costs listed below for the storage tanks come from Franklin's five-year capital
improvement plan, with 15 percent added to account for engineering and inspection. The first
Lovers Lane tower is more expensive than the second one because it will include extensive site
work and the oversizing costs of the water main needed to connect the towers to the rest of the
system. The second tower is less because it does not include the site work or oversizing and
only half the full cost since half of its capacity will replace an existing tower's capacity.

The building expansion was finished in 2015 and is listed at actual cost, but it is the cost for only
the water-utility portion of the building (the facility was constructed for both the sewer utility and
the water utility). The estimate for oversizing in the forecast time is based on an annual average
of oversizing costs, with the costs adjusted by the Engineering News Record Cost Construction
Index (ENR CCI) to 2023 dollars.

Table 2- Planned Water Projects Summary

Project Cost
Puetz Road Elevated Storage Tank $ 8,464,951
First Lovers Lane Elevated Storage Tank 8,185,700
Second Lovers Lane Elevated Storage Tank * 1,941,502
Oversizing for next 20 years 6,095,000
Building Expansion ** 1,680,000
Total $ 26,367,154
* Excludes half the cost since it is replacing existing 0.5 MG tank
** Total is only for portion of expansion used for water utility

h'Ruekert- Mielke
5

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

The standard applied to the storage tanks is capacity based on maximum-day demand. The
most recent water system study indicates that these projects are needed exclusively to meet the
capacity needs for future growth. However, the forecast for growth was based on trends that did
not continue since the study was conducted. The 2009 study forecast that in 2020, average
daily demand would be over 4.5 million gallons, but average daily demand in 2020 was 2.4
million gallons, or less than 60 percent of what had been forecast. Both lower-than-expected
growth and increased conservation and efficiency measures have caused actuals to fall below
the forecast.

R/M created a new forecast for average daily demand based on the long-term annual growth
rate. For maximum day demand, a multiyear average of maximum day to average day demand
ratio was used. For peak hour demand, the ratio of average day to peak hour demand from the
Kaempfer study was applied. The bottom line of the table below compares the R/M forecast to
the forecast for full buildout in the Kaempfer study.

Table 3- Water Forecast

Average (million Max Day (million Peak Hour (million
Study Comparison gallons/day) gallons/day) gallons/day)

2009 Water System Study Forecast 6.058 13.933 24.232
R/M Forecast 4.328 7.136 12.984

Current Forecast as% of Prior Forecast 71.4% 51.2% 53.6%

Only the portion of the project that will serve future needs within the forecast period - the next
20 years - can be recovered through impact fees. The Kaempfer study explained that total
water storage is based on maximum-day demand, so per the adjusted forecast, 51.2 percent of
the cost can be recovered using impact fees.

The standard for main oversizing is capacity to supply the greater of peak hourly demand or
average demand on the maximum day plus the projected fire flow demand. Since by definition
oversizing is intended solely to provide excess capacity for anticipated future growth, all
oversizing costs can be attributed to future growth.

The standard applied to the building expansion is based on population compared to square
footage of building space. Most of the building expansion was needed to serve the existing
population, i.e., to fix an existing deficiency, but almost a fifth of it was needed to serve future
growth.

Table 4-Water Facility Service Standard forWater Utility Building

Category
Water Building (Square

Facility
Water Building (Square

l'Ruekert- Mielke

Standard per 1,000 Current Population
Population Estimate

276 37,610

Prior Inventory Existing Deficiency

3,310 7,057

6

Current Goal

10,367

Additions
8,298

Future
Population Future Goal

42,905 11,826

Additions to

Meet Future New Growth
Needs Share

1,460 17.6%

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

Prior Inventory refers to the building size before the expansion was completed. The Prior
Inventory and Additions include only the portion of the building used by the water utility. Only 18
percent of the cost can be recovered through impact fees.

Below are the costs for the projects with the new growth share shown.

Table 5 - Planned Water Projects Summary - New Growth Cost Share Only

New Growth Cost to New
Project Full Cost Share Growth

Puetz Road Elevated Storage Tank $ 8,464,951 51.2% $ 4,335,455
First Lovers Lane Elevated Storage Tank 8,185,700 51.2% 4,192,432
Second Lovers Lane Elevated Storage Tank 1,941,502 51.2% 994,370
Oversizing 6,095,000 100.0% 6,095,000
Building Expansion 1,680,000 17.6% 295,509
Total $26,367,154 $ 15,912,766

Franklin reserves the right to amend this list outside of a formal impact fee study based on court
rulings regarding impact fees. As the footnotes on Wis. Stat. § 66.0617 explain, the law "allows
a municipality to impose impact fees for a general type of facility without committing itself to any
particular proposal before charging the fees. The needs assessment must simply contain a
good-faith and informed estimate of the sort of costs the municipality expects to incur for the
kind of facility it plans to provide .... A municipality must be allowed flexibility to deal with the
contingencies inherent in planning." Franklin may therefore add projects to serve new growth as
needed.

To allocate the cost among new growth, impact fees have been apportioned based on meter
size.

RM recommends changing methodology away from the City's current approach of apportioning
fees based on residential equivalent connections for several reasons. Apportioning fees based
on meter size is much easier for customers to understand, offers more consistency and
predictability in fees for both customers and the City, and greatly simplifies the City's task of
administering the fees.

Forecasting meter count was based on the recent historical annual customer growth rate in
each customer class at each meter size. The growth among each of the meter sizes was
proportioned according to their existing distribution. Below is the forecast for the two residential
classes, single-family and multifamily, for the next 20 years.

b'Ruekert-Mielke
7

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

Table 6-Forecast New Growth Single-family and Multifamily Meters

Forecast increase in single-family meters 32.1%
Forecast increase in multifamily meters 34.1%

Incremental Incremental
Single-family Multifamily

Meter Size Single-family* % Share Meters Multifamily % Share Meters
1/2" •• 0.00% - 0.00% -
3/4" 7,381 98.65% 2,372 1 0.33% -
1" 95 1.27% 31 119 39.67% 41

1.25" 0.00% - - 0.00% -
1.5" 6 0.08% 2 110 36.67% 38

2" 0.00% - 65 21.67% 22
2.5" - 0.00% - - 0.00% -
3" 0.00% - 2 0.67% 1
4" 0.00% - 1 0.33% -
6" 0.00% - 2 0.67% 1
8" - 0.00% - - 0.00% -
10" - 0.00% - - 0.00% -
12" - 0.00% - - 0.00% -

7,482 100.00% 2,405 300 100.00% 103

• From 2022 PSC annual report
** Excludes 1/2" meters for forecasting purposes since Franklin is no longer installing them

The difference in the growth rate for population and the growth rate for residential customer
classes can be attributed to the trend of fewer people per unit, both for single-family and
multifamily dwellings.

For the last several years, the annual growth rates for the public-authority and irrigation classes
are negligible. Coupled with a declining land-use forecast for institutional and agricultural
purposes, the flat growth rate caused R/M to forecast no growth in the public-authority and
irrigation meter count.

For the commercial and industrial classes, the number of new meters was projected out twenty
years based on the annual growth rates for the number of customers in each class.

■Ruekert • Mielke
8

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

Table 7-Forecast New Growth Commerical and Industrial Meters

Forecast increase in commercial meters 28.6%
Forecast increase in industrial meters 14.0%

Incremental Incremental
Meter Size Commercial % Share Commercial Meters Industrial % Share Industrial Meters

1/2" - 0.00% - - 0.00% -
3/4" 166 48.12% 47 3 11.54% -
1" 87 25.22% 25 9 34.62% 1

1.25" 0.00% - - 0.00% -
1.5" 46 13.33% 13 6 23.08% 1
2" 37 10.72% 11 4 15.38% 1
2.5" - 0.00% - 0.00% -
3" 9 2.61% 3 3 11.54% -
4" - 0.00% - - 0.00% -
6" - 0.00% - 1 3.85% -
8" - 0.00% - 0.00% -
10" - 0.00% - 0.00% -
12" 0.00% - - 0.00% -

345 100.00% 99 26 100.00% 3

The following table sums up the forecast meters by size. Per Franklin's policy, a meter for a
single-family residence will always equal the cost for a ¾-inch meter, regardless of the house's
actual meter size, so the forecast below includes all the single-family residences as having ¾
inch meters.

Table 8 - Forecast New Growth Meter Summary

Single-family Multifamily
Meter Size Residential Residential Commercial Industrial Total

1/2" - - - - -
3/4" 2,405 - 47 - 2,452
1" - 63 25 1 89

1.25" - - - - -
1.5" - 34 13 1 48
2" - 19 11 1 31

2.5" - - - - -
3" - 1 3 - 4
4" - - - - -
6" - 1 - - 1
8" - - - - -
10" - - - - -
12" - - - - -
Total 2,405 118 99 3 2,625

The Equivalency Factors are based on standard ratios used in the water industry, including the
ones used by the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin for determining public fire protection

■Ruekert · Mielke
9

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

charges. The Equivalency Factor was then multiplied by the number of meters per size to
equate the number of future connections to the total number of equivalent residential meters.

Table 9 - Equivalent Meter Count for New Growth

Meter Size Equivalencies Single-family Multi-family Commercial Industrial Total
3/4" 1.0 2,405.0 - 47.0 - 2,452.0

1" 2.5 - 157.5 62.5 2.5 222.5
1.25" 3.75 - - -
1.5" 5.0 - 170.0 65.0 5.0 240.0
2" 8.0 - 152.0 88.0 8.0 248.0

2.5" 12.5 - - - - -
3" 15.0 - 15.0 45.0 60.0
4" 25.0 - - - - -
6" 50.0 - 50.0 - - 50.0
8" 80.0 - - - -
10" 120.0 - - - -
12" 160.0 - - - - -

Total 2,405.0 544.5 307.5 15.5 3,272.5

With the total number of equivalent meters and the total cost attributed to new growth, the
impact fee per equivalent meter can be calculated. The existing balance in the water impact-fee
fund is subtracted from the total cost first, and then the remaining cost is divided by the number
of equivalent meters. The fee per equivalent meter is multiplied by the equivalent meter factor to
arrive at the impact fee to charge each meter size. A meter for a single-family residence will
always equal the cost for a ¾-inch meter, regardless of the house's actual meter size.

h'Ruekert- Mielke
10

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

Table 10 - Calculation of Impact Fee

Total New Growth Costs
Less Existing Water Fund Balance
Net Costs Eligible for Impact Fees

Equivalent Meters

Fee per Equivalent Meter

Equivalent
Meter Size Meter Factor Fee per Meter

1/2" 1.00 $3,181
3/4" 1.00 $3,181
1" 2.50 $7,953

1.25" 3.75 $11,929
1.5" 5.00 $15,905
2" 8.00 $25,448
2.5" 12.50 $39,763
3" 15.00 $47,715
4" 25.00 $79,525
6" 50.00 $159,050
8" 80.00 $254,480
10" 120.00 $381,720
12" 160.00 $508,960

$

$15,912,766
5,501,346

10,411,420

3,272.5

$3,181

The proposed fee would reduce the fee to a single-family residence by approximately 5 percent
due to a substantial balance that has accumulated and due to several of the projects from the
prior study having been completed and paid for.

SEWER SYSTEM FACILITIES

Sanitary sewer impact fees were first implemented in 2013 for the southwest area of Franklin
served by the Ryan Creek Interceptor (RCI).

For the purposes of this study, the entire area is undeveloped with regard to municipal sanitary
sewerage facilities except for those residences within developments such as Ryan Meadows,
Park Circle, Briarwood, and Ryanwood Manor that have connected to adjacent facilities and
have paid impact fees already. Therefore, all future development within this area is new
development with respect to Franklin's sanitary sewerage system, and all the costs are eligible
for impact fees.

However, as described in Franklin's Sanitary Sewer Extension Cost Recovery Policy, a portion
of the cost of each segment will be charged to abutting properties, either through developer

B'Ruekert-Mielke
11

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

contributions or special assessments. The impact fees must therefore be reduced by the
anticipated contributions from abutting property owners. Franklin's policy is to charge a
maximum amount per foot of abutting frontage, with the maximum amount determined by the
land use of the abutting property and the minimum diameter main (8-inch) required. Certain
types of property, such as wetlands and transportation rights-of-way, cannot be assessed. The
contributions, along with the remaining costs, are shown in the table below.

The total that excludes Trunks 12R, 24, and 35 is the amount used for calculating impact fees,
since those trunks are not likely to be built during the forecast period or may be built by
developers. Approximately $260,000 will be recovered from abutting property owners, leaving
approximately $12. 7 million to be recovered through impact fees.

b'Ruekert- Mielke
12

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

Table 11 Project Costs
Frontage Maximum Assessable Maximum

Sewer Segment Land Use (feet) Segment Cost Cost/ Foot Assessable Cost Remaining Cost

Trunk 6 Commercial/Mixed Use 3,370 $ 978,100 $201 $ 67,646 $ 910,4S4
Non-assessable 460 133,509 $0 133,S09
Subtotal 3,830 $ 1,111,609 $ 67,646 $ 1,043,963

Trunk 12
Residential 1,020 711,988 $164 16,683 69S,305
Non-assessable 7439 5,192,625 $0 5,192,625
Subtotal 8,459 $ 5,904,612 $ 16,683 $ 5,887,929

Trunk 12K
Mixed Use 2,648 1,496,810 $201 53,153 1,443,657
Residential 1,023 578,262 $164 16,732 561,529
Non-assessable 706 399,074 $0 399,074
Subtotal 4,377 $ 2,474,146 $ 69,885 $ 2,404,260

Trunk 12R
Residential 7,705 4,253,413 $164 126,023 4,127,390
Non-assessable 3455 1,355,241 $0 1,355,241
Subtotal 10,160 $ 5,608,654 $ 126,023 $ 5,482,631

Trunk 24
Residential 250 45,111 $164 4,089 41,022
Non-assessable 5090 918,451 $0 918,451
Subtotal 5,340 $ 963,562 $ 4,089 $ 959,473

Trunk 25
Residential 340 133,485 $164 5,561 127,923
Non-assessable 120 47,112 $0 47,112
Subtotal 460 $ 180,597 $ 5,561 $ 175,036

Trunk 26
Residential 1,120 811,558 $164 18,319 793,239
Non-assessable 1,660 1,202,845 $0 1,202,845
Subtotal 2,780 $ 2,014,403 $ 18,319 $ 1,996,085

Trunk 32
Non-assessable 140 39,838 $0 39,838
Subtotal 2,780 $ 39,838 $ $ 39,838

Trunk 34
Residential 5,080 1,174,452 $164 83,088 1,091,364
Non-assessable 220 50,862 $0 50,862
Subtotal 5,300 $ 1,225,315 $ 83,088 $ 1,142,226

Trunk 35
Business Park 4,510 4,470,545 $201 90,529 4,380,016
Non-assessable 5598 5,549,027 5,549,027
Subtotal 10,108 $ 10,019,573 $ 90,529 $ 9,929,043

Total 53,594 $ 29,542,308 $ 481,824 $ 29,060,484

Total less Trunks 12R, 24, & 35 27,986 $ 12,950,519 $ 261,183 $ 12,689,336

Notes
Sources: City of Franklin Comprehensive Plan, Ruekert & Mielke.
Costs updated w/ ENR's Construction Cost Index for annual inflation; index average in 2012 was 9,308 and in January 2023 was 13,175
Per City Engineer, assumed assessable portion of trunks= 10%

Appendix B shows the updated trunk sewer basin map. Trunks 11, 14, 39, 40, and 41 from the
2012 study have been removed from this study. Trunks 40 and 41 have been constructed.
These trunks comprise the trunk inventory for the southwest area. Trunks 11 and 14 are no
longer needed. A recent Foth study recommended replacing Trunk 14 with 2 segments. The
segment the Foth study referred to as Trunk 14 East Alternate is called Trunk 6 in the table
above and on the map in Appendix B. The other segment of what was formerly called Trunk 14

13
h'Ruekert-Mielke Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

is now sized too small to be considered a trunk anymore, so it is no longer on the map. Costs
for Trunk 25 were updated per the Foth study. Costs for Trunks 6, 12R, and 35 were updated
due to recommended pipe size changes for some segments of those trunks per revised service
area details. Future land-use classifications, land-use segment measurements, and sewage
flow routings were updated from the prior study using the latest land-use map and City staff
assumptions. Appendix C contains the revised future land use map for the RCI area.

(Note: The RCI sanitary sewer service area sewer impact fee established as part of this study
applies to new land development as defined by Wisc. Stat. § 66.0617. An identical fee in the
same amount, called a sanitary sewer collection fee, will be applied to any existing residential
dwelling units and any existing nonresidential development that connect to the city's sanitary
sewerage system. As opposed to the sanitary sewer impact fee, which is collected upon
issuance of a building permit by Franklin, the sanitary sewer collection fee will be collected upon
issuance of a plumbing permit by Franklin for the connection of these existing facilities to
Franklin's sanitary sewerage system.)

Franklin has been charging impact fees for sanitary sewer on an equivalent-meters basis, with
capacity used to determine the equivalencies. RIM developed an estimate of equivalent meters
that equals the number of new single-family residential units that are being forecast because
most of the residential growth is assumed to occur in the southwest section of Franklin. A meter
for a single-family residence will always equal the cost for a%/-inch meter, regardless of the
house's actual meter size, so the forecast below includes all the single-family residences as
having %-inch meters.

Based on the expertise provided by Franklin's Planning Department, RIM estimates that
approximately 30 percent of the nonresidential development will occur in this area within the
study period. Therefore, all the meters for residential development and thirty percent of the
nonresidential meters from the water section are included in the total number of equivalent
meters below.

Table 12- Meter Forecast in Southwest

Meter Size Commercial * Industrial * Single-family Multifamily Total
3/4" 14 0 2,201 0 2,215
1" 8 0 0 35 43

1.25" 0 0 0 0 -
1.5" 4 0 0 32 36
2" 3 0 0 19 22
2.5" 0 0 0 0 -
3" 1 0 0 1 2
4" 0 0 0 0 -
6" 0 0 0 1 1
8" 0 0 0 0 -
10" 0 0 0 0 -
12" 0 0 0 0 -
Total 30 - 2,201 88 2,319

b'Ruekert- Mielke
14

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

R/M recommends moving away from existing methodology for charging multifamily
development. Existing methodology allocates the same charge for the first unit in a multifamily
building as a single-family residence and one-half of the charge to a single-family residence for
the remaining units in the building. For consistency, RIM recommends using the same
equivalencies for multifamily as what Franklin uses for all other development besides single
family.

Table 13- Equivalent Meters Forecast in Southwest

Meter Size Equivalencies Commercial Industrial Single-family Multi-family Total
3/4" 1.0 14.0 - 2,201.0 - 2,215.0
1" 2.5 20.0 - - 157.5 177.5

1.25" 3.75 - - - - -
1.5" 5.0 20.0 - - 170.0 190.0
2" 8.0 24.0 - - 152.0 176.0
2.5" 12.5 - - - - -
3" 15.0 15.0 - - 15.0 30.0
4" 25.0 - - - - -
6" 50.0 - - - 50.0 50.0
8" 80.0 - - - - -
10" 120.0 - - - - -
12" 160.0 - - - - -
Total 93.0 - 2,201.0 544.5 2,838.5

Once the forecast for equivalent meters has been established, we can divide the total eligible
costs among the equivalent meters to arrive at an impact fee per meter.

■Ruekert • Mielke
15

Project# 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

Table 14- Calculation of Impact Fee

Total Costs less Assessable Costs
Less Existing SW Sanitary Sewer Fund Balance

Net Costs Eligible for Impact Fees

Equivalent Meters

Fee per Equivalent Meter

Equivalent Fee per
Meter Size Meter Factor Meter

5/8" 1.0 $4,276
3/4" 1.0 $4,276
1" 2.5 $10,690

1.25" 3.8 $16,035
1.5" 5.0 $21,380
2" 8.0 $34,208

2.5" 12.5 $53,450
3" 15.0 $64,140
4" 25.0 $106,900
6" 50.0 $213,800
8" 80.0 $342,080
10" 120.0 $513,120
12" 160.0 $684,160

$ 12,689,336
552,475

$ 12,136,861

2,838.5

$4,276

This new proposed fee is approximately 15 percent higher than the current fee. Although
several projects have been completed, the forecast for equivalent meters has declined
significantly.

HOUSING AFFORDABILITY

Most households in Franklin find housing affordable. Franklin's median household income of
$90,000 exceeds Wisconsin's median household income of $67,000. However, housing costs
overburden many Franklin households. Data from the US Census Bureau shows that of the
families that make less than $50,000 per year, 72 percent, or nearly three-quarters, pay more
than 30 percent of their income for housing. These families alone make up approximately 20
percent of Franklin's total number of households.

The ordinance that Franklin passed reducing impact fees for low-cost housing on April 6, 2020
provides relief to those from lower incomes who are looking to purchase homes within the
community. However, implementing this reduction may prove difficult since it is based on a certain
percentage of average home cost. It also may not apply to much if any new housing since the

B'Ruekert- Mielke
16

Project II 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

ordinance sets eligibility at 40 percent of the average home cost from the year before. This
threshold may be too low for new housing units to qualify.

Franklin may want to consider changing the ordinance to apply the reduction to homes that are
less than 75 percent of the average square footage of homes from the prior year. Basing on the
reduction on average square footage would simplify administering a policy that makes housing
more affordable, and setting the size at 75 percent would likely make more new housing units
eligible for the reduction. The impact fees for these housing units could be set at 75 percent. For
new homes that are 50 percent or less of the average square footage, the fees could be set at 50
percent.

This reduction in fees will likely still not apply to many future homes in Franklin. Therefore, there
is no need to adjust the forecast.

The information above provides context for evaluating the effect of impact fees on housing
affordability. The table below shows the annual cost of a $400,000 home, the estimated average
value of a new house in Franklin.

Table 15- Availability of Affordable Housing

---
No Impact Fee Impact Fee

Home Price* $ 400,000 $ 412,292

Principal and Interest $ 23,132 $ 23,843
Taxes $ 8,880 $ 9,153

Annual Housing Cost $ 32,012 $ 32,996

Income Required
Additional Income Required
Required Percent Increase

$ 114,329 $
$

117,842
3,513
3.1%

Typical new house price estimate provided by City staff
** Includes both proposed and other existing fees except admin fee

B'Ruekert- Mielke
17

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

SUMMARY AND NEXT STEPS

To fund the facilities needed by growth in the near future, we recommend revising the City's
impact fees. The table below summarizes both the existing fees and the proposed fees.

Table 16- Summary of Impact Fees

Single-family or Two- Multi-family Commercial Unit Industrial Unit
Type of Impact Fee family Dwelling Unit Dwelling Unit (per 1,000 sq ft) (per 1,000 sq ft)

Proposed Fees
Water {Proposed; per equivalent meter) $3,181 $3,181 $3,181 $3,181
Sanitary Sewer (Proposed; southwest only; per equivalent $4,276 $4,276 $4,276 $4,276
Transportation (Existing Fee -- No Change) $824 $536 $278 $136
Fire (Existing Fee -- No Change) $565 $366 $192 $94
Law Enforcement (Existing Fee -- No Change) $645 $420 $219 $108
Parks (Existing Fee -- No Change) $2,382 $1,547 N/A N/A
Library (Existing Fee-- No Change) $419 $272 N/A N/A

Total of Proposed Fees $12,292 $10,598 $8,146 $7,795

Existing Fees
Water (per equivalent meter) $3,341 $3,341 $3,341 $3,341
Sewer (per equivalent meter) $3,729 $3,729 $3,729 $3,729
Transportation $824 $536 $278 $136
Fire $565 $366 $192 $94
Law Enforcement $645 $420 $219 $108
Parks $2,382 $1,547 N/A N/A
Library $419 $272 N/A N/A

Total Existing Fees $11,905 $10,211 $7,759 $7,408

Change from Existing Fees $387 $387 $387 $387

Change from Existing Fees 3% 4% 5% 5%
does not include administrative fees

According to state statute, municipalities must now provide developers with detailed explanations
of how the impact fees being collected will be spent. RIM recommends that Franklin provides a
written or electronic copy of this study to satisfy this statutory requirement.

To move forward with new impact fees, the following steps need to take place:

1) This study is presented to Franklin's Common Council.

2) The Common Council directs that a public hearing be held to hear public comment on this
public facilities needs assessment and the proposed impact fees.

3) An ordinance is drafted to implement the recommended impact fees.

4) A Class 1 notice is published in the newspaper to provide the public 20 days' notice prior
to the public hearing as required under Wisconsin Statutes 66.0617(4)(3)(b). The needs
assessment must be available 20 days prior to the public hearing to allow the public
sufficient time to review.

l'Ruekert-Mielke
18

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

5) A public hearing is held to hear public comment on the needs assessment and the
proposed ordinance to impose public facilities impact fees.

6) After the public hearing, the Common Council may adopt the proposed ordinance as
recommended or adopt the ordinance with amendments.

R/M encourages Franklin to periodically update its impact fees to ensure they reflect the best
growth forecasts, as well as the best capital cost and project estimates. Revisiting the fees every
5 years or as projects substantially change can help a community adjust its plans for new growth
to provide the correct level of funding and avoid changing rates as drastically as would be the
case if the community waited longer to update its fees.

h'Ruekert- Mielke
19

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

APPENDIX A. SOUTHWEST SANITARY SEWER SERVICE AREA MAP

~"; i!Ii ..;~ 1· :,c_• -s ll= ~
$2i

I ; I I ~ ~ R' "'iI II i I ! :g (ii ~

1[
. I !tic II li,l ·+~~ ~ " I±# ZN ;:;; 8 ~- ';/Ee H . I i I ~ ~ l;l% I! I I di i ; ~.,

a

~ I I 11 i,, D

■Ruekert • Mielke
20

Project n 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

APPENDIX B: TRUNK SEWER BASIN MAP

I,I
l1il

alls ,no
If'4di!,,

I 1t1ll!!I!

liRuekert • Mielke
21

Project # 18-10022



City of Franklin

Public Facilities Needs Assessment and Impact Fee Study

APPENDIX C: REVISED FUTURE LAND USE MAP FOR RCI AREA

■Ruekert • Mielke
22

a

' • 1i_ _,_ ill!

• j
- Hll'OI-,

I !l

Project # 18-10022



/JI)
·Tl

L.JI 11,A
e
i A

·' 'y ·. , /4

I

I

. It, IIPPF
% II#.. · .,,r.:fr· 111•1 I ,

::rr_1·_1ssl~- . ::1 /l id· I ; .l rl[Tlrrfr.. §1q:1E:! i\ I! !!! . z
F'.rPffi·.,,. #ifief#ft#j at s/@
J. :.lJJt.-rnY,[fl ,J

• .. Ll'.lr.JlliIL,

1
i i 11 !

! i

--·-

- ~-r=- I ~ ,- I

_ --r-=;_ _,r -"'' s:qo__ r-\ ! 1 l
-}rt tlil

. I ~,m11fffiIV7, Ti
-- I I

I
I

I I
I

' ' :_:) .
···-· \SOUltf ~1:" 11



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL
OF A SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT FOR A
FENCE WHOLESALE AND DISTRIBUTION

USE WITH INDOOR AND OUTDOOR
STORAGE, LIGHT FABRICATION, AND

OFFICE USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 7407 SOUTH 27TH STREET

(MASTER HALCO, APPLICANT)

MEETING
DATE

12/19/23

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #4

At its December 7, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached special use amendment resolution for a fence wholesale and
distribution use with indoor and outdoor storage, light fabrication, and office use upon
property located at 7407 South 27th Street. The vote was 4-1-1, five 'ayes', no 'noes'
and no absents.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023-__, imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use for a fence wholesale and distribution use with indoor
and outdoor storage, light fabrication, and office use upon property located at 7407
South 27th Street.

(Master Halco, applicant)

Department of City Development: NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN MILWAUKEE COUNTY
Draf 12-11-23

RESOLUTION NO. 2023

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR
THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT FOR A FENCE

WAREHOUSE, DISTRIBUTION, AND FABRICATION BUSINESS USE WITH
OUTDOOR STORAGE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7407 SOUTH 27TH

STREET
(BY MASTER-HALCO, INC. APPLICANT,
PLATT CONSTRUCTION INC., PROPERTY

OWNER)

WHEREAS, Master-Halco, Inc., having petitioned the City of Franklin for the
approval of a Special Use Amendment for a fence warehouse, distribution, and fabrication
business use with outdoor storage upon property located at 7407 South 27th Street, such
Special Use having been approved on February 4, 1992 by Resolution No. 92-3753, zoned
B-4 South 27th Street Mixed Use Commercial District. The property which is the subject of
the application bears Tax Key No. 761 9994 006 and is more particularly described as
follows:

PARCEL 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 5794, RECORDED ON
JANUARY 14, 1993 ON REEL 2948, IMAGE 745 TO 749 AS DOCUMENT
NO. 6715343, BEING A DIVISION OF LANDS IN THE SOUTHEAST ¼
AND SOUTHWEST¼ OF THE NORTHEAST¼ OF SECTION 12, TOWN
5 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, EXCEPTING THEREFROM LANDS
CONVEYED IN WARRANTY DEED RECORDED AUGUST 21, 2014 AS
DOCUMENT NO. 10387598, SAID LAND BEING IN THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN, COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE, STATE OF WISCONSIN.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of $15- 9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 9th day ofNovember, 2023 and continued to and held on the 7th day of
December, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having determined to recommend that
the proposed Special Use Amendment be approved, subject to certain conditions, and the
Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use Amendment upon such
conditions, pursuant to $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that they will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property;
that they will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that they will be
served adequately by essential public facilities and services; that they will not cause undue



MASTER-HALCO, INC. - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-
Page 2

traffic congestion; and that they will not result in damage to property of significant
importance to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use Amendment, subject
to conditions, meet the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition ofMaster-Halco, Inc. for the approval of a
Special Use Amendment for the property particularly described in the preamble to this
Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

1. That this Special Use Amendment is approved only for the use of the subject
property by Master-Halco, Inc., successors and assigns, for a fence warehouse
and distribution use with light fabrication and outdoor storage, which shall be
developed in substantial compliance with, and owned and operated and
maintained by Master-Halco, Inc., pursuant to those plans City file-stamped
October 23, 2023 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Master-Halco, Inc., successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of Franklin the
amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees incurred by
the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for the
Master-Halco, Inc. Special Use Amendment, within 30 days of invoice for same.
Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code,
the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Master-Halco, Inc. Special
Use Amendment for the property located at 7407 South 27th Street: (i) being in
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders
and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits,
licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed
and as presented for this approval.

4. Outdoor storage shall be limited to the concrete and gravel area located to the west
of the principal building and shall be kept in an orderly manner. No overnight
parking of commercial vehicles shall be allowed outside of the storage yard
located behind or to the west of the principal building.



MASTER-HALCO, INC. - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2023
Page 3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Master-Halco, Inc., successors or
assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any of the
conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Amendment Resolution, following a ten ( 10)
day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council,
upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use Amendment permission granted under
this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of
the Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to $15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be
a separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver
of that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Amendment Permit as is contemplated by $15-9.0103 of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to 15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use Amendment permission granted under this
Resolution shall be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of Master
Halco' s acquisition of title to the subject property, unless the Special Use Amendment has
been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit for such use.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy ofthis Resolution in the Office of the Register ofDeeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
19th day of December, 2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 19th day ofDecember, 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor



MASTER-HALCO, INC. - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-
Page 4

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYESNOESABSENT



EXHIBIT A

PLANS CITY FILE-STAMPED OCTOBER 23, 2023

ATTACHED HERETO



9le0ii#
Franklin
f

WISCONSIN

7407 S. 27th Street
TKN: 761 9994 006

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 195 390 780 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate re/alive locallon ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor mformatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmeenng
or surveyingpurposes



--,,,,. Franklin...
WISCONSIN

7407 S. 27th Street
TKN: 761 9994 006

Property

%
I

)
I

I
l
'

J I I I EsIESE', n t
'1

1 r ~ I I If I I I
I

I . I

!

I
i

I. I

This map shows the approximate relallve locatwn ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor nformatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficent or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveying purposes

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 195 390 780 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo



Item C.2./D.1.

no CITY OF FRANKLIN +-iow

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 7, 2023
Special Use Amendment, Miscellaneous Application, and Site Plan Amendment

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the
Special Use application to the Common Council for decision based upon the recommended draft
Resolution and approve the Site Plan Amendment Application.
Project Name:
Property Owner:
Applicant:
Property Address/Tax Key Number:
Aldermanic District:
Agent:
Zoning District:
Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:

Staff Planner:

MasterHalco
Platt Construction Inc.
Mike Uhl, Master Halco
7407 $ 27" st./ 761 9994 006
District 4
Luke Sebald, Keller Inc.
B-4 South 27 t Mixed Use Commercial District
B-4 S.27" St Mixed Use Commercial District (north),
BP Business Park and OL-1 Office Overlay (south),
R-6 Suburban Single-Family Residence and OL-1 Office
Overlay (west),
City of Oak Creek (east)
To allow for a fence wholesale and distribution use with
light fabrication and outdoor storage and associated site
changes.
Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate

Background
The applicant, Master Halco, is seeking Special Use Amendment/Miscellaneous Application and Site
Plan Amendment approval to operate a fence wholesale and distribution use with light fabrication and
outdoor storage. The Special Use and Site Plan Amendment are described in detail further below.

The site is currently being utilized by Platt Construction, which first obtained Special Use approval in
1992 via Resolution No. 92-3753. This Special Use allowed for an "outdoor construction yard and
storage in conjunction with an office building and indoor storage building."

The proposed use is similar in nature and will utilize the site and buildmng mn manner cons1stent wnth the
original spec1al use approval

SPECIAL USE

The subject property is zoned B-4 South 27 Street Mixed Use Commercial District. Master Halco
anticipates approximately 12 to 15 employees and hours of operation between 7:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.
Monday through Friday.

The applicant has indicated that the business is not generally open to the public and sales are business to
business. The majority of the product is stored outside within the storage yard located to the west of the



main building. This building will contain space for light fabrication of gates, racked storage, and office
space.

The applicant has provided responses to the Special Use standards listed within Section 15-3.0701 of the
UDO for Plan Commission and Common Council review.

SITE PLAN

The applicant is proposing a variety of site modifications. The building is also proposed to be painted
as illustrated on the attached elevations.

The site changes include, but are not limited to:
•

•
•

•

•
•
•

Relocating light poles, removing a walkway, and removing trees to construct a new 27-stall
parking lot in front of the principal building adjacent to South 27Street.

o Parking spaces are 9' wide and 19' in length (171 square feet). It appears a 20' long
parking space could be achieved with adjustments to the design, in part by reducing the
drive aisle to 24-feet. Staffrecommendsparking spaces be a munmum of9' wde and
180 square feet n complance wth Section 15-5 0202 ofthe UDO. It can be noted that
allowance for slightly shorter parking spaces has been allowed in past developments
with the consideration of an overhang when parking spaces are abutting a curb.

Removing parking lot landscape islands that are located to the north of the building.
Adding 18 deciduous trees, 8 evergreen trees, and 127 shrubs, which is in conformance with
landscaping quantity requirements of the UDO.
Adding building lighting, including lighting on the multiple sheds located to the west of the
main building and to the rear of the main building.
Adding parking lot lighting for the new parking lot.
Construction of a storm water pond at the southwest corner of the property.
Proposing to add crushed gravel and concrete on the west side of the property.

o The site plan indicates an existing impervious area of 6.168 acres and greenspace of
2.186 acres. The proposed improvements will result in a total impervious area of 5.753
acres and greenspace of 2.601 acres. Staff finds that the increase in greenspace is due to
the proposed storm water pond. With a site size of 8.354 acres, about 2.51 acres of
greenspace is required per the 0.30 minimum LSR standard of the B-4 District.

o It can be noted that, in review of historical aerial photography, it is difficult to
determine the extent of the existing graveled areas over the years. It does appear the
existing fence location was in place and defined at the time of development. All
proposed improvements are within this area.

The applicant also provided a Natural Resource Protection Plan indicating that no protected natural
resources exist onsite. WDNR mapping was also reviewed and did not show any mapped wetlands
onsite.

AII B-4 District Development Standards are met. Note South 27" Street Design Overlay District
Standards do not apply as no new buildings are proposed and no building addition that increases floor
area by 50% is proposed.

Staff also finds the proposed modifications are in conformance with Part 5 Design Standards of the
UDO, except for the parking space size as noted above.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
2



The Plan Commission may recommend, and the Common Council may impose, conditions and limitations
on a Special Use application related to use, design and operation ($15-3 0701.D).

The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the Special Use
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached.
The resolution reflects recommended conditions of approval.

The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission approve the Site Plan
Amendment application for the proposed site modifications as depicted on the attached plans.

Recommended Conditions of Approval

• Special Use
o Outdoor storage shall be lmted to the fenced-mn concrete and gravel area located to

the west o[the princzpal butldzng and shall be kept mn an orderly manner as determzned
by the Zonmng Admnstrator or Plan Commission

o No overnght parking ofcommercal vehicles shall be allowed outsde of_the storage
yard located behznd or to the west ofthe pnnczpal buzlding

• Site Plan
o Fznal gradzng, eroszon control, and stormwater managementplans shall be approved

by the Engneermng Departmentprior to any land dzsturbance actzvztzes
o Parkang spaces shall be a mnmum of9' wde and 180 square feet n complance wth

Secton 15-5 0202 ofthe UDO [This condition must be added to the attached draft
resolution]

3



N r0
ll'.: ~
ro N

3 
N r0

N

0 ll'.:
z #
w 0....., 1-
u u
0

w
a, st
:, 0
« (

ro
0z

lO OZ:
M 0 9 1OS

CD
0

8w
st
0 <D

" a,r My

O 

w

0
VJ

__J

t-

w

<I::u
0(/) aJ
IIu
..cI (.)
CCL
.,-

~ 0

D

~,'·HS n) l33cUS HlLZ: S(.. Lv,,

69 09
M OZ,9Z: lOS



z
<!
_J
a..
w
f
(/)

0

3
u.

I

n
NNo

il,N

%
"'ow

Zm
wO
Jt;
0

0
(.) s
..J z

:t< Pia:: 1--

! CJ)!
i':,
"y° (J) CJ)

± "0z

1
I
I
1 af

00
00
00
00

CS?.llwAIUCi,ll ,_y,. JOuc,111::ira t,t)

H·s n) l331J.1S Hlll HlnOS
9 t00at0 , ·0N~ 11id@
IIIJn lSYJ 311!1.3 :JU.9
81ul;J lUl0.-.o:,

( tt,

z---lCLlllllii,..-,

"

!ii< iii!i i
<(
fw
0

6
'11u
(/]

[I]
O'
::Ju

e
w 8
O' e

9°
0u
w
0
vi
3s

~
"i'
fw
0

G,;;
u

i
ks
u 0z z
0u
w
0
vi
I
Cl
I

·"'

(/]

.:s
[I]rt· {1
:::Ju

e
I, ~' .I •
I
I
I

_/

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

l
I
I
I

~--7
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

(

I
I
I
I
I
I

'%4
sl
ii

I
I
I

¥<

z
5

><
a.~-
<5 4l<a
<o 2
t ~ 0

0;~
I

i
ci a;
8



z
<[
_J
CL

>-1-
_J

1-
::>
0z
<[
<.!)
z
0
<t
0:::
t9
w
1-
(/)

I
I I I
I! I
11 Iite:1:

" I : Ii .Ll_L -,5 3,
· ;lhe
L _,' f

."I"
I
I

'I
l ;

-~

'±.
;:
!:!~

,;!
4

!

;: ~
;

I

!ds,~~



0 z
<(0 s _J

.J z a..

£ ? _Jz
~ 0

a:: "- O::'.
I- I-

! CJ) z:cI- 0....
C/)

y u
CJ)

£ .... zC)

.:': 0
(/)
0
O::'.
LU

0
('I)
()

l !I
11

"1 I
I I

Clzw
"':ie

I
I
I

I
\

:l .l0.9l.lO N
(•..D .OtJ.alJNil'fl'

(Sj11fYJlH1C.lll.AVII.JOl~fll:>l.e<t.!}

HSn) 1338IS HLLLv



uooa,,:u o:nv.,~ll'>Y>< 1,111-u1

~ " ~ £g '"~ ~ .--
.--

I ' ! Q_
;,; ! (/)

0

~ i • _Jil 5 0 ~

es +!•I~;: ,1; ~JI ~·· !12i!H: !3» +sa ts .·'i" '-! Ilhi !h !
5 +j¢ ~•I~• ,. • ~# #%; ~IM •n I.i# ;
s 'y' ipi+ .± £ ±; IUHWr u! Iss {~i&e z 'an 4°+!

[ill]
[ill]
O!iJ
[]O

.~
(
(

-- -}

i
I
I
(

I II .

j.
j

'I
i
I

t

s n) 1 nms Hill HLnos

l
l,

. l,

o}l 4
y'e'; t I
I l,

(,
I (I

a.,.,...-11--------~--~-----'T, L
l,

l
( , )
( I

~ ~-=---
( I
( ,.
l "l ,
l
(
(
l
(
l
(
(
l
(
l

§ (

i
l
(
(
l
(
(
l
( I~ I•: )
8}

\ •~ ..
, l 1·~ )l,3

al ( I )

. l )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

: ~
I 1
I

I
I

I
Ii



g h h li•j $ 4fiii ei . '"
i

-~ ISIIOJD~ -...,-ilQJOU Pfllkjl put' '!QWu,roop ..,._ ~ :o.,~•-'fJ. --..-AJCCJ IRUCP!PPl"~ •~i!u,r,p o 1parc,,:. ;iqAe,u,i~ ,i s,g .&M:11"'1P-'~ sg-liwd~

S9NIMJfl/O :IS:IH.1 :111':JS.lON00-A1NOM:II/13ll ONt' 9Nllt'HLIS:ll/O:I Al/WJIHIUlld NO.u:Jnlll.SNtJ:J 110:l.l.ON

I
! I

[

II!
I
I

I EU H
[ill]
[ill]
Im I
[ill]

f
)
)

I
~
)
)
)
)
)
)

~

L ..



saohand par,au.uppnugoo io ppg guy uy posn aq pupo pu sguounopugupooo eug po au a3geoppee $op0o euope berg up o poofs aq Aeuu g go es3uloud pa3.uquarocp ss3bo g. a .,,

-S!JNIMffl/0 :153HL nr::,s.lON00-A1NOM:II/el/ ONI"'9NI..l.rNI.1S:1l/0:/ Allt'NINflillld NOn.:Jflll.lSNCJ:J l/C>./ .lON

'was [ I
?
i
)
)
)
)
)
)

•)

I
..,. I

I: I
I I
I I
I I
1 I
:\: I
t I
I I

¥-'J! 1 ri• l '
a {-l;i

1
l
I
i
I
!
I
I 5l
I ·ii'
I
1
:1

t
t
I
I
i
4..

l
·1

I
I
I
I

I
r
I

11
I
I

1\

' )1I )

I )

I >
)

I
I

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
f



as9od d pep+-0po0» po up/unon ooson oq ou pros poreopuse4oo pecoy ua asager poor sou moo9popebppo '3e o19rsa9woregssud9Pero99a d au
~S9NIMr1110 3S3H.1 31"3S.10N00~.A 1NOM3I/13ll ONV9NllnillS3 110:I~ .AllWIINn3lld NOI.I:Jllll.LSND.3 ll0:l.10N

r--

&
3ze=z
~
§
<.z 'z I

I
@

3

;;:
tu
0
l)
5l
§
z
:5
(L

l)
5l
w
0
<(e,

I

I (

t:-"4 Jo= -.1 .-i ,, J.. ' •
\El""JJ' li'M;!'.1-""'~"'\!•rl"\);,o'; '

I~
I

±
0
t'lz
\,:s
Q_
ww
"'~
V,
::,

iz
0u

~
0
z
0g

·o
"'Q_
ww~ •(.'.) !z
!;; !x

(~



ii
! '

I
I

I j

i I
I I

~ p:qep....,.,_ ,o~ l"'!i "'J-~ JDU W'O<l' .,.... -.,. illllp...,.._,~ JDU :ll ~~ ppp pue--lk.'P'PU!~ <q µa(,:;P.s aqANi 11JnlU!1~ ~~ SRl lio.<l ~ "-l!.
·S9NIMrntO :IS:IH.L-:i7~S.10NOO-.A1NOAULUllONrtSNUl'lflUS:lllO:I .AllrtNIHfl3lld NOI.L:Jflll.1.SNii3 ll~iON

I Hm
u , l:i

§ £ f ~ ......
± ......

0
:r:

f a...



~~,.,...,,.""4.,,_,:,qioullflllll'p,,,~,..._,..,llll\lJOUal•~----IRU'!A~~-..!kmpcq~:,q-'11~11~J»PJ~!l9o5oodxa.,u
-S!JN"iAtrlll03S3H.L :11t':JS.10N00-Aii,liJM:1bUl/ONY9NI.l.YNUS:I110:I - Alll'IJIHfl:11/d NOI.J.:Jflll.lSNID 110:i.10N

N
r--

j 0
;; il I.1 •j .. o._iS t !

$ • l LI .. HH +# t•fiu
±
E
2

4 ::J ?is£ " ,i ii

ih
iil

I
11

i
I

i I

I
i I



I g % $ (")
' ~

.....-
0

11
:r:

I 0...

~~-..~Jl":1!'CYIU"'~-Jll"lllfl"':!-~--~-~-~~~';llk;apaipajQ>s;,qAew1:,-..'8"-'i&oa:l~-..l:~-!lcu:l~1
--s!JNIM1'110 :IS:IHL nr:Js10N00-A7NO M:II/1311ONV9Nlll'HUS3110:J - AllVNlNfl:llld NOU:Jfllll.SN03110:l.I.ON

!. .
hi11. liu~6 "I

E

E,-1 t,. ~-~ I 4 ii
Ag • it ~~

lfl~~,
J

~~
c., Ilg ti a:: £3:

Zt)-aa: "' WQ
~ .l ~ p

E
1-u ~ .£±4 2 s ?z ;; EH ~ <l! ± £ :tr

; •I•. ..,
Ill

·5

-iH• n

•I•
Illw
=CJ

Eiu
$
2
\;;~;
g
tDs

(-0

◄I►;
1,.H
I.II;

=·(JI

l; i
I

i
I

wl

2
I
:I

'@I 3
I 1i1ex! :li

8

. '1-fJ If

Ui.i

!I!!

,,:·.i--;
J_ f i l J l I

!l!l h

,iy
} a,
l•
d!\iii ~

l

.....!___d1 !~

l
l --:P'i_ l'." 'l ;:aiJ1d uluH
LI l

I I
l, I '

h

Ip:,
di

l
!
l,t
l
I
I

,i 1·I
l I'



Exhibit A

lffl

tll

---- t,I
3
I
I
I
I
)
\
I
I
\
\
I
I
I
/
I
I

(Rli/O.!JUU7)
331.7 --

'-
\
)
\
\
\

27TH STREET (U S.H
(i'll et.:c ll :Qlrc."A Wilm v .-.?a~SJ

n·7~~~i!. ',.,
#

' 0

i

.1- fe,

\
\
\
\

(Rm. KotTOO"IZ- r}
N 0l"28'oT E

f ~ '-
/ \
I \. --;;:9L- _ - '\,

ll-----,;,~.,.~"===.,------~---Fi1
\
\
\.

'\

I

\
\

--

- I j - ii;
:t j(

~ l· ,;
41 ) I , i·

~,r-=-=-------.ac--c;;=o--;•;a-;-;.;--;.;;-;_c,=;;--c-,cc-.-c,-c;,.;;,we;,-;;;_;;;,,,--'-------~1~...

#i er
·- #,; i

440+9%9%%

#%##ie#gt
r1

~ q lQeJ;t 1J ®®@X•X1Jt

#{4:9141i i ! i - t I ~
. '

"·3±
1::ii
U1

%









APPROVAL

a
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT AT

TABLE 15-3.0603 STANDARD
INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION TITLE
NO. 8041 "OFFICES AND CLINICS OF
CHIROPRACTORS" TO ALLOW SUCH
USE AS A SPECIAL USE IN THE M-1
LIMITED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

(ELEAH GLANDER, GLANDER FAMILY
CHIROPRACTIC, APPLICANT)

MEETING
DATE

12/19/23

ITEM NUMBER

At its December 7, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached ordinance to amend the Unified Development Ordinance text
at Table 15-3.0603 Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 8041 "Offices and
Clinics of Chiropractors" to allow such use as a Special Use in the M-1 Limited
Industrial District (Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic, Applicant). The vote
was 5-0-1, five 'ayes', no 'noes' and one absent.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-__, an ordinance to amend the Unified
Development Ordinance text at Table 15-3.0603 Standard Industrial Classification
Title No. 8041 "Offices and Clinics of Chiropractors" to allow such use as a Special
Use in the M-1 Limited Industrial District (Eleah Glander, Glander Family
Chiropractic, Applicant).

Department of City Development: NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

ORDINANCE NO. 2023

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT
AT TABLE 15-3.0603 STANDARD INDUSTRIAL CLASSIFICATION TITLE NO. 8041

"OFFICES AND CLINICS OF CHIROPRACTORS" TO ALLOW SUCH USE AS A
SPECIAL USE IN THE M-1 LIMITED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

(ELEAH GLANDER, GLANDER FAMILY CHIROPRACTIC,
APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Table 15-3.0603 of the Unified Development Ordinance sets forth the
permitted and special uses in the nonresidential zoning districts; and

WHEREAS, Eleah Glander having applied for a text amendment to Table 15-3.0603
to amend the Unified Development Ordinance text at Table 15-3.0603 Standard Industrial
Classification (SIC) Title No. 8041 "Offices and Clinics of Chiropractors", to allow for such
use as a Special Use in the M-1 Limited Industrial District.

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission having reviewed the proposed amendment to
change SIC Code No. 8041 "Offices and Clinics of Chiropractors" to a Special Use in the M
l Limited Industrial District, and having held a public hearing on the proposal on the 7th day
of December, 2023 and thereafter having recommended approval of such amendment; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having accepted the recommendation of the Plan
Commission and having determined that the proposed amendment is consistent with the 2025
Comprehensive Master Plan of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin and will serve to further
orderly growth and development and promote the health, safety and welfare of the
Community.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin,
do ordain as follows:

SECTION 1: Table 15-3.0603 of the Unified Development Ordinance of the
Municipal Code of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, only as it pertains
to: Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 8041 "Offices and
Clinics of Chiropractors", is hereby amended as follows: insert "S"
(Special Use) in the M-1 column

SECTION 2: The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any
term or provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the remaining terms and provisions shall remain
in full force and effect.



ORDINANCE NO. 2023
Page 2

SECTION 3: All ordinances and parts of ordinances m contravention to this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its
passage and publication.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
19th day of December, 2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 19th day ofDecember, 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Item C.3. & C.4.

wt CITY OF FRANKLIN mu»

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 7, 2023
Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment and Special Use Applications

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the
Unified Development Ordinance and Special Use application to the Common Council for decision
based upon the recommended draft Ordinance and Resolution with conditions as attached.
Project Name: Glander Family Chiropractic

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/Tax Key Number:

Aldermanic District:

Agent:

Zoning District:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:

Staff Planner:

ACG ACQUISITIONS #10 LLC
D/B/A ANDERSON COMMERCIAL GRP

Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic

11217 West Forest Home Avenue/748 9961 001

District 6

Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic

M-1 Limited Industrial District

M-1 zoned property to the north and south, Woodland
Prairie Condominiums to the east and B-3 zoned property
and single-family residential to the west

To allow SIC Code No. 8041 Offices and clinics of
Chiropractors within the M-1 District as a Special Use
and approval of a Special Use Permit for Glander Family
Chiropractic.

Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate

Project Description and Analysis
The applicant has filed a Unified Ordinance Text Amendment and Special Use applications to allow
for Glander Family Chiropractic to locate and operate within Unit 3 of 11217 West Forest Home
Avenue.

More specifically, the applicant is requesting to amend Table 15-3.0603 to add Standard Industrial
Classification Title No. 8041 "Offices and Clinics of Chiropractors" as a Special Use in the M-1
Limited Industrial District. Currently SIC Code No. 8041 is not allowed within the M-1 District.

The applicant also concurrently filed a Special Use Application specifically for Glander Family
Chiropractic.

Glander Family Chiropractic is a chiropractic offering chiropractic services and massage therapy. The
tenant space is approximately 2,000 square feet. Staff does not anticipate any parking issues with the
existing shared parking lot consisting of about 90 parking spaces. Hours of operations vary as outlined



within the applicant's project narrative, but are not anticipated to begin earlier than 9:00 a.m. or later
than 7:00 p.m.

There are no exterior building or site changes proposed at this time.

StaffRecommendation
City Development Staffrecommends approval of the Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment
to amend Table 15-3.0603 to add Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 8041 "Offices and Clinics
of Chiropractors" as a Special Use in the M-1 Limited Industrial District.

The Plan Commission may recommend, and the Common Council may impose, conditions and
limitations on a Special Use application related to use, design and operation(§ 15-3 .070 l .D).

The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the Special Use
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached.
The resolution reflects recommended conditions of approval.

2



3
I o

N
..l:

}

I5 N ,:., ,:.,

I <le if.

a, if.i:o

.: V} 00 tfl tfl tfl

if. Vl

tfl tr. VJ n

a

111
o!i

(ll

(ll

,:.,

.,.._, -:-r1 a,
=es3!3333333
•)C 00 OC 00 •h 00 ,_;t; 00 QC 00 00 00



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL

OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A
CHIROPRACTIC OFFICE AND SERVICES

BUSINESS USE UPON PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 11217 WEST FOREST HOME

AVENUE (BY ELEAH GLANDER,
GLANDER FAMILY CHIROPRACTIC,
APPLICANT) (ACG ACQUISITIONS #10
LLC (D/B/A ANDERSON COMMERCIAL

GRP), PROPERTY OWNER)

MEETING
DATE

12/19/23

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #6

At its December 7, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached special use resolution for a chiropractic office and services
business use upon property located at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue (By Eleah
Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic, Applicant) (ACG Acquisitions #10 LLC (d/b/a
Anderson Commercial Grp), Property Owner). The vote was 5-0-1, five 'ayes', no
'noes' and no absents.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023-__, imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use for a chiropractic office and services business use
upon property located at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue (By Eleah Glander,
Glander Family Chiropractic, Applicant) (ACG Acquisitions #10 LLC (d/b/a
Anderson Commercial Grp), Property Owner).

Department of City Development: NJF



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR
THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A CHIROPRACTIC OFFICE AND

SERVICES BUSINESS USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 11217 WEST FOREST
HOME AVENUE (BY ELEAH GLANDER, GLANDER FAMILY CHIROPRACTIC,
APPLICANT, ACG ACQUISITIONS #10 LLC (D/B/A ANDERSON COMMERCIAL

GRP, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic having petitioned the City
of Franklin for the approval of a Special Use for a chiropractic office business use upon
property located at 11217 West Forest Home Avenue, zoned M-1 Limited Industrial District.
The property which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 748 9961 001 and is
more particularly described as follows:

Parcel A:
Parcell of Certified Survey Map No. 4982, recorded on July 21, 1987, on Reel 2121,
Images 1575 to 1577 inclusive, as Document No. 6086366, being a part of the
Northwest 1/4 and the Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, Town 5 North,
Range 21 East, in the City ofFranklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin

Parcel B:
Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 4076, recorded on August 10, 1981, on Reel
1394, Images 1488 to 1490 inclusive, as Document No. 5493488, being a part of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin,
County ofMilwaukee, State of Wisconsin.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 7th day of December, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that they will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that
they will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that they will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that they will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that they will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and



ELEAH GLANDER, GLANDER FAMILY CHIROPRACTIC- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023
Page 2

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meet the standards set forth under $15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Eleah Glander, Glander Family
Chiropractic, for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the
preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following
conditions and restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Eleah
Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic, successors and assigns, for a chiropractic
office business use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with, and
operated and maintained by Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic, pursuant
to the project narrative dated October 31, 2023 and associated plan submittal
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic, successors and assigns, shall pay to
the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and
review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City
of Franklin, for the Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic Special Use,
within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a
violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9.0502
thereof and § 1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies
provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Eleah Glander, Glander
Family Chiropractic Special Use for the property located at 11217 West Forest
Home Avenue: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws,
statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other
governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable
to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Eleah Glander, Glander Family
Chiropractic, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply
with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a
ten (10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common
Council, upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this
Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than



ELEAH GLANDER, GLANDER FAMILY CHIROPRACTIC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023
Page 3

$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
19th day of December, 2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this 19" day ofDecember, 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



ELEAH GLANDER, GLANDER FAMILY CHIROPRACTIC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023
Page 4

EXHIBIT A

ATTACHED HERETO



g
Franklin◄

WISCONSIN

11217 W. Forest Home Ave.
TKN: 748 9961 001

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 155 310 620 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relatve locaton ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor nformatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveymgpurposes



;)I grr

,,,,, Franklin
◄

WISCONSIN

I l

Property

! i

I
i I
I I

%l
l I

11217 W. Forest Home Ave.
TKN: 748 9961 001

'8°I I
I I
I j

I II
j i

I :
i 1 !

I
I I !g

I
eiI ti

j I. I
) I

I i

f
J
I
I

1
I Ii'IgI •

t

5
/!
• J

I
I
\

I
j

I

j
I

I
i

I
!

v··--
/s/

IS I/}
i /
I I
I iI . I;Li

-II
Ii/I/l

,I

L,
11 I

I/

This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professzonal land surveyor
This map sprovidedfor nformatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engzneerzng
or surveyingpurposes

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 155 310 620 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo



-co CITY OF FRANKLIN r;a
e'Franklun

Item C.3. & C.4.

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 7, 2023
Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment and Special Use Applications

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the
Unified Development Ordinance and Special Use application to the Common Council for decision
based upon the recommended draft Ordinance and Resolution with conditions as attached.
Project Name: Glander Family Chiropractic

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/Tax Key Number:

Aldermanic District:

Agent:

Zoning District:

Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:

Staff Planner:

ACG ACQUISITIONS #10 LLC
D/B/A ANDERSON COMMERCIAL GRP

Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic

11217 West Forest Home Avenue/748 9961 001

District 6

Eleah Glander, Glander Family Chiropractic

M-1 Limited Industrial District

M-1 zoned property to the north and south, Woodland
Prairie Condominiums to the east and B-3 zoned property
and single-family residential to the west

To allow SIC Code No. 8041 Offices and clinics of
Chiropractors within the M-1 District as a Special Use
and approval of a Special Use Permit for Glander Family
Chiropractic.

Nick Fuchs, Planning Associate

Project Description and Analysis
The applicant has filed a Unified Ordinance Text Amendment and Special Use applications to allow
for Glander Family Chiropractic to locate and operate within Unit 3 of 11217 West Forest Home
Avenue.

More specifically, the applicant is requesting to amend Table 15-3.0603 to add Standard Industrial
Classification Title No. 8041 "Offices and Clinics of Chiropractors" as a Special Use in the M-1
Limited Industrial District. Currently SIC Code No. 8041 is not allowed within the M-I District.

The applicant also concurrently filed a Special Use Application specifically for Glander Family
Chiropractic.

Glander Family Chiropractic is a chiropractic offering chiropractic services and massage therapy. The
tenant space is approximately 2,000 square feet. Staffdoes not anticipate any parking issues with the
existing shared parking lot consisting of about 90 parking spaces. Hours of operations vary as outlined



within the applicant's project narrative, but are not anticipated to begin earlier than 9:00 a.m. or later
than 7:00 p.m.

There are no exterior building or site changes proposed at this time.

Staff Recommendation
City Development Staff recommends approval of the Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment
to amend Table 15-3.0603 to add Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 8041 "Offices and Clinics
of Chiropractors" as a Special Use in the M-1 Limited Industrial District.

The Plan Commission may recommend, and the Common Council may impose, conditions and
limitations on a Special Use application related to use, design and operation (§15-3.0701.D).

The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the Special Use
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached.
The resolution reflects recommended conditions of approval.

2



Exhibit A

October 3 1, 2023

City of Franklin

9229 W. Loomis Road

Franklin, WI 53132

To Whom It May Concern,

Glander Family Chiropractic is a chiropractic office that is run by Dr. Eleah Glander. Dr. Glander
has been practicing for almost 12 years and has been practicing at her current location in Hales
Comers for 8 years.

Chiropractic is a gentle, non-invasive healthcare technique performed by a licensed Doctor of
Chiropractic; the technique emphasizes the body's ability to heal itself. This is done through
manual manipulation ofjoints in the spinal column to remove spinal misalignments, which in
tum removes nerve interference allowing the body to function to the best of its ability.

Glander Family Chiropractic also utilizes electrical stimulation therapy, therapeutic ultrasound,
neuromuscular re-education and intersegmental traction to address adhesions in the soft tissue
that may be inhibiting spinal recovery.

Glander Family Chiropractic currently employs a doctor of chiropractic, an office
manager/chiropractic technician and a second chiropractic technician that specializes in
neuromuscular re-education.

Glander Family Chiropractic is looking to move the office to a new location at 11217 W. Forest
Home Ave, Suite 3, Franklin WI. This location is currently M-1. Glander Family Chiropractic is
looking to amend the UDO to add SIC 8041, "Offices and Clinics of Chiropractors" to be a
special use in the M-1 district.

The 11217 W Forest Home Ave, Suite 3 location is 2000 square feet. There is an attached
parking lot that has 90 parking spaces. Although there will not be dedicated parking spaces for
Glander Family Chiropractic, there should be ample parking for patients of the clinic, as no more
than 10 spaces, including for staffparking, are needed at any given time during the day.
Additionally, the hours of operation for the clinic are Monday 2pm-6-7pm, Tuesday 9am- 12pm
and 2pm-6pm, Wednesdays 9:30am-12 and 2pm-4:30pm, Thursdays 9am-12pm and 2pm-7pm
and Friday 9am-12pm.

Respectfully,

Dr. Eleah Glander DC

Glander Family Chiropractic



DIVISION 15-3.0700
REGULATIONS

SECTION 15-3.0701

Exhibit A

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

l. Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use
and development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this
Ordinance was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were
established and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive
Master Plan or element thereof.

Response: correct. The proposed chiropractic office wouldjoin a number ofbusinesses
located along that stretch ofForestHome.

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial
or undue adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character
of the area, or the public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not
substantially diminish and impair property values within the community or neighborhood.

Response: correct. Glander Family Chiropractic's operating hours are Monday 2pm-6-
7pm, Tuesday 9am-12pm and 2pm-6pm, Wednesdays 9:30am-12 and 2pm-4:30pm,
Thursdays 9am-12pm and 2pm-7pm and Friday 9am-12pm. No patients will be at the
location outside of those operating hours.

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development
will be constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or
to interfere with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the
applicable zoning district regulations.

Response: correct. There is already afreestanding building at the proposed chiropractic
office location, and minimal changes are required to the outside of the building.
The office would simply bejoining a stretch of the road along which a variety of
businesses are already located.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities
including public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse
disposal, public parks, libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the
applicant will provide adequately for such facilities.

Response: correct. Patients will be able to take a main street to the office, and there is a

Page [1



parking lot off the roadforpatients to park in. Additionally, theparking lot has
easy access in and out of the road. The office will not put undue strain on
resources along that stretch ofForest HomeAve.

5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets.

Response: correct. The office is not located on a residential street, andpatients will be
able to drive to the location without taking any residential streets. Additionally,
there is ample offstreetparking available onsite at theproposed location.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not
result in the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of
significant importance.

Response: correct. No construction outside of the building is required, so the
environmental impact ofthe proposed location is minimal.

7. Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may,
in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations
of the Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all
additional standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and
Ordinance authorizing such use.

Response: correct. All regulationsfor the special use will be met.

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations
authorize a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as
having special standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division,
a Special Use Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or
granted unless the applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response: correct. All compliance with special standards will be met.

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the
foregoing standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall
consider the following:

1. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the
particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that
is in the interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of

Page I 2



the neighborhood or community.

Response: Theproposed location isfor a chiropractic office. The doctor currently sees
a number ofpatients in the Franklin area. Practicing at this location will allow
the wellness and healthcare needs ofthe community to continue to be met.

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the
location of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that
may be more appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: After an exhaustive search, no better location has beenfound that would be
a more appropriate spacefor a chiropractic office. Any otherpropertiesfor sale
in the area require extensive renovations, or are extremely close to existing
chiropractic offices. The proposed site does not have another chiropractor
nearby. Operating in theproposed space would give residents and workers in the
area a closer location to go for their health and wellness needs.

3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been
taken to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the
immediate vicinity through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response: The exterior building requires no renovations before the chiropractic office
would be able to start operations. There is already aparking lot sufficiently large
enough to accommodate parking for employees and patients. The space is also
already wheelchair accessible. No changes to the current site design or
landscaping are required.

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether
the use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in
the surrounding area.

Response: There are already a number of businesses operating along the requested
location. Allowing a chiropractic office to operate in the proposed space will not
place undue stress or traffic in the neighborhood due to the number ofalready
functioning businesses surrounding the requested location for the chiropractic
office.

Page I 3



Exhibit A

September 15, 2023

City of Franklmn
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

To Whom It May Concern,

Spec1al Use Permit Legal Description of the property

Parcel A:
Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map No 4982, recorded on July 21, 1987, on Reel 2121, Images
1575 to 1577 inclusive, as Document No 6086366, being a part of the Northwest 1/4 and the
Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 6, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of
Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin

Parcel B
Parcel 2 of Certified Survey Map No 4076, recorded on August 10, 1981, on Reel 1394, Images
1488 to 1490 inclusive, as Document No 5493488, being a part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section
6, Town 5 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of
Wisconsin

For informational purposes only
Property Address 11217 West Forest Home Avenue (Parcel AJ and Vacant Land situated on
South 112th Street (Parcel BJ, Franklin, WI 53132
Tax Key Number 748-9961-001 (Parcel AJ and 748-9959-003 (Parcel BJ

Respectfully,

Dr Eleah Glander DC
Glander Family Chiropractic
10920 W Forest Home Ave
Hales Corners, WI



-/YO/J[>'/7 3 /_d
r✓/,:;:-/ '7-?,>/1?1 //Y/7.7/f'rf;,'?&/I peou a6pJJ.luuns seii

s1aau ,Hu3 pue spal! 1r-uv l
~I ·au1 'u6,saa p1011sa.u1.1 1'--

I.._

~
~
&'ii
'\\~r.i Is,

\ - ~
I

\~ -\ ' I ~
I..., _. I I- ... 'lJ, .'--4 ~ "~ 'I []] ;;s

I .. 4 ~~
,,.x,..

I at "" «
~ ~!--. ~-~

I 'I ~ ~{ ~~ " 'I /; 'l '\

""' il t,.
'-. .. ~I\) ..
\ --~ ~~ '"~ i~_} ~ ~~ "'

D ~~ '\ t f
' ·c-..1,- § ' $y

~ ;,._

~ ,_\_Ji~

+-' {
'\I\)·- y

...0 i::i t·- s N Ny...c:
~ \

i:.r.:l \'II
\- ~

3 11

' "~;;-- " $& :tj"i::' Ko M 'tii:::"
!~ ~-~ ,,

<\ I.~ ~, "-,. i~~ &r~~ I'\: t~ ... l'i '\
ti i:"t" U%«' ~il'- ~~

llJ -~ ~ rJ'l v
~ '\]~
t ~ '(

~ k} ,,
!
L \1 j\l.l~ > ~
~~ ' R

~~~ ';:

~~ i/.
~:~ i~ -l:----~~ ~1 {•° I;'

'-lK::l ~~~~ ~»
"~'-



.i

,~l!t-3
-t!

z#

;
i
f

!

M. .flZ.11:.ras

. .g,,....__,,,. e

-~ ,..,.onu ..,..,v .o,®
- - - 7 ~I I

.lii•~

-~
.OO'fll l

.~-.- er .;. .}!
3: <1-0-0-0-0- 0~" j t_

!";;

1
;-

I (LI .. <(

!, ::,:
.,:, g >-I !::::

i l zu
!"o............. >

"11.

i
j
e

~
i

z
~
i

e

~
i

;:..
N..,

ti
::::1

V)

(l)-,.....,
5h 5

"tl §.q ICll
...;i

au<s
...;i
""I;



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MEETING
DATE

12/19/23

REPORTS & ARESOLUTION TO AMENDRESOLUTION
NO. 2022-7873 IMPOSING CONDITIONS

RECOMMENDATIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FORTHE APPROVAL
OF A SPECIAL USE FORA
CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX

DEVELOPMENT USE UPONPROPERTY
LOCATEDAT 12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD

(STEPHENR. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF
BEARDEVELOPMENT, LLC,

APPLICANT, BOOMTOWN, LLC,
PROPERTYOWNER)

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #6

At its December 7, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached resolution to amend a previously granted special use permit
from 26 dwelling units arranged in 13 duplex structures to 13 single-family detached
dwelling units. The vote was 5-0-1, five 'ayes', no 'noes' and one absent.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023-__, to amend Resolution No. 2022-7873
imposing conditions and restrictions for the approval of a special use for a
condominium complex development use upon property located at 12000 West Loomis
Road (Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, applicant, Boomtown,
LLC, property owner).

Department of City Development: RM



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY
[Draft 12-13-23]

A RESOLUTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 2022-7873 IMPOSING
CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR
A CONDOMINIUM COMPLEX DEVELOPMENT USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED

AT
12000 WEST LOOMIS ROAD

(STEPHEN R. MILLS, PRESIDENT OF BEAR DEVELOPMENT, LLC,
APPLICANT, BOOMTOWN, LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC having
petitioned the City of Franklin for the approval of an amendment to Resolution No. 2022
7873, to allow for the development of a condominium complex ("Woodfield Trail"),
consisting of 26 dwelling units arranged in 13 side-by-side duplex structures, property
located at 12000 West Loomis Road, bearing Tax Key No. 891-9011-000, more particularly
described as follows:

Condominium Plat of Woodfield Trail, a Condominium. Being a part of the
Southwest¼ of the Northwest¼ of the Northwest¼ of Section 30, Township
5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.; and

WHEREAS, such proposed amendment being from 26 dwelling units arranged in 13
side-by-side duplex structures to 13 single-family detached dwelling units; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 7th day of December, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use amendment be approved, subject to
certain conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use
upon such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will
be in harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the
Comprehensive Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining
property; that it will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will
be served adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue
traffic congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance
to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use amendment, subject to
conditions, meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2023---
Page2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, for the approval of a Special Use amendment from 26 dwelling units
arranged in 13 side-by-side duplex structures to 13 single-family detached dwelling units for
the property particularly described in the preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is
hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and restrictions:

1. That this Special Use amendment is approved only for the use of the subject property
by Stephen R. Mills, President ofBear Development, LLC, successors and assigns, as
a condominium complex development use, which shall be developed in substantial
compliance with, and operated and maintained by Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, pursuant to those plans dated March 8, 2023 and annexed hereto
and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC, successors and assigns, shall
pay to the City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and
review fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of
Franklin, for the Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear Development, LLC
condominium complex development, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance,
and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general
penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon Stephen R. Mills, President of
Bear Development, LLC, and the condominium complex development use, for the
property located at 12000 West Loomis Road: (i) being in compliance with all
applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii)
obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for
and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this approval.

4. The pedestrian path on the south side ofRyan Road, between the future Woodfield
Court and the east boundary of this development, should be included in the
development agreement.

5. The applicant must submit revised utility plans depicting 13 single-family detached
units to the Engineering Department for review and approval.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Stephen R. Mills, President of Bear
Development, LLC, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not
comply with one or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution,
following a ten (10) day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the
Common Council, upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted
under this Resolution.



WOODFIELD TRAIL CONDOMINIUMS - SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT
RESOLUTION NO. 2023--
Page 3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be an
amendment to such Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and that all of the terms and conditions of 2022-7873, not
specifically and expressly amended by or in direct conflict with this Resolution, shall remain
in full force and effect.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



---i
I

pinnacle engr com

I
f---

J

)

CONSTRUCTIONFOR

\
\

I
\

ja
~ -,

0zz
>nrm

N OVERVIEWSITE



Franklin
w S C O N S I N

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 7, 2023

Special Use Amendment

Item C.5.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staffrecommends approval of this Special Use amendment
subject to the conditions set forth in the attached resolution.

Project name:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

Boomtown, LLC - Special Use Amendment

Boomtown, LLC

S.R. Mills. Boomtown, LLC

12000 W. Loomis Road / 891 9011 000

District 6

R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, AICP, CNUa, Principal Planner

Please note:
• Recommendations are underlined, mn talcs and are included in the draft resolution.
• Suggestions are only underlined and are not included in the draft resolution.

Project Description/Analysis
The applicant received a special use permit for a condominium development consisting of 26 dwelling
units arranged in 13 duplex structures (Resolution 2022-7873). This request is to amend said special use
permit to allow for a condominium development with 13 single-family homes.

This special use amendment doesn't require an amendment to the approved site plan as the applicant is
only requesting to build single-family homes within approved building footprints. It's worth noting that
in the R-8 zoning district, single-family and two-family dwellings are subject to the same development
standards, such as setbacks, lot coverage, building height, etc.

Background
This development was presented before the Common Council on April 5, 2021, as a Concept Review.
Then, this 15.6-acre site was created by Certified Survey Map No. 9338 recorded on August 6; and the
C-1 Conservancy District zoning was removed from such site by rezoning Ordinance No. 2021-2480 on
September 21. This development received a variance by the Board of Zoning and Building Appeals to
allow for a reduced 20-foot front setback on January 19, 2022; and a Natural Resource Special Exception
(NRSE) was granted on February 1 to allow for after-the-fact impacts to wetland buffers.

The special use permit for 13 duplex structures (26 dwelling units) was granted on June 21, 2022,
Resolution No. 2022-7873 and the Site Plan on June 9, 2022, Plan Commission Resolution 2022-016.

A condominium plat for 26 residential units was approved on September 6, 2022, Resolution No. 2022
7895. In November 2023, a condominium plat addendum was recorded depicting 13 single-family
dwellings as presented in this special use permit request. The cul-de-sac street "Sophia Court" was
dedicated to the city for right-of-way purposes by a warranty deed.



General standards for Special Uses (815-3.0701)
Summary of Staff's Finding
Standard
1. Harmony with The northern portion of this site is designated as residential-

UDO and multifamily in the future land use map of the Cty ofFranklin 2025
Comprehensive Comprehensive Master Plan The southern portion is designated as
Plan purposes and commercial but it is constrained by an access restriction to Loomis
intent. Road.

It is worth noting that per Wisconsin Statutes §66.1001(2m)(b) "A
condtonal use permt that may be ssued by a poltcal subdrvs1on
does not need to be consistent wth the poltcal subdvson's
comprehensrve plan"

2. No Undue Adverse City Development staffdoes not anticipate any "undue adverse
Impact. impact" to adjacent properties because conservation and landscape

were approved. The conservation easement area is located to the
west and east of the proposed development, as well as a landscape
bufferyard with a berm to the south along Loomis Road.

3. No Interference The proposed dwellings are designed to meet the maximum
with Surrounding permitted height for single-family and two-family homes in the R-8
Development. zoning district. This standard is not impacted by this amendment as

this site is previously approved for two-family dwellings.

4. Adequate Public The proposed development will be served by public water supply
Facilities. and sanitary sewer service. It is noted that access to public water and

sewer is a requirement for residential development in the R-8 zoning
district per UDO Section 15-3.0209.A "District Intent".

5. No Traffic Since this amendment is to reduce the quantity of dwellings, staff is
Congestion. not requesting a Traffic Impact Analysis.

6. No Destruction of The western portion is designated as Areas of Natural Resource
Significant Features in the comprehensive plan, the wetland areas located on this
Features. site are protected by a conservation easement required as condition

of approval of previous special use and site plan. This request is not
amending the previously approved site plan, no further impact to
natural resources is being proposed.

A Natural Resource Special Exception (NRSE) was granted with
conditions on February 1, 2022, to allow for after-the-fact impacts to
wetland buffers. This special use amendment is not altering the
conditions of approval of this NRSE.

7. Compliance with The previously approved special use complied with the requirements
Standards. of the R-8 Multiple-Family Residence District for single-family and

two-family residential use, including: building setbacks, building

2



height, required parking and landscaping. This amendment is not
impacting compliance with these standards.

The Board of Zoning and Building Appeals granted a variance on
January 19, 2022, for a reduced front setback of 20 feet in this
development, while the minimum front setback in the R-8 district is
25 feet.

Fire Department comments
1. Development must include satisfactory water supply infrastructure for firefighting operations.
2. Road constructed to accepted standards for fire department access.
3. Area not well served by existing fire station locations and staffing. Response times for Effective

Response Force for fire and EMS calls-for-service, and emergency incident types will likely exceed
accepted industry standards.

Engineering Department comments
No comment.

Staff Recommendation:
City Development Staff recommends approval of this Special Use application subject to the conditions
set forth in the attached resolution.

3



gas
Franklin
41

WISCONSIN

12000 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 891 9011 000

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 237.5 475 950 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was not prepared by a professional land surveyor
This map is providedfor informational purposes only
and maynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes.



' l' r·Franklin,,
WISCONSIN

12000 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 891 9011 000

l
l !

- I lDi». ' 1'
«?"7.3/I

rn
I.I

·l i
} i
/

Property

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 237 5 475 950 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relahve locatwn ofproperty
boundanes but was not prepared bya profess10nal land surveyor
This map 1s providedfor mformallonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes



APPLICATION DATE:
Planning Department

9229 West Loomis Road

FranklinFranklin, Wisconsin 53132
generall anning@franklinwi.gov

(414) 425-4024 w , s C O N S Nfranklinwi gov

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly)

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]

NAME S.R Mills NAME-panlel Szczap

COMPANY Boomtown, LLC COMPANY Bear Development, LLC

MAILING ADDRESS 4011 80th Street MAILING ADDRESS·4011 80th Street

CI/STATE Kenosha, WI ZIP· 53142 CIT/STATE Kenosha,WI ZIP 53142

PHONE· (262} 949-3788 PHONE (262) 949-3788

EMAIL ADDRESS dan@beardevelopment.com EMAIL ADDRESS dan@beardevelopment.com

PROJECT PROPERTY INFORMATION
PROPERTY ADDRESS 12000 w. Loomis Road TAX KEY NUMBER g91-9011-000

PROPERTY OWNER Boomtown, LLC PHONE (262} 949-3788

MAILING ADDRESS. 4011 80th Street EMAIL ADDRESS
dan@beardevelopment.com

CITY/STATE· Kenosha WI ZIP 53142 DATE OF COMPLETION·
'

APPLICATION TYPE
Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review□ Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment El Planned Development District D Rezoning

Special Use/ Special Use Amendment Dl Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval
Applicant 1s responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmlttal materials up to 12 copies pending staff request and comments

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that. (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge, (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information In this application, and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them mn this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval. By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7:00 a m and 7:00
p m daily for the purpose of Inspection while the application is under review The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat §943 13
(Theapplicant's slgnaturemust befromaManagingMember if thebusess is an LL, orfromthePresidentorVicePresidentIfthebusiness Is a corporation A signed
applicant's authorization lettermaybeprovided in lieu oftheapplicant's signature below, ando signedpropertyowner's authorlz11tlon letter may beprovided in lieu
ofthepropertyowner's slgnature[s] below. Ifmore than one, all oftheowners ofthepropertymustsign this Application}

D I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commiss,on and common council approval and
subm1ttals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed
~

Peno«t.. Ea>-4190:,1 
1

APPLl~/~RE 0 /$/~ ~~ %//z2hz -w nz.#, ->
NAME & TITUL S R Mills DATE! I .,,,- NAME&TITLE V T , I' DATE! I

Daniel Szczap

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE

NAME & TITLE DATE NAME & TITLE DATE



CITY OF FRANKLIN APPLICATION CHECKLIST
If you have questions about the application materials please contact the planningdepartment.

CONCEPT REVIEW APPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ $250 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include

□ Three (3) project narratives.
[ Three (3) copies of the PreliminarySte/Development Plan ofthe subject property(ies) and immediate surroundings on 8 "X 11or 11"X

17"paper (i.e, a scaled map dentfyng the subyectproperty and immediate environs, Including existing and proposed parcels, existing and proposed
structures, existing and proposed lund uses, ex,stmg and proposed zoning, existing and proposed Infrastructure and utilities[approximate locations only],
and existing and proposedsrte conditions/site constraints[le. approximate locations ofpublicroad access, rights-of-way, natural resources/green space
and drainage issues/concerns, etc.J)

[l Three (3) colored copies of building elevations on z1"X17"paperifapplicable
D Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.

COMPREHENSIVE MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION MATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completedwith signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ $125 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
DJ Word Document legal description of the subject property.
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ...

D Three (3) project narratives.
D Three (3) folded copies ofa Site Development Plan/Map, drown to reasonabfe scale, at least 11"Xx17paperoras determined by the City Planner

or City Engineer, identifying the subyectproperty and immediate envfrons, lncludfng parcels, structures. land use. zoning, streets and utilities, and natural
resource features, as applicable

[ Email or flash drve with all plans / submittal materials
□ Additional information as may be required

• Requires a Class I Public Hearing Notice at least 30 days before the Common Council Meeting

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (PDD)
D This application form accurately completedwith signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).
D Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.. [select one of the following)

□ $6,000 New POD
□ $3,500 PDD MaJor Amendment
D $500· PDD Minor Amendment

D Word Document legal description ofthe subject property
D Three (3) complete collated sets ofapplicationmaterials to include

D Three (3) project narratives
D Three (3) folded full size, ofthe Site Plan Package, drawn to scale copies, on 24"36"paper, including Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor

Lighting Pion, Natural Resource Protection Pian, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc. {See Sections15-70101, 15-7 0301, and 15-5.0402 of the UDO for
information that must be denoted orincluded with each respective plan)

D One (1) colored copy of the building elevations 0n 11X17paper, lf applicable
D One (1) copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculatons, if opphcable (see divson 15-3 0500 of the UDO)
□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.

• PDD and Major PDD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a public hearing, and Common Council approval
• Minor POD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval

REZONING
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin [select one of the following)

n1 $1,250
LJ $350 one parcel residential

D Word Document legal description of the subject property
[] Three (3) complete collated sets ofapplication materials to include

□ Three (3) project narratives
[ Three (3) folded copies ofa Plot Plan or Site Plan, drawn to reasonable scale, at least 11"X 17paperoras determed by the City Planner

or City Engfneer, andfully dimensioned showing the area proposed to be rezoned, its location, its dimensions, the locatlon and classification of adjacent
zoning districts, and the focation and existing use of all properties within 200 feet of the area proposed to be rezoned

D Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials
□ Additional information as may be required

• Additional notice to and approval required for amendments or rezoning in the FW, FC, FFO, and SWDistricts
• Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission



SPECIAL USE/ SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT APPLICATION MATERIALS
□ Th is application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side formore details)
□ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin [select one of the following]

□ $1,500: New Special Use> 4000 square feet
$1,000. Special Use Amendment.
[] $750: New Special Use < 4000 square feet.

Word Document legal description of the subject property.
□ Word Document legal description of the subject property
One copy of a response to the General Standards, Special Standards, and Considerations found in Section 15-3.070l{A), (BJ, and (C) of the UDO available
at www franklinui gov.

!!!! Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ..
II Three (3) project narratives.
Th ree (3) folded copies of the Site Plan package, drawn to scale at least 24" X 36", The submittalshould include only those plans/items as set

forth in Section 15-7.0101, 15-7.0301 and 15-5 .040 2 of the UDO that are impacted by the development. (e g., Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape
Plan, Outdoor Lighting Plan, NaturalResource Protection Plan, NaturalResource Protection Report, etc.

DJ One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X 17 paper, ifapplicable

Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.
D Additional information as may be required

• Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a Public Hearing and Common Council approval

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENTORDINANCE (UDO) TEXT AMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
D This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side formore details).
D $200 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
D Three (3) project narratives, including description of the proposed text amendment.. Requires a Class It Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission.

• The City's Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) is available at wwwfranklnw oy



y

BER
DEVELOPMENT

August 28, 2023

Mr. Regulo Martinez-Montilva
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Dear Mr. Martinez-Montilva:

Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Bear Development is pleased to submit this letter and the enclosed submittal materials as formal
application for a Special Use Amendment. Bear Development is acting on behalf the record owner,
Boomtown, LLC.

On June 21, 2022 the City of Franklin Common Council passed Resolution 2022-7873 which approved a
Special Use for a condominium development consisting of 26 dwelling units arranged in 13 duplex
buildings. Based on a variety offactors including site conditions, site restraints and market demand,
Boomtown, LLC is requesting that the Special Use be amended to allow a condominium development
consisting of 13 single family homes.

Current Entitlements/Approvals
Zoning Classification: R-8 Multiple Family Residence District
Special Use: Resolution 2022-7873 (Duplex Condo Development)
Site Plan: Plan Commission Resolution 2022-016
Landscape Buffer Easement: Resolution 2022-7880
Conservation Easement: Recorded Document No. 11296973 (Wetlands)
Final Engineering: Construction Drawings dated 10/3/2022
Condominium Plat: Condominium Plat dated 9/29/2022 (not recorded)
NRSE: Recorded Findings, Document No. 11224509

Project Summary
The property in question, consists of Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map #9338. Certified Survey Map No. 9338
was recorded on August 6, 2021, as Document Number 11148158. Bear Development is respectfully
requesting a Special Use Amendment in the R-8 Multiple Family Residence District to allow a
condominium neighborhood consisting of thirteen (13) residential dwelling units.

& Phone: 262.694.2327 beardevelopment.com

A BER,3 cowew
9EA ±$rAr4

Q 4011 80"Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



BER
DEVELOPMENT Providing Creative Real Estate Solutions to Build Better Communities

Parcel 1
Tax Key Number:
Acreage:
Current Use:
Proposed Use:
Zoning:
Special Use Request:

891-9011-000
15.61 Acres
Vacant
Single-Family Condominiums
R-8 Multiple Family Residence District
Special Use to allow a condominium neighborhood consisting of thirteen (13)
residential units.

Responses to General Standards, Special Standards and Considerations, Section 13.3.0701 (A) of the City
of Franklin Unified Development Ordinance are enclosed.

We feel the Special Use requests meets the Standards set forth in the Unified Development Ordinance
and will allow the site to be developed to the property's highest and best use.

The requested Amendment does not require any revisions to the approved Site Plan or Design
Engineering. The Applicant is simply requesting a modification to the existing Special Use to construct
thirteen (13) single family dwelling units within the approved project rather than duplex units.

Should you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me. I can be
reached at (262) 842-0556 or by email, dan@beardeveloµment.com

Thank you for your time and consideration.

Z.Daniel Szczap
Bear Development, LLC

t Phone' 262.694.2327 beardevelopment.com

A BER2 coMPAN
tat t a4tf 4

? 4011 80" Street, Kenosha, WI 53142



General Standards No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to this
Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following

1
Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent The proposed use and development will

be in harmony with the general and spec1f1c purposes for which this Ordinance was enacted and for which

the regulations of the zoning district in question were established and with the general purpose and intent

of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof

The proposed use and development are consistent and compatible with the existing zoning class1ficat1on of

R-8 Multiple Family Resident1al

2
No Undue Adverse Impact The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse

or detrimental effect upon or endanger adJacent property, the character of the area, or the public health,

safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially d1rrnrnsh and ImpaIr property values

wthin the community or neighborhood

The proposed use and development will have no adverse or detrimental impacts on adjacent lands

• The project has been designed usmng the Caty Engineering Standards and mn compliance wth the

established bulk regulations of the R-8 Zoning Drstnct

• The proJect includes adequate buffers from adjacent lands and STH 36

The proposed use and development will have no adverse or detrimental impacts on the character of the area

o The general area Is comprised on residential land use on W Ryan Road from STH 36 to 124th Street

• A significant residential development, Cape Crossing, was recently approved directly across W Ryan

Road

The proposed use and development will have no adverse or detrimental impacts on the public health, safety,

morals, comfort and general welfare

0 The proposed condominium neighborhood will be served with public sanitary sewer and water,

which Is available at the property Imes

• The proposed use will generate minimal traffic Per City Engineering, a Traffic Impact Analysis Is not

warranted

• The proposed use 1s consistent with other established uses in the general area

• The project accommodates pedestnan connectivity and the future City Trail

The proposed use and development will not dimmish and mmpatr property values within the community or

neighborhood

• The development will have a postwve mmpact on adjacent property values



3
No Interference with Surrounding Development The proposed use and development will be constructed,

arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the 1mmed1ate v1cin1ty or to interfere with the use and

development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district regulations

The proposed condominium neighborhood 1s relatively small, with 13 total units The development will not

dominate the immediate vtcintty

The proposed use and development will not interfere wth adjacent lands or impair their ability to develop m

the future

4
Adequate Public Fac1l1t1es The proposed use and development will be served adequately by essential public

fac1l1t1es and services such as streets, public ut1l1t1es 1nclud111g public water supply system and sanitary

sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public parks, libraries, schools, and other public fac1l1t1es

and ut1l1t1es or the applicant will provide adequately for such fac1l1t1es

The proposed use and development will be served with public sanitary sewer (ex1stmg) and public water

(bemg extended on W. Ryan Road) A new public street will be constructed to serve the neighborhood

The site location 1s well served by City Services

5
No Traffic Congestion The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic congestion nor draw

s1gn1f1cant amounts of traffic through residential streets Adequate measures will be taken to provde

ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic congestion mn the public streets

The proposed condominium neighborhood will generate very little traffic The impact to W Ryan Road traffic

operations wll be minimal

The proJect ingress/egress has been designed with input from City Engmeenng to ensure safe traffic

operations

6
No Destruction of Sgnficant Features The proposed use and development will not result mn the

destruction, loss or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant importance

The proposed development has been designed ma manner that will not impact any of the natural resources

on the site No wetlands will be impacted, and no tree clearing 1s proposed

L
Compliance with Standards The special use shall m all other respects conform to the applicable

regulat1011s of the district min which rt rs located except as such regulations may, mn each 1stance, be

rnod1f1ecl by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Cornrniss1on The proposed



use and development shall comply with all add1t1onal standards imposed on It by the particular provIsIon

of this Drusion and Ordinance authorizing such use

The proposed neighborhood has been designed using the R-8 Multiple Family Residential bulk regulations

and Standards In fact, 1t Is less dense than what is allowed as a matter of nght Please see approved Site

Intensity Calculations which calculate an allowed density of 48 res1dent1al dwelling units



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL

OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A DRINKING
PLACE (WITHOUT DRIVE-THROUGH
FACILITIES) USE UPON PROPERTY

LOCATED AT 10064 W. LOOMIS ROAD,
(RANDY LARSON, ON CLOUD WINE;

APPLICANT II PARK PLACE HOLDINGS,
PROPERTY OWNER)

MEETING
DATE

12/19/23

ITEM NUMBER

0,8

Aid. Dist. #6

At its December 7, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached special use resolution for a wine bar use upon property
located at 10064 W. Loomis Rd. (By Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine, Applicant) (Park
Place Holdings, Property Owner). The vote was 5-0-1, five 'ayes', no 'noes' and one
absent.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023-> imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use for a wine bar use upon property located at 10064 W.
Loomis Rd. (By Randy Larson, Applicant) (Park Place Holdings, Property Owner).

Department of City Development: AMK



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION NO. 2023---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A DRINKING PLACE (WITHOUT

DRIVE-THROUGH FACILITIES) USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 10064 W. LOOMIS ROAD,

(RANDY LARSON, ON CLOUD WINE; APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine, having petitioned the City of Franklin
for the approval of a Special Use within the Planned Development District 26 -- Deerwood
Woodlake Towering Oaks, under Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 5813 "Drinking
Place (without drive-through facilities)", to operate an wine bar facility with proposed hours
of operation Wednesday through Friday, from 3:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. and Saturdays 3:00
p.m. to 10:00 p.m., located at 10064 W. Loomis Rd., bearing Tax Key No. 841-0073-000,
more particularly described as follows:

Lot 1, Deerwood Preserve Addition No. 1, being a redivision of Lot 1 and
Outlots 1, 2, 3, and 5 of Deerwood Preserve, also being a redivision of Parcels
1 and 2 and Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 5228, all lands being a part
of the Northeast 1/4, Southeast 1/4, Southwest 1/4, and Northwest 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 of Section 17 and in part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northwest
1/4 of Section 20, Town 5 North, Range 21 East. Said land being in the City of
Franklin, County ofMilwaukee, and State of Wisconsin.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 7th day of December, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.



RANDY LARSON, ON CLOUD WINE - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023---
Page2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine, for the
approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this
Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property On Cloud
Wine, successors and assigns, as a drinking place (without drive-through facilities)
use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance with, and operated and
maintained by On Cloud Wine, pursuant to the application materials City file-stamped
October 20, 2023 and annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the On Cloud Wine drinking place (without drive-through facilities) use, within 30
days of invoice for same. Any violation of this provision shall be a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to § 15-9.0502 thereof and $1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from
time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon On Cloud Wine and the drinking
place (without drive-through facilities) use for the property located at 10064 W.
Loomis Road: (i) being in compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes,
rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental
approvals, permits, licenses and the like, required for and applicable to the project to
be developed and as presented for this approval.

4. All signage shall comply with the requirements of Chapter 210 of the Municipal Code
and must receive a Sign Permit from the City Development Department prior to
installation.

5. The hours of operation for the wine bar shall be limited to no later than 10:00 PM,
Wednesday through Saturday, and for special events no later than 9:00 PM on
Sunday.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine,
successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any
of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day
notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon
notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the



RANDY LARSON, ON CLOUD WINE - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023--
Page 3

Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to $15-9.0502 thereof and &1-19 of the
Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by $15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



pa
Franklin
et WISCONSIN

CITY OF FRANKLIN

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 7, 2023

Special Use

Item C.8.

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staffrecommends approval of this Special Use application
subject to the conditions set forth in this staffreport and the attached resolution.

Project name:

Property Owner:

Applicant:

Property Address/TKN:

Aldermanic District:

Zoning District:

Staff Planner:

On Cloud Wine - Special Use

Park Place Holdings

Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine

10064 W. Loomis Rd. / 841 0073 000

District 6

PDD 26-Deerwood Woodlake Towering Oaks

Anna Kissel, Planning Intern

Pro i ect Description/Analysis
Special Use request to allow for a wine bar in the multi-tenant building located in the PDD 26 zoning
district. Wine bars are classified as "drinking places (without drive-through facilities)" under Standard
Industrial Classification (SIC) Title No. 5813, which requires a special use permit in the PDD 26 zoning
district.

The proposed use would be located in one of the central tenant spaces in the building. According to the
project narrative, the applicant is not proposing any exterior improvements at this time.

The applicant has submitted a substantially complete application for a special use permit, allowing for
Section $ 15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance sets out the General Standards for Special
Uses.

City Development staff does not anticipate adverse impacts to adjacent properties.

Staff Recommendation:
City Development Staff recommends approval of this Special Use application subject to the following
conditions:

• The hours of operation be limited to no later than 10:00 p.m. Wednesdays through Saturdays.



, t'Franklin
l WI $ ¢ O NS I N

10064 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 841 0073 000

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 115 230 460 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relative location ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared by aprofesswnal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor informatonalpurposes only
andmay not be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmneerg
or surveyingpurposes



_:,-Franklin
' vis
E- W4SC O NS I N

10064 W. Loomis Road
TKN: 841 0073 000

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 115 230 460 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate re/alive locatwn ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
This map sprovidedfor nformationalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engmeermg
or surveyingpurposes



Planning Department
9229 west Loomis Road

Franklin, Wisconsin 53132
generalplanning@franklmnwi.gov

(414) 425-4024
franklwi.gov

pg
Franklin

w $ C 3 N S 1 N

APPLICATION DATE:

... ! f

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMATION [print legibly]

ZIP·

INFORMATION

CITY/STATE

EMAIL ADDRESS:

DATE OF COMPLETION

MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE:

TAX KEY NUMBER.

£MAIL ADDRESS.

PHONE:

COMPANY.

NAME

S.3a6

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]
NAME

PHON - 0-5o20

9s# " ,)• tee U, .o
APPLICATION TYPE

Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review□ Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment [l Planned Development District EI Rezoning
, Special Use/ Special Use Amendment EJ Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Pian Commission review and Common Council approval.
Applicant Is respons ible for providing Plan Commission resubmittal materials up to 12 copies pending staff request and comments.

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby cert ify that: (1.) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge, 12) the applicant and property owner{s) has/have read and understand all information in this application, and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Applicati on and its submittal, and any subsequently issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) orany condition(s) of approval, By execution of
this applicaton, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/orits agents to enterupon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 700 a m and 7 .oo
p m daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is unrler review The property owner(s) grant this authorization even ifthe property has heen posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis. Stat. $943 13

{Theapplicant's signaturemustbefrom a ManagingMember ifthebusiness is an Ll.., orfrom thePresidentor VicePresidentifthebusiness is a corporation. A signed
applicant's authorization lettermaybeprovidedin lieu of theapplicant's signaturebelow, andasignedproperty owner's authorization lettermay bepro11lded In lieu
oftheproperty owner's signature[s] below. Ifmore than one, alloftheownersojthepropertymustsign thisApplication).

{ l I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common council approval and
submittals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed

PROPER

N

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE
er

DATE·
9/1/2023

APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE

NAME & TITLE DATE NAME&TITLE DATE



r SPECIAL, USE /SPECIAL USE AMENDMENT APPLICATION MATERIALS

/' D This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side formore details).

I D Application fee payable to the City of Frankl in... [select one of the following}
□ $1,500: New Special Use> 4000 square feet.

'
$1,000: Special Use Amendment.
□ $750· New Special Use < 4000 square feet

D Word Document legal description of the subject property.
□ Word Document legal description of the subject property.
one copy of a response to the Genera l Standards, Special Standards, and Considerationsfund in Section 15-3.0701{A4), {B), and (CJ of the uao available
at www.[anklinwi gov.

1i!,1 Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include .
'7 Three (3) project narratives.
/(J Three (3) folded copies ofthe Site Plan package, drawn to scale at least 24" X 36", The submittal should mclude only those plans/items as set
forth in Sect7on 15-7 0101, 15-7 0301 and 15-5.0402 of the UDO that are impacted by the development (e g., Site Pion, Building Elevations, Landscape
Pion, Outdoor Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc.

Done (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X17" paper, if applicable.
□ Email or flash drive with all plans/submittal materials.
□ Additional information as may be required.

\ D Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a Public Hearing and Common Council approval

..... UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION MATERIALS
D This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side formore details).
□ $200 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
D Three (3) project narratives, including description of the proposed text amendment.

• Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission .. The City's Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Is available atwww frankhnwi:KQ'!



Executive Narrative

Introduction: This narrative is a correlation between our existing business and new business.

Business Overview

Spirits of Norway Vineyard & Winery is a boutique style winery, offering high-quality, all
natural, locally produced wine from locally grown grapes. Spirits of Norway Vineyard farmstead
is located in the Town of Norway, Wisconsin on 13.9 acres of land zoned agricultural. The
agricultural crop is cold climate hybrid wine grapes. The winery has a reputation as an upscale
destination with a down to earth attitude and has been in business for 13 years

Product Offerings

Whether you're a wine connoisseur or a novice alike, Spirits of Norway currently offers 124
different wines to appeal to every wine palate. We also offer our ever so admired signature
cheeses which are the perfect pairing with our wide selection of wines. Spirits of Norway is the
ultimate choice for their popular Tour N Taste Experience where guests are guided for a quick
tour of the vineyard, a brief stop inside the winery is next, providing an explanation of the wine
making process, and then it's off to the tasting room where guests are treated to samples of
their award winning wines.

Success Factors

Spirits of Norway Vineyard & Winery has been recognized as the Top Ten Winery in Wisconsin
by Choice Wineries and has achieved great success by offering the following competitive
advantages:

• Highly qualified team of winemakers, wine tasters, who are experts on wine selection
and food pairings suggestions.

• Friendly, knowledgeable sales and tasting room staff to ensure each guest receives
personalized and attentive service which will enhance their experience.

• Spirits of Norway sells its wine, cheese products, and wine accessories in-store and
on line, giving their customers more flexibility in the way they can shop.

• The winery works with 5 local vineyards that grow exclusively for Spirits of Norway, and
we source strawberries, cherries and apples from local growers for our fruit wines.

On Cloud Wine

Due to weather related limitations, the tasting room is only open May through August. To
ensure continued economic growth, we feel the need to be open all year round. This is the
conception for On Cloud Wine. On Cloud Wine will be an upscale wine bar offering a relaxed



atmosphere for our guests. Our intended hours of operation are: open Wednesday thru Friday
3 pm to 9 pm and Saturdays 3 pm to 10 pm. Sundays are reserved for private gatherings. We
will serve appetizers, charcuterie boards, heat & eat sandwiches, and personal pizzas. We plan
to have occasional entertainment in the form of an acoustic set.

Guest Experience

On Cloud Wine has a strong focus on hospitality, communication, and providing educational
and positive tasting experience for guests and VIP Wine Club members. The wine bar will offer a
tasting room as well as a spacious seating area to meet up with friends or relax with a glass of
wine. Additional special events include Sip N Paint, Sip N Clay, Sip N Cookie Decorating, and Sip
N Carve pumpkin carving.

Marketing Plan

On Cloud Wine will offer a unique value proposition to their guests with friendly and
knowledgeable staff that ensures each guest has an exceptional experience. This ensures word
of mouth and referral business. Social media campaigns have been very successful.

Economic Impact

The U.S. Wine Industry boosts the American economy by $276.07 Billion in 2022. The Wisconsin
Wine Industry creates a $3.6 Billion total economic impact in Wisconsin.

Trade Associations

Spirits of Norway and On Cloud Wine are proud to be advocating members of the following
trade associations.

• Wisconsin Agricultural Tourism Association

• Wisconsin Grape Growers Association WGGA
• Wisconsin Winery Association WWA

• Wine America
• Craft Wine Association
• Wisconsin Vintners Association WVA

• Prairie Home Vintners

• Racine County Farm Bureau
• Tichigan Lake lions Club

• South Milwaukee lions Club

• South Milwaukee Humane Concerns

• Union Grove Chamber of Commerce



File No EA-21-0438-P

SCHEDULE C

Polley No· 273064800-224464780

The land referred to in this Polley is described as follows

Lot 1, Deerwood Preserve Addition No 1, being a redivision of Lot 1 and Outlots 1, 2, 3, and 5 of Deerwood
Preserve, also being a redivision of Parcels 1 and 2 and Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No 5228, all lands being
a part of the Northeast 1/4, Southeast 1/4, Southwest 1/4, and Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 17
and in part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 20, Town 5 North, Range 21 East Said land being
in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, and State of Wisconsin

Tax Key No 841-0073-000

Address· 10058-10068 W Loomis Rd

Copyright 2006-2009 American Land Title Association. All rights reserved

The use of thrs Form is restricted to ALTA licensees and ALTA members in good standing as of the date of use
All other uses are prohibited Repnnted under license from the American Land Title Assoc1at1on

ALTA Owner's Policy (06-17-06)
Schedule C

MFRICAN
l. ·\NDTlfU
fOHAFI)

EA-21-0438-P



DIVISION 15-3,0700

SECTIOY15-3.0701

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following

1 Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this
Ordinance was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question
were established and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin
Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof

Response: 2 A9#tee it Thy 57oTeheT

2 No Undue Adverse Impact The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or
undue adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area,
or the public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish
and impair propertyvalues within the community or neighborhood.

Response: 2 85nee y7 Tl syarehe7

3 No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will
be constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to
interfere with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the
applicable zoning district regulations

Response: Z 8jee /7 /is 5ateneRf

4 Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including
public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal,
public parks, libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will
provide adequately for such facilities

5 No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets

4 } 57remneaT
Response: Z9Ree «run .

Page 11



6 No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result
in the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance

Response:

7 Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations
may, in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations
of the Plan Commission The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use

Response: £ 9Ree not 7k1s

B. Special Standards for SpecifiedSpecial Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3 0702 and 15-3 0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall estabbsh compliance with all such special standards

C Considerations In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following

I Public Benefit Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the
particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is
in the interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the
neighborhood or community

7,,n s S7#7eneTResponse: 7 99Keo n t

2 Alternative Locations Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the
location of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that
may be more appropriate than the proposed site

•.rrl /3 5777meUr
Response: "Z 9920 • 7

3 Mitigation of Adverse Impacts Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been
taken to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate
vicinity through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening

Page I 2



Response:

ti

Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area

Response:

4

Page I 3



City of Franklin
Department of City Development
Date: November 15, 2023

To:

From:

RE:

Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine

Department of City Development
Anna Kissel, Planning Intern

Application for Special Use - On Cloud Wine 10064 W L .- . oom1s Rd.

Below are staff comments re d ·20, 2023: gaJ1 mg your Special Use application submitted on October

Department of City Development comments

How many employees will work at this location? L'\k. w-,L l $;r/W,T W 1'1-'i {_i.j)e,.,,plo';/(!<!5

Health Department comments

z7:z::.2l2err
set of plans to be submitted A fuli I . enu, equ~pment hst and specs as well as a
prior to licensing. · pan review 8"d pre-inspection will be conducted

7ave mer rr hugeloye av l',o_,,,,jJ /.e.--hd ~
1Pat)a+7op) f Lacer, l,ea uAs Uc, e0Ft

J,,v .11 Xf' (/1-;/Y',I~ A-L ;I.. .Ret_v,ll eme ,.,,-v tvhIe h Wei{,~ ~J
7 , the@hTeT ea»tel pro yt Ftood
/au. F L Ao /4 /2 e ,i__ /U7A, 9<me
s,,oe--o?,a ,t77 'oM.s 1v/2 e ,._,, -fl. ,1-T T/177e t?.osrJ.O-J.

ks2rut,





gems .
,;-Franklin
F WISCONSIN

Franklin Health Department
9229 W. Loomis Rd
Franklrn, WI 53132

• (414) 425-9101
• Fax (414) 427-7539
• www franklmwi.gov

Licensing Year:

APPLICATION FOR LICENSE
INSTRUCTIONS· please complete and return it to the above address with your remittance Payable to the CITY OF FRANKLIN

NAME AND ADDRESS OF ESTABLISHMENT
NAME OF ESTABLISHMENT/ BUSINESS/ (DBA}

UriveO Ctod LLC.
STREET eliDObL/ LU, Loomis
CITY I STATE I

ZIP CODE

F/2-ihv IL- L,;; W< 3130
PHONE NUMBER OF ESTABLISHMENT

t-/iL/- '130 --5{J;JO
EMAIL/WEB SITE

R2Aly SoV 6 A' e CDY'V't
In making this ai/phcation, I understand this busings° is subJect to theprovisions of CH. 138 of the FranklinMumc1pal Code.

If Partnership, list all Partners. OR If Corporation, list Corporation Name & Registered Agent
BUSINESS/LEGAL LICENSEE NAME

CONTiyry.

I<A-,--vfJ
ADDRESS

:J-;J.:> oo w.
CITY

Faasvl

FIRST NAME

(Y7,l£
STATE

l

MIDDtElf,tllA.. PHONE NUMBER

L./1 - l/30-S:--O;;)O

ZIP CODE

5/06
EMAIL

FOOD MANAGER'.$ NAME . 1,·
7LLle Se damn

FOOD MANAGER'S CERTIFICATION ff EXPIRATION DATE

EMAIL

NAME OF FORMER BUSINESS INTENDED DATE OF OPENING BUSINESS

TOTAL FEES DUE FROM PAGE 2YEARLY GROSS SALES

SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT: , DATE:fl;d,3-;;2,3
In mal<ing this applicat,on, I understand this business is sub1ect .a e provisions of CHAPTER 40 of the Franklm Municipal Code Effective
January9, 2018. The City ofFronk/in willbe charging a $25 GOJee farchecks whch are returned to us as uncollect,ble by our bank
NOTE: A 48 HOUR NOTICE 1s required to make an appomtment for a FINAL INSPECTION
Permit Expires on June 30 ofthe licensing year
PLEASE INFORM THE FRANKLIN HEALTH DEPARTMENT OF ANY CHANGES
L \shared\sanitanan\Applicat,ons\Word Docs\Apphcation for Permit Page 1 docx



0

F46-25 .dc (New 01/21)

Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection
Division ofFood andRecreational Safety
P.O. Box 93586, Milwaukee, W153293-0586
datcpfrbsupport@wvisconsin.gov

How to Determine Retail Food Establishment - Serving Meals: License Complexity Category

Establishment Name:

Retail food establishments serving meals are placed into four categories based on food safety rIsks A retail food establishment
serving meals that are prepackaged and TCS only prepares md,vrdually wrapped, single food servings, which are packaged off
premises by a licensed processor, wth the on premise actvrty limited to heating and serung EXAMPLE--whole frozen p1zzas
The other three categories (simple, moderate and complex) use a point system to determine the license complexity category
Use the chart below to calculate your hcense complexity category ..

□ Establishment has a self-service salad bar or food bar Does not include condiments, bakery or toppings 1

□ Establishment processes fresh or frozen raw poultry, meat, seafood, or eggs 1

□ Establishment operates using a varance or HACCP plan 1

□ Establtshment operates usmg a Bare Hand Contact or Time as a Pubhc Health Control Plan 1

□ Establishment offers catering or preordered meals mn bulk quantity for events 1

lXJ Establishment cold holds, hot holds, or reheats time/temperature control for safety (TCS) foods. 1

x Establishment does cooling of cooked or reheated time/temperature control for safety (TCS) foods 1

□ Establishment wholesales foods that requires refngerat1on 1

kf Establishment chops, dices, mixes, shces, blanches, boils, cooks, packages, or assembles product. 1

□ Establishment has an add1bonal area(s), other than the mam kitchen, where food preparation act1vit1es occur 1

□ Establishment prepares food spec1ftcally for a highly susceptible population, such as a nursing home or day care 1

□ Establishment has a customer seating capacity greater than 75, or has a drive-through wmdow 1

Total Points (0--25, simple), (2 75- 4 5, moderate), (Greater than 4 5, complex)

[]0-25,simple ilG 2 75 - 4 5, moderate [] Greater than 4.5, complex

Please review Wis Admmn Code $ ATCP 75 08 for specific rule language regarding category assignment



Retail Food EstablishmentConstructionguidance
.e±suss '- •

Handwashing Sinks

f
Must be conveniently located for employees mn the following areas
• Preparation and dispensing areas
• Warewashmg areas
• In or 1mmed1ately adjacentto toilet rooms

Faucets must be non-hand operated; wrist/elbow paddles, foot/knee pedals,
photo-eye, or a self-closing metered faucetthat provides water for at least 15
seconds. May require splashguards to hmit cross contamination on clean
surfaces and equipmenta ea5

Warewashing Facilities (onlyonemethodrequired)

Three-Compartment Sink
• All compartments must be interconnected and large enough to allow
adequate mmmerston ofthe largest piece ofequipment.
• Self-draining drain boards are required at each end to accommodate soiled and
clean items Dram/drymg racks may also be used

Warewashing Machine
• Must be certified for sanitation by an American National Standards Institute
(ANSl)-accred1ted cert1f1cat1on program.
• May use heat or chemical san1t121ng
• Without a three-compartment sink, your facility may need to stop food service
1fthe warewashmg machine fails

e maekce]foe9hlcril
Utility or Mop Sink Area

required

y0nu: Departmert o! A.r!
r Pat ], f

hr [£) B • ll 1 s

ptoo/l,..- /:,LrrrJ
Jn-e_,v0L .

o«sq)mer 2zoo -get

One mop smk or curbed cleaning facility with a floor dram 1s required to clean
mops and for the disposal of hquid wastes

A designated area for the storage ofcleaning eqwpment and air-drying ofmops Is



Food Preparation Sink

A designated food preparation sink is required 1f food must be placed below the
flood nm for washing or thawing

Food preparation sinks must be certified for sanitation by an ANSI-accredited

p/Ne91»rwram
l;the

Other Sinks/Basins

Equipment

Other common sinks used m a food establishment may include:
• Dump Sink/Fourth Compartment: For pre-washing/scrapping or as an area to
empty drink glasses
• Dipperwell for mn-use utensils such as ice cream scoops.

Certifying Group

NSF International (NSF)

lntertek
Marked "ETL Sanitation "

Underwriters Laboratory (UL)
Marked "Classified UL EH "

Canadian Standards Association
(CSA}

Marked "CSA Sanitation to
NSF/ANSI"

Baking Industry Sanitation
Standards Committee (BISSC)

Marked "Certified BISSC."

Mark

)
@
T
@

SANITATION
Gr '433 3

Equipmentmust be certified for sanitation by an ANSI-accredited program
This requirement applies to· sinks, refrigeration, hot-holding units, ice
machines and cooking equipment. Itdoes not apply to small appliances,
such as microwave ovens and toasters

Refrigeration
• Units must be capable of mamntamnmng cold food at an internal
temperature of41°F or below when used for time/temperature control for
safety foods.
• Includes salad bars, prep top cooler, and reach-m refngerat1on.
• Units can only be used for the purpose for which they were built and
must be certified for sanitation by an ANSI-accredited cert1ficat1on program.

Freezers
• Units used to receive food from ambient or hottemperatures must be
certified for sanitation by an ANSI-accredited program.
• Units that only hold commercial frozen product until use may be a
domestic type

i n 1
'

»· vi1 %[

I -!H [Z:-,, l'J



Storage

1
I
l.

1
Food, clean utensils, linens and smgle-serv1ce articles must be stored at least 6
inches above the floor. They may not be stored m mechanical rooms, restrooms,
or other areas m which contamination may occur

Floors, Walls and Ceilings
All floors, walls and ceilings in processing areas shall be smooth, nonabsorbent,
durable and easily cleanable
• Floors. quarry tile, terrazzo, ceramictile, sealed concrete, commercial grade
sheetvinyl. Floors must have coving where they meetthe walls.
• Wall stainless steel, fiberglass reinforced plastic (FRP), ceramic tile, gloss or
semi-gloss enamel painted drywall Painted drywall is not durable m high
moisture areas such as behind smks
• Ceiling· washable vmyl tiles, FRP, gloss or semi-gloss pamted drywall

5mothFish

Ventilation, Hoods and Ducts

For complete requirements, please review theWisconsin Food Code

Backflow or backs1phonage prevention devices installed on a water supply
system per DSPS requirements Email DspsSbPlbgTech@wi gov for more info

Adequate ventilation and make-up air 1s required to remove steam, condensation,
vapors, obnoxious odors, smoke and fumes.

Information on mstallat1on requirements and inspections can be obtained by
contacting the W1sconsm Department ofSafety and Professional Services

(DSPS) ·areworser"r/%0°22.8%"p%deli
------------~-~~-?ed~~-"---c>~_,,_....._a_l/£?_,/V_-------.i~
Backflow Prevention by Air Gaps or Preventive Deviceseoocl fee

Air gaps installed m wastewater Imes offood preparation sinks, dipper wells, ice
bms and warewash machines

r ) r1en oi grmit , Ir Ins1er Pro eiu

I, 1



"Oer:
-~
E
0
.9
z ~

Q.)

8 "-'-,::::,
"'O. 0 co
C 0 Q.)
Cl) ..... u..
a,
Cl) --I



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN
RESOLUTION NO. 2023---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS
FOR THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A DRINKING PLACE (WITHOUT

DRIVE-THROUGH FACILITIES) USE UPON PROPERTY LOCATED
AT 10064 W. LOOMIS ROAD,

(RANDY LARSON, ON CLOUD WINE; APPLICANT)

WHEREAS, Randy Larson, On Cloud Wine, having petitioned the City of Franklin
for the approval of a Special Use within the Planned Development District 26 - Deerwood
Woodlake Towering Oaks, under Standard Industrial Classification Title No. 5813 "Drinking
Place (without drive-through facilities)", to operate an wine bar facility with proposed hours
of operation Wednesday through Friday, from 3:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. and Saturdays 3:00
p.m. to 10:00 p.m., located at 10064 W. Loomis Rd., bearing Tax Key No. 841-0073-000,
more particularly described as follows:

Lot 1, Deerwood Preserve Addition No. 1, being a redivision of Lot 1 and
Outlots 1, 2, 3, and 5 of Deerwood Preserve, also being a redivision of Parcels
1 and 2 and Outlot 1 of Certified Survey Map No. 5228, all lands being a part
of the Northeast 1/4, Southeast 1/4, Southwest 1/4, and Northwest 1/4 of the
Southwest 1/4 of Section 17 and in part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northwest
1/4 of Section 20, Town 5 North, Range 21 East. Said land being in the City of
Franklin, County ofMilwaukee, and State of Wisconsin.

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 7th day of December, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that it will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that it
will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that it will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that it will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that it will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meets the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
ANDRESTRICTIONS FORTHE APPROVAL
OF A SPECIAL USE FORAMEAT SMOKER
ENCLOSURE ANDOVERNIGHT FOOD
TRUCK PARKING UPON PROPERTY

LOCATEDAT 7740 S LOVERS LANE RD,
SUITE 400. (BY THOMAS GREEN, JR., MR.
GREENS BBQ, APPLICANT// FRANKLIN
WYNDHAM LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

MEETING
DATE

12/19/23

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #2

At its December 7, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached special use resolution for a meat smoker enclosure and
overnight food truck parking upon property located at 7740 S. Lovers Lane Rd (By
Thomas Green, Jr., Mr. Greens BBQ, Applicant) (Franklin-Wyndham LLC, Property
Owner). The vote was 5-0-1, five 'ayes', no 'noes' and one absent.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023-__, imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use for a meat smoker enclosure and overnight food truck
parking upon property located at 7740 S. Lovers Lane Rd (By Thomas Green, Jr., Mr.
Greens BBQ, Applicant) (Franklin-Wyndham LLC, Property Owner).

Department of City Development: AMK



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR
THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR A MEAT SMOKER ENCLOSURE AND

OVERNIGHT FOOD TRUCK PARKING UPON PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 7740 S LOVERS LANE RD, SUITE 400.

(BY THOMAS GREEN, JR., MR. GREENS BBQ, APPLICANT//
FRANKLIN WYNDHAM LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Thomas Green, Jr., Mr Greens BBQ, having petitioned the City of Franklin
for the approval of a Special Use for a meat smoker enclosure and overnight food truck parking,
upon property located at 7730 S Lovers Lane Rd., zoned CC Civic Center. The property which
is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 794 9001 000 and is more particularly
described as follows:

Certified Survey Map No. 9322, SE 1/4 SEC 8-5-21, Lot 1; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the City
of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan Commission on
the 7th day of December, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having determined to
recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain conditions, and the
Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon such conditions, pursuant
to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in harmony with the purposes of
the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive Master Plan; that they will not have
an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that they will not interfere with the
development of neighboring property; that they will be served adequately by essential public
facilities and services; that they will not cause undue traffic congestion; and that they will not
result in damage to property of significant importance to nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meet the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Thomas Green, Jr., Mr. Greens BBQ, for the
approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the preamble to this
Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following conditions and
restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by Thomas
Green, Jr., Mr. Greens BBQ, successors and assigns, for a meat smoker enclosure and
overnight food truck parking use, which shall be developed in substantial compliance



THOMAS GREEN, JR., MR. GREENS BBQ- SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-
Page 2

with, and operated and maintained by Thomas Green, Jr., Mr. Greens BBQ, pursuant
to those plans City file-stamped August 28, 2023 and annexed hereto and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Thomas Green, Jr., Mr. Greens BBQ, successors and assigns, shall pay to the City of
Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review fees
incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of Franklin, for
the Thomas Green, Jr., Mr. Greens BBQ, meat smoker enclosure and overnight food
truck parking Special Use, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any violation of this
provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development Ordinance, and subject to
§15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code, the general penalties and
remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Thomas Green, Jr., Mr.
Greens BBQ, meat smoker enclosure and overnight food truck parking Special Use
for the property located at 7740 S Lovers Lane Rd., Suite 400: (i) being in
compliance with all applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and
ordinances; and (ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and
the like, required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented
for this approval.

4. The hours of operation for the meat smokers shall be limited to 5:00 AM to 6:00 PM,
Tuesday through Saturday.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Thomas Green, Jr., Mr. Greens BBQ,
successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one or any of
the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10) day notice to
cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council, upon notice and
hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or restriction of
this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the Unified
Development Ordinance, and pursuant to $15-9.0502 thereof and § 1-19 of the Municipal Code,
the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than $2,500.00, or such other
maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as may be specified therein from
time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a separate violation. Failure of the
City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such Special
Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to $15-9.0103G. of the Unified Development
Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall be null and void
upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution, unless the Special
Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit for such use



THOMAS GREEN, JR., MR. GREENS BBQ - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-
Page 3

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain the
recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of,2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Item C.6.

Pe» CITY OF FRANKLIN so
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 7, 2023
Special Use

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the
Special Use application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft
Resolution with conditions as attached.
Project Name:
Property Owner:
Applicant:
Property Address/Tax Key Number:
Aldermanic District:
Agent:
Zoning District:
Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:

Staff Planner:

Mr. Greens BBQ Special Use
Franklin Wyndham LLC
Thomas Green, Jr., Mr. Greens BBQ
7740 S Lovers Lane Rd, Suite 400 / 794 9001 000
District 2
Peter Ogorek, Perspective Design, Inc.
CC Civic Center
CC Civic Center (east, south, and west), R-3E
Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District (south)
To allow for a meat-smoker enclosure and overnight parking
for a food truck
Anna Kissel, Planning Intern, & Marion Eeks, Associate
Planner, AICP

Background
The applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit for an approximately 440 sq. ft. meat-smoker enclosure
and overnight parking for a food truck.

This site is part of the Shoppes at Wyndham Village. There is an existing outdoor seating area that the
applicant intends to use; the meat-smoker enclosure will be adjacent to the building and outdoor seating
area. The applicant plans to operate the smokers from 5am to 2pm, Tuesday through Saturday.

The food truck will serve food at off-site locations.

SPECIAL USE

The lot is zoned CC Civic Center.
• Eating places (without drive-thru facilities) is a permitted use in the CC district and the smoker

enclosure is accessory to that use but may impact surrounding properties, and this requires the
Special Use approval

• Overnight parking is an accessory use that needs approval from the Plan Commission



The Health Department issues the licenses for the food truck and the Retail Food Establishments.
They reviewed this application and note that:

"The Retail Food Establishment is intended to be used as the service base for the food truck.
Logistically, this would be the ideal place to park the truck to facilitate the food truck
operation.

The outdoor smoker is approved by the Health Department with the condition that it is made of
approved materials and no food processing other than smoking/cooking is conducted in this
outdoor space."

The Fire Department did not have any comment on the application.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The Plan Commission may recommend, and the Common Council may impose, conditions and limitations
on a Special Use application related to use, design and operation ($15-3 0701.D).

The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the Special Use
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached.
The resolution reflects recommended conditions of approval.

Recommended Conditions ofApproval
• The hours of operation for the meat-smokers shall be 5am to 2pm, Tuesday through Saturday.

2



Franklin
WISCONSIN

•;J

7740 S. Lovers Lane Road
TKN: 794 9001 000

t38

This map shows the approximate relatrve locaton ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared byaprofesswnal land surveyor
This map isprovidedfor informatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropriatefor legal engineering
or surveyingpurposes

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 145 290 580 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo



f"Franklin
WISCONSIN

•

7740 S. Lovers Lane Road
TKN: 794 9001 000

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 145 290 580 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aenal Photo
This map shows the approximate re/alive locatwn ofproperty
boundaries but was notprepared bya professwnal land surveyor
Thus map sprovdedfor informatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropratefor legal engineering
or surveyngpurposes



DocuSign Envelope ID FE176BD2-5610-4A93-AE9B-5FC3635F1345

APPLICATION DATE:

Planning Department •· sr STAMP DATE city use onlyJ
9229 West Loomis Road rFrank4inFranklin, Wisconsin 53132

(414) 425-4024
frankhnw1.gov

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
PROJECT INFORMArioiftori@atfeiibiv] . - ·-- ,- ..

- - - . . . ,

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON]

NAME. Thomas Green Jr NAME Peter Ogorek

COMPANY· MR GREENS BBQ COMPANY
Perspective Design, Inc.

MAILING ADDRESS 149 E Ontario St. MAILING ADDRESS.
11525 W North Ave

CITY/STATE. Oak Creek/ Wisconsin ZIP· 53154 CITY/STATE· Wauwatosa, WI ZIP
53226

PHONE. (414) 305-1444 PHONE·
414-302-1780 x203

EMAIL ADDRESS mrgreens@mrgreensttd.com EMAIL ADDRESS
pogorek@pdi-arch com

PROJECT PROPERTYINFORMATION
PROPERTY ADDRESS 7740 S Lovers Lane Road, Suite 400 TAX KEY NUMBER' 794-9001-000

PROPERTY OWNER Franklin-Wyndham LLC PHONE (847) 272-3300

MAILING ADDRESS 666 Dundee Road, Suite 901 EMAIL ADDRESS·
rec@cleafgroup com

CITY/STATE Northbrook/ IL ZIP 60062 DATE OF COMPLETION· office use only

------- PPicArioirv@£ -·-· ---· --- -

-- -------·· -- -···- - ------ ------- - - - --- - •- __ ., ... -·--- ··-·-··· - . ..
Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review□ Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment [l Planned Development District [l Rezoning

l!!!!I Special Use/ Special Use Amendment□ Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval
Applicant is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmittal materials up to 12 copies pending staff request and comments.

SIGNATURES
The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that {1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s}' knowledge, (2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application, and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s) agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authorize the City of Franklin and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7 00 a m and 7·00
p m daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review The property owner(s) grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against
trespassing pursuant to Wis Stat §943 13

(The applicant's signature must be from aManagingMember if the business isan LLC, arfrom the Presidentor Vice President if the business is a corporation. A signed
applicant's authorization letter may be provided in lieu ofthe applicant's signature below, anda signedproperty owner's authorization letter may be provided in lieu
of the propertyowner's signature[s] below. Ifmore thanone, alloftheowners of thepropertymustsign this Application).

~ I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page deta1hng the requirements for plan comm1ss1on and common council approval and
submittals and understand that incomplete applications and submittals cannot be reviewed

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE Franklin-Wyndham, LLC 2."-+By: The Cloverleaf Real Estate Group, Inc., Manager

NAME & TITLE Ross Cosyns, VP DATE8/15/2023 wow.4""ha 6 k DATE
en cwh( 7-152

PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE -ETEE:.
NAME & TITLE DATE NAME&TITLE per ogorel, Pres

DATE
8/15/23



OocuSign Envelope ID FE176BD2-5610-4A93-AE9B-5FC3635F1345

...
$R4@kt,if4Pt4&iron,

'iiicE@T REVIEWPPICA#ONMAr#Ri#ts

t.

3

freiit

□ This application form accurately completed with signatures orauthorization letters (see reverse side formore details).
$250 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ...

□ Three (3) project narratives.
□ Three (3) copies of the Preliminary Site/Development Plan of the subject property(ies) and immediate surroundings on8"X11" or 11°X

17# paper (i.e., a scaled map identifying the subject property and immediate environs, including existing andproposedparcels, existing andproposed
structures, existing andproposedland uses, existing andproposed zoning, existing andproposed Infrastructure and utllitles[approx/mate locations only],
and existing andproposed site conditions/site constraints [i.e. approximate locations a/public road access, rights-of-way, natural resources/green space
and drainage issues/concerns, etc.])

□ Three (3) colored copies of building elevations on 11#X 1rpaper ifapplicable.
□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.

cOiPEjsivE MASTERPLANAMENDMENT APPLICATIONMATERIALS
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures orauthorization letters (see reverse side for more details).
□ $125 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
□ Word Document legal description of the subject property.
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ...

□ Three (3) project narratives.
□ Three (3) folded copies of a Site Development Plan/ Map, drawn to reasonable scale, at least 11#X 1rpaper or as determined by the City Planner

or City Engineer, identifying the subject property and immediate environs, including parcels, structures, land use, zoning, streets and utilities, and natural
resource features, as applicable.

□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.
□ Additional information as may be required.

• Requires a Class I Public Hearing Notice at least 30 days before the Common Council Meeting

PANNEDDEVELOPMENT DiSfRicT (Pib)
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).
□ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin ... [select one of the following]

□ $6,000. New POD
D $3,500: PDD Major Amendment

□ $500: PDD Minor Amendment
□ Word Document legal description of the subject property.
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ..•

□ Three (3) project narratives.
□ Three (3) folded full size, of the Site Plan Package, drawn to scale copies, on 24x 36"paper, including Building Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor

Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc. (See 5Sections 15-7 0101, 15-7 0301, and 15-5.0402 of the UDOfor
information that must be denoted or included with each respective plan.)

[] One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X 17"paper, ifapplicable
□ One (1) copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations, ifapplicable (see division 15-3.0500 ofthe UDO}
□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.

• PDD and Major PDD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a public hearing, and Common Council approval.
• Minor PDD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval.

REZONING
□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).

□ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.. [select one of the following]
D $1,250

□ $350: one parcel residential.
□ Word Document legal description of the subject property.
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ...

□ Three (3) project narratives.
□ Three (3) folded copies of a Plot Plan or Site Plan, drawn ta reasonable scale, atleast11•X 1rpaper oras determined by the City Planner

orCity Engineer, andfully dimensioned showing the area proposed to be rezoned, its location, its dimensions, the location and classification of adjacent
zoning districts, and the location and existing use ofall properties within 200feet ofthe area proposed to be rezoned.

□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.
□ Additional information as may be required.

• Additional notice to and approval required foramendments or rezoning in the FW, FC, FFO, and SW Districts
• Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission



DocuSign Envelope ID FE176BD2-5610-4A93-AE9B-5FC3635F1345

--··- ~--- SPECIALUSEfSP@di#i.uSE4ijENbiNTPPI€Ti@iiMr@Riis --

l!!I This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details).
l!!I Application fee payable to the City of Franklin... [select one ofthe following]

D $1,500: New Special Use> 4000 square feet.
D $1,000: Special Use Amendment.
l!!I $750: New Special Use < 4000 square feet.

l!!I Word Document legal description of the subject property.
l!!I One copy of a response to the General Standards, Special Standards, and Considerationsfound in Section 15-3.0701/A), (B), and (C) ofthe UDO available
at www.franklinwl.gov.
l!I Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ...

Three (3) project narratives.
l!!I Three (3) folded copies of the Site Plan package, drawn to scale at least 24X 36", The submittal should include only those plans/items as set
forth in Section 15-7.0101, 15-7.0301 and 15-5.0402 ofthe UDO thatare impactedby the development. (e.g., Site Pion, Building Elevations, Landscape
Pion, Outdoor Lighting Pion, Natural Resource Protection Pion, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc.

l!I One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X 17" paper, ifapplicable
l!!I Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials.
l!!I Additional information as may be required.

• Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a Public Hearing and Common Council approval

QNIFiEDDEVELOPMENTORDINANCE (u9)TEXTAMENDMENTAPPLICATION MATERIALS
DJ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ $200 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin.
□ Three (3) project narratives, including description ofthe proposed text amendment.

• Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission.
• The City's Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) is available at www.franklinwi.gov.



PERSPECTIVE
DESIGN, INC.
! 1525 W North Avenue
Wauwatosa, WI 53226
Tel (414) 302 1780 Fa (414) 302-1781

Date:

Project Name:

Address:

Project Narrative
08/15/23

Mr. Greens BBQ

7740 S Lovers Lane Road, Suite 400
Franklin, WI 53132

Project Narrative:

This project includes a special use approval to a previously approved outdoor dming area
adjacent to suite 400 (restaurant). We are proposing an exterior fenced-in smoker enclosure for
screening and security, with a double barrel and single barrel smoker inside. In addition, we are
requesting approval for overnight parking in a designated parking location for the operator's food
truck/trailer. The food truck/trailer will serve food at off-site locations.

COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTS



DIVISION 15-3.0700

SECTION 15-3.0701

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A. General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

l. Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this Ordinance
was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question were established
and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin Comprehensive Master Plan or
element thereof.

Response: The proposed use will be in compliance with the general and specific purposes of
the zoning district and the Comprehensive Master Plan. This use will be an outdoor
dining with linking indoor/outdoor spaces. The highest rankedpreferred commercial
businesses in the Comprehensive Master Plan were dining, specialty shops, and small
privately owned businesses. These preferred commercial businesses would all be
satisfied by this use. The proposed use will be mixed-use and pedestrian orientated,
which wouldprovide urban characteristics in a suburban area.

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue
adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area, or the
public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish and impair
property values within the community or neighborhood.

Response: This use will not cause any undue adverse impacts on adjacent properties or the
surrounding area. It will be enclosed and screened.

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will be
constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to interfere
with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning
district regulations.

Response: The construction of the proposed site development will not interfere with
surrounding developments.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including
public water supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public
parks, libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide
adequately for such facilities

Response: The proposed use is currently served by adequate publicfacilities & services, and
will continue to have adequatefacilities.

Page I 1



5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets.

Response: This use will not impact existing traffic. The proposed layout operates using the
same existing traffic pattern and ingress/egress that was previously established
without any increase inflow I congestion.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result in
the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

Response: The proposed use is located on a previously approved outdoor area and will not
affect anything outside ofthat area. It will also be screened to maintain visual appeal
and security.

7. Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may,
in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations of the
Plan Commission The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional
standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use.

Response: The proposed use will conform with all other respects of the Zoning Ordinance,
as may-be modified by the common council.

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response: There are no special standardsfor the specialized use.

Page 12



C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following:

1. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the particular
location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is in the interest
of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or
community.

Response: There is an unmet needfor a BBQ restaurant in this area ofthe city. Th proposed
use is consistent with the public's desire as shown by the Comprehensive Master Plan
priorities.

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the location
of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that may be more
appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: The proposed location is the bestplace to achieve the goals ofthefunction due to
its location in a large shopping area as well as it being a previous BBQ restaurant.

3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been taken
to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate vicinity
through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response: This use is being proposed in a previously approved outdoor area where there is
existing landscape screening on site. There will also be additional screening provided
with an enclosurefor the smokers in afenced area that provides both screening and
security.

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Response: The proposed use is appropriate at this location and will notpromote or encourage
incompatible uses in surrounding areas.

Page I 3



PERSPECTIVE
DESIGN, INC.
11525 W North Avenue
Wauwatosa, WI 53226
Tel (414) 302-1780 Fax (414) 302-1781

Legal Description

Project Name: Mr. Greens BBQ

Address: 7740 S Lovers Lane Road, Suite 400
Franklm, WI 53132

Parcel Number: 794-9001-000

Municipality: City of Franklin

Owner Name: Franklin-Wyndham LLC

Owner Address: 666 Dundee Rd Smte 901

Legal Description: Certified survey map no. 9322, SE 1/4 SEC8-5-21, Lot 1

COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTS



ZL€9 IM 'upqueu4
001> e11ns 'llua, SJ&AOl s 01'.U

088 SU88Je) "JV',! lRCZ

.133HS .ll X .ll = lNll:ld 3ZIS 110:1

0,-:a:
l?lJID!l 311l1 Jlll:ll)Jl!lllfflll!lll31llll!IJIIYIYlll!091tlllll311fJl'llllJll/ll'.IIUrl'1111lrl!t311IMlllBUOJl)Jllllll,kMl91Xl'IXlflll!OS!MlllJlllll'.lll111911Yl'illlllClfJ!l!lllQI/SlllWIIJilYIIIOIIJl1l!l.ll!O JJf\lllllmll/aJ111~9mll/llPlll!IN

31llllll0!/JJ!IIDIOIIJID/IIITP311 ltlf.fiJl~ fJIOOJIBUIIIJillomll031l!llfflll'J l!IIJIIDUll lBIMl l!Olmllll/NllNldGIIIJII/OlalfJ9N l!O!W7.J '!lllMD'IHIKDIOI JIOl!Qt9llff/lrl \111 lll'lml!SIIIMll/UNJi)OO(Jwiw;rulll:lll1l)'.)

moU9/1' "3.LVCI 107d 9MCl"N17>1NVl:l:ISN331:l91:lV-l·(]IV-IVl:IAd-Oml:l\Nl7>1NVl:l:I SN331:l9 l:IV-1 • CIV-IVl:lAd\Sl03rol:ld, -d "3V'NN 311:1



PERSPECTIVE
DESIGN, INC.
11525 W North Avenue
Wauwatosa, WI 53226
Tel (414) 302-1780 Fa (414) 302-1781

Mr. Greens BBQ
7740 S Lovers Lane Road, Suite 400

Franklin, WI 53132

Site Development

August 15, 2023

Supporting Documents

COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTS



Mr. Greens BBQ
Site Development
Page 2 of 5

View ofExisting Site from the North:

Looking towards proposed fenced in smoker location

View ofExisting Site from the Northwest:

Looking towards proposed fenced in smoker location

Perspective Design, Inc. 11525 W. NORTH AVE WAUWATOSA, WI 53209
COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTS



Mr. Greens BBQ
Site Development
Page 3 of 5

Food Truck:

Mr. Greens food truck where it would be place on-site

Perspective Desgn, Inc 11525 W. NORTH AVE WAUWATOSA, WI 53209
COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTS



Mr. Greens BBQ
Site Development
Page 4 of 5

Existing Trash Enclosure:

Existing trash enclosure fencing / gate (Proposed fence enclosure to be similar)

New Smoker Enclosure Fencing:

New Trex composite fencing around smokers (Similar to trash enclosure gate)

Perspective Design, Inc. 11525 W. NORTH AVE WAUWATOSA, WI 53209
COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTS



Mr. Greens BBQ
Site Development
Page 5 of 5

Single Barrel Smoker:

Single smoker to be located inside the enclosure

Double Barrel Smoker:

Double smoker to be located inside the enclosure

Perspective Design, Inc. 11525 W. NORTH AVE WAUWATOSA, WI 53209
COMMERCIAL ARCHITECTS



II NOI.L:JOH.LSNO::> H0.-1 .LON II AlNO M311131l ONV 8NLLYWI.LS3 llOJ
- AllVNIINl13Ud -

,~ mll!I IM ...... UIU~ llt l-llE ftltJD..,I OIUl..zoE'(IUIP.L11121 !!ii i ; :I I 0~L\\"llifflM ldJA

'
O ayg pi usq uo1 g 0z ~VIPJONIASZSII $,_J oee suaaJo "JIIII :JNI 'N~1S30 f El I 1 ! !:Aa"A.111 - ..._

pgpodtgta 3All.:J3dSH3d
".LaUIOirM .O»alillOJIG!UIIIIDll,,l ;lil. llQ1Ul ,i.YCUD9!Mlflld 311.¥1 =-ral JJl/1,DIUll"l3H:aHNllll lllll03Glllf JlllDW9QMBl 1W' atlJ BIMIOJW IDAl'!ltlllft';aem~•IICDtMt l:W&amUW' !Hcm:H "JID':l aeJ"JJrKlll'l l°S'N..w:IJW I-IJII.IW:Bllrtt J:131J-CM

ha'\:iN t::HI J.fiBCH otlDl'J'I J.la tl3U':NlQBl~ DIGKliUQ,I NiUJIP~ H.'!Hlffl.lD ISIII JIQIUI IBfW -., ia,j JW N.wtrJ Oltll AW 01 1DfJMJf' WGNn "m!IMO °<ErllUlliBl ~Ol llllt 'Sl911Mi- (BO,llll'ilj' SUM1 Tl't' UIJt:H 'koe:l~ l1!'RlldJ:l

Jis!>NIM.YHa a:sa:H.L H'IY::>s .LON oaI

~~ - ~.
----=. --~~ @WO I 54407

N

ffl
I>z
i
Ul
!::
fl)

i



II NOI.L:::>OH.LSNO::> H0.:1 .LON II A1NO M31A3U ONY 8NI.LYfllU.S3 uo.,i
- AHYNlfllll3Hd -

HIE!IIM...,._ 18Ll-lfl£'0-lt>I •A Olltl-lUE'&ltl PJ.11121 lli ±# ii ! ;:;~JM."laQIMNIIA, #;oo,, ltlPIB 'I'll...., ......, 11 Ol'L! ;,nwll YlllJONM!ZS'II
- - 9NI 'N9IS3a a.

=I oee suaaJ9 "JI/II i£ I J ! ! ! C/J
la 'au - ....... :-.~.... 3AI.L:::>3dSH3d

r:eut:WfN-IJJ/8HT.J,,._...,HRIQIIYIWQ'.MD-ft~316111Jlll'Mi:lllll_,.DUCM':IILJ,WtlLISti031WW..ulDllaamBLW:!IIUHtORIJlall__,i!IBal.OllmQW&ll!LdtiWY9tmDt'J900IIO".J.U'Nm~J.HtlD!ld91TWM!i:aacw
hl a'O! CH' .LfiScN 01&1f'N J181:1 3tl ':N 'IDB!~ .cllllllllaaQj Q1tl'lmll&YGl ilU'.IOD' llDdlllU IIUUll~ W,sm, ,Jl# N..wlr,,l <at1. JllfOlaHIIIICll' ID alrolD "IIBMO lB:1'1Z1181 :IICllJtJlt. va,,m Wll~IIIH'Jl!l"Tlt'(tll(',llal'll:l~~

.I.BIII M •>t•»-lol3ZII Tlfli

I
I /

{

C\I

rnw
5

t:::rn

~ 91133Wtift~ "ll'fflt31U



II NOI.L::>fili.LSNO::> HOd .LON II A1NO M311\3!1 ONY 9NllVl'II.LS3 !1O,i
- A!IVNll'iln3!1d -

Z€9upueu IRL I-BOUJ UJ OI U-?0£ (t lt,) P.L lll21 ~ ! ; i ! ¥!EzmL'AWIIIMIBA,\

'-- - OCJl,OIIIS'IIU...,-,IIDrll a-.w. vio- NM.SZS II

... I 9 sueeu) JW ":)NI 'NE>IS30 f Fi I I J • 1t 'Ma - ....... ............... 3/\l.l:::>3dSH3d
·~ :tt1 ,S,ooao, 1&11111 MlllWHBDU "1WUIJ 'i!NMICl 3U.:0 3IIBI JNf ,allJIIJ"J:alallf .;tt. JM1.L IIIIIO.- .A11 .DM 'IIIQmQl. 1'2DB!IMO JW JPill ...- 3INHIQ ,Olla:IO CWSl:l~ Dfdn:N •Jma &l ".unwn~ JHt~~~

alJ.G'U1CIIIMN8t.'M Ol9Di';Jt' J/Sl'J H.'2'11 lQBl~ 6J~ MIIJllll dllfilYCi 311 QIMYUD tSIII MQIIIII --MI Ull(lt .Q,\' l\l ...... OIIU. JJIIOlOHlllff m cam'<BSIMG~ illQIIQN·~- c&.-.i lll!Wll llr u«,llGQ:l~~

I
I

I

I
I
I

I
I

I
I

I

I
I
I

I

ill!
/

ii
I

it
I

Xi'
+$
I

;r
f

/

II'.
11.

t'II

"'w

~
5a..
w
t::

I
I



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE APPROVAL

OF A SPECIAL USE FOR LIQUOR,
TOBACCO, & MISC. RETAIL SALES UPON
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7730 S. LOVERS
LANE RD. (BY DHARMESH GHELANI, AK

DEVELOPERS LLC, APPLICANT//
FRANKLIN WYNDHAM LLC, PROPERTY

OWNER)

MEETING
DATE

12/19/23

ITEM NUMBER

Aid. Dist. #2

At its December 7, 2023, regular meeting, the Plan Commission recommended
approval of the attached special use resolution for liquor, tobacco, and miscellaneous
retail sales upon property located at 7730 S. Lovers Lane Rd (By Dharmesh Ghelani,
AK Developers, LLC, Applicant) (Franklin-Wyndham LLC, Property Owner). The
vote was 5-0-1, five 'ayes', no 'noes' and one absent.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023-__, imposing conditions and restrictions
for the approval of a special use for liquor, tobacco, & miscellaneous retail sales upon
property located at 7740 S. Lovers Lane Rd (By Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers,
LLC, Applicant) (Franklin-Wyndham LLC, Property Owner).

Department of City Development: AMK



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR
THE APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL USE FOR LIQUOR, TOBACCO, & MISC. RETAIL

SALES UPON PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7730 S. LOVERS LANE RD.
(BY DHARMESH GHELANI, AK DEVELOPERS LLC, APPLICANT//

FRANKLIN WYNDHAM LLC, PROPERTY OWNER)

WHEREAS, Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers, LLC, having petitioned the City of
Franklin for the approval of a Special Use for liquor, tobacco, and miscellaneous retail sales,
upon property located at 7730 S Lovers Lane Rd., zoned CC Civic Center. The property
which is the subject of the application bears Tax Key No. 794 9999 007and is more
particularly described as follows:

Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map No. 8567, recorded in the Office of the Register
of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, on November 21, 2013. As
Document No. 10315111; being a Redivision of Lot 1 of Certified Survey
Map No. 8000, being a Redivision of Parcel 1 of Certified Survey Map 5762,
Certified Survey Map No. 377, and lands in the Southwest Quarter and the
Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 8, Township 5 North,
Range 21 East; said lands being in the City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee,
State of Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, such petition having been duly referred to the Plan Commission of the
City of Franklin for a public hearing, pursuant to the requirements of §15-9.0103D. of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and a public hearing having been held before the Plan
Commission on the 7th day of December, 2023, and the Plan Commission thereafter having
determined to recommend that the proposed Special Use be approved, subject to certain
conditions, and the Plan Commission further finding that the proposed Special Use upon
such conditions, pursuant to §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance, will be in
harmony with the purposes of the Unified Development Ordinance and the Comprehensive
Master Plan; that they will not have an undue adverse impact upon adjoining property; that
they will not interfere with the development of neighboring property; that they will be served
adequately by essential public facilities and services; that they will not cause undue traffic
congestion; and that they will not result in damage to property of significant importance to
nature, history or the like; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having received such Plan Commission
recommendation and also having found that the proposed Special Use, subject to conditions,
meet the standards set forth under §15-3.0701 of the Unified Development Ordinance.



DHARMESH GHELANI, AK DEVELOPERS LLC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-
Page 2

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the petition of Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers,
LLC, for the approval of a Special Use for the property particularly described in the
preamble to this Resolution, be and the same is hereby approved, subject to the following
conditions and restrictions:

1. That this Special Use is approved only for the use of the subject property by
Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers, LLC, successors and assigns, for a liquor,
tobacco, & miscellaneous retail sales use, which shall be developed in substantial
compliance with, and operated and maintained by Dharmesh Ghelani, AK
Developers, LLC, pursuant to those plans City file-stamped October 27, 2023 and
annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

2. Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers, LLC, successors and assigns, shall pay to the
City of Franklin the amount of all development compliance, inspection and review
fees incurred by the City of Franklin, including fees of consults to the City of
Franklin, for the Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers, LLC liquor, tobacco, &
miscellaneous retail sales Special Use, within 30 days of invoice for same. Any
violation of this provision shall be a violation of the Unified Development
Ordinance, and subject to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the Municipal Code,
the general penalties and remedies provisions, as amended from time to time.

3. The approval granted hereunder is conditional upon the Dharmesh Ghelani, AK
Developers, LLC liquor, tobacco, & miscellaneous retail sales Special Use for the
property located at 7730 S Lovers Lane Rd.: (i) being in compliance with all
applicable governmental laws, statutes, rules, codes, orders and ordinances; and
(ii) obtaining all other governmental approvals, permits, licenses and the like,
required for and applicable to the project to be developed and as presented for this
approval.

4. The hours of operation for business(es) with any of the approved Special Uses
shall be limited to no later than 10:00 P.M.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in the event Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers,
LLC, successors or assigns, or any owner of the subject property, does not comply with one
or any of the conditions and restrictions of this Special Use Resolution, following a ten (10)
day notice to cure, and failure to comply within such time period, the Common Council,
upon notice and hearing, may revoke the Special Use permission granted under this
Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any violation of any term, condition or
restriction of this Resolution is hereby deemed to be, and therefore shall be, a violation of the
Unified Development Ordinance, and pursuant to §15-9.0502 thereof and §1-19 of the



DHARMESH GHELANI, AK DEVELOPERS LLC - SPECIAL USE
RESOLUTION NO. 2023
Page 3

Municipal Code, the penalty for such violation shall be a forfeiture of no more than
$2,500.00, or such other maximum amount and together with such other costs and terms as
may be specified therein from time to time. Each day that such violation continues shall be a
separate violation. Failure of the City to enforce any such violation shall not be a waiver of
that or any other violation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be construed to be such
Special Use Permit as is contemplated by §15-9.0103 of the Unified Development
Ordinance.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to §15-9.0103G. of the Unified
Development Ordinance, that the Special Use permission granted under this Resolution shall
be null and void upon the expiration of one year from the date of adoption of this Resolution,
unless the Special Use has been established by way of the issuance of an occupancy permit
for such use

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to obtain
the recording of a certified copy of this Resolution in the Office of the Register of Deeds for
Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT--- --- ---



Item C.7.

man CITY OF FRANKLIN i
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting of December 7, 2023
Special Use

RECOMMENDATION: City Development Staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the
Special Use application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft
Resolution with conditions as attached.
Project Name:
Property Owner:
Applicant:
Property Address/Tax Key Number:
Aldermanic District:
Agent:
Zoning District:
Use of Surrounding Properties:

Application Request:
Staff Planner:

AK Developers Special Use
Franklin Wyndham LLC
Dharmesh Ghelani, AK Developers LLC
7730 S Lovers Lane Rd, Suite 200 / 794 9999 007
District 2
Nick Fuchs, Wrayburn Consulting
CC Civic Center
CC Civic Center (east, south, and west), R-3E
Suburban/Estate Single-Family Residence District (south)
To allow for liquor, tobacco, & misc. retail sales
Anna Kissel, Planning Intern, & Marion Eeks, Associate
Planner, AICP

Background
The applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit for an approximately 3,500 sq. ft. liquor, tobacco, &
miscellaneous retail sale use. This site is part of the Shoppes at Wyndham Village; it is currently vacant.
The site plan included in the meeting packet is a conceptual plan for a development with three businesses:
a previously approved Dairy Queen and two future tenant spaces. The proposed hours of operation for
tenant space(s) and Special Uses are no later than 9:00pm.

SPECIAL USE

The lot is zoned CC Civic Center.
• Liquor stores (SIC code: 5921) is a Special Use in this district.
• Tobacco stores (SIC code: 5993) is a Special Use in this district.
• Miscellaneous retail sales (SIC code: 5999) is a Special Use in this district.

Staff notes the following:
• The applicant has provided required responses to, and complies with, the standards of§ 15-3.0701:

General Standards for Special Uses
• The development is consistent with the existing zoning requirements, and Future Land Use

Comprehensive Master Plan mtent for the district (§15-7 0102.M)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
The Plan Commission may recommend, and the Common Council may impose, conditions and
limitations on a Special Use application related to use, design, and operation (§15-3.0701.D).



The Department of City Development staff recommends the Plan Commission forward the Special Use
application to the Common Council for decision based on the recommended draft Resolution as attached.
The resolution reflects recommended conditions of approval.

Recommended Conditions ofApproval
• The hours ofoperatonfor busmness wthin the development shall be lmited to no later than 9·00

P.M

2



APPLICATION DATE:

Planning Department r STAMP DATE cty use onvf --
9229 West Loomis Road FranklinFranklin, Wisconsin 53132

(414) 425-4024
franklinwi gov w I s C 0 N s l N

COMMON COUNCIL REVIEW APPLICATION
·- .. - ,_

f--·-:go: lEGtlN-"Fl'~oRl'M·- 11'-ta'; ()6ft't't"11:1l'fil.:•(e~· ""~:·[·~';fl]-~;(' ,t;f,-~-f 1 F ~- ' i! -,
£ ,; ..:;

.+ ....-« 4&, .• -a , "e .o«::3¥ ".±·so » .f.hf.±.ae n . ..s. ME.

APPLICANT [FULL LEGAL NAMES] APPLICANT IS REPRESENTED BY [CONTACT PERSON)
NAME DHARMESH GHELANI NAME NICHOLAS FUCHS
COMPANY AK DEVELOPERS LLC COMPANY. WRAYBURN CONSULTING

MAILING ADDRESS 5514 W RIVER PARK CT MAILING ADDRESS 2000 Fairhaven Boulevard

CITY/STATE FRANKLIN, WI ZIP 53132 cnv/STATE· Elm Grove, WI ZIP 53122
PHONE 6306243545 PHONE 262-442-4327
EMAIL ADDRESS DGHELANl@YAHOO.COM EMAILADDRESS nfuchs@wrayburnconsult1ng com

'· ·iosier@Roi@Rem?Iii#iii#ii@pee-+ + ¥ 2 l- t "
J ._i·_·r -· .'as'.«Fi.ix" »skrgi.,tm: .Else aeS«tu. 'k: .s#?

PROPERTY ADDRESS 7739 S Lovers Ln Rd, Ste 200 TAX KEV NUMBER 794-9999-007

PROPERTY OWNER AK Developers LLC PHONE 6306243545
--

MAILING ADDRESS 5514 W River Park Ct EMAIL ADDRESS dghelan@yahoo.com
CITY/STATE Franklin, WI ZIP 53132 DATE OF COMPLETION ff cr ..€

' , -- ' .." ,JAB8PLu&Ario.#.""5%±j% % --
-l'.

Please check the application type that you are applying for

□Concept Review□ Comprehensive Master Plan Amendment [] Planned Development District [] Rezoning
l!!!!I Special Use/ Special Use Amendment□ Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendment

Most requests require Plan Comm,ssmn review and Common Council approval
Applicant is responsible for providing Plan Commission resubmittal materials up to 12 copies pending staff request and comments

·c -· 3 ss6At9RE$."%ii ±:.' . ---
ere,.. ' r.

The applicant and property owner(s) hereby certify that (1) all statements and other information submitted as part of this application are true and correct to the best
of applicant's and property owner(s)' knowledge; {2) the applicant and property owner(s) has/have read and understand all information in this application, and (3) the
applicant and property owner(s} agree that any approvals based on representations made by them in this Application and its submittal, and any subsequently Issued
building permits or other type of permits, may be revoked without notice if there is a breach of such representation(s) or any condition(s) of approval By execution of
this application, the property owner(s) authonze the City of Frankhn and/or its agents to enter upon the subject property(ies) between the hours of 7 oo a m and 7 00
p m daily for the purpose of inspection while the application is under review The property owner(s} grant this authorization even if the property has been posted against
trespassmng pursuant to Wis Stat $943 13

(The applicant's signaturemustbefrom a ManagungMember if thebusiness is an LLC, orfrom thePresident or VicePresidentifthebusiness is a corporation A signed
applicant's authorization lettermaybeprovided in lieu oftheapplicant's signaturebelow, and a signedproperty owner'sauthorization lettermaybeprovided in lieu
oftheproperty owner's signature[s] below Ifmore than one, all oftheowners ofthepropertymust sign this Application).

ii!! I, the applicant, certify that I have read the following page detailing the requirements for plan commission and common councrl approval and
subm1ttals and understand that incomplete applications and subm1ttals cannot be reviewed

PROPERTY OWN'~GNATURE 0a.> APPLICANT SIGNATURE

.' o , 9 ?- 27 I
NAME & TITLE

Dharmesh Ghelarn, President DATE 9/07/23 NAME & TITLE Nicholas Fuchs, Consultant DATE 09/07/23 I
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE SIGNATURE

I
NAME & TITLE DATE NAME&TITLE DATE I



l

lfyou.have
• __ , -·· ..

□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ $250 Apphcat,on fee payable to the City of Franklin
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include.

□ Three (3) project narratives
□ Three (3) copies of the Preliminary Srte/Development Plan ofthe subject property(ies) and immediate surroundings on8"X11" or 11"X

17"paper (ie,a scaled map identifying thesubject property and immediate environs, including existing andproposedparcels, existing and proposed
structures, existing and proposed land uses, existing andproposedzoning, existing and proposed infrastructure and utilities[approximate locations only],
and existing and proposed siteconditions/siteconstraints [i.e approximate locations ofpublic road access, rights-a/way, natural resources/green space
and drainage issues/concerns, etc]}

D Three (3) colored copies of building elevations on 11"X 17"paper ifapplicable
□ Email or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials

[] This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ $125 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
D Word Document legal description of the subject property
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include.

□ Three (3) project narratives
□ Three (3) folded copies of a Site Development Plan/Map, drawn to reasonablescale, at least 11"X 17"paper or as determined by the City Planner

or City Engineer, 1dent1fying thesubjectproperty and immediate environs, including parcels, structures, land use, zoning, streets and utilities, and natural
resourcefeatures, as applicable

EJ Emal or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials
D Additional information as may be required

• Requires a Class I Public Hearing Notice at least 30 days before the Common Council Meeting

□ This application form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin (select one of the following}

□ $6,000 New POD
□ $3,500 POD Major Amendment
□ $500 PDD Minor Amendment

□Word Document legal description of the subject property
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include ..

□ Three (3) project narratives
D Three (3) folded full size, of the Site Plan Package, drown ta scale copies, on 24"36" paper, including Buldmg Elevations, Landscape Plan, Outdoor

Lighting Plan, Natural Resource Protection Plan, Natural ResourceProtectmn Report, etc (SeeSections 15-7 0101, 15 7 0301, and 15-5 0402 of the UDOfor
infarmat,on that must be denoted or included with each respectiveplan}

□ One (1) colored copy of the building elevations on 11"X17 paper, ifapplicable
□ One (1) copy of the Site Intensity and Capacity Calculations, if applicable (seedivision 15-3 0500 ofthe UDO}
[] Email or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials

POD and Major POD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a public hearing, and Common Council approval
Minor POD Amendment requests require Plan Commission review and Common Council approval

□ This appl1cat1on form accurately completed with signatures or authorization letters (see reverse side for more details)
□ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin (select one of the following]

□ $1,250
□ $350 one parcel residential

[] Word Document legal description of the subject property
□ Three (3) complete collated sets of apphcat,on materials to include

] Three (3) project narratives
D Three (3) folded copies of a Plot Plan or Site Plan, drawn to reasonable scale, at least 11"X 17"paper or as determined by the City Planner

or City Engineer, andfullydimensionedshowing the area proposed to be rezoned, ts location, its dimensions, the location and class1ficat1on ofod1ocent
zoning districts, and the location and existing use ofallproperties within 200feetofthe area proposed to berezoned

[] Email or flash drive with all plans / submittal materials
D Additional information as may be required

• Additional notice to and approval required for amendments or rezonmg in the FW, FC, FFO, and SW Districts
• Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission



.sPicitusE(seiA?usMiiii&iitiiteit@iii:irii#is $"

This application form accurately completed with signatures orauthorization letters (see reverse side formore details)
~ Application fee payable to the City of Franklin . [select one of the following)

D $1,500 NewSpecial Use>4000 square feet
D $1,000 Special Use Amendment.
A] $750, NewSpecial Use < 4000 square feet

Word Document legal description of the subject property.
"" One copy of a response to the General Standards, Special Standards, and Considerationsfound in Section 15-3 0701{A), (B), and {C) of the UDO available
atwww [ranklwn gov
D Three (3) complete collated sets of application materials to include
■ Ill Three (3) project narratives

l!!!I Three (3) folded copies of the Site Plan package, drawn to scale at least 24" X 36", Thesubmittal should include only those plans/items as set
forth n Section 15-7 0101, 15-7 0301 and 15-5 0402 ofthe UDO that ore impacted bythe development [eg., Site Plan, Building Elevations, Landscape
Plan, Outdoor Lighting Plan, Natural ResourceProtection Plan, Natural Resource Protection Report, etc

D One (1) colored copy of the building elevations an 11"X 17"paper, ifapplicable
Emnail or flash drive with all plans/ submittal materials

~ Additional information as may be required

• Special Use/Special Use Amendment requests require Plan Commission review, a Public Hearing and Common Council approval

UNIFI6EVE1.,oPiEir @ij#ii"t.uojr'jrMEiipi$Firiii€4ii@NMATERIAL.s
D This application form accurately completedwith signatures orauthorization letters (see reverse side formore details)
D $200 Application fee payable to the City of Franklin
[]Three (3) project narratives, including descriptan ofthe proposed text amendment. Requires a Class II Public Hearing notice at Plan Commission

• The City's Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) is available at wwwfranklinwi.gov



#Franklin
4

7730 S. Lovers Lane Road
TKN: 794 9999 007

WISCONSIN

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 160 320 640 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aerial Photo
This map shows the approximate relatrve locaton ofproperty
boundares but was notprepared byaprofesswnal land surveyor
This map 1sprovuledfor 1riformatwnalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropnatefor legal engineering
or surveyingpurposes



Franklin
"" WISCONSIN

7730 S. Lovers Lane Road
TKN: 794 9999 007

-

Planning Department
(414) 425-4024

0 160 320 640 Feet A
NORTH

2021 Aenal Photo
This map shows the approximate relallve locatwn ofproperty
boundares but was notprepared byaprofesswnal land surveyor
This map sprovdedfor nformatonalpurposes only
andmaynot be sufficient or appropnatefor legal engmeermng
or surveyingpurposes



WC

~

October 27, 2023

Wrayburn Consulting, LLC
info@wrayburnconsulting.com
2000 Fairhaven Boulevard
Elm Grove,W1 53122

262-442-4327

Project Narrative: Special Use Application for a proposed retail use

We are proposing to construct an approximately 8,298 square foot multi-tenant retail building
upon property located at 7730 S. Lovers Lane Road within the Shoppes at Wyndham Village
development.

Two specific tenants are currently anticipated, and a third tenant is yet to be determined. One
tenant is a Dairy Queen Grill and Chill. A Special Use Permit was submitted for the proposed
drive-through associated with the restaurant. The drive-through use received a
recommendation of approval at the September 7, 2023 Plan Commission meeting and final
approval by the Common Council at their September 19, 2023 meeting.

The second use, which is the subject of this application, is a retail store, primarily selling liquor
and tobacco products. Below is a table of Standard Industrial Classification Codes that this use
falls under, whch are allowed as a Special Use within the Caty Civic Center District.

SIC Code Classification Allowance within the CC District
SIC Code No. 5921 Liquor Stores Special Use
SIC Code No. 5993 Tobacco Stores Special Use
SIC Code No. 5999 Miscellaneous Retail Special Use

The proposed business is expected to have 3 employees and hours of operations from 9:00 a.m.
to 9:00 p.m. It 1s also anticipated that about 70% of sales will be from the hquor store
operation, about 25% from tobacco, and about 5% from miscellaneous items.

The owner intends to apply for a Class A Liquor License, which 1s the same license acquired by
Pick 'N Save for liquor and tobacco sales and Target for liquor sales. The proposed retail use fits
in and is consistent wrth the other retail uses within the Shoppes at Wyndham Village
development.

Responses to Section 15-3.0701, General Standards for Special Uses, have been provided as
well as a conceptual site and floor plans.

1



WC

~

Wrayburn Consulting, LLC
info@wrayburnconsulting.com
2000 Fairhaven Boulevard
Elm Grove, WI 53122

262-442-4327

It should be noted that 1t is our intent to maintain and preserve the existing landscape buffer
along the north property line. Moreover, hours of operations will be limited to 9:00 p.m. for
this retail use, which is earlier than concurrently proposed restaurant and drive-through use.
Furthermore, any illumination and illuminated signage will be shut offwithin the same
tmmeframe as the other tenants within the development.

Sufficient parking will be provided as demonstrated on the site plan, and lighting will be
designed and consistent with the existing lighting at the shopping center. As such, there are no
adverse impacts to the surrounding area. Detailed srte and building plans will be submitted
following approval of the Special Use.

We have also provided information and addressed all comments contained within the City's
comment letter dated October 25, 2023. This includes the Fire Department comments which
are understood and will be met.

Sincerely,

Nick Fuchs

2



DIVISION 15-3.0700

SECTION 15-3.0701

SPECIAL USE STANDARDS AND REGULATIONS

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USES

A.

1.

General Standards. No special use permit shall be recommended or granted pursuant to
this Ordinance unless the applicant shall establish the following:

Ordinance and Comprehensive Master Plan Purposes and Intent. The proposed use and
development will be in harmony with the general and specific purposes for which this
Ordinance was enacted and for which the regulations of the zoning district in question
were established and with the general purpose and intent of the City of Franklin
Comprehensive Master Plan or element thereof.

Response: The subjectproperty is zoned CC City Civic CenterDistrict, which is intended to
serve as the new "downtown" of the City. The district promotes mixed-use
development, including retail uses. The proposed use fits in and is consistent
with existing uses located within the Shoppes at Wyndham Village development.
Furthermore, the site design and building architecture will be consistent with
the characteristics of the developed areas of the shopping center as well as the
intent ofthe CCDistrict.

The zoning and this proposed use is consistent with the City's Comprehensive
Master Plan andfuture land use designation ofMixed Use. There are many
goals and objectives ofthe ComprehensiveMaster Plan met by this development
including #1, #2, #5, #6, #7, #8, #9, #10, #11, #12, #14, #15, #19, and #22 of
Chapter 2 ofsaidplan.

2. No Undue Adverse Impact. The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or
undue adverse or detrimental effect upon or endanger adjacent property, the character of the area,
or the public health, safety, morals, comfort, and general welfare and not substantially diminish
and impair property values within the community or neighborhood.

Response: The proposed use will be located within a multi-tenant retail building. The
proposed site plan and architecture of the building will be consistent with the
existing developments within the shopping center. Furthermore, bujferyards
have already been established and will be maintained and improved as part of
this development.

3. No Interference with Surrounding Development. The proposed use and development will
be constructed, arranged, and operated so as not to dominate the immediate vicinity or to
interfere with the use and development of neighboring property in accordance with the
applicable zoning district regulations.

Response: The proposed use will be located within a multi-tenant retail building, which
is designed to match and be consistent with the existing buildings and sites
within the Shoppes at Wyndham Village shopping center.

The subject property is planned for retail uses, similar to that of the
surrounding properties within the development. As such, the proposed use

Page ]1



and development will not interfere with surrounding developments, but
ratherfill a vacant outlot within an existing development.

Furthermore, all zoning district regulations will be met, and the use and
development will not impact the use and development of any adjacent
properties, which are currentlyfully developed and improved.

4. Adequate Public Facilities. The proposed use and development will be served adequately
by essential public facilities and services such as streets, public utilities including public water
supply system and sanitary sewer, police and fire protection, refuse disposal, public parks,
libraries, schools, and other public facilities and utilities or the applicant will provide
adequately for such facilities.

Response: The Shoppes at Wyndham Village is afully developed and serviced shopping
center, except for this last outlot. The development already has all the
amenities andpublicfacilities listed above, includingpublic sewer and water.

5. No Traffic Congestion. The proposed use and development will not cause undue traffic
congestion nor draw significant amounts of traffic through residential streets. Adequate
measures will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic
congestion in the public streets.

Response: There will be a minimum of two points of ingress and egress to the outlot,
which allows customers and traffic to safely and adequately enter and exit
the site. The access to the site is within the development itself. There is no
direct access to a public street.

The site plan illustrates sufficient queuing for the other restaurant use,
which is located around the building and in a manner not to block parking
stalls or cause any congestion onsitefor this use or any otherfuture tenants.

The Shoppes at Wyndham Village is accessible from major roadways, S.
Lovers Lane Road (HWY 100) and West Drexel Avenue. No traffic is
required to enter or exit through residential streets.

6. No Destruction of Significant Features. The proposed use and development will not result
in the destruction, loss, or damage of any natural, scenic, or historic feature of significant
importance.

Response: The proposed use and development is located within an outlot of the Shoppes
at Wyndham Village development. This is a ready to build site within this
existing development. The site has been planned for development since the
shopping center was originally constructed. As such, there is no destruction
or loss or damage to anyprotected natural resources.

7. Compliance with Standards. The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the
applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations
may, in each instance, be modified by the Common Council pursuant to the recommendations
of the Plan Commission. The proposed use and development shall comply with all additional

Page I 2



standards imposed on it by the particular provision of this Division and Ordinance authorizing
such use.

Response: The proposed use and development of the site will comply with all City Civic
Center District standards as well as all other applicable standards of the
UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance.

B. Special Standards for Specified Special Uses. When the zoning district regulations authorize
a special use in a particular zoning district and that special use is indicated as having special
standards, as set forth in Section 15-3.0702 and 15-3.0703 of this Division, a Special Use
Permit for such use in such zoning district shall not be recommended or granted unless the
applicant shall establish compliance with all such special standards.

Response No special standards are listed within Section 15-3. 0702 as these arefor uses
located within ResidentialDistricts.

The proposed retail use is not a specifically listed special use within Section
15-3.0703. As such, there are no additional standards to address. With that
said, the proposed use and development will comply with all applicable
standards ofthe UnifiedDevelopment Ordinance.

C. Considerations. In determining whether the applicant's evidence establishes that the foregoing
standards have been met, the Plan Commission and the Common Council shall consider the
following:

1. Public Benefit. Whether and to what extent the proposed use and development at the
particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a service or a facility that is
in the interest of the public convenience or that will contribute to the general welfare of the
neighborhood or community.

Response: The proposed use is a retail use that is compatible with the other retail uses
within the shopping center. Moreover, the additional customer base and
traffic will benefit the other uses within the development.

It is also a benefit to the community and this development to improve the
subject vacant outlot and to add to the mix of tenants and uses within the
existing shopping center. The use provides additional optionsfor residents to
purchase liquor, tobacco, and other products sold at this location.

The development also adds to the Community's tax base and positively
contributes to the City's 70/30 tax goal.

2. Alternative Locations. Whether and to what extent such public goals can be met by the
location of the proposed use and development at some other site or in some other area that
may be more appropriate than the proposed site.

Response: There may be other possible retail locations; however, this site lends itself to
this proposed use as it is a retail use locating within a well-established retail
shopping center. There is no reason to believe that a similar retail

Page I 3



development would provide any more or less benefits than the subject
property. This development and, in part the proposed use, will finally
complete and result in the fult development of the Shoppes at Wyndham
Village.

3. Mitigation of Adverse Impacts. Whether and to what extent all steps possible have been
taken to minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use and development on the immediate
vicinity through building design, site design, landscaping, and screening.

Response: The proposed development will maintain and improve upon the existing
landscape buffer by adding landscaping to the site. Site lighting will be
designed in a manner consistent with the existing lighting ofthe development
and will consider the residential uses to the north. Hours ofoperations will
be kept within a timeframe that will not adversely impact any surrounding
uses, including the residential subdivision to the north. Ingress and egress to
the site is internal to the development with no direct access to public streets.
Moreover, the adjacent arterial streets are more than adequate to support any
additional traffic to the site.

4. Establishment of Precedent of Incompatible Uses in the Surrounding Area. Whether the
use will establish a precedent of, or encourage, more intensive or incompatible uses in the
surrounding area.

Response: The proposed use is a retail use within an existing retail development. It is
consistent and compatible with all uses within this development. It is not a
use that is more intense than other uses. The proposed use will rather have a
positive impact to the shopping center by bringing more people and
customers the development and other businesses.

Page I 4



• • • • •• H • i,

~ t±

§ p p n••§ ~ § § §

FRANKLIN TENANT BUILDING
W. DREXEL AVE

FRANKLIN, WI

envision design
ARCHITECTURE



l-l65_8Q". R=B6Q_n()' £Jc SIOfWAl.Jc:
il.=0··024r

¥e f[!f !!l ®©El ;±# ala3?3 I "

~8° t#, ~ I la

iii. ; ~ ~
z

m
, i

W DREXEL AV[

g ~ Po!OJECT TITLE:~ ~ 2 i TRACT BA 6WYNDHAM VILLAGE~ .,.., ,(") 0 £¥ 13 g WEST DREXELAVENUE0 g 6 a :S m-.,- ~ .. ~ -uo CITYOF FRANKLIN, WI 531320 % ;u ;u \;O>g ::: zl!l...., P5e
PA• sH SURVEY -. EkG NEER: liG

"car"z::222°

REVISIONS:
NO. DATE OESCR1f'TION



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN
OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT A

CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR AND AS
PART OF THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL
OF A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP (BY ALEX
SCHELER, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC,
APPLICANT, CARMA LABORATORIES,
INC, PROPERTY OWNER) (9410 S 76TH

STREET AND 7520 W RYAN RD)

MEETING DATE

December 19, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

District 1

This easement is a requirement of approval for the subject property as noted in Common Council
Resolution No. 2023-8057, conditionally approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) on November 7, 2023.

The CSM divides these lots to allow for development of Carma Laboratories Inc.

The Conservation Easement, and the related Landscape Bufferyard Easement are configured to allow
future cross-access between Lots 1, 2, and 3 of this CSM, and do not overlap with each other.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Resolution 2023- , authorizing certain officials to accept a Conservation
Easement from Carma Laboratories Inc., for and as part of the review and approval of a Certified Survey
Map, with the condition that any minor technical corrections may be made by the City Attorney and
Department of City Development staff (BY ALEX SCHELER, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC,
APPLICANT, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC, PROPERTY OWNER) (9410 S 76TH STREET AND 7520
WRYANRD)

Department ofCity Development MX



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023--

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR AND AS PART

OF THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP (BY ALEX
SCHELER, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC, APPLICANT, CARMA LABORATORIES,

INC, PROPERTY OWNER) (9410 S 76TH STREET AND 7520 W RYAN RD)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Common Council having approved a Certified
Survey Map upon the application of Alex Scheler, Carma Laboratories, Inc., on November 7,
2023, conditioned in part upon Common Council approval of a Conservation Easement to
protect the woodland, wetland buffers and wetlands on the site; and

WHEREAS, 15-4.0103.B.1.d, $15-7.0201.H, and $15-4.0102.K of the Unified
Development Ordinance requires the submission of a Conservation Easement and Natural
Resource Protection Plan in the review process and the Unified Development Ordinance
requires conservation easements to be imposed for natural resource features identified within
such Plan to protect such features, all as part of the approval process for a Certified Survey
Map; and

WHEREAS, the City Engineering Department, Department of City Development and
the Office of the City Attorney having reviewed the proposed Conservation Easement and
having recommended approval thereof to the Common Council; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Conservation Easement submitted by Saputo
Cheese, USA, in the form and content as annexed hereto, subject to any changes consistent
with this Resolution and as may approved upon further review by the City Engineering
Department, Department of City Development and the Office of the City Attorney, be and
the same is hereby approved; and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute
such Easement as evidence of the consent to and acceptance of such easement by the City of
Franklin.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby
directed to obtain the recording of this Resolution and the Conservation Easement in the
Office of the Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of> 2023.



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A CONSERVATION EASEMENT FOR AND AS PART OF THE REVIEW
AND APPROVAL OF A CSM FOR CARMA LABORATORIES INC.
Page 2

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



CONSERVATION EASEMENT

Carma Laboratories, Inc.

This Conservation Easement is made by and between the Caty of Franklin, a municipal corporation of the State of
Wisconsm, heremafter referred to as "Grantee," and Carma Laboratories, Inc a Corporation, heremafter referred to as
"Grantor," and shall become effective upon the recordmg of this Grant of Conservation Easement, together with the
Acceptance following, with the Office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, pursuant to § 700 40(2)(b) of the
Wisconsin Statutes

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner in fee simple of certam real property, located withm the City of Franklm,
Milwaukee County, W1sconsm, descnbed in Exhibit A attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof (protected property),
and

WHEREAS, the Grantor desires and mntends that the natural elements and the ecological and aesthetic values of the
protected property includmg, without limitatmn, young woodlands, wetlands, wetland buffers and steep slopes based on the
NRPP report prepared by Kapur and Assoc1ates m October of 2023, which Plan is on file m the office of the City ofFranklm
Department of City Development, be preserved and mamtamed by the continuation of land use that will not mterfere with or
substantially disrupt the natural elements or the workmgs ofnatural systems, and

WHEREAS, Grantee is a "holder, as contemplated by§ 700 40(1)(b)l of the WIsconsm Statutes, whose purposes
mclude, whle exercising regulatory authority granted to 1t, nter ala, under $ 62 23 and§ 236 4S of the Wisconsin Statutes,
the conservation of land, natural areas, open space and water areas, and

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee, by the conveyance to the Grantee of the conservation easement on, over and
across the protected property, desire to conserve the natural values thereof and prevent the use or development of the
protected property for any purpose or many manner mconsistent with the terms of this conservation easement, and

WHEREAS, the Grantee Is willing to accept thus conservation easement subject to the reservations and to the
covenants, terms, conditions and restnctions set out herem and imposed hereby

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor, for and m consideration of the foregomg recitations and of the mutual covenants,
terms, condrtions, and restrictions subsequently contamned, and as an absolute and unconditional dedrcaton, does hereby
grant and convey unto the Grantee a conservation easement in perpetuity on, over and across the protected property

Grantee's rghts hereunder shall consist solely of the followmg·
1 To view the protected property mn 1ts natural, scen1c, and open condition,
2 To enforce by proceedmg at law or in eqmty the covenants subsequently set forth, includmg, and m addition to all other

enforcement proceedings, proceedings to obtamn all penalties and remedies set forth under DIv1s1on 15-9 0500 of the
Umfied Development Ordmance of the City ofFranklm, as amended from time to time, any v10lat1on of the covenants
subsequently set forth being and constitutmg a violatmn of such Umfied Development Ordmance, as amended from time
to time, or such local applicable ordmance as may be later adopted or mn effect to enforce such covenants or the purposes
for which they are made, 1t bemg agreed that there shall be no waiver or forfeiture of the Grantee's rght to mnsure
compliance with the covenants and conditions of thus grant by reason of any pr1or failure to act, and

3 To enter the protected property at all reasonable times for the purpose ofmspectmg the protected property to determme 1f
the Grantor 1s complymng with the covenants and conditions of thus grant

And m furtherance of the foregoing affirmative rights ofthe Grantee, the Grantor makes the followmg covenants which shall
run with and bind the protected property m perpetmty, namely, that, on, over or across the protected property, the Grantor,
without the pnor consent of the Grantee, shall not
1 Construct or place bmldmgs or any structure,
2 Construct or make any improvements, unless, notwithstandmg Covenant 1. above, the improvement is specifically and

previously approved by the Common Councl of the City ofFranklin, upon the advice of such other persons, entities, and
agencies as it may elect, such improvements as may be so approved bemg mtended to enhance the resource value of the

1



protected property to the environment or the pubhc and including, but not hm1ted to arumal and bird feedmg stat10ns,
park benches, the removal of ammal blockage of natural drainage or other occurrmg blockage of natural dramage, and
the hke;

3 Excavate, dredge, grade, mine, dnll or change the topography of the land or its natural condition in any manner,
mcludmg any cutting or removal ofvegetation, except for the removal ofdead or diseased trees;

4 Conduct any filling, dumping, or deposrtmng of any mater1al whatsoever, includmg, but not limited to soil, yard waste or
other landscape matenals, ashes, garbage, or debris;

5. Plant any vegetation not native to the protected property or not typical wetland vegetat10n,
6 Operate snowmobiles, dune buggies, motorcycles, all-terrain vehlcles or any other types ofmotorized vehicles

To have and to hold this conservation easement unto the Grantee forever Except as expressly limited herein, the Grantor
reserves all rights as owner of the protected property, includmg, but not limited to, the right to use the protected property for
all purposes not inconsistent with thls grant. Grantor shall be responsible for the payment of all general property taxes levied,
assessed or accrumg agamst the protected property pursuant to law.

The covenants, terms, cond1t10ns and restnctlons set forth m this grant shall be bmding upon the Grantor and the Grantee and
their respective agents, personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns, and shall constitute servitudes runnmg with
the protected property m perpetuity Thls grant may not be amended, except by a wntmg executed and dehvered by Grantor
and Grantee or their respective personal representatives, he1rs, successors, and assigns Notices to the parties shall be
personally dehvered or mailed by U S Mail registered mail, return receipt requested, as follows

To Grantor
Carma Laboratones, Inc
Attn Rch Maln
9750 S Frankln Drve
Frankhn, WI 53132

To Grantee
City ofFrank lin
Office ofthe City Clerk
9229 West Loomis Road
Franklm, Wisconsm 53132

In witness whereof, the Grantor has set its hand[s] on thus date of,20

Carma Laboratones, Inc

By
Ruch Simonson, COO

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

This mstrument was acknowledged before me on the day of,20, by Rich Simonson_, as COO
of Carma Laboratones, Inc, a corporat10n, to me known to be the person who executed the foregomg conservat10n easement
and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and deed of said __Carma Laboratones, Inc_

Notary Pubh1c

My comm 1ss1on exp1res

Acceptance

The undersigned does hereby consent to and accepts the Conservat10n Easement granted and conveyed to 1t under and
pursuant to the foregomg Grant of Conservation Easement In cons1deration of the makmg of such Grant Of Conservat10n
Easement, the undersigned agrees that thus acceptance shall be bmndmg upon the undersigned and 1ts successors and ass1gns
and that the restnctJons imposed upon the protected property may only be released or waived m wntmg by the Common
Council of the City ofFranklm, as contemplated by $ 236 293 of the W1sconsm Statutes

In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered thus acceptance on the day of,20
2



CITY OF FRANKLIN

By.
John Nelson, Mayor

By·
Karen Kastenson, Caty Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )

Personally came before me thus day of,20,the above named Stephen R
Olson, Mayor and Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk, of the above named municipal corporat10n, City of Franklm, to me
known to be such Mayor and Caty Clerk of sard municipal corporation, and acknowledged that they executed the foregoing
instrument as such officers as the Deed of sad muncmpal corporation by 1ts authonty and pursuant to Resolution No
____, adopted by its Common Council on the day of20

Notary Public

My comrmss10n expires _

This instrnment was drafted by the City ofFranklm

Approved as to contents

Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Prncpal Planner Date
Department of City Development

Approved as to form only·

Jesse A Wesolowski
City Attorney

Date

3



EXHIBIT A
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.
Being a part of the part of the West 1/2 of the SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 05 North,
Range 21 East, situated in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

CONSERVATION EASEMENT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Lot 1, of Certified Survey Map No. of Certified Survey Maps of the Milwaukee County Registry .

$
ze;
3;
6

!
lil=~-a-p-u--fl--2-26-W-. W-1-SC_O_N_S_IN_A_V-,E.
5 APPLETON, WI 54911

kapurinc.com
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY ERIK A. GUSTAFSON. KAPUR AND ASSOCIATES, INC.



EXHIBIT B
DEPICTION OF EASEMENT

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.----
SHEET 1 OF 2 SHEETS

1311.68'

N. 324,456.21
E. 2,536,021.18

'.;::
0o
"l

S 88'35'30" W 300.05'

Cf)
0
0

~
.,<
"l
m

i
el
=]

i
,,i ~
sl"
fio,

CONSERVATION EASEMENT z I
TO THE CITY OF FRANKLIN~..)

s? s
% °9/6"9%,

$°
~45.00'

N 89"35'18" E
30.70'

200

1" = 200'

WETlANOS

s 100000 E
171 86

WETlANO SETBACK
' OFFSET

SCALE IN FEET

0 100
•wl I

100..

LEGEND:

-·-·-·-·-·-·- = BUILDING SETBACK LINE

= 1-114" O.D. X 24" LONG, IRON PIPE SET,
WEIGHING 1.68 LBS.ILINEAL FT

O = 1-114" O.D. IRON PIPE FOUND

N. 324,391.76
E. 2,533,399.52

226 W. WISCONSIN AVE.
APPLETON, WI 54911
kapurinc.com

so· WIDE CROSS

/

ACCESS EASEM ENT CONSERVATION EAS EM ENT
IN AND TOLOTS 1,/TOTHE CITY OF FRANKLIN
2 & 3

- 7 N •n·oooo·e
I \a s2· 124 ss
I N88"3000"E 20465' S89"0000"E, y

a [g lg (/[ apt;¢2
; l'.:_t-?i.l \j ..

WETLAND eur~.\
JO' OFFSET \\

517.27' \.. 379 05

LSt ss.oo· N os·oo·oo·w
LS0 70.00' N &rJ0'00" E

line# length Direction

line Table

CONSERVATION EASEMENT

LOT 1
1,482,107 SQ. FT.I
34.025 ACRES

65'

'!a:

39688 I!; "'~, ~~
-----~7~4~ . --::::-,... ~~~\ \ WETLANDS NOTE:

7 - ~ ,s.<¥,, SE E EXHIBIT 8,
~\ ""~ "- SHEET 2, FOO

50 WIDE CROSS ~~ \ • WETLAND LINE
ACCESSAsenr }6I' 0cAnovs
IN ANO TO LOT S 1., A >
2
&

3
LOT3 "', l' -- ---e LOT 2153,244 SQ FT I

5'-· ---· 7 3 518ACRES ~ W£TlAND 154,873 SQ. FT.I
~ I SEIBACK 3.555 ACRESg [ ~ 50' OFFSET

2 IL-----i-----~-..-,".""""'""""'9!mo;=""=""I S 88'35'30" W io 951.20'
so.giNoo·2601w, 60.01 g]-

SOUTH LINE OF THE SW 114 SEC. 22-05-21 ~ S.T.H.:_!Q0 (RYAN ROAD) 2,622.45'

-----~
SOUTH 1/4 CORNER \
SEC. 22-05-21 CONC.
MON. W/CAST IRON
PLUG WITH CROSS

Being a part of the part of the West 1/2 of the SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 05 North,
Range 21 East, situated in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

c
co
C')
N

60' 65'

til f--w± wa::
f--Cf) Cf)

El I
f--
<D,.__ ,.__

ui l Cf)

3
2
"'(j
UJ

"';!;
s
"'UJ
i':
u_
0
UJs....
"'~

'!a:
;;
<O
N
0
0
z

,;; ~-~------~----------------------------------------~

I
I

I
z 7
::; 1-n
3,::,

~ I
~ I?
3 IlS- 1n

!
5
I"
3
e
;j\

~
.}( NORTH REFERENCED TO THE WISCONSIN

1
STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM SOUTH
ZONE NAD 27, THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SW
1/4 OF SECTION 22 T 5N ,R 21E. BEARING
N88"35'30"E

WEST 1/4 CORNER SEC N 327,040 58
22-05-21 CONC MON VERTICAL DATUM= NGVD 29'

nnov Astuwr ex«oner
N 89"18'43" Ek

ti!;
"'

THIS INSTRUMENT ORAFTED BY ERIK A. GUSTAFSON, KAPUR AND ASSOCIATES, INC.



EXHIBIT B
DEPICTION OF EASEMENT

SHEET 2 OF 2 SHEETSCERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.__
Being a part of the part of the West 1/2 of the SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 05 North,
Range 21 East, situated in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

.){ NORTH REFERENCED TO THE WISCONSIN
STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEMt SOUTH ZONE NAD 27, THE SOUTH LINE
OF THE SW 1/4 OF SECTION 22
T.5N.,R.21E. BEARING N88°35'30"E.

LEGEND:
O = 1-1/4" O.D. IRON PIPE FOUND

= 1-1/4" O.D. X 24" LONG, IRON PIPE SET,
WEIGHING 1.68 LBS./LINEAL FT

-·-·-·-·-·-·-=BUILDING SETBACK LINE
VERTICAL DATUM= NGVD 29'

i

NEY~ORNJ
LOT 2

WETLANDS BOUNDARY

line Table

line# Leng th Direc tion

L28 31.99 S31"59'33"E

l29 21.73 S53"42'48"E

L30 16.90 S55"17'21"E

L31 22.09 S39"38'35"E

L32 18.56 S591454E

L33 7.46 S705545W

L34 34.74 N61'0927W

L35 19.04 N43.14'23'W

L36 21.47 N4900'54w

L37 26.18 N3404O3W

L38 28.22 N29.31"23'W

L39 17.44 N25'4359W

L40 11.01 N8753'09E

L41 5.76 N14"4120E

L42 14.60 N60' 1326W

L43 13.29 N19.27"38"E

L44 452.14 $88'3530w

""ii"51 .32'
475.66'

LOT2
154,873 SQ. FT./
3.555ACRES

•WETLAND DELINEATION PER WETLAND
DELINEATION REPORT PREPARED BY RASMITH,
PROJECT No. 1200217, DATED MAY 27, 2020.

NOTE:

(J)

m

S.T.H. 100 (RYAN ROAD)--------

(.,.) 0
(.,.) 0
o N
(J) 01
Ol r,5

2

---------------------tt-·-
in
<D

i

"'~ 0
O

WETLANDS, WETLANDS BUFFERS &
WETLANDS SETBACKS

50 0 50 100
Iii w 1111 I I

SCALE IN FEET
1" = 100'

LOT 1
1,482,107 SQ. FT./
34.025 ACRES

LOT3
153,244 SQ. FT ./
3.518ACRES

475.66'

/'
/ ~ '----,/ / .... .....

WETLANDS / s WET.ANO BUFFER
( 1 %97'so' orrsr

I I .(1s \_/\
1 I.., .. ) )
"•.ls{ WETLAND SETBACKI 1

• • ; I ,,....,..-50' OFFSETwoo sort-< 6. V
30' orFsET \ @ •<, \ \

s%el •

S53"58'15"E

N072358E

N37"58'07"E

21.69

24.46

11.43

19.41

17.09

22.82

L 1 451.68 S883530W

Line Table

WETLANDS BOUNDARY

L2 1159 N012430w

L9

l3 14.60 S760900W

L4 12.89 N56095OW

LS 19.58 N625656w

LB 19.27 N595248w

l7 13.60 N21°59'20"W

LB 23.67 N22.41'47'W

Line # leng th Direction

L12

L10

L 11

L13

L14

S 88°35'30" W

THIS INSTRUMENT ORAFTEO BY ERIK A. GUSTAFSON, KAPUR AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

WETLANDS BOUNDARY

Line Table

Line# Length Direction

L15 17.61 S674245E

L16 18.36 s20'57O7E

L17 24.40 $123556w

L18 23.21 $053117E

L19 21.88 S22"37"38"E

L20 20.55 S413430E

L21 16.52 $285935E

L22 10.73 S3356O1E

L23 14.43 S012430E

L24 8.50 S72"03"09"E

L25 25.15 $140942E

L26 8.90 S113504W

L27 19.76 $23'1632E

s 88°35'30"w

--

~
%

!
¥

!.: ========d4~715-~6go·~==r====d============4=7=5=.6=o·=~sf20~==
:: 951.20'

%
0

£
~~_; - -s
J
§.

~i~.. '=~-a_p_u-,,-~2-26_W__ W-1-SC_O_N_S_IN_A_V-,E.
_; APPLETON, WI 54911

kapurinc.com



?
!i:

EXHIBIT C
DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.
Being a part of the part of the West 1/2 of the SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 05 North,
Range 21 East, situated in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

CONSERVATION EASEMENT DESCRIPTION:

Being a part of Lot 1, of Certified Survey Map No.of Certified Survey Maps of the Milwaukee County Registry
and described as follows:
Beginning at the southwest corner of said Lot 1, thence North 88°35'30" East, along the south line of said Lot 1, 50.00

feet to the Point of Beginning; thence North 00°26'01" West, parallel with the west line of said Lot 1, 233.01 feet; thence
North 8830'00" East, 204.65 feet, thence South 10°00'00" East, 140.00 feet, thence North 84°30'00" East, 70.00 feet,
thence North 05°00'00" West, 65.00 feet, thence North 42"00'00" East, 88.52 feet; thence South 89"00'00" East, 124.55
feet; thence South 1300'00" East, 55.00 feet; thence South 10°00'00" East, 171.86 feet to said south line of Lot 1; thence
South 88°35'30" West, along said south line, 517.27 feet to the Point of Beginning.
Also; beginning at a southeast corner of Lot 1; thence South 88°35'30" West, along a south line of said Lot 1, 145.00 feet;

thence North 30°00'00" West, 45.00 feet; thence North 53°00'00" East, 170.00 feet; thence North 0024'42" West, parallel
with the east line of said Lot 1, 375.00 feet; thence North 89°35'18" East, at a right angle, 30.70 feet to said east line of Lot
1; thence South 00"24'42" East, along said east line, 512.94 feet to a said southeast corner of Lot 1, and the Point of
Beginning.
Containing 129,838 square feet/ 2.981 acres of land, more or less.

226 W. WISCONSIN AVE.
APPLETON, WI 54911
kapurinc.com

THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY ERIK A. GUSTAFSON, KAPUR ANO ASSOCIATES, INC.



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

ARESOLUTIONAUTHORIZING CERTAIN
OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT ALANDSCAPE

BUFFERYARD EASEMENT FORANDAS PART
OF THE REVIEW ANDAPPROVAL OF A

CERTIFIED SURVEYMAP (BYALEX SCHELER,
CARMALABORATORIES, INC, APPLICANT,

CARMALABORATORIES, INC,
PROPERTYOWNER)

(9410 S 76TH STREET AND 7520 W RYANRD)

MEETING
DATE

December 19, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

This easement is a requirement of approval for the subject property as noted in Common Council
Resolution No. 2023-8057, conditionally approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) on November 7,
2023.

The CSM divides these lots to allow for development of Carma Laboratories Inc.

The Landscape Bufferyard Easement is configured to allow future cross-access between Lots 1, 2, and 3
of this CSM, and does not overlap with the related Conservation Easement.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Accept a Landscape Bufferyard Easement
for and as Part of the Review and Approval of a Certified Survey Map with the condition that any minor
technical corrections may be made by the City Attorney and Department of City Development staff (BY
ALEX SCHELER, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC, APPLICANT, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC,
PROPERTY OWNER) (9410 S 76TH STREET AND 7520 W RYAN RD)

Department of City Development.: MX



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023---

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO
ACCEPT A LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT FOR AND AS PART

OF THE REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP (BY ALEX
SCHELER, CARMA LABORATORIES, INC, APPLICANT, CARMA LABORATORIES,

INC, PROPERTY OWNER)
(9410 S 76TH STREET AND 7520 W RYAN RD)

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Common Council having approved a Certified
Survey Map upon the application of Alex Scheler, Carma Laboratories, Inc., on November 7,
2023, conditioned in part upon requiring each and any easement shown on the Certified
Survey Map shall be the subject of separate written grant of easement instrument in such
form as provided within the City of Franklin Design Standards and Construction
Specifications and such form and content as may otherwise be reasonably required by the
City Engineer or designee to further and secure the purpose of the easement; such landscape
bufferyard easement having been depicted upon the Certified Survey Map approved by the
Common Council on November 7, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Department of City Development and the Office of the City Attorney
having reviewed the proposed Landscape Bufferyard Easement and having recommended
approval thereof to the Common Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the Landscape Bufferyard Easement submitted by The
Boldt Company, in the form and content as annexed hereto, be and the same is hereby
approved; and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute such Easement as
evidence of the consent to and acceptance of such easement by the City ofFranklin.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk be and the same is hereby
directed to obtain the recording of the Landscape Bufferyard Easement in the Office of the
Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day 0f? 2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of,2023.



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS
TO ACCEPT A LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT
CARMA LABORATORIES, INC
RESOLUTION NO. 2023---
Page 2

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT

Carma Laboratories, Inc

This Landscape Bufferyard easement 1s made by and between the City of Franklm, a municipal corporation of the
State ofWisconsin, heremafter referred to as "Grantee," and Carma Laboratones, Inc, heremafter referred to as "Grantor," and
shall become effective upon the recording of this Grant of Landscape Bufferyard Easement, together with the Acceptance
followmg, With the Office ofthe Register ofDeeds for Milwaukee County, pursuant to §700 40(2)(b) ofthe Wisconsin Statutes

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner m fee simple ofcertam real property, located w1thm the City ofFranklm, Milwaukee
County, W1sconsm, at 9410 South 76 Street, descnbed m Exhibit A attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof(protected
property); and

WHEREAS, the Grantor 1s required by Section 15-5.0102A of the City ofFranklm Unified Development Ordmance
to provide a thirty (30) foot-wide planting strip adjacent to 9220 South 76 Street

WHEREAS, Carma Laboratories, Inc was the applicant for a proposed Site Plan Review as set forth m City of
Franklin Drvis1on 15-7 0100 Srte Plan conditionally approving a S1te Plan Review for Carma Laboratories, Inc and the Crty
Plan Commission adopted [ordmance and/or resolution number], on [date] [1f
appl1cable] Condition of [ordinance and/or resolution number] thereof prov1ding
_ [condition text], and

WHEREAS, Grantee 1s a "holder", as contemplated by §700.40(l)(b)l of the W1sconsm Statutes, whose purposes
mclude, while exerc1smg regulatory authority granted to 1t, nter ala, under §62 23 and §236 45 of the W1sconsm Statutes, the
conservation of land, natural areas, open space, and water areas; and

WHEREAS, the Grantor and Grantee, by the conveyance to the Grantee of the Landscape Bufferyard Easement on,
over, and across the protected property, desire to reserve the area for the planting of trees and shrubs and prevent the use or
development of the protected property for any purpose or 1n any manner inconsistent With the terms of this Landscape
Bufferyard Easement, and

WHEREAS, the Grantee 1s wllmng to accept this Landscape Bufferyard Easement subject to the reservations and to
the covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions set out herem and imposed hereby,

NOW, THEREFORE, the Grantor, for and m consideration of the foregoing recitations and of the mutual covenants,
terms, conditions, and restrictions subsequently contamned, and as an absolute and unconditional dedication, does hereby grant
and convey unto the Grantee a Landscape Bufferyard Easement m perpetuity on, over, and across the protected property

Grantee's nghts hereunder shall consist solely of the following
1. To establish and ensure the continuance ofan area reserved for the plantmg of trees and shrubs for the private use by the

owners of the underlying fee srmple mterests, to the exclusion of all others, for the purpose of buffenng the properties
adyomnmng 9410 South 78 Street by requurng thus protected property to be open space mn perpetuty, the protected property
shall consist of natural ex1stmg vegetation and approved landscaping of trees, shrubs, fences, and/or berms, designed to
provde a screen and buffer between 9410 South 76" Street and 9220 South 76" Street

2. To enforce by proceeding at law or mn equuty the covenants subsequently set forth, mcludmg, and mn addition to all other
enforcement proceedings, proceedings to obtam all penalties and remedies set forth under DIv1s1on 15-9 0500 of the
Umfied Development Ordmance of the City ofFrank lm, as amended from time to time, any violation of the covenants
subsequently set forth being and constituting a violation of such Umfied Development Ordmance, as amended from time
to time, or such local applicable ordmance as may be later adopted or m effect to enforce such covenants or the purposes
for which they are made, it bemg agreed that there shall be no waiver or forfeiture of the Grantee's nght to msure
compliance with the covenants and conditions of this grant by reason of any pnor failure to act, and

3 To enter the protected property at all reasonable times for the purpose ofmspectmg the protected property to determmne 1f
the Grantor 1s complymng with the covenants and conditions of thus grant

1



And in furtherance of the foregomg affirmative nghts ofthe Grantee, the Grantor makes the following covenants wlu.ch shall
run with and bmd the protected property 1n perpetuity, namely, that, on, over, or across the protected property, the Grantor,
without the prior consent ofthe Grantee, shall not·
1. Construct or place bmldmgs or any structure, beyond those bmldings and structures and improvements as identified on

any engineering or construction plans approved by the City ofFranklin, including, without limitation, the civil engineering
plans approved on [date] as City of Franklin [ordinance and/or
resolut10n number], are specifically permitted and allowed withm the limits ofthe Easement Area in compliance with this
Landscape Bufferyard Easement,

2 Construct or make any improvements, unless, notwithstanding Covenant 1 above, the improvement 1s specifically and
prev10usly approved by the, by the Plan Commission of the City of Franklin, by the Common Council of the City of
Franklm, upon the advice of such other persons, ent1t1es, and agencies as 1t may elect, such rmprovements as may be so
approved bemg intended to enhance the open space buffer value ofthe protected property to the occupants of land adJoining
or neighboring the protected property mcluding, but not limited to fences, berms, and the like

To have and to hold thus Landscape Bufferyard Easement unto the Grantee forever. Except as expressly limited herem, the
Grantor reserves all nghts as owner ofthe protected property, mcludmg, but not limited to, the nght to use the protected property
for all purposes not mcons1stent with this grant Grantor shall be responsible for the payment of all general property taxes
levied, assessed, or accrumg agamst the protected property pursuant to law

The covenants, terms, conditions, and restrictions set forth 1n thus grant shall be bmding upon the Grantor and the Grantee and
their respective agents, personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns, and shall constitute servitudes running with the
protected property mn perpetuity This grant may not be amended, except by a writmg executed and delivered by Grantor and
Grantee or their respective personal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns Notices to the parties shall be personally
delivered or mailed by U S Mail registered mail, return receipt requested, as follows

To Grantor.
Carma Laboratories, Inc
Attn Rich Malm
9750 S Franklin Dnve
Franklin, WI 53132

To Grantee
City of Franklin
Office of the City Clerk
9229 W Looms Road
Franklin,Wisconsin53132

In witness whereof, the grantor has set its hand and seals this on this date of , 20_

Carma Laboratones, Inc

By·
Rich Simonson, COO

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )

This mstrument was acknowledged before me on the day of,AD 20_by

as Author1zed Officer and S1gnatory of[busmess name]

To me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregomg Easement and acknowledged the same as the voluntary act and
deed of sad [business name]

Notary Public

My comm1ss1on expires

Acceptance

2



The undersigned does hereby consent to and accepts the Landscape Bufferyard Easement granted and conveyed to 1t under and
pursuant to the foregoing Grant ofLandscape Bufferyard Easement In cons1derat10n ofthe making ofsuch Grant OfLandscape
Bufferyard Easement, the undersigned agrees that this acceptance shall be bindmg upon the undersigned and its successors and
assigns and that the restrictions imposed upon the protected property may only be released or waived m wnting by the Common
Council of the City of Franklin, as contemplated by §236.293 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

In witness whereof, the undersigned has executed and delivered this acceptance on theday of_ 20

CITY OF FRANKLIN

By
John Nelson, Mayor

By
Karen Kastenson, Cty Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE )

Personally came before me thus day of20_, the above named Stephen R. Olson,
Mayor and Sandra L Wesolowski, Caty Clerk, of the above named municipal corporation, City ofFranklin, to me known to be
such Mayor and City Clerk of said mumcipal corporat10n, and acknowledged that they executed the foregomg mstrument as
such officers as the Deed of said mumc1pal corporation by its authonty and pursuant to Resolution No,adopted by
its Common Council on the day of20_

Notary Pubhc

My comm 1ss1on expires

Thus instrument was drafted by the City of Franklin

Approved as to contents

Regulo Martinez-Monblva, Pnnctpal Planner
Department of City Development

Approved as to form only

Date

Jesse A Wesolowski
City Attorney

Date

3



EXHIBIT A
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.---
Being a part of the part of the West 1/2 of the SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 05 North,
Range 21 East, situated in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

Lot 1, of Certified Survey Map No. __, of Certified Survey Maps of the Milwaukee County Registry.

A
~
2
I
!
iil=-~-a-p-u---,,---22_6_W__ W-1S-CO_N_S_IN_A_V--,E.
, APPLETON, WI 54911
.. kapurinc.com

THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY ERIK A. GUSTAFSON, KAPUR ANO ASSOCIATES, INC.



EXHIBIT B
DEPICTION OF EASEMENT

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

LEGEND:
O = 1-1/4" O.D. IRON PIPE FOUND

= 1-1/4" O.D. X 24" LONG, IRON PIPE SET,
WEIGHING 1.68 LBS./LINEAL FT

Being a part of the part of the West 1/2 of the SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 05 North,
Range 21 East, situated in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.l

J{ NORTH REFERENCED TO THE WISCONSIN

t
STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM SOUTH
ZONE NAO 27, THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SW
1/4 OF SECTION 22 T SN ,R 21E. BEARING
NBB"35'30"E

WEST 1/4 CORNER SEC
22-05-21 CONG MON

i' "7",""" LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT EXHIBITI E 2,533,379 47

N 89'18'43" E 1311.68'

en
0
"l~
"N9m

MON. W/CAST IRON
PLUG WITH CROSS
N. 324,456.21
E. 2,536,021.18

'.;::
0o
01

en
0
0

~
"N9m

200

951.20'

LOT2
154,873 SQ. FT./
3.555ACRES

SCALE IN FEET
1" = 200'

0 100
r mt

N30"00'00"W
30' WIDE LANDSCAPE 3417
BUFFERYARD EASEMENT TO 2
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN~ r .------,.,..~--::'.::-::-;:-;:°"4i

"'{ "" 145.00'

30
_ I 300.05'

t

LOT 1
1,482,107 SQ. FT./
34.025 ACRES

100-

-·-·-·-·-·-· - --;;/- -·-·-·- - -·-·-·-·-·- -
30' WIDE LANDSCAPE_/ gt
BUFFERYARO EASEMENT TO
THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

LOT3
153,244 SQ. FT./
3.518ACRES

226 W. WISCONSIN AVE.
APPLETON, WI 54911
kapurinc.com

r - -·-·-
I

"'8

30\---

~30' WIDE LANDSCAPE
I BUFFERYARD EASEMENT TO

THE CITY OF FRANKLIN

65'

5o
f'
0
0
z

;;;
a:i
"'N
1

60' 65'

I t;jl I-w

~ ~I
w
0::
I-en

El I
I-
<D[5 ,___
cti

,;; ~-~-----~----------~---------------------------~

;
::,
,;
$

£/1 %%%2. sans! I I BRASS CAP E. 2,533,399.52

!Kapur

=
\~amoGels
,: s:

1:... ;; -----7

1#% 1
2 S88°3530"W ig

509i woo2601w, 60.01' £a,
SOUTH LINE OF THE SW 114 SEC. 22-05-21 ~ S.T.H~0 (RYAN ROAD) 2,622.45'

- - -- -- SOUTH=NE~

SEC. 22-05-21 CONC.

THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY ERIK A. GUSTAFSON, KAPUR ANO ASSOCIATES, INC.



EXHIBIT C
DESCRIPTION OF EASEMENT

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.----
Being a part of the part of the West 1/2 of the SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 05 North,
Range 21 East, situated in the City of Franklin, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin.

LANDSCAPE BUFFERYARD EASEMENT DESCRIPTION:

Being a part of Lot 1, of Certified Survey Map No. , of Certified Survey Maps of the Milwaukee County Registry
and described as follows:
The North 30.00 feet of said Lot 1, the West 30.00 feet of the North 947.32 feet of said Lot 1, along with the following

described land: beginning at the southeast corner of said Lot 1, thence South 88°35'30" West, along the south line of said
Lot 1, 30.00 feet; thence North 00'24'42" West, parallel with an east line of said Lot 1, 239.42 feet; thence North 88'35'30"
East, parallel with a southerly line of said Lot 1, 168.18 feet; thence South 30°00'00" East, 34.17 feetto a said southerly
line of Lot 1; thence South 88°35'30" West, along a said southerly line of Lot 1, 155.05 feet to a corner of said Lot 1; thence
South 00'24'42" East, along a said east line, 209.42 feet to the southeast corner of said Lot 1, and the Point of Beginning.
Containing 76,503 square feet/ 1.756 acres of land, more or less.

3
0
E
2
~
'.),

t
!
4
i.~..--1=~-a_p_u---,,--2-26-W-. W-1-SC_O_N_S_IN_A_V-,E.
'l APPLETON, WI 54911

kapurinc.com
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY ERIK A. GUSTAFSON, KAPUR ANO ASSOCIATES, INC.



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Request Council Approval of a Job Description for a
Probationary Firefighter-Emergency Medical

Technician (EMT) Position.

MEETING
DATE

12-19-23

ITEM NUMBER

Background:
The Franklin Fire Department currently has minimum employment requirements that far exceed
those of many other career fire departments in the region. While these enhanced requirements
contribute to FFD's operational performance and professional reputation, they have become a barrier
to recruitment efforts in todays extremely difficult employment market. Most applicants coming
through the technical school system are being offered internships or employment with career
departments well before the point in which they achieve FFD's minimum qualification requirements
(WI Firefighter II and Paramedic).

Requested Action:
The Fire Department is requesting approval of a job description for a temporary (probationary)
Firefighter-EMT position. This position is strictly a recruitment tool, and the Department has no
intention of restoring the EMT level of practice in the field, nor of diminishing professional
requirements for permanent employment. A candidate would either complete their probationary
period and achieve FFII and Paramedic status, or would not be offered continued employment past
the probationary period if not meeting expectations.

The Department expects that this position will be an extremely effective recruitment tool, as most
departments offer only an educational stipend, and possibly room and board to intern/apprentice
firefighters. This position is different and expected to be extremely attractive to potential candidates
due to it being a full-time position including compensated time off, health care insurance, Wisconsin
Retirement System (WRS) and other benefits as defined in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Request Council Approval of a Job Description for the position of Probationary Firefighter-EMT,
being a temporary status position for the purposes of employee recruitment.

Fire/AJR



November 8, 2023

Memorandum from the Fire Department

TO: City of Franklin Personnel Committee
CC: City of Franklin Police and Fire Commission

FROM: Fire Chief Adam Remington

RE: Job Description, new position of Probationary Firefighter/EMT

Background:
The Franklin Fire Department is the only 100% Paramedic municipal fire department in
Milwaukee County, and likely the entire state. Many other departments can staff at least one
paramedic on every apparatus 24/7; however, FFD is the only department where all personnel
staffing every apparatus 24/7 are licensed paramedics. The difference is evident on a critical
medical call, such as a cardiac arrest. When all personnel on scene are trained to the highest
levels in patient assessment, and when all can perform every necessary critical task, procedure,
and intervention simultaneously, the stress level for the responder decreases, and the likelihood
of a positive outcome for the patient is enhanced (FFD has among the highest cardiac arrest
resuscitation rates in the County).

The Department has worked extremely hard for well over a decade to achieve this level of training,
dedication, and commitment; and both administration and bargaining unit leadership are extremely
proud of the accomplishment, and in the reputation and status of the department.

Unfortunately, despite the Department's performance level and reputation, it's extremely high
qualification requirements for applicants has become a barrier to recruitment. In a time when fire
departments across the country struggle to recruit and retain public safety employees, Franklin is
particularly affected due to the requirement that applicants have to have both Wisconsin Firefighter
II certification, and licensure at the paramedic practice level in order to apply. Most other
departments in the region require only EMT (a considerably lower practice level and training
commitment). Candidates coming through the Technical College system are being offered
intern/apprentice type positions while still in school, that potentially transition to full-time
positions in the future. At the time of the writing of this memorandum, the department has had a
standing vacancy since June, and will have a second vacancy in January. The current recruitment
and hiring paradigm is broken, and FFD has identified changes that must be made in order to be
competitive against these other departments.

Proposal:
The department has identified a course forward that allows for a greater applicant pool, while not
compromising its high standards or 100% paramedic status. FFD Administration does not and will
not propose lowering is employee qualification requirement standards; however, FFD staff
proposes creation of a new position that would allow for hiring candidates who possess only



Firefighter I and EMT-Basic certification, and would allow them to work towards FFD's minimum
standards (Paramedic and Firefighter 11) over the course of their probationary period, which would
be extended to a term of 18 months. The employee would be able to complete all required
ambulance ride-time and patient contacts during the course of employment, and would be allowed
to attend required classes (Fire II and paramedic) that fall on their scheduled workday.

The Probationary Firefighter-EMT position would allow students that are actively enrolled in an
accredited paramedic training cohort (e.g. MATC, WCTC, Gateway, or Madison College) to be
eligible for hire by the Franklin Fire Department. These would be full-time, 56-hour/week career
positions, with wages, benefits, and employee rights defined in the bargaining agreement.
Although wages would be expected to be 5-7% below the rate ofentry-level Firefighter/Paramedic,
they would be well above what other departments offer for intern/apprentice programs, and most
do not offer benefits or compensated time off for those positions.

The Probationary Firefighter/EMT position is envisioned as both a potentially effective
recruitment tool, as well as an employee development pathway. The longer probationary period,
along with earlier career intervention would mean that FFD would have more time and opportunity
to develop the employee to FFD performance standards and stated Department values. Employees
who do not meet Department standards or display and promote Department values would not be
retained, and could be released at any time during the probationary period. Employees who display
department values, compatibility, and motivation, could have their probationary period extended
on a case-by-case basis if they are showing adequate progress toward benchmark objectives.

Conclusion:
The Probationary Firefighter-EMT position is not intended to replace the existing entry-level
Firefighter/Paramedic position, and the Department would continue to post and advertise for both
positions in the hope ofattracting further future lateral transfers of currently licensed and qualified
Firefighter/Paramedics. Rather, the Probationary Firefighter-Position is intended as an alternative
recruitment pathway intended to expand and diversify the applicant pool from which FFD can
draw in order to develop the next generation of the "best and brightest" according to its own terms,
standards, and values.



Job Title:

Department:

Appointing Authority:

Reports To:

Salary Level:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Probationary Fire Fighter/EMT

Fire

Fire Chief/Fire & Police Commission

Battalion Chief

Per Collective Bargaining Agreement

Adam J. Remington, Fire Chief

November XX, 2023

Summary:
Under the general direction ofthe Battalion Chief, the Probationary
Firefighter/EMT protects life and property by performing firefighting, providing
emergency medical care and treatment, hazardous materials, and fire prevention
duties; and maintains fire equipment, apparatus, and facilities.

The Purpose of the Probationary Firefighter Position is to function as a
recruitment tool and career development pathway that would allow an employee
to begin employment as an EMT and complete paramedic education while
employed in a full-time capacity by the Franklin Fire Department.

Application Requirements:
• State ofWisconsin (WI) Firefighter I
• Valid WI EMT License or National Registry
• Must be actively enrolled in an accredited Paramedic training program,

with an expected completion date of less than one year (12 Months) from
date of hire.

• Must have valid Candidate Physical Ability Test (CPAT) at time of
appointment

• Must obtain WI Firefighter II within 18 months of date ofhire.



Term of Probationary Period:
Probationary period will a minimum of 18 months from date of hire.
Probationary period may be extended at the discretion of the Fire Chief,
and the Department may extend deadlines for obtaining benchmarks on a
case-by-case basis for individuals demonstrating adequate progress
toward requirement objectives.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:
Perform firefighting activities including operating pumps and related equipment;
laying hose; and performing fire combat, containment and extinguishment tasks.

Perform emergency medical care and transport as a licensed EMT-Basic while
training as a Paramedic, to the standards established by the Department, the
Milwaukee County EMS Medical Director, and the State of Wisconsin.

Participate in fire drills, attend classes in firefighting, emergency medical care and
treatment, hazardous materials response, and a variety of related subjects.

Receive and relay fire calls and alarms. Operate radio and other communications
equipment.

Participate in the inspection ofbuildings, hydrants, and other structures as
required by in State Statutes and Department community safety initiatives.

Maintain fire equipment, apparatus and facilities. Perform minor repairs to
departmental equipment.

Perform general maintenance work in the upkeep of fire facilities and equipment;
clean and wash walls and floors; care for grounds around station; make minor
repairs; wash, hang and dry hose; wash, clean, polish, maintain and test apparatus
and equipment.

Must meet all department requirements for training.

Assist in developing plans for special assignments such as emergency
preparedness, hazardous communications, training programs, firefighting,
hazardous materials, and emergency aid activities.

Present programs to the community on safety, First Aid, CPR/AED, Stop-the
Bleed, fire prevention, and other topics as assigned.

Perform salvage operations such as throwing salvage covers, sweeping water, and
removing debris.

Assists in department administrative activities as assigned.

2



Other duties as assigned by supervisors.

Minimum Qualifications:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each
essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of
the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required.

Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perform the essential functions.

Education, Experience, and Licensure:
Must be 18 years old and possess a valid WI Driver's License.

High School Diploma or Equivalent.

State of Wisconsin Firefighter I

Wisconsin state licensed EMT-B or current NREMT.

Ability to learn the operation of fire suppression and other emergency services
response equipment.

Ability to perform strenuous or peak physical activity during emergency, training
or station maintenance activities for prolonged periods of time and under
conditions of extreme heights, intense heat, cold or smoke.

Ability to perform in team-based activities and in a frequently stressful environment.

Language Skills:
Ability to follow verbal and written instructions.

Ability to effectively communicate in writing and verbally.

Reasoning Ability:
Ability to learn to apply standard fire fighting, emergency aid, hazardous
materials, and fire prevention techniques.

Ability to act effectively in emergency and stressful situations.

Ability to make independent judgements which have considerable impacts on the
organization.

3



Tools and Equipment Used:
Personal computer, laptop computer, tablet, fax machine; cell phone; measuring
devices; camera; power tools; hand tools; chainsaws; shovels; brooms; ladders;
exhaust fans; automobile; fire apparatus; ambulance; patient restraints; first aid
equipment; oxygen; environmental meters and other electronic test equipment;
general medical equipment; patient lifting devices; breathing apparatus; steel-tip
boots; hearing and eye protection; structural firefighting turnout gear.

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met
by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perform the essential functions.

Must successfully pass medical exam consistent with NFPA 1582 prior to hire
date.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to
stand; walk; use hands and fingers to feel, handle, or operate objects, tools, or
controls; and reach with hands and arms. The employee is occasionally required
to sit; climb and balance; stoop, kneel, crouch, and crawl; talk and hear; and taste
and smell.

The employee must frequently lift and/or move up to ten pounds and occasionally
lift and/or move up to 130 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job
include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth
perception, and the ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those
an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job.
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee regularly works in outdoor
weather conditions including temperature extremes, during day and night shifts.
Work is often performed in emergency and stressful situations. Individuals are
exposed to hearing alarms and hazards associated with fighting fires and
rendering emergency medical assistance, including smoke, noxious odors, fumes,
chemicals, liquid chemicals, solvents and oils. The noise level in the work
environment is usually moderate, except during certain firefighting activities
when noise levels may be high.

4



Job Responsibilities Related to Patient Privacy:
It is expected to protect the privacy of all patient information in accordance with the City of
Franklin Fire Department's privacy policies, procedures, and practices, as required by federal
[and state] law, and in accordance with general principles of professionalism as a health care
provider. Failure to comply with The City of Franklin Fire Department's policies and
procedures on patient privacy may result in disciplinary action up to and including termination of
employment.

The Probationary Firefighter/EMT may access protected health information and other patient
information only to the extent that is necessary to complete their job duties. The
Firefighter/EMT may only share such information with those who have a need to know specific
patient information you have in your possession to complete their job responsibilities related to
treatment, payment or other Fire department operations.

The Probationary Firefighter/EMT is encouraged and expected to report, without the threat of
retaliation, any concerns regarding The City of Franklin Fire Department's policies and
procedures on patient privacy and any observed practices in violation of that policy to the
designated Privacy Officer.

Disclaimer:
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of
work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does
not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical
assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the
employer and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of
the employer and requirements ofthe job change.

5



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

Introduction

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

The Fire Department is seeking Council approval
and an emergency contingency appropriation and
budget amendment for unexpected engine repairs

to paramedic ambulance MED 112.

MEETING
DATE

ITEM NUMBER

G.4

During routine inspection ofMED 112, the Fire Department's frontline paramedic ambulance assigned to Fire
Station 2, a significant fluid leak from the engine was identified. The unit is a 2015 Ford/Lifeline that has served
the department for 8 years and has over 154,000 miles. Diagnosis by the fire department mechanic and DPW
mechanic were inconclusive as to the source of the fluid leaks. Additionally, the unit had an ongoing issue of a
"Check Engine" light due to a misfire of one of the cylinders.

In order to assure operational readiness, the unit was sent to an authorized Ford service center for repair.
Because of the design of the Ford van-type chassis, which offer limited access to the engine compartment,
extensive labor was required to complete definitive repairs. This major, year-end repair invoice will more than
completely exhaust the Fire Department's Auto Maintenance budget line.

Instead of deferring this repair to 2024, the repair was completed immediately in order to ensure a paramedic
ambulance will be available at all three fire stations through the onset of severe winter weather and the holiday
season when access to repair services are limited.

Financial Impact

The fire department is requesting authorization for an emergency appropriation through a budget amendment
transferring $11,578.38 from the 2023 General Fund- Unrestricted Contingency, Account Number 01-0199-
5499 which currently has $114,000 in available funding, to Account Number 01-0221-5241, Auto Maintenance.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Request Common Council approval/authorization for an emergency appropriation through
a budget amendment for engine repairs to MED 112, transferring funds from 2023 General
Fund- Unrestricted Contingency (Account Number 01-0199-5499) to the Auto Maintenance
operating budget (Account 01-0221-5241) to fund the repairs in the amount of $11,578.38.

Fire:AJR



2326WEST ST. PAUL AVENUE
P.O. BOX 1530

MILWAUKEI;, WISCONSIN 53201
(414) 344-9500 1-800-242-8762PAGE l

1002128

INVOICE

SERVICE ADVISOR· 2665 MARK SETTJE
COLOR YEAR MAKE/MODEL - VIN ' LICENSE MILEAGE IN/ OUT Tf\.G

15 FORD E450 1FbXE4FSOFDA26840 903?4 15456 5/154565 T1344
EL, DATE PROO. DATE WARR. EXP. PROMISED PO NQ. RATE ,_,PAYMENT_ INV, DATE

01J'CJN15 DI 18:00 17NOV23 0.00 CHG 29NOV23
R.O, OPENED READY « OPTIONS: W-COMP:G

09:.21 13NOV23 11:03 29NOV23

CUSTOMER#: FF245
UNIT# MED112

CITY OF FRANKLIN
7979 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
fi.OIVIE:414-425-7SJ.0 CONT:414-425-7510
BUS: 414-425-2592 CELL'414-425-7500

LINE OPCODE TECH TYPE HOURS LIST NET TOTAL

0.00
0.00

495.00
82.00
74.71

122.92
69.00

843.63

495.00
50.38
25.12
6.29

54.10
630.89

SERVICE DEPARTMENT HOURS: STATEMENT OE DISCLAIMER OESCRIPTiON TOTALS
Thu factory warranty constitfut s all
of tho warrantlas lrh respect to LABOR AMOUNT
tho sale of this itam\itQnjs. Tha PARTS AMOUNTMONDAY - FRIDAY Sellar hereby oxprossly dlcclalmt all
warr11111les olther express oi GAS, Oil, LUPE

7:00AM TO MIDNIGHT lmplled. Including , any .. Implied
warranty of marchantabllliy or SUBLET AMOUNT

SATURDAY thness 'tor a part icular purposes,
Seller neither assumes nor MISC. CHARGES

8:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. z. Gs t6
in TOTAL CHARGES

CQnnectloil with the ·Balo of this
LESS INSURANCEluimillems
SALES TAX .

THANK YOU! CUSTOMER SIGNATURE PLEASE PAY
THIS AMOUNT

A CUSTOMER STATES THAT THERE IS AN OIL LEAK. PLEASE DIAGNOSE.
OILPAN RESEAL OIL PAN

876 CPLT 495. 00
1 F6TZ*7A19l*A G:.1,\SKET 54 .17 50. 38 -
8 XO5W20Q1SP MOTORCRAFT SAE SW-20 API GF-6A 6.92 3.14
1 FL-1<820*8 FILTER ASY - OIL 10. 89 6. 29
1 FC2Z*6710*A GASKET - OJ;:L PAN 58.17 54.10

PARTS: 135.89 LABOR: 495.00 OTHER: 0.00 TOTAL LINE A:
154565 876- INSPECT FOR CUSTOMER CONCERN AND VERIFIED OIL LEAK.
FOUND OIL PAN GASKET LEAKING. 876- REPAIRED OIL LEAK REPLACED GASKET
WHILE ENGINE WAS OUT FOR EXHAUST REPAIR.

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkfkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkktk

B CUSTOMER STATES THAT THERE IS A TRANSMISSION FLUID LEAK. PLEASE
DIAGNOSE. : ;=.".' a

LEAK STEERING GEAR LEA.KING
876CPMAN - e 0.00

PARTS : 0 . 0 0 LABOR: " 0.00 OTHER: 0.Q foTAL LINE B:
154565 876- INSPECT FOR CUSTOMER CONCERN COUED NOT LOCATE TRANS
LEAK DID FIND STEERING GEAR LEAKING FQRM INPUT SHAFT. 876- REPLACED
STEERING GEAR WHILE ENGINE WAS OUT FOR EXHAUST LEAK.

****************************************************
C CUSTOMER WOULD LIKE A TUNE UP.

S PARKPLUGS REPLACE SPARK PLUGS
876 CPLT 495.00

2 4C2Z*9439*M GASKET - INTAKE MANIFOLD 44.09 41. 00
1 3W7Z*l2029*AA COIL ASY - IGNil'IOt::I 87. 64 74. 71
1 8F9Z*9F472*H SENSOR - HEGO 144, 18 122. 92
10 AGSF*22Fl*X SPARK PLUG 8.09 6. 90

PARTS: 348. 63 LABOR: 495. 00 OTHER: 0. 00 TOTAL LINE C:
154565 876- REPLACED 10 SPARK PLUGS CEL ON. RETRIEVED P0308 FOR #8
MISFIRE AND P2240 CODE FOR O2S 21. 8'76- R/R #8 COP AND BANK 2 SENSOR l
02. CLEAR CODES RUN R/'T RECHECK ALL PASS.

****************************************************
D QUALITY CARE MULTI POINT INSPECTION SEE SERVICE ADVISOR FOR

Motor •;ehlele rc~olr practlcos are regulated by chapter ATCP 132, Wis. Adm Code,
admlnstored by thc Bureau of Consumer Protection WIconsin Dapt ot Aarieulura.Tada and
Cosumar Protactian, P. o8911, Madison, w..cons,.n 53708-ll!lll
Crkah 2014 CCx qot. LLC SERVICE wOCTF 2 S12. (MAG# CUSTOMER INVOICE: COPY



2326WEST ST. PAUL AVENUE
P.O. BOX 1530

MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN 53201
(414) 344-9500 1-800-242-8752

2665 MARK SETTJE

INVOICE

1002128

PAGE 2

SERVICE ADVISOR·.
C,9LOR YEAR MAKE/MODEL .. VIN LICENSE• ' MILEAGE IM OUT TAG

15 FORD E450 1FDXE4FS0FDA26840 90374 154565/154565 T1344
DEL DATE PROD. DATE WARR. EXP, PROMISED PO NO.' ATE ° PAYMENT INV. DATE

01JUN15 DI 18:00 17NOV23 0.00 CHG 29NOV23
R.O.P,PENEO READY OPTIONS: W-COMP:G

09:21 13NOV23 11:03 2·9NOV23

CUSTOMER#: FF245
UNIT# MED112

CITY OF FRANKLIN
7979 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WT 53132
HOME:41.4-425-751.0 CONT:414-425-7510
BUS: 414-425-2592 CELL·414-425-7500

TOTAL

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

330.00
1063.30
281.25
10.34

-281.25
1403.64

NET

0.00

o.oo

LIST

0.00
TOTAL LINED:o.ooOTHER:0.00

OPCODE TECH TYPE HOURS
lNSPECTION RESULTS.

99P QUALITY CARE MOLT! POINT INSPECTION. SEE
SERVICE ADVISOR FOR INSPECTION RESULTS.

876CPMAN
GTIRE MPVI: TIRE TREAD GREEN (NOTATIO:l-J ONLY - NO

WORK NEEDED)
876CPMAN

GBK REAR B:RAKE$ REPLACED THIS SERVICE FRONT
BRAKES ARE IN THE GREEN

976CPMAN
0.00 LABOR;PARTS:

15456 5 8 7 6 - PERFORM INSPECTION AND RECORD RESULTS.
kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkfkkkkj le.fe $ k #';;ykk kkktkkkkkkkkkk#kkkkkk

B REPLACE POWER STEERING $EAR
GEAR REPLACE POWER STEERING GEAR

876 CPLT ", · 330.00
1 GU2Z3504A GEAR ASY < STEERING"° 1247.27,1063.30
CORE CHARGE C • + ,$, 2 81 . 2 5
1 XT10QLVC OIL - AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION 10.34 10.34
-1 GU2Z3504A CORE RETURN, 1247.27 281.25

PARTS: 1073.64 LABOR: 330.00 OTHER: 0.00 TOTAL LINE E:
154565 876- REMOVED STEERING GEAR WH:ILE ENGINE WAS OUT.

LINE

F** PERFORM REAR BRAKE PAD AND ROTOR REPLACEMENT
RBJ PERFORM REAR BRAKE PAD AND ROTOR REPLACEMENT

876 CPLT 825.00
2 NC2Z2C026A ROTOR ASY - BRAKE 220.00 220.00
1 8C2Z*2200*B KIT - BRAKE LINING 100. 00 93. 00
2 CC3Z* 1S175*A SEAL 26.00 22.17
2 EOTZ*l0Ol*A GASKET~ REAR AXLE SHAFT 5.60 4.77

PARTS: 586.88 LABOR: 825.00 OTHER: 0.00 TOTAL LINE F:
154565 876- PERFORM RBJ NEW ROTORS AND PADS. PERFORM WHEEL TORQUE
PROCEDURE. .

****************************************************

825.00
440.00
93.00
44.34
9.54

1411. 88

SERVICE DEPARTMENT HOURS: STATEMENT OF OISCLAIMEil DESCRIPTION TO·TALS
Thejactorv warranty constitutes all
of he varrantles ·with teisp@ct to LABOR AMOUNT
the sale of 1hls ltemUtems The

PARTS AMOUNTMONDAY - FRIDAY SeUar hurobv expressly disclaims au
warranilos either ekpress or GAS, OIL, LUBE

7:00AM TO MIDNIGHT impttod, including an,; Implied
warranty of merchantability· Of SUBLET AMOUNT

SATURDAY fitness tor a particular purpose.
Seller neither assumes nor MISC. CHARGES

8:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. authoilzes any other person 10
TOTAL CHARGESassume for i any liabliry in

connection with the sale ot this
LESS INSURANCEItem/items,

YOU!
SALES TAX

THANK CUSTOMER SIGNATURe PLEASE PAY
THIS AMOUNT

Motor vel11cle repair proctlces .ere regulated by chaptor ATCP 132, Wis, Adm. Codo,
administered by the Bureau ot Consumer Protection, WisconsinDept. at Agriculture, Trade and
Consumar Protection, P.O 9911, Mudlson, WIscorsn 53708-6911
en@ht 20'4 Ci ca», LL¢ SERVC iWVOIL L TYPE1 52C MG3



2326 WEST sr. PAUL AVENUE
P.O. BOX 1530

MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN -53201
{414) 344-9600 1-800-242-8752

2665 MARK SETTJE

INVOICE

1002-128

PAGE 3

SERVICE ADVISOR•., .. . .
CQLQR YEAR MAKE/MODEL. ' IN ,· % LICENSE. MIL,!:AGE)NI Q!JT TAG....

15 FORD E450 1FD:XE4FS0FDA26840 90374 154565/1S4565 T1344
DEL DATE PROD • .DATE WAJIB,. EXP, PROMISED Pi@ NO,

,. ,,

RTE PAYMENT lNV. DATE

01JUN15 DI 18:00 17NOV23 0.00 CHG 29NOV23
R.O. OPENED READY OPTIONS: W-COMP:G

09:21 13NOV23 11:03 29NOV23

CUSTOMER#: FF245
UNIT# MED112

CITY OF FRANKLIN
7979 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
HOME: 414-425-7510 CONT :414-425-7510
BUS: 414-425-2592 CELL·414-425-75O0

LINE OPCODE TECH TYPE HOURS LIST NET TOTAL
G** REPLACE EXHAUST MANIFOLDS PER QUOTE

MANIFOLD REPLACE EXHAUST MANIFOLDS
876 CPLT

14l3 CPLT
5445.00

25 7 /16NUTW 7 /16 NUT WELD 0. 78 0. 78
1 YC2Z*9430*AA MANIFOLD ASY - EXHAUST- 560,00 520.80
1 YC2E*94.31*A9D MANIFOLD ASY - EXHAUST 803.33 747.10
1 BC2Z*9448*A GASKET 43.50 40. 46
2 BC2.Z*9448*C GASKET 33.17 30.85
20 *W703902*S403 STUD 4,00 3. 10
20 *W701706*S2 NUT - HSX. ~· 1. 38 1. 07
2 *W712670*S900 STUD~ \! ,,,.. 11. 00 8. 53
2 *W705374*S90.l SPUD • { •. 9. 00 6. 98
4 W705443s90o NrfS . > .'3. 75 2. 91

PARTS: 1515.62 LABOR: 5445.09 OTHER:' 0.00 TOTAL LINE G:
154565 876- DRAIN OIL AND COOLANE, b)I' .' EMBLE HROiT .END TO REMOVE
ENGINE. TEAR DOWN TO LONG BLOCK AND RE .- ENGINE FOUND 5 BROKEN
EXHAUST MANIFOLD STUDS3 ON BANK #1, AND 2 ON 'BANK #2, EXTRACT BROKEN
STUDS AND REPLl\cCE ALL. REPLACE MANIFOLDS AND REENSTALL ENGINE. REBUILD
ENGINE AND RESTORE FRONT END. REFILL OIL AND COOLANT RUN R/T &, RECHECK
TOP OFF COOLANT.

5445.00
19.50

520.80
747.10

40.46
61.. 70
62.00
21.40
17.06
13. 96
11.64

6960.62

****************************************************
CUSTOMER PAY SHOP SUPPLIES FOR REPAIR ORDER

H** REPAIR CLEARANCE LIGHTS
LIGHTS REPAIR CLEARAN CE LIGHTS

876 CPLT
2 BULB BULB

PARTS: 12. 72 LABOR: 165. 00 OTHER: 0.00

165.00 ·
6.36 6.36

TOTAL LINE H:

165.00
J.2. 72

177.72

150.00

SERVICE DEPARTMENT HOURS: STATEMENT OF DISClAIMl:R DESCRIPTION Tor4Ls
ThJJ factory warranty constitutes ell LABOR AMOUNTof tha warranties witb ros_peCt 10
the SPIU of this ltem\itents. The PARTS AMOUNTMONDAY - FRIDAY Seier heraby expressly disclaims all
warranles lt er express or GAS, Oil, LUBE

7:00AM TO MIDNIGHT lmpDad, including any _implied
warranty of merchantability of SUBLET AMOUNT

SATURDAY flti!uss for a particular purpose,
senor neither assomes nor MISC. CHARGES

8:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. authorizes any other person to
TOTAL CHARGESassume far It any lliblllty in

connection wldl the sale of this
LESS INSURANCEltemites,

YOU!
SALESTAX

THANK CUSTOMER SlGNll;TlJRE PLEASE PAY
THIS AMOU!\IT

Motor vehicle repair practlcos are rogulatcd by chapter ATCP 132, Wis Adm. Code,
administered by the Bureau of Consumer Protection, Wisconsin Dept ofAgriculture, Trilde al\d
Consumer Protection, PO Box 8911. Madison. Wl•coPSin 53708-891 I
Coyopn1014CK Q@EM LLG SVEC: 4WV0c T PE2 B2LC IAN tG CUSTOMER INVOT'R rDv



2326 WEST ST. PAUL AVENUE
P.O. BOX 1630

MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN 53201
(414) 344-9500 1-800-242-8752

2665 MARK SETTJE

1002128

INVOICE

PAGE 4

SERVICE ADVISOR·.
COLOR YEAR. MAKE/MODEL VIN LICENSE MAIL.EAGE IN/ OUT, TAG

15 FORD E450 1FDXE4FS0FDA2684O 90374 154565/154565 T1344
DEL DATE PROD.DATE WARR, EXP. PROMISED

,,_ ..
PO NO, RATE PAYMENT INV. DATE

0lJUNlS DI 18:00 17NOV23 0.00 CHG 29NOV23
R,O. OPENED READY

..
OPTIONS: W-COMP:G

09:21 13N0V23 11:03 29NOV23

CUSTOMER#: FF245
UNIT# MED112

CITY OF FRANKLIN
7979 W RYAN ROAD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132
HOME: 414-425-7510 CONT:414-425-7510
BUS· 414-425-2592 CELL·414-425-7500

LINE OPCODE TECH TYPE HOURS LIST NET. TOTAL
*********************************************

VISIT OUR WEBSITE
FOR

PARTS AND SERVICE SPECIALS
WWW. BADGERTRUCK. COM

*********************************************

Jr. f.- .....:-.$5

SERVICE DEPARTMENT HOURS: STATEMENT OF DISCLAIMER DESCRIPTION TOTALS
The laciory warranty constitutes ail LABOR AMOUNT 7755. 00of the warranties with respect to
the sole of this itemlltenis. The PARTS AMOUNT 3673.38MVIONDAY - FRIDAY z%"a.".°¢ GAS, OIL, LUBE 0.007:00AM TO MIDNIGHT Implied. Including anv Implied
warranty of _rnerchanfabil{ty or SUBLET AMOUNT 0.00

SATURDAY tliriass for es particular puroose,
150.00Sel ler neither assumes nor MISC, CHARGES

8:00 A.M. to 12:00 P.M. authorizes any_ other r,mson to
TOTAL CHARGES 11578.38assume for it any I ability in

connactlon with the sale of this
LESS INSURANCE 0.00lter/items,

THANK YOU!
SALES TAX 0.00

·cuSTOMER,SIGNATU)lE PLEASE PAY
THIS AMOUNT 11578.38

Motor vct,Jclc ropalr practices are regulated by chapter ATCP 132, Wis Adm. Code.
administered by the Bureau of Consumer Protection. Wisconsin Dept. of Agriculture, Trade and
Consumer Protection, P.O Boy 8911, Madison, Wiscons in B3708-8911



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request Council Approval to authorize a Budget
Modification Amendment to encumber funds
allocated in 2023 capital outlay funding for

replacement source-capture diesel exhaust systems
to the 2024 budget.

MEETING
DATE
12/19/33

ITEM NUMBER

.15.

Introduction:
On September 20, 2022 the Council authorized the fire department to accept a Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) to replace the aging diesel exhaust source-capture
systems at the city's three fire stations. These systems are specifically designed to attach to fire apparatus and
remove toxic diesel exhaust particulates from the interior of the fire stations.

Financial Impact:
The FEMA grant will fund 90% ofthe $234,700 project, with a required local match of $21,336.37. This
project will not be completed in 2023 and the fire department is requesting that the funds allocated in 2023 be
encumbered to the 2024 budget (account 41-0221-05822).

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Request Common Council approval to authorize a Budget Modification Amendment encumbering
$234,700 from 2023 Capital Outlay Fund (Account 41-0221-5822) to the 2024 budget to allow project

completion in 2024.

Fire:AJR



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

REVIEW OF THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF
FRANKLIN AND STANTEC CONSULTING

SERVICES INC. FOR QUARRY MONITORING
SERVICES FOR CALENDARYEAR 2024

MEETING
DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Since 2012, the City has hired a consultant to conduct monitoring of the quarry located in Planned
Development Districts (PDD) No. 23 and 24. Pursuant to the PDD ordinances, certain expenditures for
quarry monitoring may be off-set by matching revenues from the Payne and Dolan quarry operator. In
the 2024 City's budget, the funds allocated for Quarry Monitoring Services are $55,000 (GL number
01-0621-5218).

The Quarry Monitoring Committee (QMC) recommended approval ofthe attached scope ofwork at the
October 24, 2023, regular meeting.

The proposed draft Professional Services Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. is hereby
included in this packet along with Attachment "A" Quarry Monitoring Services Scope of Work and
Associated Cost.

It can be noted that this would be the 12th consecutive year such a contract has been entered into with
Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for quarry monitoring services. Similar to previous years, this
contract includes blast monitoring services, onsite operations monitoring, presentations before the
Quarry Monitoring Committee and reports. The funds allocated for this item have been increased from
$45,000 to $55,000, the maximum amount shall be adjusted annually by any increase or decrease in the
Consumer Price Index pursuant to the PDD ordinances. For reference, the maximum amount was
increased from $43,300 in 2018 to $46,000 in 2019, then decreased to $45,000 in 2021.

Note: in section VI Insurance, the minimum Umbrella coverage is $5,000,000, as this is an agreement
for quarry monitoring services only and not for building contractor services which typically requires a
minimum coverage of$10,000,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve the Quarry Momtoring Professional Services Agreement for calendar year 2024 with
Attachment A containing service details and costs as provided by Stantec Consulting Services Inc , and
to authorize staff to enter into said agreement not to exceed $55,000; subject to technical corrections by
staff and submittal ofcertificate ofinsurance

-or

Such other action as the Common Council may determine.

Department ofCity Development: RMM



AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_ day of , between the City of
Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and Stantec
Consulting Services Inc. (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"), whose principal place of business 1s
12075 Corporate Parkway, Suite 200, Mequon, Wisconsin 53092.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
contractor and has offered services for the purposes specified in this AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONTRACTOR to provide quarry monitoring services, as described in Attachment A, for
the City of Franklin;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A. CONTRACTOR shall provide services to CLIENT for quarry monitoring
services, as described in CONTRACTOR's proposal to CLIENT dated October
16, 2023, annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

B. CONTRACTOR shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative in matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONTRACTOR may employ the services
of outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by
CONTRACTOR to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and all persons furnishing services
hereunder are employees of, or independent subcontractors to, CONTRACTOR
and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance Contribution Act
(FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and income tax
withholding are the responsibility of CONTRACTOR as employer. CLIENT
understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between CONTRACTOR
and its employees regarding extra work, competition, and nondisclosure.

D. During the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions
thereto, and for a period of one (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party.

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

Page-1



CLIENT agrees to pay CONTRACTOR, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described in Attachment A, with a not-to-exceed budget of $55,000, subject to the
terms detailed below:

A. CONTRACTOR may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONTRACTOR's invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of $55,000. For services rendered, monthly
invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of work
completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONTRACTOR will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT.

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONTRACTOR in writing within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONTRACTOR will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT's review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a limitation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A. CLIENT may, in writing, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONTRACTOR and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONTRACTOR shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONTRACTOR. Should any such actual
changes be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate
CONTRACTOR or reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental
labor or direct costs, respectively. Any claim by CONTRACTOR for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT in writing no later than forty-five (45) days
after receipt by CONTRACTOR of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A. Regulo Martinez-Montilva, Principal Planner, will coordinate the work of the
CONTRACTOR, and be solely responsible for communication within the
CLIENT's organization as related to all issues originating under this
AGREEMENT.

B. CLIENT will timely provide CONTRACTOR with all available information
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONTRACTOR.

C. CONTRACTOR will appoint, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Michael
Roznowski, Senior Principal, CONTRACTOR's Project Manager and other key

Page-2



providers of the Basic Services. Substitution of other staff may occur only with
the consent of CLIENT.

V. TERMINATION

A. This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR. This
AGREEMENT may be terminated by CONTRACTOR upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONTRACTOR for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B. In the event that this AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONTRACTOR shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaining in
any way to Basic Services that CONTRACTOR may have accumulated. Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONTRACTOR harmless for any work that is
incomplete due to early termination.

C. The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONTRACTOR under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing in any other article of this AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the minimum limits set forth below:

A. General/Commercial Liability $2,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily injury,
personal injury, and property damage
$4,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an addltzonal znsured on a
primary, non-contrbutory bass

B. Automobile Liability $1,000,000 combined single limit

CITY shall be named as an addtonal insured on a
primary, non-contributory bass

C. Contractor's Pollution Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

CITY shall be named as an addtonal mnsured on a
primary, non-contrbutory bass

Page-3



D. Umbrella or Excess Liability $5,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury,
Coverage for General/Commercial, personal injury, and property
Automobile Liability, and Contractor's
Pollution Liability

CITY shall be named as an additional nsured on a
prmary, non-contrbutory bas1s

E. Worker's Compensation and Statutory
Employers' Liability

Contractor wll provde a waver of subrogation
and/or any rights of recovery allowed under any
workers' compensaton law.

F. Professional Liability (Errors & $2,000,000 single limit
Omissions)

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional insured as required above.

VII. INDEMNIFICATIONANDALLOCATION OF RISK

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or CONTRACTOR'S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants in the performance of CONTRACTOR'S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B. Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contracting municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its insurer
shall not be liable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
ofliability for municipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONTRACTOR shall commence work immediately having received a Notice to Proceed as of

Page-4



The term of this agreement shall be from January 1 to December 31, 2024, regardless of the receipt
date of the Notice to Proceed. The term anticipates monitoring and at-quarry work occurs for the
twelve calendar months of 2024. In addition, the terms also anticipate the 4th quarter 2024 (October
- December) report and presentation be provided during February 2025.

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee
County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such litigation, including
reasonable attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT during the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONTRACTOR to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism. The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B. Pursuant to Law. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
all applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordinances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

C. Conflict of Interest. CONTRACTOR warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest. CONTRACTOR
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of interest arises or becomes known to the CONTRACTOR. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and written approval is required for the CLIENT to
continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D. This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONTRACTOR.

XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or provision of any
CONTRACTOR proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

Page-5



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY _

PRINT NAME John R Nelson

TITLE Mayor

DATE· _

BY. _

PRINT NAME Damelle L Brown

TITLE Drrector ofFmance and Treasurer

DATE

BY _

PRINT NAME Karen L. Kastenson

TITLE City Clerk

DATE

Approved as to form

Jesse A Wesolowski, Caty Attorney
DATE _

BY _

PRINT NAME. _

TITLE· _

DATE

Page-6



V')
wu
>0
w
V')

C)
z
0
0
1-

z
0>-0
0
<(
:::::>
0
<(
1-z
w
:E
:::cu
<(
I
I-
<(

<f
N
0
N

5
(l)
>-
5

O0
C
(l)

5
0

2
0
(l)

E
0
G
>
.Dzu
(l)
_c
+-

-2
0
(l)

s
0
(I)
2
0
C
0
V,
V,
(l)

0
Q
O
(l)

0u
0
V,
V,

0
C
;?;
0

± s
0 (l)u _c.,, t-

0
<:I)
0
-si
"'1-

0
<:I)
<:I)
"'1-

"' ClC C
.Q ·;::
- 00 a; ·2
a. 0
0 5

0
0
0
-si
N
"'1-

N

0
0
0
N
"'1-

>-
£
C
0
E

Cl
.!:
0

1;; ~
O 0
iii :E

0
0
("'!_
"'1-

0
e E5
0 0 +:
=g_ a. 0

E2u O O 0
ao &



APPROVAL

l
Reports &

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to be Compensated $250.00 by
Wisconsin Department of Transportation for 50 Square Feet of a

Temporary Limited Easement at
7979 W. Ryan Road (TKN 896 9990 001)

MTG.DATE
Dec. 19,2023

ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist. 1

G.11

BACKGROUND
The Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is planning a highway safety project
2040-15-23 for W. Ryan Road/ W. St. Martins Road (STH 100). As part of that project, a small
triangular shaped area on the southeast corner of W. Ryan Road and S. 80"" Street is needed. This
small parcel is owned by the City on the Department of Public Works campus at 7979 W. Ryan
Road.

ANALYSIS
The area is a nominal 50 square feet and will not need to be permanently acquired. Staff
recommends that the City waive the right for a second appraisal and accept the minimum
compensation of $250.00.

"A temporary limited easement (TLE) is a rightfor constructionpurposes ... including the right to
operate necessary equipment thereon, the right ofingress and egress as long as requiredfor such
public purpose including the right to preserve, protect, remove, or plant thereon any vegetation
that the highway authorities may deem desirable." The TLE will terminate one year after the
project is completed.

An appraisal report prepared March 15, 2023 is available for viewing in the Engineering Office
during normal business hours.

FISCAL NOTE
The received funds will be deposited in the General Fund , Property Sale.

RECOMMENDATION
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 2023 -,a resolution to be compensated $250.00 by
Wisconsin Department of Transportation for 50 square feet of a temporary limited easement at
7979 W. Ryan Road (TKN 896 9990 001).

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023----

A RESOLUTION TO BE COMPENSATED $250.00 BY
WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 50 SQUARE FEET OF A
TEMPORARY LIMITED EASEMENT AT 7979 W. RYAN ROAD (TKN 896 9990 001)

WHEREAS, pursuant to accommodate a Wisconsin Department of Transportation
(WisDOT) project 2040-15-23 along W. Ryan Road/ W. St. Martins Road (STH 100); and

WHEREAS, a portion of the needed real estate is located on the City-owned land that
houses the Department ofPublic Works campus at 7979 W. Ryan Road; and

WHEREAS, a general certified appraiser has computed the value of a temporary
limited easement to be $38.97 and rounded up to the minimum $250.00.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin that it would be in the best interest of the City to be compensated $250.00 by
Wisconsin Department of Transportation for 50 square feet of a Temporary Limited
Easement at 7979 W. Ryan Road (TKN 896 9990 001).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized
and directed to execute the agreement and easements, granting the temporary limited
easement on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting ofthe Common Council of the City of Franklin the
_day 0f? 2023, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



WisDOT Division of Transportation
System Development
Southeast Region
141 NW Barstow Street
PO Box 798
Waukesha WI 53187-0798

Governor Tony Evers
Secretary Craig Thompson

wIsconsmndot gov
Telephone (262) 548-5903

FAX (262) 548-5888
Email ser dtsd@dot wi.gov

September 14, 2023

CITY OF FRANKLIN
ATTN GLEN E MORROW
9229 W LOOMIS RD
FRANKLIN, WI 53132

Reference Initiation of Negotiations-AS
Project ID 2040-15-23, Parcel No 102

C FRANKLIN, RYAN RD/ST MARTINS RD
STH - 100, Milwaukee County

Dear CITY OF FRANKLIN

CERTIFIED MAIL
7020 1910 0000 5169 5513

/I I 7,·( )

thy- r.
! m,-, '·nl

w 4oqF 
- rduy p

As you may know, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) Is planning_ a highway safety project in
your area This project will affect your property and I look forward to working with you to answer your questions

In compliance with Wisconsin statutes and federal regulations, I am writing to inItIate negotIatIons to acquire
property and/or property interests needed for the above highway project

To explain the process, I ask you to review the following documents

• Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Estate (RE1895)
• Legal description of the land and/or interest(s) needed for the project
• Names of neighboring landowners affected by the project (hsted on ROW plat)
• Highlighted Right of Way Plat
• Appraisal Report
• Appraisal Guidelines and Agreement
• "The Rights of Landowners Under Wisconsin Eminent Domain Law'' pamphlet

Based on the enclosed real estate appraisal report the allocation of damages Is

Allocation Description Size Unit Per Unit Value($)
Temporary Limited 50 00 Sq Ft $0 78 $38 97
Easement (TLE)
Appraiser Rounding $61 03

Other Admn Increase to $150 00
Reach SE Region
Minimum

Total Allocation $250 00

If you agree with the values in the appraisal report, please sign the enclosed Agreement for Purchase and return
in the enclosed envelope for final review and approval' Once WisDOT Is satisfied that the negotiations are
complete, we will send you a fully executed (signed) copy of the agreement and I will contact you to arrange for
payment and closing Please note that your signature alone on the Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real
Estate is not sufficient to result in an enforceable contract for the purchase of the needed property



If you are not satisfied with the compensation offered for your property, you have 60 days and no later than
11/16/2023 to obtain a second appraisal from a qualified appraiser of your choice Please see the enclosed
Appraisal Guidelines and Agreement document for requirements for reimbursement of another appraisal If your
appraisal report 1s submitted to my office after the 60-day statutory date, the department may consider it for
negotiation purposes, but tt will not be eligible for reimbursement

I want you to be satisfied that the Wisconsin Department of Transportation treated you fairly, we answered your
questions, addressed your concerns, and fully considered your property and property interests I am happy to
provide any addrtonal information requested, If available, or discuss any additional concerns Please contact me
at 262-548-6457 or email dean vehng@dot w1 gov

Thank you for your part in contributing to safer Wisconsin roadways

Sincerely,

Dean Veling
Real Estate Specialist

Enclosures lrnt1at1on of Negot1at1on Letter, Agreement for Purchase, Legal Descnpt1on, ROW Plat Sheet 4 06,
Color Key to RE Interests, Appraisal Report, Appraisal Gwdehnes and Agreement, The Rights of Landowners
Under Wisconsin Eminent Domain Law, Return Envelope, Business Cards



AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF REAL ESTATE INTERESTS - SHORT FORM
Wisconsin Department of Transportation
RE1895 05/2023

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between City of Franklin, herein after called Seller, and the Wisconsin
Department ofTransportation, herein after called Buyer Once accepted, this offer creates a legally enforceable contract
Both parties should read this document carefully and understand it before signing

Seller and the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation agree thatthe Wisconsin Department ofTransportation Is purchasing
this property for transportation related purposes, within the meaning of Chapter 84 of the Wisconsin Statutes

Seller warrants and represents to the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation that Seller has no notice or knowledge of any
of the following:

1) Planned or commenced public improvements which may result in special assessmentswhich would otherwise materially
affect the property other than the planned transportation fac1lIty for which the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation Is
purchasing this property,

2) Government agency or court order requiring repair, alteration, or correction ofany existing condition,

3) Shoreland or special land use regulations affecting the property, and,

4) Underground storage tanks and the presence ofany dangerous or toxic materials or conditions affecting the property.

DESCRIPTION· The Seller agrees to sell and the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation agrees to buy, upon the terms
and conditions hereinafter named, the following described real estate situated mn Milwaukee County, Wisconsin

Legal description is attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference.

The purchase price of said real estate shall be the sum ofTwo Hundred Fifty and 0/100 Dollars ($250.00) payable in full by
check at closing

General taxes shall be prorated at the time of closing based on the net general taxes for the current year, if known, otherwise
on the netgeneral taxes for the preceding year N/A - Temporary Limited Easement (TLE)

Seller shall, upon payment of purchase price, convey the property by warranty deed, or other conveyance (temporary limited
easement- TLE) Legal possession of premises shall be delivered to the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation on the
date of closing

Physical occupancy shall be given to the Wisconsin Department. ofTransportation on the date ofclosing Seller may not
occupy property after closing unless a separate lease agreement Is entered mto between the Wisconsin Department of
Transportation and Seller

SPECIAL CONDITIONS Norte

Thus agreement is binding upon acceptance by the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation as evidenced by the signature of
an authorized representative ofthe Wisconsin Department ofTransportation. If this agreement Is not accepted by the
Wisconsin Department ofTransportation within 30 days after Seller's signature, this agreement shall be null and void.

This transaction Is to be closed at the office ofTBD on or before TBD or at such other time and place as may be agreed to mn
writing by the Seller and the Wisconsin Department ofTransportation.

No representations other than those expressed here, either oral or written, are part ofthis sale

2 J 106I396

Project ID
2040-15-23

This instrumentwas drafted by
Wisconsin Department ofTransportation

Parcel No
102



Seller and the Wisconsin Department of Transportation agree to act in good faith and use diligence mn completing the terms
of this agreement This agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the parties to this agreement and their successors in
interest, assigns, personal representatives, heirs, executors, trustees, and administrators

Signature Date

Print Name Title

Signature Date

Print Name Title

Signature Date

Print Name Title

Signature Date

Pnnt Name Title

City of Franklin, a municipal corporation
Owner of Record

The above agreement is accepted

Signature

Nicole Mauch
Pnnt Name

Real Estate Supervisor
Title

Date

Must be signed by an authonzed representative of the
Wisconsin Department of Transportation

Project ID
2040-15-23

This instrument was drafted by
Wisconsin Department of Transportation

Parcel No
102



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

A Temporary Limited Easement (TLE) is a right for construction purposes as
defined herein, including the right to operate necessary equipment thereon, the right of
ingress and egress as long as required for such public purpose including the right to
preserve, protect, remove or plant thereon any vegetation that the highway authorities
may deem desirable.

That part of the owner's interest in land contained within the following described
tract in Paree! 1 of CSM 6114, Reel 3566, Image 754-757, document number 7092949
located in part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, Town 5 North,
Range 21 East, City of Franklin, more fully described as follows:

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 28; thence South 01°11'34"
West, 60.04 feet along the east line of said Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section
28; thence North 89°59'13" West, 60.01 feet; thence South 89°59'29" West, 612.92 feet
along the southerly right-of-way line of STH 100; thence North 00°00'31" West, 10.00
feet; thence South 89°59'29" West, 132.00 feet; thence South 00°00'31" East, 9.97 feet;
thence South 89°59'17" West, 483.51 feet along the southerly right-of-way line of STH
100 to the point of beginning; thence South 45°31'57" West, 14.28 feet to the easterly
right-of-way line of S. 80th Street; thence North 01°04'25" East, 10.00 feet along said
easterly right-of-way line to the southerly right-of-way line of STH 100; thence North
89°59'29" East, 10.00 feet along said southerly right-of-way line to the point of
beginning.

This parcel contains 50 square feet, more or less.

The above Temporary Limited Easement is to terminate upon the completion of
this project or on the day the highway is open to the traveling public, whichever is later.

Subject to all other easements and restrictions, recorded and unrecorded.

Project ID: 2040-15-23 02/20/23 Parcel 102



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION MTG. DATE
December 19,

2023
Reports &

Recommendations
Pathway Options for a

Wisconsin Department of Transportation Project on
S. Lovers Lane (USH 45) from W. St. Martins Road to

W. Rawson Avenue CTH BB

ITEM NO.
Aid. Dist. 2 & 6

G.18.

-+-s,
toe$a/ o, , i#at
ooeiet at,et

toe»auhrat
seata4rt

There are two options for constructing a pathway:
1. Urban cross section includes curb and guttering with a Hz-=--z--T

storm sewer system. Typically, this section is used \'##EE±
when there are limitations on the width of right-of-way.

2. Rural cross section includes ditches to convey
stormwater runoff. Typically, this section is less
expensive but involves more width to accommodate road EiEj±,
side ditches and a reverse slope to meet the pathway.

The improvements included a include sidewalk (multi-use pathway) that
the City of Franklin will need to reimburse at 50% cost. There is also a
crosswalk and flashing beacon system planned at the monastery that the
City will need to reimburse at 100% (if it is unwarranted). The total cost
to the City of Franklin was previously expected to be $307,500.

Staff has met with WisDOT engineers on the options for the location of
the path. WisDOT would like confirmation on path location(s)
decision before the design is advanced and presented to the public at
a Public Information Meeting scheduled for January 30, 2024 (4:00-
6:00 pm) at the Franklin Public Library.

ANALYSIS

BACKGROUND
Wisconsin Department of Transportation (WisDOT) is planning a project
on S. Lovers Lane (USH 45 / STH 100) from W. St. Martins Road to W.
Rawson Avenue (CTH BB) [WisDOT project 2040-21-00]. Construction
could be bid as early as February 2026; however, construction is
anticipated in 2027. On May 2, 2023, Common Council authorized a
State/Municipal Financial Agreement and a State/Municipal
Maintenance Agreement for improvements related to this project in the
amount of $307,500.

There are five segments progressing from W. St. Martins Road to W. Rawson Avenue.
1. Undivided two-lane section from W. St. Martins to the south edge of the Wyndham Village

Shopping Center (Target). There are approximately 18 properties on the west side and 16
on the east side. The east side includes the new Water Tower Park and several of the
properties on the east side are likely to redevelop in the future (sidewalks could be required
as part of the redevelopment).

2. Divided four-lane section adjacent to Target to the W. Drexel Avenue/ W. Church Street
intersection. This section includes a stop light for Target with a cross walk for pedestrians
from the new multifamily complex. The west side contains three multi-family and
commercial zoned properties and the east side includes one residential property and Target
all zoned commercial. Target has a 5-foot sidewalk along the property north of the
stoplight. There are pedestrian crosswalks at all legs of the W. Drexel Avenue-/ W. Church
Street intersection.



3. W. Drexel Avenue/ W. Church Street intersection to W. Woelfel Avenue/ W. Friar Lane
intersection. There are ten residential parcels on the west side that face S. Bishops Way.
Likewise, there are five residential parcels on the east side (including a stormwater
management pond) that face other streets.

4. Between W. Woelfel Road and the Sacred Heart Monastery entrance, the monastery and
associated living quarters border both side of the road. The monastery has long requested
a pedestrian crossing at this location.

5. The monastery entrance to W. Rawson Avenue. Both sides are similar wide-open spaces
owned by the Sacred Heart Monastery and interchange right-of-way owned by WisDOT.
The bridge over W. Rawson Avenue is equipped with bicycle accommodation on the east
side, however the east side route is complicated by the interchange road entrance/exit.

From a financial standpoint, WisDOT staff has not advanced the plans to a point where a
meaningful cost estimate may be generated, but alternatives may be evaluated in comparison to
each other. In the table below, each option considers the least expensive alternative to be 1.0 and
the other options are comparatively more expensive.

1. 2. 3. 4. 5. Monastery
St. Martins Target Drexel to Woelfel to to Rawson
to Target Woelfel Monastery

Urban Section on West 1.91 3.22 1.30 1.33 Not
Recommended

Urban Section on East 1.85 1.27 1.33 1.16 1.73

Rural Section on West 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 Not
Recommended

Rural Section on East 1.08 1.08 1.21 1.02 1.00

Fortunately, it appears that there is sufficient right-of-way on both sides of the road so one assumes
that the rural section may be constructed without requiring additional permanent right-of-way.
However, less expensive temporary easements for grading would be required.

After discussions with WisDOT staff, considering the comparative cost analysis and the discussion
in the descriptions of the five segments, Staff recommends a rural section path on the west side
from W. St Martins Road up to the Monastery entrance then cross over and continue up the east
side over the bridge. The west side is not recommended because it does not match the bridge
section. This crossing at the monastery will also help warrant the crossing for the monastery use.

OPTIONS
A. Direct WisDOT to design the project with the pathway as a rural section path on the west side

from W. St Martins up to the Monastery entrance then the east side over the bridge. Or
B. Other direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
The $307,500 commitment was added to the Fund 46 Capital Improvement Plan for 2026. This
will be adjusted as the estimate is refined.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Direct Staff to work with WisDOT on a pathway project as a rural section path on the
west side from W. St Martins up to the Monastery entrance then the east side over the bridge.

Engineering Department: GEM



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AResolution to Award Landmark Structures I, LP a
Contract to Construct

Elevated Water Storage Tank (Contract B) at
8120 S. Lovers Lane Road (TKN 801-9986-000)

In the Amount of $6,833,000

MTG. DATE
December 19, 2023

ITEM NO.
Aid. Dist. 2

BACKGROUND
The Franklin Water Utility has designed a new elevated 1.0-million-gallon water storage tower in
the vicinity of 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road (TKN 801-9986-000) currently known as Water Tower
Park. This tower is needed to address inadequate storage in the western pressure zone and all of
Franklin.

On June 20, 2023, Common Council directed Staff to receive bids on this project. Bids were
received on November 16, 2023.

Elsewhere on this agenda is an item to award the construction of the connecting watermain.

ANALYSIS
Four bids were received. The engineer's estimate was $6,868,476. The received bids were as
follows:

Water Tower Bidder
Landmark Structures
Phoenix Fabricators
CB&I STS LLC
Caldwell Tanks

Total Bid
$6,833,000
$7,011,367
$7,124,645
$7,651,000

The Board of Water Commissioners discussed this on November 21, 2023 and are recommending
to the Common Council to award the project to Landmark Structures.

OPTIONS:
A. Award project to Landmark Structures, Inc., or
B. Other direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
Funds are in the 2023 and 2024 Capital Improvement Fund 46 budgets and all borrowing has been
completed.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Authorize Resolution 2023- , a resolution to award Landmark Structures I, LP
a contract to construct Elevated Water Storage Tank (Contract B) at 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road
(TKN 801-9986-000) in the amount of $6,833,000.

Department ofEngmeermg GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023----

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD LANDMARK STRUCTURES I, LP
A CONTRACT TO CONSTRUCT

ELEVATED WATER STORAGE TANK (CONTRACT B) AT
8120 S. LOVERS LANE ROAD (TKN 801-9986-000)

IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,833,000

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin advertised and solicited bids for the Elevated Water
Storage Tank (Contract B) at 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road {TKN 801-9986-000); and

WHEREAS, four bids were received on November 16, 2023, and Landmark
Structures, Inc. was the lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, Landmark Structures, Inc. is a responsible and qualified public works
contractor; and

WHEREAS, Funds are in the 2023 and 2024 Capital Improvement Fund 46 budgets
and all borrowing has been completed; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City as recommended by the City's Staff to
award the contract for the Elevated Water Storage Tank (Contract B) at 8120 S. Lovers Lane
Road, in the amount of$6,833,000 to Landmark Structures I, LP.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, to award the Elevated Water Storage Tank (Contract B) at 8120
S. Lovers Lane Road to Landmark Structures I, LP.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and
directed to execute a contract with Domer, Inc. on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2023 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



Appled Technologies Inc.

16815 West \11/isconsm Avenue

Brookfield Wisconsin 53005

Fax 262 784-6847

Telephone 262 784-7690

www at-ae com

November 16, 2023

Board of Water Commissioners
City of Franklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Subject: Evaluation of Bids and Recommendation for Award
Contract B-Elevated Water Storage Tank

Dear Board Members:

We have completed our evaluation of the bids opened on November 16, 2023, for the
Elevated Water Storage project. As detailed on the attached Tabulation of Bids, the four
bids received ranged from $6,833,000 to $7,651,000.

The low bid was submitted by Landmark Structures from Fort Worth, Texas and did not
contain any irregularities or informalities.

We recommend that the contract for the Elevated Water Storage Tank project be awarded
to the low bidder, Landmark Structures, in the amount of $6,833,000 based on further
action by the Common Council.

As you may recall, the original estimated construction cost presented in October was
$6,868,476. As such, we feel that the low bid represents a fair price for the work to be
performed.

Following Award of the Contract from the Common Council, we will send a Notice of
Award to the contractor along with copies of the Contract Documents for execution. The
Contractor will return the Contract Documents to the City for execution, after which we
will issue a Notice to Proceed and schedule a preconstruction conference.

R.\Shared Folders\Projects\6434 - Franklin Elevated Tank\2 0 Correspondence\2 2 Clent\Bid Evaluation and Recommendation
EWST doc



Village Board
November 16, 2023
Page 2 of 2

Please review the attached information and contact our office with any questions or
comments at (262) 784-7690. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Applied Technologies, Inc.

u.°°President

Attachments

cc: Glen Morrow, P.E.-Water Utility Manager
Mike Roberts-Water/Sewer Superintendent

William A. Hein, P.E., P .L.S
Project Manager

R \Shared Folders\Projects\6434 - Franklin Elevated Tank\2 0 Correspondence\2 2 Chen\BdEvaluatton and Recommendation
EWST doc



NtOOll\000
1 % 3 8 8
iJ), U'i' v r iJ), Q uS

<I> ........
..,,. <I>

3...
iii...,..
ID



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL
2'

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Award Dorner, Inc. a Contract to
Construct

Water Transmission Main (Contract A) along S. Lovers
Lane in the Amount of $840,366

MTG. DATE
December 19, 2023

ITEM NO.
Ald. Dist. 2

BACKGROUND
The Franklin Water Utility has designed a new elevated 1.0-million-gallon water storage tower in
the vicinity of 8120 S. Lovers Lane Road (TKN 801-9986-000) currently known as Water Tower
Park. This tower is needed to address inadequate storage in the western pressure zone and all of
Franklin. The tower will be fed from a water distribution system extension from a connection
point to the north (south end of the Wyndham Shopping Village- aka Target).

On June 20, 2023, Common Council directed Staff to receive bids on this project. Staff was also
directed to have a neighborhood meeting. The neighborhood meeting was held on October 12,
2023 and the residents were informed of the new municipal code that gives deferments until a
property is rezoned or sub-divided. An assessment will be forthcoming at a future meeting.

Bids for the watermain were received on November 16, 2023.

Elsewhere on this agenda is an item to award the construction of the water tower.

ANALYSIS
Six bids were received. The engineer's estimate was $1,200,000. The received bids were as
follows:

Water Tower Bidder
Dorner, Inc.
PTS Contractors
Veith & Company
AW Oakes & Son
Wanasek Corp
Genesis Excavators

Total Bid
$840,366.00
$859,460.00
$875,561.70
$921,740.00
$988,775.00

$1,105,450.00

Dorner was the apparent low bidder. However, unlike the other bidders, Dorner submitted an
electronic copy of the bid bond without providing a hard copy of the bond. Although this is
acceptable for most of the projects that the City of Franklin bids today, the specifications were
based on an older version that required either Surety2000 electronic bid bond, or provide a hard
copy of the bid bond to the City prior to opening the bids. The specifications also allow the City
to waive irregularities in the bidding process.

The Board of Water Commissioners discussed this on November 21, 2023 and are recommending
to the Common Council to award the project to Dorner, Inc in the amount of $840,366.

OPTIONS:
A. Waive bidding irregularities and award project to Dorner, Inc., or
B. NOT waive bidding irregularities and award project to PTS Contractors
C. Other direction to Staff.



FISCAL NOTE
Funds are in the 2023 and 2024 Capital Improvement Fund 46 budgets and all borrowing has been
completed.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Motion to waive bidding irregularities and authorize Resolution 2023- a
resolution to award Dorner, Inc, Inc. a contract to construct Water Transmission Main (Contract
A) along S. Lovers Lane in the amount of $840,366.

Department of Engineering GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023----

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD DORNER, INC. A CONTRACT TO CONSTRUCT
WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN (CONTRACT A) ALONG S. LOVERS LANE

IN THE AMOUNT OF $840,366

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin advertised and solicited bids for the Water
Transmission Main (Contract A) along S. Lovers Lane; and

WHEREAS, six bids were received on November 16, 2023, and Dorner, Inc. was the
lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and

WHEREAS, Domer, Inc. is a responsible and qualified public works contractor; and

WHEREAS, Funds are in the 2023 and 2024 Capital Improvement Fund 46 budgets
and all borrowing has been completed; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City as recommended by the City's Staff to
award the contract for the Water Transmission Main (Contract A) along S. Lovers Lane, in
the amount of $840,366.00 to Dorner, Inc.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, to award the Water Transmission Main (Contract A) along S.
Lovers Lane to Domer, Inc.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and
directed to execute a contract with Domer, Inc. on behalf of the City.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of2023 by Alderman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of 2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT-- -- --



Subject: Evaluation ofBids and Recommendation for Award
Contract A-Water Transmission Main

Appled "Technologies Inc

16815 West Wisconsir Avenue

Brookfield Wisconsin 53005

Fax 262 784-6847

Telephone 262-784 7690

wwwati-ae com

Clear

November 16, 2023
Revised December 12, 2023

Board ofWater Commissioners
City ofFranklin
9229 W. Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Dear Board Members:

We have completed our evaluation of the bids opened on November 16, 2023, for the Water
Transmission Main project. As detailed on the attached Tabulation of Bids, the six bids received ranged
from $840,366 to $1,105,450.

The low bid was submitted by Dorner, Inc. from Luxemburg, Wisconsin. However, the low bid did not
include the required bid surety as described in the contract documents.

The City Board of Water Commissioners has waived this irregularity. As a result, we recommend that
the contract for the Water Transmission Main project be awarded to Dorner, Inc., in the amount of
$840,366 based on further action by the Common Council.

As you may recall, the original estimated construction cost presented in October was $894,525. As such,
we feel that the low bid represents a fair price for the work to be performed.

Following award of the Contract from the Common Council, we will send a Notice of Award to the
contractor along with copies of the Contract Documents for execution. The Contractor will return the
Contract Documents to the City for execution, after which we will issue a Notice to Proceed and
schedule a preconstruction conference.

Please review the attached information and contact our office with any questions or comments at (262)
784-7690. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Applied Technologies, Inc.

es°President

Attachments
cc: Glen Morrow, P.E.-Water Utility Manager

Mike Roberts-Water/Sewer Superintendent

£.
Project Manager

R \Shared Folders\Projects\6434 - Franklin Elevated Tank\2 0 Correspondence\2.2 Chient\Bd Evaluation and Recommendation-Transmuss1on
Mam doc



g!g
cil ci
O'Oti\! N
5l 3

g
cia

0 0

3%
M N

5 $

0 010o ·o o
cijd cig··g_. g
i 3la

±1CIC!. g:
3134 33~,

~I l.., ...
di~I

01· 0N o'° en... "3

ig

i

88
U) ~t

11

i
t u O'O, Ill
010
"'"

0
0a

N ,Ill

8 8
$ 0

0m
::l' "'1,().1 V>

I
!

C
0-~
£

C
0-~
5

<(
I-u
<(
c::
I-z
0u
z
<(

co ~< za 0
co Vl

!:!2
5
Vlz
<(
c::
I-
c::
LU
I-
<(

s

<( <( >- ,q:·!►
W W VI W tn

;;;-
"'0
N

"'r--
00
:!!:.
C

"iii
~



g g g

444.,,

g g g
ci .ci.. ci
98'8'$ ";;: .,,

81 8]8 0

0 0 0 g
8878 3= «ya.,, .,,

I

I
I
I

.. ... ...

;5 $ ;5 ;5

g
i ci
I C:, ...
!"'

!
o ol
3a°

I

ol o
q q
0 0

8~ :i

i i
!s[ 4

f !

j
!g 8l8 8l

°i#ala, vr vr - ·::[i

[ a]s
i

I

j

I
;;;-
"'0
N
V)....
00
:!!-
C·;;;
5
C u
0 .!::-~

"'£ (lJ. ...,
C 0g 0
f- .s C.c
2l 31 u

C (lJ

"' f-s: e 'OLL (lJ.s 0 "E.CV)31 > aC e «gg
LL u ~----~ O(D
0 (lJ 3E C;:
0 0 84

<C
I-u
<Ca::
I-z
0u
z
<(

co ~;:: z
0 0
co V)

!:!2
~
V)z
<Ca::
I-
a::
LU
I-
<C
$



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

An Ordinance to Modify the Municipal Code Section 245-5 D. (4)
Designating No Parking on

South Side of W. Forest Hill Avenue in the
Vicinity of Forest ParkMiddle School (8225 W. Forest Hill Avenue)

and Modify the Municipal Code Section 245-5 F.
Designating Parking in School Zones for

Both Sides of S. 35th Street in the Vicinity of
Southwood Glen Elementa School 9090 S. 35th Street

MTG.DATE
December 19,

2023
ITEM NO.

Aid. Districts
1, 2, 3, 4 & 6

0..2\

BACKGROUND
During the 2022-2023 school year, Staff received many complaints and concerns concerning
various traffic congestion patterns surrounding several Franklin Public Schools, including Country
Dale Elementary, Pleasant View Elementary, Robinwood Elementary, Southwood Glen
Elementary, and Forest Park Middle Schools. Staff met with many school officials and
implemented several temporary fixes. The temporary fixes were evaluated in December 2023 and
all are found to have a positive effect. The Board of Public Works discussed these fixes at the
December 12, 2023 meeting and are recommending that the temporary fixes be made permanent,
including two fixes that require changes to the municipal code section 245-5 D "No Parking."

ANALYSIS
Country Dale Elementary (7380 S. North Cape Road) had
an issue with parents/grandparents lining up along W. St.
Martins Road and S. North Cape Road at the end of the
school day. Adjacent businesses and homeowners would be
blocked in/out of their driveway during these times.

Discussions with the Police Department resulted in posting
signage that references State Statute 346-53 "Parking
prohibited in certain specifiedplaces. No person shall stop
or leave any vehicle standing in any ofthefollowingplaces

except temporarilyfor the purpose of
and while actually engaged in loading
or unloading or in receiving or
discharging passengers and while the
vehicle is attended by a licensed
operator so that it may promptly be
moved in case ofan emergency or to avoid obstruction oftraffie.... (2) In an
alley in a business district....(4) Within 4feet ofthe entrance to an alley or
a private road or driveway..."

Posting of these signs appear to have greatly alleviated the issues and no
change to the Franklin municipal code is needed.



Southwood Glen Elementary (9090 S. 35%
Street) had some issues with waiting cars
causing vision restrictions and turning
patterns for the school busses. No Parking
zones during morning and afternoons on

.., school days was adopted by Ordinance
2018-2347. The temporary signage
extended these zones to the north and to the
south on the west side of S. 35 Street. Very

positive feedback from the Southwood Glen
Elementary principal.

Restrictions during school times only was not
discussed at the Board of Public Works meeting.
This extension of the parking restrictions requires
an ordinance change to the Franklin municipal code
section 245-5 F. Parking in School Zones.

Forest Park Middle School (8225 W. Forest Hill Avenue) had parents/grandparents waiting for
children along W. Forest Hill Avenue. At 22-feet +/- width, W. Forest Hill Avenue is not made
to accommodate parking and allowing ample two-way traffic. The area east of S. Forest Meadows
Drive has been posted no-parking and has helped immensely. The School is planning an expansion
to the administration building (8255 W. Forest Hill Avenue) and athletic fields to the west, so the
Board of Public Works debated the benefit of allowing parking to be a problem to the west then

Robinwood Elementary (10705 W.
Robinwood Lane) had issues with safety in
the crosswalk at W. Robinwood Lane near
S. Mission Drive. Traffic patterns were
changed for parent/grandparent
pickup/drop-off (no changes for the school
busses). In addition, portable signage in
the crosswalk is now used during the
pickup/drop offtimes to caution the drivers
and make the crossing location more
noticeable. Staff received very positive

feedback from the Robinwood Elementary
principal. No change to the Franklin municipal
code is needed.

Pleasant View Elementary (4601 W. Marquette
Avenue) also had issues with end of day blocking
of driveways. The construction of the W.
Marquette Avenue extension has helped, but many
parents/grandparents still line up along S. 49"
Street. The 346-53 signs were of assistance for this
location also. Staff received very positive
feedback from the Pleasant View Elementary
principal. No change to the Franklin municipal
code is needed.

NO
PARKING



restricting parking, or restricting
parking before the construction of
the athletic fields and don't allow it
to ever be a problem. The decision 1
was made to restrict parking now
along the entirety of the school
property and avoid the inevitable
future problems.

The Board of Public Works did not
discuss the hours of restrictions.
Staff recommends that because of
the varied times for the use of the
athletic fields, the parking
restrictions be implemented at all
times. Changes to W. Forest Hill Avenue does require an ordinance change to the Franklin
municipal code section 245-5 D. (4) no parking at any time.

An alternate consideration might be to implement full time restrictions east of S. Forest Meadows
Drive(§ 245-5 D. (4)) and only parking restrictions morning and afternoon times west of S. Forest
Meadows Drive ($ 245-5 F.) to S. Four Oaks Drive.

OPTIONS
A. Time restricted parking on S. 35" Street in the vicinity of Southwood Glen Elementary School

north and south of W. Hilltop Lane during morning and afternoon times as illustrated herein;
and/or

B. Full time restricted parking on W. Forest Hill Avenue in the vicinity of Forest Park Middle
School; or

C. Full time restricted parking on W. Forest Hill Avenue east of S. Forest Meadows Drive and
time restricted parking west of S. Forest Meadows Drive (to S. Four Oaks Drive).

D. Other direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
No impact to the budget. DPW can handle the additional signs in the existing operating budget.

RECOMMENDATION
(Options A & B) Adopt Ordinance 2023- an ordinance to modify the municipal code section
245-5 D. (4) designating no parking on south side of W. Forest Hill Avenue in the vicinity of
Forest Park Middle School (8225 W. Forest Hill Avenue) and modify the municipal code section
245-5 F. designating parking in school zones for both sides of S. 35th Street in the vicinity of
Southwood Glen Elementary School (9090 S. 35th Street).

Engineering Department: GEM



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023

AN ORDINANCE TO MODIFY THE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 245-5 D. (4)
DESIGNATINGNO PARKING ON

SOUTH SIDE OF W. FOREST HILL AVENUE IN THE
VICINITY OF FOREST PARK MIDDLE SCHOOL (8225 W. FOREST HILL AVENUE)

AND MODIFY THE MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 245-5 F.
DESIGNATING PARKING IN SCHOOL ZONES FOR

BOTH SIDES OF S. 35TH STREET IN THE VICINITY OF
SOUTHWOOD GLEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL (9090 S. 35TH STREET)

WHEREAS, traffic congestion patterns were occurring around various Franklin Public
Schools before and after the school day; and

WHEREAS, some temporary parking restrictions seemed to eliminate the traffic
congestion patterns; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Public Works discussed the traffic patterns and the found effect
of the temporary parking restrictions; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Public Works recommended to the Common Council that the
temporary parking restrictions be made permanent.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and Common Council of the City of Franklin do ordain
as follows:

SECTION I. Section 245-5 D. (4) ofthe Municipal Code ofthe City ofFranklin is hereby
amended as follows [note deletions appear mn strke-through text, additions appear n double-underlned
text]:

ADD:
Name of Street Sides Location
W, Forest Hill Avenue South Brom a point 795 feet east of S. Forest

MeadowsDrive to S.Eour Oaks Drive

SECTION II. Section 245-5 F. of the Municipal Code of the City of Franklin is hereby
amended as follows [note deletions appear mn strke-through text, additions appear zn double-underlmed
text]:

AMEND·
Name of Street Sides Location
S. 35 Street East 100 feet southofW. Hilltop Lane right-of-

and way
west

S. 35th Street West 50 feet north of W. Hilltop Lane right
of way

S, 35 street West Commencing from W, Thorncrest
Drive to a point 225 feetnorthof theW,
Hi]]ton I .one rioht-of-.wav



INTRODUCED at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023, by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of2023.

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUESTFOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Geographic Marketing Advantage, LLC Agreement
for Geographic Information System (GIS) Support
and Database Maintenance Services for 2024

MEETINGDATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Geographic Marketing Advantage, LLC has served as the City's primary consultant and business partner for
GIS services for several years. City staff is very pleased with this company's and its employees' performance
and recommends continuing this relationship for an additional year. The owner, Todd Niedermeyer, and his
employee, Brian Fausel, have been extremely responsive in addressing the City's needs and remaining
dedicated to continuing to move GIS forward.

Staff seeks authority to execute a contract, extending the term through 2024, with the same rates and
contract amount as the current 2023 agreement:

• GIS Project Manager (Todd): $104.69 per hour

• Technical/Mapping Support (Brian): $73.66 per hour

This contract is funded as follows: approximately 78% by the General Fund and about 22% split between
the Sewer and Water Enterprise Funds.

The total contract amount of $145,860 includes $3,180 for "additional services" that would be required to be
authorized in writing if needed. This allows for some discretionary hours for the Director of Administration
to draw on this resource ifneeded. This 2024 contract is in the same form as the 2023 and prior contracts. A
marked-up copy of the current contract is attached for your reference.

Staff recommends approval.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to approve the agreement with Geographic Marketing Advantage, LLC for Geographic Information
System (GIS) Support and Database Maintenance Services for 2024 and authorize the Director of
Administration to execute and administer the contract effective January 1, 2024.

DOA-KR



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

Thus AGREEMENT, made and entered Ito this day of•2023,_-(Deleted:2022
between the City of Franklin, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, W1scons1 53132 (hereinafter
"CLIENT") and Geograpluc Marketing Advantage, LLC, a Wisconsm Lrmited Liabihty
Corporation (hereinafterCONSULTANT"), whose principal place of business 1s 8757 W Elm
Ct, Frankhn, WI 53132

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is duly qualified and expenenced as a consultant and has
offered services for the purposes specified m this AGREEMENT, and

WHEREAS, m the Judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to employ
CONSULTANT m connection with outsourcmg the design, development, and operation of an
enterpnse GIS for the City ofFranklm.

NOW, THEREFORE, m cons1deration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree as follows

I. BASIC SERVICES ANDAGREEMENTADMINISTRATION

A CONSULTANT shall provide services to CLIENT for the contlnuationof services for
operation and support of the City ofFranklm's GIS and for performmg updates and
maintenance to the GIS database. Services to be provided Wlder tlus AGREEMENT
are provided m AttachmentA.

B CONSULTANT shall serve as CLIENT's professional representative m matters to
which thus AGREEMENT apples, and will gve consultation and adv1ce to CLIENT
durmg the performance of said services CONSULTANT may employ the services of
outside consultants and subcontractors when deemed necessary by CONSULTANT to
complete work under thus AGREEMENT

C CONSULTANT is an mdependent contractor and all persons furnushung services
hereunder are employees of, or mdependent subcontractors to, CONSULTANT and
not of CLIENT All obhgations under the Federal Insurance ContributionAct (FICA),
the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and mcome tax withholdmg are the
responsibility of CONSULTANT as employer CLIENT understands that express
AGREEMENTS may exist between CONSULTANT and its employees regardmng
extra work, competition, andnondisclosure.

D Durmg the term of thus AGREEMENT and throughout the penod of performance of
any resultant AGREEMENT, Including extensions, modifications, or add1tons
thereto, and for a penod of one (1) year from the conclusion of such activity, the
part1es hereto agree that neither shall solcrt for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the pnor wntten approval of the other
party

Franklm Geographic Marketmg Advantage, LLC



E CONSULTANT mamtans certain copyrighted source documents that are subject to
periodic mdependent evaluation and updates CONSULTANT reserves the right to
use copyrighted source documents and be compensated for such use, 1n an amount as
mutually agreed upon, when 1t 1s necessary or convement to accomphsh the Basic
Services covered by this AGREEMENT, and the fee for such use would be less than
or equal to the cost of provdg the same service through the creation of orgnal
source documents For all copynghted works provided to CLIENT, CONSULTANT
grants CLIENT perm1ss10n to reproduce such works 1n any manner; prepare
denvatrve works, and lend, lease, rent, or transfer ownership to any pnvate or publ1c
entity mvolved with the operaton, financmng, and use of the City of Frankl GIS
CLIENT agrees that the use ofmatenals prepared from copynghted source documents
will be hmted to the project needs encompassed by this AGREEMENT Use of
matenals prepared from copynghted source documents for other purposes shall be
lrm1ted to reproduction for cntic1sm, comment, news reportmng, teachmg, scholarship,
research, or similar activ1t1es covered by the "farr use" pnnc1ples ofthe copynght law
All copyrighted source documents wdl be clearlymarkedbythe CONSULTANT

Il. FEESANDPAYMENTS

CLIENT agrees to pay CONSULTANT, for and in consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further descnbed m Attachment A for a total not-to-exceed cost m the amount of
$145,860, 1n accordance withAttachment "B" and subject to the terms detailedbelow

A CONSULTANT may bdl CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactonly completed
hereunder on a monthly basis CLIENT agrees to pay undisputed CONSULTANT's
mv01ce withm 30 days ofmv01ce date for all approvedwork.

B CONSULTANT wll mvo1ce CLIENT on an hourly basts for tasks identified m
Attachment A Total cost will not exceed $145,860 unless changes to the project
budget are specifically agreed upon by CONSULTANT and CLIENT and
documented m wnting. For services rendered, mvmces will clearly state the
percentage ofwork completed and the fee earned.

C In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT wll not exceed the fee for Bas1c Services and expenses without
wntten authonzatlon from CLIENTto perform work over and above that descnbed mn
the ongmal AGREEMENT

D Should CLIENT find deficiencies m draft and final reports, 1t wll notify
CONSULTANT 1 wntIng within thurty (30) days of receipt of report and the
CONSULTANT wll remedy the deficiencies wthm thrty (30) days of recervng
CLIENT's review

E CONSULTANT shall not 1nitrate any services pnor to January 1, 202A and_shall____-leeedr%?
complete all services covered by ths AGREEMENT by December 31, 24,___- {Deleted: 2023~---------------~exceptmg for delays caused through no fault of the CONSULTANT or except when
contmued month-to-month as provided for herem.

Franklm Geographic Marketmg Advantage, LLC 2



III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A CLIENT may, In wntmg, request changes mn the Bas1c Services required to be
performed by CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT Upon acceptance of the
request of such changes, CONSULTANT shall submit a "Change Order Request
Form" to CLIENT for authorzaton and nonce to proceed signature and return to
CONSULTANT Should any such actual changes be made, an equitable adjustment as
mutually agreed upon will be made to compensate CONSULTANT for any
mcremental labor or direct costs Any claim by CONSULTANT for adjustments
hereunder must be made to CLIENT m wntmg no later than forty-five (45) days after
receipt by CONSULTANT ofnotice of such changes from CLIENT

B CLIENT and CONSULTANT reserve the nght to subsequently amend this
AGREEMENT to mnclude add1tonal services. Compensation and schedule for
complet10n for additional services will be as agreed by CLIENT and CONSULTANT
pr1or to the start of work on sad additional services and may be mcorporated as an
Addendum to this AGREEMENT

IV. ASSISTANCEANDCONTROL

A ToddNiedermeyer, or des1gnee, will perform the work of the CONSULTANT, and be
solely responsible for communication wIthm the CLIENTs organrzat1on as related to
all issues ongmatmg under thisAGREEMENT.

B CLIENT wll timely provide CONSULTANT wIth all available 1format1on
concerrung PROJECT as deemednecessary by CONSULTANT

C CONSULTANT will appomt, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Todd Niedermeyer
as CONSULTANT's Project Manager and other key providers of the Bas1c Services.
Substitution of other staffmay occur only with the consent ofCLIENT

D CONSULTANT shall maintain all records pertamnmng to this AGREEMENT until at
least three (3) years following its completion of the services hereunder and CLIENT
shall have the nghtto mspect and copy such recordsupon request

V. TERMINATION

A This AGREEMENT may be termmated by either party to this AGREEMENT upon
thirty (30) days wntten notice Upon such termmat1on by CLIENT, CONSULTANT
shall be entitled to payment of such amount as shall faurly compensate
CONSULTANT for all work performed and expenses mcurred up to the date of
termmat1on, except that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit
from any source outside the scope ofthus AGREEMENT, mcludmg butnot lmuted to,
other actual or potent1al AGREEMENTs for services wIth other parties

B In the event that this AGREEMENT 1s termmated for any reason, CONSULTANT
shall dehver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries, correspondence, and other

Franklm Geographic Marketmg Advantage, LLC 3



written, printed, or tabulated matenal pertamnng mn any way to Bas1c Servces that
CONSULTANT may have accumulated. Such mater1al 1s to be dehvered to CLIENT
whether in completed form or m process CLIENT shall hold CONSULTANT
harmless for any work that 1s mcomplete due to early termmatmn.

C The nghts and remedies of CLIENT and CONSULTANT nnder this section are not
exclusrve and are m addrton to any other nghts and remedies provded by law or
appeanng many other article ofthis AGREEMENT

VI. INSURANCE

The CONSULTANT shall, dunng the lfe of the AGREEMENT, mamtam insurance coverage
with an authonzed msurance earner at least equal to the mlillfilum hmits set forth below

A. Lam1t of General/Commercial L1abluty
B Automobile L1ab1luty Bodily Inyury/Property Damage
C Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liabihty
D Profess1onal L1abluty

$1,000,000
$1,000,000
Per Statute
$1,000,000

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT shall supply CLIENT wtth a
su1table statement certifying sad protect1on and defining the terms of the pohcy tssued, which
shall specify that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days wntten
notice to CLIENT

The CONSULTANT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to mdemrufy, defend, and
hold harmless the CLIENT from any damage, lab1luty or cost, including reasonable attorney's
fees and costs of defense, arsng from any negligent or mtenhonal and wrongful act or omissmn
of CONSULTANT

VII. TIMEFORCOMPLETION

Subject to the conditions of Section II E, CONSULTANT shall commence 1mediately upon
receipt of a Notice to Proceed to complete all work reqmred herem. The CONSULTANT shall
exert all reasonable effort to adhere to the services mn Attachment A except that the services may
be notified with the approval of CLIENT and shall be extended day for day for any delay
mtroduced durmg CLlENT's review ofproducts or in the general conduct ofthe proJect.

VIII. DISPUTES

ThIS AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of
W1sconsm. The venue for all actions arismg nnder this AGREEMENT shall be the crcunt Court
for Milwaukee County The prevruhng party shall be awarded its actual costs of any such
ht1gat1on, mncludmng reasonable attorney fees

IX. CONFIDENTIALITY

CONSULTANT shall keep confidential, except as may be reqmred to perform its obligations
under this AGREEMENT, any and all confidential mformation of the CLIENT of which the

Franklm Geographic MarketmgAdvantage, LLC 4



CONSULTANT has knowledge, possess1on, or to which the CONSULTANT has access This
confidentiality obligation shall survive the termmat1on of thus AGREEMENT

X. TERM

This AGREEMENT shall cover a penod mcludmng all of calendar year 224_and shall continue_- (Delete@:2023
thereafter on a month-to-month basis, at the fixed hourly rates provided for herein, until such
time that the AGREEMENT 1s termmnated, as provided for herein, or modified or extended by a
separate, future AGREEMENT

XI. AMENDMENTS TO THE AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT may only be amended by wntten mstrurnent signed by both CLIENT
and CONSULTANT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

City ofFranklin, Wisconsmn

BY _

PRINTNAME.KellyHersh

TITLE. DIretorOfAdmmstraton

DATE. _

Geographlc MarketmgAdvantage, LLC

BY _

PRINT NAME. Todd Niedermeyer

m. President, Sole Member

DATE.

Franklm Geographic Marketmg Advantage, LLC s



Attachment A

Continued GIS Support and Services for2024

On-Site Management and Techrucal Support ofGIS Operation
• Continue commun1cations and coordinaton with the Caty's Admmnustrat1on

and InformationTechnology SupportProviders
• Provide GIS technical and programming servces as needed by the City
• Setup logmn parameters for ArcGIS hcenses
• Support GIS database management.
• Evaluate dataquality and data errors.
• Provide GIS user support
• Produce product to support special requests, mcludmgbut not lmuted to map

development.
• Provide continued documentation, Instruct1on and tramnmg related to GIS
• Installation ofGIS related software and software updates
• Loadnew andrevised GIS data.
• Provide other apphcable support as neededby the City
• Provde tramnmg on GIS apphcatons and tools, mncludmg webs1te tools
• Perform GIS database updates and maintenance, mcludmng related

appl1cations.
• Work wIth ESRI Products andServices
• Help develop, support, and promote additional GIS apphcabihty and use

throughoutCaty Departments
• Maintenance and continued development, with approval of the Director of

Admmistratmn, of the web-based GIS portal used for pubhc access to
mapping services

_-Deleted: 2023

Franklm Geographic Marketmg Advantage, LLC 6



Attachment B

Geographic MarketingAdvantage, LLC
TOTAL "NOT-TO-EXCEED" BUDGET

for
Continued On-Site Support Services And
GIS Database Updates and Maintenance

Service Approx.
Number Approx. Approx. Fixed
ofHours Number Total Hourly
PerWeek ofWeeks Hours Rate Budget

On-Site Admmn1stratve and Project
Management Support ofGIS Operatmns 16 50 800 $10469 $83,752
(Project Manager)

Techrucal and Mappmg Support 16 50 800 $73 66 $58,928

Total Estimated Expenditure $142,680

Available for Additional Services
Authorized in Writing $3,180

Total "Not to Exceed" $145,860

Franklm Geographic Marketing Advantage, LLC 7



APPROVAL

J
REPORTS AND

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Request Council Approval ofan updated Job
Description for the Administrative Assistant Position

that was formally the Secretary Position.

MEETING
DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

G2

Background:
The Franklin Clerk's Department currently has been updating old, outdated job descriptions within
the department. The Clerk's Secretary position job description has not been updated since December
2008. Since the job description was 15 years old and grossly outdated, I worked with staff and
Human Resources to update the job description and salary level.

After careful consideration and in alignment with the evolving needs of the City and Clerk's
Department, we have made certain modifications to better reflect the responsibilities and
expectations associated with this role.

I have included the old job description as well as a draft of the new job description and title change to
be effective immediately after approval by Common Council.

The main reason for the changes is due to the ever-evolving list of duties created over time with
changes in election laws, as well as changing practices within the City and additional duties involved
in preparing for fairs/festivals throughout the City. There will be little impact on the staff currently
performing these job duties as she has continually taken on the extra duties as they have arisen over
time including additional responsibilities while there is an open position within the Department. The
changes that have occurred are being reflected in the updated job description and title change.

We believe that these updates will contribute to the continued success of our team and the overall
achievement of the City's goals

Requested Action:
The Clerk's Department is requesting approval of the updated job description for an Administrative
Assistant position. This position would replace the Clerk's Secretary position. This position will also
be used as a recruitment tool for the open position within the Clerk's Department.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Request to Approve the updated Job Description for the Administrative Assistant Position that
was formally the Secretary Position.

CLERK/KK



franklin
"' w 1S C O NS I N

Date: 12/12/2023

To: Personnel Committee

From: Dana Zahn, Human Resources Manager

RE: Revised Job Descriptions for 2 Clerk's Department Positions

Karen Kastenson, Director of Clerk Services, has updated the job descriptions for her current
Secretary and Administrative Clerk positions. Although some of the updated job duties were
incorporated into the salary grade determinations when the Classification and Compensation
Study were done in December 2015, the job descriptions were never formally updated.

Karen did request an upgrade of both positions to be 2 salary grades higher than the current
positions, however, Kelly Hersh and I evaluated the job duties along with the submitted Job
Analysis Questionnaires, and determined the change in duties warrant an increase of only 1
salary grade. (It would be quite rare for a position to change so drastically to warrant a change
of 2 salary grades.)

We propose the Secretary title be changed to Administrative Assistant - Clerk's Dept. to be
consistent with other Administrative positions, and the Administrative Clerk position to be retitled
as a Permit/Licensing Specialist.

Staff has agreed that these positions needed to be re-evaluated and believe we also need to
review our Secretary positions in the Inspections Department and the Planning Department as
well. Department Heads have also requested that a few other positions be reviewed. These will
be done in the near future.

The Clerk's Department Job Descriptions are bemg brought forward at this time as we currently
have a vacant position which needs to get posted. Having an accurate job description and
commensurate salary is important to attract the best qualified applicant.

Karen will be in attendance at the Personnel Committee meeting to answer any specific
questions regarding the revisions to the job descriptions.

Requested Motion: Motion to approve the 2 revised job descriptions for positions in the
Clerk's Department, including the Job Titles and Salary Grades.



Job Title:

Department:

Appointing Authority:

Reports To:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Secretary

City Clerk

Director of Clerk Services

Director of Clerk Services

Non-Supervisory Level 15

Non-Exempt

Sandra L. Wesolowski, Director of Clerk Services

December 2008

Resolution 2008-

December 16, 2008

Summary
Provides secretarial support with the daily activities of the City Clerk's Office through a
broad range of clerical duties.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities include the following:
Perform routine clerical and administrative work in answering phones, receiving the public, and providing
customer assistance including answering the central telephone system and directing calls accordingly.

Compose, type and edit a variety of correspondence including letters, reports, memoranda, and other
material requiringjudgment as to content, accuracy and completeness.

Establish and maintain filing systems, records, and indexes.

Use Statewide Voter Registration System to assist with registering new voters, handling absentee voters
and ballots, and answering voter questions at the counter and via phone.

Assist in processing license applications including using Govern software.

Enter records into various computer databases.

Prepare agendas and minutes.

Assist in the procurement of and maintaining inventories of department materials and supplies.

Receive and distribute incoming mail and process outgoing mail.

Other duties as assigned by the Director of Clerk Services.

Supervisory Responsibilities
None



Qualifications
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge,
skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Education and/or Experience
Graduation from high school or GED equivalent with specialized course work in general
office practices such as typing, filing, and two (2) to three (3) years of increasingly
responsible related experience.

Language Skills
Ability to read and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical
procedures, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business
correspondence, and procedure manuals. Ability to effectively present information and
respond to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers, and the general public.

Mathematical Skills
Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units of measure, using whole
numbers, common fractions, and decimals. Ability to apply concepts such as fractions,
percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations.

Reasoning Ability
Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out detailed written or oral
instructions. Ability to deal with problems involving a few concrete variables in
standardized situations.

Computer Skills
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have knowledge of Microsoft
Excel Spreadsheet software, Microsoft Word and Outlook, and Internet Explorer
software. Ability to work with and proficiently learn various computer
software/hardware and other computer related equipment.

Certificates, Licenses, Registrations
Maintains user certification for Statewide Voter Registration System.

Physical Demands
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit, walk,
talk, and hear. The employee is occasionally required to use hands and fingers to operate,
handle, or feel objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms.

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 15 pounds. Specific vision
abilities required by this job include close vision and the ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable

Job Descnptton
Secretary

City Clerk's Office



accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.

Work is performed primarily in an office setting. The noise level in the work
environment is usually quiet to moderate.

Other Qualifications

May be required to work additional hours to assist with election and licensing duties.

Ability to type 45 words per minute.

Ability to work under pressure with frequent interruptions.

Working knowledge of government operations desired.

Some knowledge of accounting principles and practices.

Skill in operation of personal computer including word processing software, telephone,
copy machine, shredder, fax machine, calculator, and other office machines.

Ability to effectively meet and deal with the public and communicate in writing and
verbally.

Ability to make independent judgments which have moderate impacts on the organization
and exercises rational judgment in all job responsibilities.

Other Skills and Abilities

Ability to maintain strict confidentiality.

Responsible for implementation of new department equipment and contact with vendors
for support.

Serve on various employee or other committees as assigned.

Miscellaneous
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that
may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them
from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer
and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
requirements of the job change.

Job Description
Secretary

City Clerk's Office



Job Title:

Department:

Appointing Authority:

Reports To:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Confidential Clerk- Administrative Assistant Clerk 's Dept

Clerk's Office

Director ofClerk Services /City Clerk

Director ofClerk Services /City Clerk

Salary Range 43

Non-Exempt

Karen L Kastenson, Director ofClerk Services /CityClerk &
Dana Zahn Human_Resources Manager---------------_-(Formatted·fontNoto'd
November 1, 2023

Common Council

Summary
Providing administrative support to Clerk's office staff and other City Staff when deemed
necessary. Performs a variety ofconfidential, complex and routine clerical, secretarial and
administrative work in the keeping ofelections and licensing related documents, reports and
records. Assists in administration ofthe operating policies and procedures of the department.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities include the following.
Performs routine clerical and administrative work in answering phones, receiving the public and
providing customer assistance and refers, when necessary, to appropriate persons, data
processing, ordering/purchasing office/miscellaneous supplies, duplicating and distributing
materials, and maintain office fi les.

Schedules appointments for Director ofClerk Services and Deputy Clerk.

Composes, types and edits a variety ofconfidential correspondence including, reports,
memoranda, background reports, and other classified material requiring judgment as to content,
accuracy and completeness.

Coordinates the office operations, including miscellaneous supplies, duplicating and distributing
materials, and maintaining office fi les.

Develops and maintains office fonns and procedures and assists with administrative tasks
involving licensing, meetings preparation and elections.

Prepares required Wisconsin Department of Justice background checks for all operators, transient
merchants, and vendors for all City related events.

Prepares outgoing mail, sorts and distributes incoming mail and parcel packages and travels to
and from the post office for daily mail runs and special mailings.



Job Description
ConfidentialClerk

Administrative Assistant,- Clerk 's Dept,

Remains current on election laws.

Receives in-coming telephone calls for the entire City, and provides information as needed and
routes callers to appropriate personnel throughout the City.

Assists the Director ofClerk Services with processing requests for open record requests for
residents, staff, and the District Attorney's office, the news media, and Wisconsin Elections
Commission.

Acts as one of the system administrators for Wis Vote.

Reviews, coordinates and processes licenses and permits in BS&A software.

Enters and updates voter information into WisVote for all elections.

Assists with supplemental reports for the annual budget preparation.

Works directly with the Treasurer's office in processing payments for licensing, permits, transient
vendors, and merchants for community events and fairs.

Assists with meeting agendas and minutes for various committee meetings. Prepares agendas and
minutes for License Committee and St. Martins Fair meetings.

Assists Deputy Clerk in preparing agendas, minutes, and the meeting shell for Common Council
meetings.

Researches and collects price quotes for comparison on department equipment (furniture, copiers,
faxes, electronic screens, postage machine, etc.) in order to obtain a quality product at the best
possible price. Maintains inventory and order office supplies materials and fonns.

Arranges for maintenance on department equipment as necessary (printers, mail room equipment,
etc.)

Assists the public with the use ofCity facilities and processing park rentals and issuing deposit
refunds.

Assists City staff with brochures, newsletters, mailings, etc.

Assists with City events by sending out correspondenee and performing baekground eheekson all
vendors fer Ci vie Celebrations and St. MartinsFair through the Department ofJustice

Assists with voter registrations, in-person voting, and set-up and take down ofelection
equipment.

Assists with meeting agendas and minutes for various committee meetings.

Inputs data to standard office and department forms, and compiles tabulated data for elections,
licensing and City-wide events.

Maintains inventory and orderoffice supples and materials

Maintains inventory ofprinted materials and forms, and recreates ororder as necessary.

+---{Formatted: Indent: Left: l", First line: O"



Job Description
ConfidentialClerk

Administrative Assistant.- Clerk's Dept,

Prepares Property Assessment letters in the absence of the Permit Coordinator/ License
Specialist.

Processes Ordinances and Resolutions after approval at Common Council Meeting.

Performs other administrative and clerical duties.

Exercises rational judgment in all job responsibilities.

Mamntams the confidenceand trust ofpeers, subordinates, superiors, and citizens

Runs departmental errands as needed.

Any and all other duties as assigned by the Director ofClerk Services or Deputy Clerk.

Supervision Received:
Works under the general supervision of the Director ofClerk Services.

Supervision Exercised:
None.

Qualifications
To perfonn this job successfully, an individual must be able to perfonn each essential duty
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative ofthe knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities
to perfonn the essential functions.

Education and/or Experience
Graduation from high school or GED equivalent with specialized course work in general office
practices such as typing, filing, accounting and bookkeeping, and two (2) years of increasingly
responsible related experience.

Language Skills
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals,
technical procedures, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business
correspondence, and procedure manuals. Ability to effectively present information and respond
to questions from groups ofmanagers, clients, customers, and the general public.

Mathematical Skills
Ability to add, subtract, multiply, and divide in all units ofmeasure, using whole numbers,
common fractions, and decimals. Ability to work with mathematical concepts such as probability
and statistical inference. Ability to apply concepts such as fractions, percentages, ratios, and
proportions to practical situations.

Reasoning Ability
Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety ofconcrete variables in situations
where only limited standardization exists. Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in
written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.

Computer Skills



Job Description
ConfidentialClerk

Administrative Assistant.- Clerk's Dept

To perform this job successfully, an individual should have knowledge ofWindows and the
Microsoft Office Suite (Excel, Word, Outlook, Access, and PowerPoint). Ability to work with a
variety of computer hardware and other computer related equipment.

Certificates, Licenses, Registrations
Driver's license required.

Certification within 6 months ofhire by the Wisconsin Elections Commission is required.

Notary Public within 6 months of hire is required.

Physical Demands
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions ofthis job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to sit, walk, talk, and
hear. The employee is occasionally required to use hands and fingers to operate, handle, or feel
objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms.

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision and the ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions ofthis job. Reasonable accommodations may
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Work is performed primarily in an office setting Ht may be expected that the individual will be
exposed to blood or otherpotentially infectious materials. The noise level in the work
environment is usually quiet to moderate.

Other Qualifications
Ability to maintain strict confidentiality.

Ability to type 45 wpm

Working knowledge ofcomputers and electronic data processing.

Working knowledge ofmodern office practices and procedures.

Working knowledge ofClerk's Department operations.

Working knowledge ofElections.

Some knowledge ofaccounting principles and practices.

Skill in operation personal computer including word processing software, telephone switchboard,
copy machine, shredder, fax machine, calculator, typewriter, and telephone.

Ability to effectively meet and deal with the public.



Job Description
Confidential Clerk

Administrative Assistant, Clerk 's Dept.

Exercises rational judgment in all job responsibilities.

Maintains the confidence and trust of peers, subordinates superiors and citizens.

Ability to multi-task.

Ability to effectively communicate in writing and verbally.

Ability to handle stressful situations.

Ability to make logieal decisionsunder imminent situations.

Ability to make independent judgments which have moderate- minor impacts on the organization.

Other Skills and Abilities
Shared responsibility for implementation of new department equipment and software, and contact
with vendors for support.

Serve on various employee or other committees as assigned.

Assist with performance duties ofother department personnel as required.

Miscellaneous
The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types ofwork that may be
performed. The omission of specific statements ofduties does not exclude them from the
position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements
of the job change.



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Request Council Approval of an updated Job
Description for the Permit Licensing Specialist

Position that was formally the Administrative Clerk
Position.

MEETING
DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Background:
The Franklin Clerk's Department currently has been updating old, outdated job descriptions within
the department. The Administrative Clerk position job description has not been updated since
September 2002. Since the job description was 21 years old and grossly outdated, I worked with staff
and Human Resources to update the job description and salary level.

After careful consideration and in alignment with the evolving needs of the City and Clerk's
Department, we have made certain modifications to better reflect the responsibilities and
expectations associated with this role.

I have included the old job description as well as a draft of the new job description and title change to
be effective immediately after approval by Common Council.

The main reason for the changes is due to the ever-evolving list of duties created over time with
changes in election laws, as well as changing practices within the City and at the State level with
regard to licensing and fairs/festivals. There will be little impact on the staff currently performing
these job duties as she has continually taken on the extra duties as they have arisen over time. The
changes that have occurred are being reflected in the updated job description and title change.

We believe that these updates will contribute to the continued success of our team and the overall
achievement of the City's goals

Requested Action:
The Clerk's Department is requesting approval of the updated job description for a Permit Licensing
Specialist position. This position would replace the Administrative Clerk position.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to Approve the updated Job Description for the Permit Licensing Specialist Position that
was formally the Administrative Clerk Position.

CLERK/KK



"Franklin
f

WISCONSIN

Date: 12/12/2023

To: Personnel Committee

From· Dana Zahn, Human Resources Manager

RE: Revised Job Descriptions for 2 Clerk's Department Positions

Karen Kastenson, Director of Clerk Services, has updated the Job descriptions for her current
Secretary and Administrative Clerk positions. Although some of the updated Job duties were
incorporated into the salary grade determinations when the Classification and Compensation
Study were done mn December 2015, the job descriptions were never formally updated

Karen did request an upgrade of both positions to be 2 salary grades higher than the current
positions, however, Kelly Hersh and I evaluated the Job duties along with the submitted Job
Analysis Questionnaires, and determined the change in duties warrant an increase of only 1
salary grade (It would be quite rare for a position to change so drastically to warrant a change
of 2 salary grades.)

We propose the Secretary title be changed to Administrative Assistant - Clerk's Dept. to be
consistent with other Administrative positions, and the Administrative Clerk position to be retitled
as a Permit/Licensing Specialist

Staff has agreed that these positions needed to be re-evaluated and believe we also need to
review our Secretary positions in the Inspections Department and the Planning Department as
well. Department Heads have also requested that a few other positions be reviewed. These will
be done in the near future.

The Clerk's Department Job Descriptions are being brought forward at this time as we currently
have a vacant position whch needs to get posted. Having an accurate job description and
commensurate salary Is important to attract the best qualified applicant

Karen will be in attendance at the Personnel Committee meeting to answer any specific
questions regarding the revisions to the job descriptions.

Requested Motion: Motion to approve the 2 revised job descriptions for positions in the
Clerk's Department, including the Job Titles and Salary Grades.



Job Title:

Department:

Reports To:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Administrative Clerk

City Clerk

City Clerk

Teamsters Union Contract

Union Non Exempt

Becky Schermer, Human Resources Coordinator

September I 0, 2002

Resolution 2002-5456

September 24, 2002

Summary provides support with the daily activities of the City Clerk's Office through a
broad range of clerical duties including telephone coverage, providing customer and
citizen assistance, data entry, and filing by performing the following duties.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities include the following:

Answers central telephone system and either responds to inquiry or directs caller to
appropriate personnel.

Provides citizen and customer assistance to walk-in customers and answers questions;
respond to inquiries from employees, citizens and others and refer, when necessary, to
appropriate persons. Assist citizens with concern and empathy; respect their
confidentiality and privacy and communicate with them in a courteous and
respectful manner.

Type and edit a variety of correspondence, reports, memoranda, and other material
requiring moderate judgment as to content, accuracy, and completeness. This
includes the assistance in the preparation of committee agendas.

Assist in creation of forms for documentation and systems for organization as
appropriate for operation of the department.

Assist City staffmembers with brochures, newsletters, mailings, etc.

Establish and maintain filing systems and indexes.

Maintain inventory and documentation of office supplies, including ordering
and purchase orders.

Prepare outgoing mail; sort and distribute incoming mail.



Administrative Clerk

Duplicate and distribute various materials.

Assist with voter registration processing or license application and processing.

Other duties as assigned by City Clerk.

Peripheral duties

Operate a vehicle to perform errands.

Keep well informed and proficient in computer skills and applications.

Supervisory Responsibilities

This position has no supervisory responsibilities.

Qualifications To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to
perform each essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are
representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform
the essential functions.

Page 2

Education and/or Experience

High school diploma or general education degree (GED); two to four years related
experience and/or training; or equivalent combination of education and
experience. At least two years of customer service experience is required.

Language Skills

Ability to read and comprehend simple instructions, short correspondence, and
memos. Ability to write simple correspondence. Ability to effectively present
information in one-on-one and small group situations to citizens and other
employees of the organization.

Mathematical Skills

Ability to add and subtract two digit numbers and to multiply and divide with 1 O's
and 1 0O's. Ability to perform these operations using units ofAmerican money
and weight measurement, volume, and distance. Ability to compute rate, ratio,
and percent.

Reasoning Ability

Ability to apply common sense understanding to carry out detailed written or oral
instructions. Ability to deal with problems involving a few concrete variables in



Administrative Clerk

standardized situations.

Computer Skills

To perform this job successfully, an individual must become knowledgeable and
proficient at Microsoft Word. Working knowledge of electronic data processing
is required. Microsoft Excel experience is preferred.

Certificates, Licenses, Registrations

Valid WI Drivers License

Physical Demands The physical demands described here are representative of
those that must be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential
functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit;
use hands to finger, handle, or feel and talk or hear. The employee is frequently
required to stand; walk and reach with hands and arms. The employee is
occasionally required to stoop, kneel, crouch, or crawl. The employee must
occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision abilities required
by this job include close vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception
and ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment The work environment characteristics described here are
representative of those an employee encounters while performing the essential
functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable
individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

The employee is occasionally required to work in outdoor weather conditions.

The noise level in the work environment is usually moderate.

Page 3

Other Skills and Abilities

Working knowledge of computers and electronic data processing; working knowledge of modern
office practices and procedures.

Ability to type 45 words per minute.

Ability to work in a high customer contact area.

Ability to protect confidentiality and right to privacy of all customers.

Ability to organize daily tasks for efficiency, to meet all requirements.



Administrative Clerk Page4

Ability to utilize communication skills in interactions with telephone callers, visitors to the
department, and co-workers.

Ability to make independent judgments which have moderate impacts on the organization.

Other Qualifications

May be required to work additional hours to assist with voter registration processing or license
application and processing.

Ability to work under pressure with frequent interruptions.

Miscellaneous

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of
work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does
not exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical
assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the
employer and employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of
the employer and requirements of the job change.



Job Title:

Department:

Reports To:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Permit Coordinator/ Licensing Specialist

Clerk's Department

Director of Clerk Services

Salary Grade 54

Non-Exempt

Karen L. Kastenson, Director of Clerk Services & Dana Zahn, Human
Resources CoordinatorManager

November 1, 2023

Common Council

Summary:
Coordinates the issuance of all new and renewal licenses and permits issued by the department.
Coordinates all election processes and training of department staff. Processes Property Status
reports. Maintains the City's Sign and Calendar for City-wide meetings. Provides clerical
support and training for the department.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities:
Reports to the Director of Clerk Services.

Coordinates from start to finish the issuance of all permits and licenses issued by the
Department- including:

_• _Acts as a "lead" staff person for annual license management.

• Issues annual licenses for the annual review and renewal process which included
Cigarette, Amusement, Temporary Class B, Liquor, Coin Operated Machines, Daycares,
Salvage Yards, Mobile Homes, Animal Fancier, Christmas Tree Sales, and Entertainment
as authorized by the Director of Clerk Services.

•Enters license and permit records into department software and various computer
databases such as Operator, Burn, Alarm, Park Rental and Transient Merchant permits.

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.25" +
Indent at: 0.5''

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 0.25" +
Indent at: 0.5"

Formatted: List Paragraph, No bullets or numbering



• Receives and performs preliminary checks of Extraordinary Event applications, Annual ·- ]Formatted: Normal
Licenses and Election_materials_for Special_Events and_Annual_Licensing. Ensures that
application submittals are complete and routed to the proper City Departments and staff
for review.

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5'", No bullets or numbering
• Works as staff liaison between the Clerk's Office and other City Departments for

processing Extraordinary Events, Temporary Events and Fair Applications as well as all
annual licenses and operator licenses.

• Attends License Committee meetings as needed.

Corresponds with applicants, owners, and the public to answer genera l questions regarding
elections, special events, licensing, and department procedures.

Attends License Committee meet ings as needed.

Remains current on election laws.

Conducts set up and take down of Badger Books for both in-person and election day voting
which includes knowledge of the electronic ballot processing equipment.

Conducts set up of election equipment for all polling locations, and prepares all election day
materials for those locations.

Formatted: Indent: Left: OS', No bullets or numbering

• ]Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Conducts processing, scanning and counting of ballots for all elections.

Assists Deputy Clerk with election set-up and testing of all election equipment.

Prepares applications and enters information into the computer system for elections.

Coordinate in-person absentee voting with front office staff for all elections.

Assists Franklin residents with registration, absentee applications, and all other election related
questions and concerns.

Processes Property Status Reports by receiving, invoicing, gathering appropriate information
from the City's Property Tax Web Portal, the Assess Web Portal, or the Property Viewer Portal,
creates special assessment report documents, communicates with other departments to gather
information and sends report via email or fax.

Receives and performs preliminary cheeks of Extraordinary Event applications, Annual Licenses
and Election materials for Special Events, Annual Licensingand Elections.



Works as staff liaison between the Clerk's Office and otherCity Departments for processing
ExtraordinaryEvents, Temporary Events and Fair Applications as well as all annual licenses and
operator licenses.

Works as a staffliaison for Civic Celebrations and St. Martins Fair and oversees staffin Clerk-'s
office regarding processing applications and permit for such events.

Responds to Extraordinary Events, Licensing and Elections open records requests.

Provides support to other departments on special events.

Provides backup support to the Deputy Clerk including coordinating the agenda for the Common
Council meetings, mail and fax required notices, and transcribe minutes.

MaintainsandupdatesCitysignYiaWatchfirelgAireOPooftv.eretoensureCitymeeting;andeventsarepostedpromptly.

Maintains and updates the Franklin Meetings Calendar for City-wide scheduling.

Prepares various detailed monthly and yearly reports for federal and state governments, such as
tax-exempt parcel filings and weights and measures reports, Milwaukee County Election
Commission reports, and material for the annual budget

Acts as Notary Public for all City staff and Franklin residents.

Assists as back-up to front officestaff(Confidential Clerk Administrative AssistantsandDeputy Clerk) answering
phones, servicing customers at counter, processing incoming and outgoing mail, and covering
during the absence of other front office staff.

Assists ConfidentialClerk- Administrative Assistants with establishing standardized office procedures and plan
reviews.

Assists in preparing newsletter articles.

Trains front office staff.

Compose, type, and edit a variety of correspondence, reports, memoranda, and other materials.

Maintain filing systems, control records, and indexes.

Maintain department records.

Other duties as assigned by the Director of Clerk Services.



Peripheral Duties:
Process permits and licenses as directed by the Director ofClerk Services.

Minimum Qualifications:
Education and Experience:
Graduation fromhigh school orGED equivalentwith2-4 years ofrelated experi ence inAdministeringElectionsrequired.
Experience administering elections and experience with licensing is preferred. Munieipalexperience preferred.

Language Skills:
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals,
technical procedures, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business
correspondence, and procedure manuals. Ability to effectively present information and respond
to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers, and the general public. Strong
interpersonal skills are required.

Mathematical Skills:
Ability to calculate figures and amounts such as discounts and interest. Ability to apply concepts
of basic algebra and geometry. Ability to prepare and maintain spreadsheets for balancing
election day ballot counts.

Reasoning Ability:
Ability to interpret State Statutes in regards to elections and liquor licensing. Ability to solve
practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where only limited
information exists. Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral,
diagram, or schedule form.

Necessary Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Working knowledge of State Statutes and the ability to explain in general terms their
requirements.

Ability to acquire advanced knowledge ofthe Clerk's Office computer programs and teach the
operation of the systems to others.

Skill in operation of listed tools and equipment.

Ability to present and communicate ideas and concepts to the public, verbally and in writing.

Ability to be accurate, organized and able to multi-task.

Ability to maintain effective working relationships and other departments, appointed officials,
elected officials, and the public.

Ability to make independent judgments which have moderate impacts on the organization.

Certificates, Licenses, and Registrations:
Certification by the Wisconsin Election Commission within 6 months of hire required.



Notary Public within 6 months of hire required.

Valid Driver's license required.

Supervision Received:
Works under the general supervision of the Director of Clerk Services.

Supervision Exercised:
Does not supervise other employees, but does designate work to other employees in the
department and temporary election pollworkers.

Responsibility for Public Contact:
Daily contact requiring courtesy, discretion, and sound judgment.

Tools and Equipment Used:
Personal computer including word processing, business licensing, complaint tracking, election
software, Fire software, GIS, database and spreadsheet software, copy machine, fax machine,
folding machine, calculator, radio, and telephone.

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.

I-land-eye coordination is necessary to operate computers and various pieces of office equipment.
While performing the duties of this job, the employee is occasionally required to stand; walk; use
hands and fingers to handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and
arms. The employee is occasionally required to sit, climb, balance, stoop, kneel, crouch, crawl,
talk and hear.

The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to IO pounds. Specific vision abilities
required by this job include close vision and the ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of the job. Reasonable accommodations
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Work is performed in an office setting. (The employee is primarily in the office setting but will
perform election site inspections when needed, up to 5% of the work time.)

The noise level in the work environment is usually quiet in the office.

The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of various types of work that may be
performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the
position if the work is similar, related, or a logical assignment to the position.



The Job descnptlon does not constitute an employment agreementbetween the employer and
employee and 1s subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and
reqmrements of the Job change



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Authorization to Modify the 457(b) Retirement
Savings Option Plans Offered by the City of Franklin,
Including Adding Roth Options

MEETING DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

The City of Franklin has offered 457(b) Deferred Compensation programs for decades, allowing employees to
save a portion of their wages on a pre-tax basis for their future retirement needs. A resolution was approved
many years ago (2005-5942) that allows for a maximum of 3 deferred compensation vendors, and they must
meet certain participation guidelines.

The City currently has agreements with three vendors:
1. Mission Square (formerly ICMA) - approximately 59 participants
2. North Shore - approximately 12 participants
3. AXA/Equitable - only 3 participants

Employees have been asking to add Roth accounts (where you can put money into your deferred compensation
retirement fund on an after-tax basis) for many years. There is a letter of understanding in the Fire labor
agreement whereby the City agreed to try to add Roth accounts back in about 2013. This has never been
accomplished.

Mark Luberda, former Director of Administration, did not want to adjust 457(b) plans without having an
attorney develop an "umbrella" policy and have the selected 457(b) vendors sign off on our umbrella policy. I
believe the request to have these vendors sign "outside their norm" contracts were a catalyst in this project
falling apart. (See the attached 7/14/14 memo explaining Mr. Luberda's reasoning.)

Many employees have requested that we add the WI Deferred Compensation Program through the WI
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF), which also handles the WI State Retirement System (WRS)
pension plan. The WI Deferred Comp Plan takes over all plan fiduciary responsibilities and makes sure legal
updates and changes occur.

I did reach out to the HR Manager or Director in both Oak Creek and Greenfield to see if they have special
"umbrella" policies. Both Cities offer the WI Deferred Comp Plan and Nationwide, along with a few other
vendors, and utilize the vendors' standardized plan documents.

The Federal Secure 2.0 Act will require plans to add Roth post-tax options, or employers will be unable to
allow Catch-up provisions for employees close to retirement age. This provision was to be enacted on 1/1/24
but has been postponed for two years. The Secure 2.0 Act is another reason for the push to add the Roth
accounts.

I recommend ending contributions for AXA/Equitable accounts in January of 2024 to use those existing
payroll codes to implement the WI Deferred Compensation program. The attached Resolution of Inclusion
form must be approved and signed to apply to the State program. Implementation of the plan will then take a
few months.



Continued participation in the Mission Square and North Shore plans will be determined once we see how
many participants move their funds to the State plan. Staff recommends that the Council authorize the
approval for staff to cancel vendors as they deem appropriate (Mission Square or North Shore). We will also
be considering implementing a Nationwide plan per the request of the fire department personnel. If staff
believe Nationwide would be a good option, we can bring that back for Council approval if the Council
wishes.

To ease administration and provide the benefits employees desire, the goal would be to end up with 2 457(b)
vendors, with both plans offering pre-tax and Roth options.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Recommended Motion: Motion to authorize a Resolution for Inclusion Under the State of Wisconsin Deferred
Compensation plan, allowing staff to implement plans (including Roth options), terminate contributions through
AXA/Equitable, and to terminate other current 457(b) vendors, or add the Roth option, as determined by staff to
be appropriate.

HR-DZ



• Cit or Franktia

n7•
MEMORANDUM

Date:

To:

From:

RE:

July 14, 2014

Personnel Committee Members

ea w. Loa.//i%%
Director ofAdmiriistration

457(b) Plan Changes and Recommendations

The Common Council approved a labor agreementwith the Franklin Professional Firefighters
Association Local 2760, LA.F.F. which included a letter ofunderstanding relative to the following:

The purpose of this side-letter is to acknowledge that, prior to the end of 2013, the City of
Franklin will increase the number of deferred compensation plans to include the Wisconsin
Deferred Compensation Program (ETF) and Nationwide, unless 1) the provisions of the plan
would restrict the City's participation in the plan in a manner similar to the current plans, 2)
the plan has fee or administrative requirements substantially more burdensome than the
current plans, or 3) the plan requires termination ofany ofthe City's existing plans.

Related to this same topic, the City previously adopted Resolution 2005-5942 relative to "Limiting the
Number ofDeferred Compensation457 Savings and Retirement Plan Vendors To a maximum of Three
and Requiring Each Vendor to Maintain a 10% Participation Rate." The City currently has arrangements
with ICMA-RC, North Shore Bank, and The Equitable.

This issue has been slightly more complex than anticipated, and due to the IRS implications and details,
I have been working together with employee benefits Attorney Matthew Flanary ofBuelow Vetter with
respect to the City's desire to add the new 457(b) plan providers as contemplated by the agreement with
the Union. The process of reviewing the documents from Nationwide Retirement Solutions has
uncovered another question and prompted an additional recommendation from Attorney Flanary.

By way of additional background, the City, as noted above, has established arrangements with multiple
investment providers that allow employees to defer compensation, on a tax-preferred basis, into eligible
deferred compensation plan arrangements as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 457(b). Under
IRS rules, every 457(b) plan is required to have a "plan document'' which details the terms of the plan
and outlines certain provisions regarding the administration ofthe plan. Historically, the City has relied
upon the different investment providers to provide the City with appropriate documentation for their
own products. Under those same IRS rules, however, the City is ultimately responsible for ensuring that
the different plan documents remain current with applicable IRS requirements and, more importantly,
implementing certain administrative safeguards regarding the various different providers. To the extent
that any of these 457(b) arrangements fail to satisfy the IRS requirements, the City would be responsible
to the IRS for having failed to properly report and withhold income taxes from the participating
employees.



The applicable IRS regulations are somewhat unclear with regard to whether the IRS would view the
City as having multiple 457(b) plans (i.e., with each investment provider) or one 457(b) plan (i.e., one
plan with multiple investment providers). Certain IRS requirements, such as the annual limit on
contributions, would always apply as if all of the different providers were part of a single plan. On the
other hand, some provisions such as allowing employees to transfer money from one investment
provider to another would not be allowed if the IRS were to view the City as having multiple 457(b)
plans.

Attorney Flanary has recommended that the City adopt an "umbrella" or "wrap" plan document which
would serve to memorialize the fact that the City views all of the different investment providers as
though they operate under one 457(b) plan. As such, the document would clearly limit employee
contributions to the maximum amount allowed by IRS rules. It would also more clearly allow
employees to transfer money from one investment provider to another. The wrap document would
provide the City with more authority to enforce uniform obligations on the different investment
providers and it would simplify the process of adding new investment providers or removing current
investment providers in the future.

Additionally, the IRS has made it allowable to incorporate access to RothIRAs as part of the Plan. The
City has elected not, to this date, to incorporate the necessary amendments related to Roth IR.As. I
would look to add this provision to make them available to the extent allowable under the law.

Prior to investing in Attorney Flanary's time to create the wrap plan document as a preliminary step to
adding the additional investmentproviders, I am seeking the Committee's concurrence that the effort
and cost does not amount toadministrative requirements substantially more burdensome."? This
is the standard used in the Memorandum ofUnderstanding. Attorney Flanary has provided an estimate
of $1,500-$2,500 to prepare the wrap plan document, to review and coordinate the terms of that wrap
plan document with the various current investment providers, and to provide guidance regarding
possible changes that would need to be made to accommodate the current investment providers. The
Administration Department has available and budgeted appropriations sufficient to address this cost.
Attorney Flanary would likely be able to provide us with a draft wrap plan document such that it could
be reconsidered at your next meeting. At that time we can address any additional details such as
modifying the attached resolution, evaluating vendor volume levels and the 10% standard, and
addressing any special requirements that the Wisconsin Retirement System might have for participation.
We do not anticipate any significant opposition from the current investment providers, but would need
to deal with any such opposition individually as we proceed with this process.

I recommend approval of a motion from the Committee as follows: "Move that the Personnel
Committee supports the clarification of the 457(b) plans by the creation of a single 'umbrella' or
'wrap' plan document with the intent that the process provide for the additional providers as per
the Memorandum of Understanding and the inclusion of access to Roth IRAs, subject to further
review of steps- and requirements as to be provided at a future meeting."



.1 Resolution for Inclusion
Under the State of Wisconsin

Deferred Compensation Program

Wisconsin Department
of Employee Trust Funds
PO Box 7931
Madison W1 53707-7931
1-877-533-5020 (toll free)
Fax 608-267-4549
etf wi gov

Be it resolved by the_ofthe_(hat
(Governing body) (Employer)

pursuant to the provisions of Section 40.81(1), Subchapter VII of Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes which
provides in part as follows·

An employer other than the State may provide for its employees the Deferred
Compensation Plan established by the Board under Section 40.80. Any employer, including this
state, who makes the Plan under Section 40.80 available to any of its employees, shall make it
available to all its employees under procedures established by the department under this
subchapter.

Such hereby determines to be included under the State of Wisconsin Deferred
(Governing body)

Compensation Program ("the Plan") provided by Subchapter VII of Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes and
regulated by Chapter ETF 70 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code for its eligible personnel, and

Be it further resolved, the proper officers are herewith authorized and directed to take all actions and make
such reductions and submit such deferrals as are required by the Department of Employee Trust Funds of
the State of Wisconsin pursuant to Subchapter VII of Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes, and

Be it further resolved, that agrees to be bound by the Terms and
(Employer)

Conditions of the contracts between the State, its investment providers, and its Plan Administrator, and the
"Plan and Trust Document'' and the "Employer Guide" as amended from time to time. The employer certifies
it has received a copy of the Plan and Trust document.

Be it further resolved, that the representative submits a certified copy of
(Employer)

this Resolution and "Designation of Agent" to the State of Wisconsin, Department of Employee Trust Funds
and the Plan Administrator.

Be it further resolved, that the recognizing the Deferred Compensation
(Governing body)

Board's responsibility for maintaining the integrity of the Plan, the hereby resolved
(Governing body)

that the proper officers of are hereby authonzed and directed to cooperate fully with
(Employer)

the Plan Administrator in accordance with procedures established by the Department of Employee Trust
Funds.

Be it further resolved, that theofthe acknowledges
(Governing body) (Employer)

and submits that the Plan offered under Section 40.80 et seq., SubchapterVII of Chapter 40 of the
Wisconsin Statutes is not and cannot be used as an alternative or replacement plan for purposes of FICA
taxes. The Plan Is meant to act as a supplemental retirement benefit m addition to social security (FICA)
benefits.

Dated this day of, Z)

Employer._Governing body.

Authorized signature

Print name

ET-1329 (REV 5/28/2021)

Authorized signature

Prtname

ET-1329 Page 1 of 2



Designation of Agent

The person mn the following position is hereby designated as the agent mn matter pertaining to the State of
Wisconsin Deferred Compensation Program.

Note: Employer email addresses will be automatically subscribed to ETF E-mail Updates, an ETF email
service providing employers with important ETF benefits administration information. It is your responsibility to
read, forward to others in your agency as necessary, and take the necessary action related to information 1n
each ETF E-mail Update. Add etfwi@public.govdelivery.com to your email address book to prevent news
from ETF from ending up m a SPAM folder. If you have questions, please call the Employer Communication
Center at 1-877-533-5020.

Agent. _

Title of position of designated agent: _

Alternate agent: _

Address: _

Telephone, including area code: _

Email: _

Office hours: _

Federal employer ID number: _

WRS ID number (if applicable).

Certification

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true, correct, and complete copy of the

Resolution duly and regularly passed by the of
(Governmng body)

_____________of onthe dayof
(Employer name) (City )

ZU,and that this Resolution has not been repealed or amended, and is now in full

force and effect.

Dated this dayof, U

Employer representative title

Employer representative signature

Number of eligible employees

ET-1329 (REV 5/28/2021) ET-1329 Page 2 of 2



IA.dopting the Wisconsin
Deferred CoIDpensation
Program (WDC)

Helping You Turn
Over a New
Retirement Leaf



Helping You Turn
Over a New
Retirement Leaf

About theWisconsin Deferred
Compensation Program (WDC)

r;'he ifi/DC Program is a supplemental retirement savings plan available to
public employees in Wisconsin. It is authorized under Section 457 (S457) of the
Internal Revenue Code and is designed to help your employees reach their
retirement goals by providing before-tax and after-tax (Roth) savings
opportunities, similar to other employer-sponsored retirement savings plans.

Offering this valuable benefit to your employees
gives them a wide variety of investment options.
A governing board and the State of Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF) are
responsible for WDC administration and selecting
and monitoring the investments offered in the plan.
Many improvements to WDC part1C1pant services
and enhanced features have been implemented
over the past several years.

No cost to employers
There are currently no costs to employers
interested in Joining theWDC, and no minimum
number of employees Is needed. Employees can
participate mn the WDC as soon as you hire them.
They can contribute on a before-tax basis or on an
after-tax basis through a Roth option. Employees
may also be eligible to roll over savings from other
qualified retirement plans mto the WDC.

Easy to set up
Processing employees' contributions to the WDC
is easy. TheWDC's recordkeeper, Empower,
works with your payroll staffto establish payroll
procedures with you. The entire mnrt1al setup
process takes approximately 60 days fro m the
date the WDC's signed resolution Is received until
the first contribution can be processed. Oncthe
process 1s established, ongoing maintenance 1s
minimal (15-30 minute s per pay period). You will be
able to view important participant information and
manage your data whenever you choose through
the Plan Service Center (PSC). The PSC also provides
access to a library of WDC reports, forms, and other
features, including daily fund value graphs and
email notifications.



Help is available
Thewoe has a fully staffed office in Madison, open
weekdays from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.

Seven local, salariedwoe representatives are available
to meet with employers and participants throughout the
state. One-on-one orgroup meetings are available at no
cost to employers or employees to helpwith topics,
including budgeting, enrolling in thewoe and
investment basics.

As the employer, you also have access to a
comprehensive lineup of educational materials designed
to help employees easily understand the benefits of
investing m thewoe and planning for retirement.
Participants may access their WDC account 1nformat1on
and make changes 24/7 on the website or through the
interactive voice response system.

1 West Region

2 North Central Region

3 Northeast Region

£, Southeast/Central Region

5 State Agencies in Dane County
%is? state genres mn Dane County

6 Southwest/Central Region
Kt Local Employers mn Dane County,

Dane County, UW, U'WHC,
Madison College

!l!J Grant, Green, Lafayette, and Iowa

7 Southeast Region

Please note Regions are subject
to change Visit the website for the
most up-to-date information

Board responsibilities
The Deferred Compensation Board consists offive members, appointed by the governor, and confirmed by
the state Senate. They serve four-year overlapping terms. Board members serve as trustees for theWDC
and select and approve investment options for the plan, as well as maintain quality services and features.
The board contracts with a third-party recordkeeper for day-to-day adm1mstrat1on of the WDC through a
competitive bd process. Additional board responsibilities mclude:

• Establishing investment policies and objectives for
theWDC as a whole and for each investment

Selecting investment options that are consistent
with the prudent investor rule

Overseemng, monitoring, and evaluating the
performance of investment options

• Adding or replacing investment options as
circumstances change

• Montorng the reasonableness and
compet1t1veness of the fees that investment
options charge

• Appomnting, monitoring, and replacmng, 1f
necessary, persons whose expertise the
board deems appropriate and necessary for
1t to properly discharge its obligations and
responsibilrtres, including auditors, consultants,
and other professionals



Fiduciary oversight
The WDC is administered by ETF. The Deferred Compensation Board has fiduciary oversight, taking the
burden offyour personnel. For add1t1onal details about theWDC's fiduciary responsibilities, please refer to
the Employerfiduciary responsibilities overview page.'

Competitive fees
Ongoingwoe expenses are paid by participants via
a monthly asset-based fee to participant accounts.
State funds are not used for adm1mstrat1on of the
WDC. It 1s a self-supporting program. Because the
WDC is a large, well-established 457 plan, it is able
to successfully negotiate competitive program
administrative fees. The current fees (as of 1/1/2023)
are noted in the table to the right.

Empower Advisory Services2
The WDC offers add1t1onal investment servtees
called Empower Advisory Services. These optional
services, provided by Empower Advisory Group,
LLC, a registered investment adviser, can provide
participants with investment help and professional
account management for an additional fee. Please
note: There Is no guarantee provided by any party
that participation in any of the advisory services will
result in a profit.

Participant Account
Balance

Monthly Fee/
Annual Fee

$0-$5,000 $0/$0

$5,001 -$25,000 $125/$1500

$25,001 - $50,000 $3 00/$36 00

$50,001 -$100,000 $6 50/$78 00

$100,001 -$150,000 $8 25/$99 00

$150,001 -$250,000 $11 75/$141 00

Over $250,000 $17 25/$207 00

About Empower
Headquartered in Colorado, with a dedteated
local woe office in Wisconsin, Empower is a
business unit of Empower Annuity Insurance
Company of Amerca focused on providing high
quality retirement plan services to employers
and their employees. Empower 1s one of the
leading service providers of employer-sponsored
deferred compensation retirement programs for
government, healthcare, and nonprofit entities.

r:earn more today!
For more information about the
WDC, visit the WDCwebsite at
wdc57.org or call the Madison
office at (608) 241-6604. _J

1 For add1t1onal copies of this overview, please contact the WDC at wdcquest1ons@empower com or (608) 241 6604
2 Online Advce and My Total Retirement" are part of the Empower Advsory Serces suite of seraces offered by Empower Advisory Group, LLC,

a registered investment advisor
Securities, when presented, are offered and/or distributed by Empower Financial Services, Inc., Member FINRA/SIPC. E FSls
an affi liate of Empower Retirement, LLC, Empower Funds, Inc. and registered investment adviser Empower Advisory Group LLC This material 1s for
informational purposes only and rs not intended to provde investment, legal or tax recommendations or advice
"EMPOWER" and all associated logos and product names are trademarks of EmpowerAnnuity Insurance Company of America
98971-01 FBK WF-220902-0922(1903455) RO2811906-0323



Helping You Turn
Over a New
Retirement Leaf

The benefits of offering

Partnership with the WDC
Education and communication
Local woe representatives are available to provide
education and investment services at no cost to
employers or part1c1pants. Representatives are
salaried, and they do not sell other products.
Participants can schedule meetings with retirement
plan advisors by phone or onhne using the Online
Meeting Scheduler tool.

What's in it for public employers?
Lower costs
As a state-sponsored benefit, thewoe is non-profit
and is usually a lower cost provider when compared
to other plans, while offering the same services and
features. There are no separate employer fees for
the WDC; all administrative costs are paid by
participants.1

Relief from fiduciary responsibilities
By Joining theWDC, public employers are relieved of
many of the fiduciary responsibilities associatedwth
funding and managing a deferred compensation
plan. For additional details about theWDC's fiduciary
responsibilities, please refer to the Employerfiduoary
responsibilities overview page.'

More options for employees
When participating in theWDC, employees have the
opportunity to access expanded in-person and online
resources, advisory services, and plan features.

There Is no guarantee provided by any party that
part1cipat1on in any of the advisory services will result
in a profit.2

Onboarding made simple

TheWDC's onboardmg checklist makes
It easy for a public employer to take the
next step:

I Governing board or committee
adopts Resolution for Inclusion Under
theWDC

D Receive access to the online account
service portal

□ Submit banking forms for
online debits

□ Schedule kickoff meetings
with employees

DI Payroll center recerves notification to
begin deferral process

1 For additional copies of this overview, please contact the WDC at wdcquest1ons@empower com or (608) 241-6604
2 Online Advce and the managed account serce are part of the EmpowerAdvisory Serves suite of serces offered by Empower Advisory Group LLC
a registered Investment advser
Securities, when presented, are offered and/or distributed by Empower Financial Services, Inc., Member FINRAISIPC. EFSI IS
an affi liate of Empower Retirement. LLC, Empower Funds, Inc., and registered investment adviser Empower Advisory Group LLC This material is for
1nformat1onal purposes only and 1s not intended to provdevestment, legal or tax recommendations or advice
"EMPOWER' and all assocaated logos and product names are trademarks of Empower Annuity Insurance Company of America
98971-01 FBK WF-220902-0922(1903455) RO2811906-0323



Helping You Turn
Over a New
Retirement Leaf

Participant administrative cost comparisons
Wisconsin Deferred Compensatton Program (WDC) administrative expenses for participants are low
compared to what you could be charged in another plan or an outside account. This is important because
all fees diminish potential returns. The higher the fee, the larger the impact. The illustration below shows
how fees can affect how much you have saved for your retirement.

■ WDC (vaned on accountvalue)

■ 0 50% ofaccount value

1 % of account value

FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY This
hypothetical 1llustrat1on doesn't represent
specific adm1rnstrat1ve fees Other fees may
apply It shows the woe Program administrative
costs versus higher program administrative
costs at 0 5% and 1%, respectively

$800

$700
E-n
0 $600ue- $5005
E-

$400n-z-~ $300a
3 $200zz i<4¢

$100 i
!

$0 '
$5,000 $25,000 $75,000

PARTICIPANT ADMINISTRATIVE FEES

SAMPLE ACCOUNT BALANCE

rcompare the costs ofsimilar plans with the WDC.As a large
state plan, we are able to use our scale to negotiate highly
competitive costsforyour employees. Use the chart on the next
page to determine if the costs are lower with the WDC. _J



Compare theWDC's feeswith another plan or IRA
Description of Fees/Expenses WDC Other Plan

orIRA

Annual Fee
Also known as a recordkeepng fee

Mortality and Expense Fee (M&E)
Fee charged by insurance companies to cover the cost of
death benefits and other expenses for variable annwties

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge (CDSC)
Back-end load sales charge that Is incurred 1ffunds are
withdrawn or transferred before the end ofthe holding
perod Also called a redemption fee

None

None

None

Investment Management Fee
A mutual fund or variable annuity fee, also known as
an expense ratio, that pays the fund company for its
services Thus Is deducted from investment returns, so
you will not see It on your account statement.

Administrative Fee-
Annual fee, assessed to part1opants monthly These fees
pay for adm1rnstrat1on ofthe program No state funds
are used to pay for thrs self-sufficient program

Account Balance
$0-$5,000
$5,001 -$25,000
$25,001 -$50,000
$50,001 -$100,000
$100,001 -$150,000
$150,001 -$250,000
Over $250,000

Monthly Fee
$0

$1.25
$300
$6 50
$8 25
$1175
$1725

The fee, charged monthly, vanes based
on account balance

Vary by investment option, WDC's
average expense rato Is 0 20%

Empower Advisory Services2

There is no guarantee provided by any party that participation
mn any of the advisory services will result mn a profit.

Online Adce Available at no additional
costto partucapants
MyTotal Retirement™ annual fee
(assessed quarterly) based on a
percentage ofassets
under management.
Up to $100,000
Next $150,000
Next $150,000
Greater than $400,000 015%

025%

045%
035%

Not intended to show all fees. Other fees may apply
1 Average gross expense ratio for mutual funds and collectwe investment trust options available In the WDC as ofJune 30, 2022
2 Online Advce and My Total Retirement are part of the Empower Advisory Serces surte of serces offered by Empower Advisory Group, LLC, a registered
Investment adviser
Securities, when presented, are offered and/or distributed by Empower Financial Services, Inc., Member FINRA/SIPC. EFSI IS

an affiliate of Empower Retirement, LLC, Empower Funds, Inc., and registered investment adviser Empower Adv sory Group LLC Thus materal Is for
Informational purposes only and us not intended to provde investment, legal or tax recommendations or advice
'EMPOWER' and all associated logos and product names are trademarks of Empower Annuity Insurance Company of America
98971-01 FBK WF-220902-0922(1 903455) RO281 1906-0323



Helping You Turn
Over a New
Retirement Leaf

Employer fiduciary responsibilities
Wisconsin Deferred Compensation Program (WDC)

tit wdc457.org • (877) 457-9327

Maintainingyour own supplemental retirement
savings planversus participating in theWDC

r:;he Wisconsin Deferred Compensation Program(WDC) is a public employee
deferred compensation plan authorized under Section 57 (S457) 0f the
Internal Revenue Code. The WDC helps public employees in Wisconsin
complement their Wisconsin Retirement System pensionfor a more sound
retirement income.

Employer versus fiduciary functions
Employers sponsoring a deferred compensation plan act ma dual capacity-both as the employer and as
a fiduciary to the plan. Acting as a fiduciary means you are legally and ethically obligated to act 1n the best
interest of plan participants.

Employer functions
Employers determine the benefits to offer to their
employees. Certain functions are the employer's
responsibility and do not rise to the level of
fiduciary duties. For example, each employer
decides whether to offer health insurance, a
defined benefit plan, hfe insurance, a defined
contribution plan, or other benefits.

You are acting with your "employer hat" on with
respect to a deferred compensation plan when you:

• Design the plan's benefits and features

• Determine who is eligible to participate

• Amend the plan to add or remove optional
provisions, such as loans or Roth accounts

• Terminate the plan

If you decide to establish and mamntamn your own
separate plan, you will be charged with all of
the plan fiduciary functions in addition to these
employer functions.



Fiduciary functions
You are a plan fiduciary actingwith your "plan
sponsor hat" when you implement and administer
plan decisions made by an employer. Prudently
performing each of the many duties required
offiduc1aries requires a significant amount of
time and effort, but it can also result in a well
maintained plan that benefits your employees.

F1duc1ary duties that you must perform on an
ongoing basis include, but are not limited to:

• Establishing pol1c1es and procedures for
your plan

• Administering and operatingyour plan in
compliance with the plan document by ensuring
plan policies, procedures, and forms match
plan provisions

• Keeping your plan document compliant and
updated for all required changes in law

• Developing a formal written Investment Policy
Statement to detail the cntena you will follow in
selecting, monitoring, and replacing your plan's
investment options

• Monitoring the fees being charged by each
investment option to ensure they are reasonable

• Selecting and monitoring service providers,
trustees, consultants, and others who assist
with your plan to ensure compliance with their
contracts and ensure they have no conflicts
of interest

• Monitoring each vendor's fees periodically and
benchmarking them to fees paid by plans of
similar sze and complexity

• Creating and distributing participant
communications to educate participants
about the benefits of your plan and
encouraging participation

Educating part1c1pants about your plan's
investment options and providing tools that can
help them save for a secure retirement

• Maintaining all signed documents as well as
minutes of all meetings descrbmng the decision
making process used mn every plan-related
decision in a safe, accessible place - multiplied
by the number of recordkeepers or other service
providers assistingwith your plan

Adopting the WDC57 plan
Fortunately, Wisconsin allows catres, counties, and
other political subdivisions to adopt the state's
457 plan, theWisconsin Deferred Compensation
Program (WDC). You, as the employer, can decide to
adopt the state's plan (theWDC). Nte: The WDC IS

meant to act as a supplemental retirement benefit.
TheWDC is not eligible for and should not be
used as a replacement or alternative plan to Social
Security (FICA) taxes. Contact ETF or your local WDC
representative for more information.

woe fiduciary functions
TheWDC's board serves as the plan fiduciary.
Its members have the duty to amend the plan
to comply with federal or state requirements
and may also make discretionary amendments
when deemed to be in the best interest of plan
participants. The fiduciary duties the WDC's board Is
responsible for include, but are not limited to:

• Implementing the plan

• Administering and operating the plan

• Establishing policies and procedures for the plan

• Selecting and momtonng plan investments

• Selecting and momtonng the plan trustee

• Selecting and monitoring plan service providers
and ensunng such providers are free from
conflicts of interest

• Ensuring all fees paid by the plan for investments
and services are reasonable

i .a



Employer responsibilities under the WDC
When you adopt thewoe, you agree to be subJect
to all the terms, provisions, and conditions of the
WDC's Resolution for Inclusion Under thewoe. You
also agree to comply with the important adopting
employer functions in that agreement, which
typically includes following the WDC's plan and trust
document and the Internal Revenue Code S457.
For example, with respect to your employees in the
woe, you must ensure compliance with, among
other provisions, the:

• FIrst-day-of-the-month rule for participant
deferral agreements

• Maximum contribution/deferral level limits

• Spec1al catch-up eligibility, timing, and limits

• Requirement to transmit participant deferrals
into the plan as soon as practicable

lt rs your responsibility as an employer to provide
all 1nformat1on about your employees that thewoe
needs to administer the plan, such as birth dates and
employment status. It will also be your responsibility
as the adopting employer to correct any mistakes
you make that violate any provisions of the Internal
Revenue Codewith respect to your employees
Employers should also review thewoe from time
to time (Just as you dowith your other employee
benefits) to determine that the WDC continues to be
a valuable benefit to your employees.

r;dditional information, including the WDC's Plan and Trust Document
and Resolutionfor Inclusion, can befound atwdc457.org under the
Employer tab. For more information, emailwdcquestions@empower.com
or contactyour localWDCRetirementPlanAdvisor at (877) 457-9327. _J

Securities, when presented, are offered and/or distributed by Empower Financial Services, Inc., Member FINRA/SIPC. EFSI 1s an affiliate of Empower
Returement, LLC, Empower Funds, Inc., and registered investment adviser Empower Advisory Group LLC. Thus materal is for informatuonal purposes only and
rs not intended to provde investment, legal or tax recommendations or advice
EMPOWER' and all associated logos and product names are trademarks of Empower Annuity Insurance Company of America

98971-01-FKWF 220902-0922(1903455) RO2811906-0323



Steps to adopting theWDC
Ifyou are ready to adopt the WDCfor your employees)
simplyfollow the steps outlined in the flowchart below,

Review woe 457 plan materials.

WDC representative presents
to the board or committee. '

Request a vsrt from
a WDC representative

Goverrmg board or
comm'tee adopts resolution

Sead resoluuon to
WDC_Office@empower.com

or
wDC Program, 5325 Wall St.,

Suite 2900 Madison, WI 53718

State ofWisconsmn Departmert of
Employee Trust FLnds reviews
and Boat d accepts resok1t1on

WDC contacts local payroll
adrr-1n1strato• to d scuss deferral

submission options

WDC representative schedules
group enrollment meet ngs at

your locat1on(s)

Payroll center receives payroll file,
and the woe deferral

process begins.

,,,,,,,

No visit required; we'll review
the materials on our own.

*WDC must receive and process enrollments pnor to payroll submitting first deferrals.
Securities, when presented, are offered and/or distributed by Empower Financial Services, Inc., Member FINRNSIPC. EFSI Is an affiliate of Empower
Retirement, LLC, Empower Funds, Inc., and registered investment adviser Empower Advisory Group, LLC. This material Is for 1nformat1onal purposes only and 1s
not intended to provide 1rvestment, legal or tax recommendations or adv1Ce
"EMPOWER" and all associated logos and product names are trademarks of Empower Annuity Insurance Companyof Amenca
98971-01-FBK-WF-220902-0922(1903455) RO2811906-0323



~sconsin Deferred Compensation Program

5325Wall St, Suite 2900 I Madison,WI 53718

Phone: (608) 241-66o \ Tollfree: (877) 457-9327 \ Fax: (608) 241-6045
Email: wdcquestions@empower.com I Website: wdc,57.0rg _J

EMPOWER"



APPROVAL REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE COUNCIL ACTION December 19, 2023

Reports & An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, ITEM NUMBER
Recommendations An Ordinance Adopting the 2023 Annual

Budgets for the General Fund and Capital
Outlay Fund to Carry Forward Appropriations G 2from 2022 for Specifically Identified Projects in

the Amount of $323,187

Background
On January 17, 2023, Common Council authorized the carry forward of unused 2022 appropriations,
for use in 2023, in the amount of $2,917,899 and directed staff to prepare a 2023 Budget modification
(item G.21). Within that carry forward request, the following specifically identified projects were
included and continue to be outstanding:

Website Development $18,600 41-0144-5843 Capital Outlay Fund -
Information Services -Software

Inspections Limited- $66,000 01-0231-XXXX General Fund - Inspection
Term Temporary Help (Various Payroll Services - Personnel

Accounts)
Merit Pay Pool $36,600 01-0199-5111 General Fund - Various

Functions - Salaries FT
Senior Travel Program $6,611 01-0521-5721 General Fund - Recreation -

Senior Citizen Travel
Franklin Senior $5,466 01-0521-5723 General Fund - Recreation -
Citizens, Inc. Senior Citizen Activities
City Phone System $185,000 41-0181-5812 Capital Outlay Fund - Municipal
Replacement Buildings - Furniture/Fixtures
Furniture/Fixtures - $4,910 41-0181-5812 Capital Outlay Fund - Municipal
City Hall Buildings - Furniture/Fixtures
Lobbies/Council
Chambers
TOTAL Carrv Forward $323,187

Analysis
This budget amendment is needed to appropriate the funds to support the purchases already made in
2023.

• Merit Pay Pool - On 1/17/23, $73,200 was requested to be carried forward into 2023. Staff
was requesting that $36,600 that was budgeted for 2021 and $36,600 that was budgeted in
2022, to be used for merit increases, be carried forward. After further investigation, there was
a previous budget amendment prepared for the Common Council Meeting on 4/4/22 where
council approved the $36,600 that was budgeted for 2021 be carried forward into 2022. The
request on 1/17/23 was duplicating the 2021 budgeted amount. Therefore, the Director of
Finance & Treasurer is only requesting a budget amendment for the $36,600 that was
budgeted in 2022 and was unused.



• Senior Travel Program - On 1/17/23, $17,811 was requested to be carried forward into 2023.
Staffwas requesting that $5,711 of unspent 2021 funds and all $12,000 of the budgeted 2022
funds be carried forward. After further investigation, there was a previous budget amendment
prepared for the Common Council Meeting on 4/4/22 where council approved the total unspent
2021 funds in the amount of $6,815 be carried forward to 2022. There were multiple charges
throughout 2022 that caused the total budgeted amount of $12,000 to be depleted down to
$6,611. The Director of Finance & Treasurer is requesting the unspent funds in 2022 to be
carried forward to 2023 totaling $6,611.

Fiscal Note
The fiscal impact of the carry forwards is that unused 2022 funds, as specifically identified by account
number in the carry forward request, will be used to fund these items which were all authorized in the
2022 Adopted Budget.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt Ordinance 2023-__, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an
Ordinance adopting the 2023 Annual Budgets for the General Fund and Capital Outlay Fund to
provide carry forward appropriations from 2022 for specifically identified projects in the amount
of $323,187.

Roll Call Vote Required

Finance Dept - DB



APPROVAL

REPORTS &

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Request to Authorize Carry Forward of Unused 2022
Appropriations, for Use in 2023, in the Amount of

$2,917,899

The following items, currently included in the 2022 Budget, arebeing requested for carryover into 2023, so
that the initiatives may be completed in 2023 with the authorized 2023 budgeted funds:

1) Initiative: Website Redevelopment
Amount: $18,600
Account: 41-0144-5843, Capital Outlay Fund-Information Services, Software
Reason: Staff is requesting carryover of these funds to make improvements to the website including:
the addition of an urgent alert message panel, the addition of abanner allowing for rotating images,
the expansion of authors and editors for the site to be able to improvemanaging content and keeping
data fresh, addition of subscription management to allow interested parties to sign up for notifications
of website information, training on the Google Analytics functionality, some auditing for content and
accessibility, reorganization of pages, and other improvements as needed. It was expected that this
would be a 2022 project, however other projects/initiatives took more precedence and this project will
be re-initiated whenpossible in 2023.

Initiative: Ken WindlPavilion Repairs
Amount: $65,000
Account: 41-0551-5822, Capital Outlay Fund-Parks, Building Improvements
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover $65,000 for this initiative that has been needed for some time,
and was approved and budgeted in 2021, and carried over to 2022. With the Buildings and Facilities
Survey that was completed in 2020, staff re-evaluated citywide facility needs in 2021, and engaged
with abusiness partner, Industrial Roofing Services, Inc. (IRS), to move this, and other facility related
projects, forward. This project will be included in thenext round of IRS projects, with the work being
completed as soon as possible in 2023.

3) Initiative: Inspections Limited-Term Temporary Help
Amount: $66,000
Account: 01-0231-XXXX, General Fund -Inspection Services, Various Payroll Accounts
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the remaining $66,000 to preserve the option of hiring limited
term temporary help for the Inspection ServicesDepartment to use and assign as needed. This includes
various, appropriately-licensed, commonly-retired individuals to supplement our response in the
Department. These funds have been carried over in previous years, used sparingly, and will not be
replaced when spent.

4) Initiative: Merit Pay Pool
Amount: $8,20,uCo
Account: 01-XXXX-XXXX, General Fund-Various Functions, Appropriate Payroll Accounts
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the $36,600 that was budgeted for 2021 and $36,600 that
was budgeted in 2022, to be used for merit increases, and was not spent due to not having
developed the merit plan in 2021/2022. As discussed at budget time, the classification and
compensation plan that was approved and implemented approximately six years ago, includes a
merit element that allows employees to achieve placement over the 65% level in their pay grade;
however, no merit Ian has been develo ed to date, which is creatin an issue with retention as



employees progress in their positions. This carry over will allow the implementation of the
merit portion of the pay plan only after such plan is approved by the Council. Staff will be
working on this project as staffing andpriorities allow in 2023.

5) Initative. Security Improvements
Amount: $350,000 (City Hall) and $247,000 (Police Department)
Account: 46-XXXX-XXXX, Capital Improvement Fund-VariousFunctions, Various Accounts

Q'S~ Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover $350,000 that was budgeted for security improvements at City
Hall, as well as $247,000 that was budgeted for the replacement of the video surveillance system at the
Police Department. This initiative is just gettingback on track after having other projects supersede it
priority wise in 2021/22; the actual improvements willbe completed in 2023. There are a number of
needed improvements, including: cameras, interior and exterior; door access control; alarm
availability, access, and management; electronic timekeeping; hallway safety; security glass; an
emergency plan; training; and other related improvements as needed. Since the $350,000 may not
suffice for all needed improvements at City Hall, staff will monitor the year end numbers and
consider an additional request depending on the project needs, available funding, and other City

priorities. sg15 unspent m 2021carried Forward
Initiative: Senior Travel Program • n2oz
Amount. $17,811 u,ell IF Ou 1n2022 unuscd Funds
Account: 01-0521-5721, General Fund-Recreation, Senior Citizen Travel
Reason: Basil Ryan is requesting to carryover $571¥ ofunspent 202¥ funds and all $12,00of he
budgeted 3022 funds for this purpose, tobe used in 2023. The request is due to not having the ability
to use all the funds in 2022 becausemany venues continue to operate with limited hours and limited
attendance capacity, and some not at all. Sincehe is unable to predict when venues will return to full
operating hours and full attendance capacity, he asks that all previously allocated funds continue to be
carried over. Because of the success of the program, the majority of the trips in 2023 required three
buses. At this successful pace, when more venues openup, the carry over funds along with the current
allocation, a total of $29,811, will be exhausted.

Imatiative: FranklinSenior Citizens, Inc.
aunt: $5,466

Account: 01-0521-5723, General Fund-Recreation, Senior Citizen Activities
Reason: The FranklinSenior Citizens, Inc. Board is requesting to carryover$5,466 of unspent 2022
funds for thispurpose, tobe used in2023, i addition to the $10,000 budgeted in 2023. The request is
due to the group reorganizingmidway through 2022 andnot utilizing any funds in the beginning of
the year. The renewed initiative for FranklinSeniors, currently 125plusmembers strong, will utilize
the funds to function financially without raising the cost of annual dues andmonthly meal costs in
2023.

8) Initiative. IT Security
Amount. $54,287
Account. 01-0144-XX0X, General Fund-InformationServices, Data-Processing/Telephone and 41-0144
XXXX, Capital Outlay Fund, IT Replacement Servers
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover $54,287 of unspent 2022 funds for needed IT security initiatives
that were identified as high priority in 2022, tobeused in2023. This includes the continuation of the
Security Information and EventManagement System approved in September of 2022.

9) Initiative: City Facilities - Improvements
-rod 4mount: $350,000

Account 4X-XX0X-XXXX, Capital Funds, VariousDepartments
Reason: Staff is re uestin to c over the $350,000 of 2022 funds for this ur ose. With the Buildin s



and Facilities Survey that was completed in 2020, staff re-evaluated citywide facility needs in 2021,
and engaged with a business partner, Industrial Roofing Services, Inc., in September of 2021, to move
forward this and other facility related projects. The 2021 carried over funds were used in 2022 for the
first round of projects. Note that the City infrastructure needs far exceed this amount, however, with
the funds approved through the budget, the highest priority projects will be completed.

10) Intiatrve: Build City Fiber Infrastructure Network
Amount: $1,190,630
Account: 46-0181-5846 .9650, Capital Improvement Fund-Buildings
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover these budgeted and approved funds to complete the design
and bidding, and construct theCity's fiber optic network to be used for City business purposes. The
funding source for this project is the Federal ARPA Funding. Specifications are currently being
finalized so that bids may be obtained on the same in the near future; thiswork will be completed as
soon as possible in 2023.

cd
l2

11) Initiative: City Phone SystemReplacement
Amount: $185,000
Account: 41-0181-5812, Capital Outlay Fund-Municipal Buildings, Furniture/Fixtures
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover these budgeted funds to move forward with the much-needed
replacement of the City Phone System. The replacementwill provide current technology, lower
annual maintenance costs bymore than $20,000, incorporate all City facilities, and be able to be
administered by City staff. Research on the project commenced in 2022, with the project ready to go to
RFP in early 2023.

12) Initiative: Furniture/Fixtures -CityHall Lobbies/Council Chambers
mount: 4 910

Account: 41-0181-5812, Capital Outlay Fund-Municipal Buildings, Furniture & Fixtures
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the unspent 2022 funds thathave been earmarked to freshen up
the lobbies/Council Chambers at City Hall.

13) Initiate: Health DepartmentVehicle
Amount: $30,000
Account: 41-0411-5811, Capital Outlay Fund-Health Department, Auto Equipment
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover these funds due to vehicle ordering parameters. When
communicating with the automotive company to prepare quotes prior to purchase in early fall of 2022,
it was indicated that the vehicle ordering window for 2023 model years was dosed and quotes and
purchases would need to occur for 2024 vehiclemodels in late spring of 2023. Based on this provided
timeline, the Health Departmentwill begin the purchasing process in the near future.

14) Initiative: DPW -Curb & GutterReplacements
Amount: $35,000
Account. 47-0331-5823, Street Improvement Fund-Highway, Street
Extension/Improvement/Construction
Reason· Staff is requesting to carryover theunspent 2022 funds due to a combination of supply chain
issues, along with labor shortage at ourknown vendors.

15) Initiative: DPW -Street Lighting
red Amount $91,690

Account: 46-0331-5834.9693, Street Improvement Fund-Highway, Lighting
3 Reason. Staff is requesting to carryover the unspent 2022 funds due to a combination of supply chain

issues, alon with labor shorta e at our known vendors.



16) Initiative. DPW -Guardrail Replacements
Amount. $60,000
Account: 41-0331-5823, Capital Outlay Fund-Highway, Street Extension/Improvement/Construction
Reason. Staff is requesting to carryover the unspent 2022 funds due to a combination of supply chain
issues, along with labor shortage at our known vendors.

17) Initatrve: DPW -2 6,000 De-Icer Tanks
cJ Amount. $19,980

0pp1D Account. 01-0331-5364, General Fund-Highway, Salt/ De-leer
«;?, \\\ "\2-~ Reason. Staff is requesting to carryover the unspent 2022 funds due to the timeframe reqmred to

custom make these tanks.

18) Initiative. DPW - Blower Units/Chainsaws/High-Speed Chargers
pprcl Amount: $3,325
]le 2 Account: 01-0551-5247, General Fund-Parks, Parks Maintenance

Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover the unspent 2022 funds due to supply chain issues.

19) Initiative: Vehicle- Water/Sewer
Amount: $50,000
Account: Fund 61/65, $25,000 each, Asset Purchase, Vehicle
Reason: Staff is requesting to carryover these funds to add to the 2023budgeted funds to purchase this
F-350 Pick-Up Truck.

As noted above, each of the detailed initiatives was part of the authorized 2022 budget that was not able to be
completed during the year, so the request is being made to carry the initiatives forward into 2023 so that the
funds can be used during 2023 for the identified purpose, in the same manner as previously authorized.

In addition, staff will be analyzing 2022 budgeted capital projects in the near future and submit carryover
requests as needed, prior to the 2022 fiscal year being closed, for those items that are not yet complete, or
perhaps temporarily delayed, yet still need to be completed.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Mahon to authorize the carry forward of unused 2022 approprations, for use mn 2023, mn the amount of
$2,917,899, and direct staff to prepare a 2023 Budget modification for the same, for Council consideration.

DOA-PS

ycla
al/



STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND AND CAPITAL OUTLAY

FUND TO PROVIDE CARRY FORWARD APPROPRIATIONS FROM 2022 FOR
SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED PROJECTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $323,187

WHEREAS, the Common Council of the City of Franklin adopted Ordinance No. 2022
2521, the 2023 Annual Budgets for the City of Franklin on November 15, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has carried forward, into 2023, $323,187 from the
General Fund and Capital Outlay Fund for specifically identified projects and expenditures which
were not completed in 2022; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council directed on January 17, 2023 that staff prepare a
carry forward 2023 budget amendment to bring these projects and expenditures forward to 2023
appropriations in the General Fund and Capital Outlay Fund.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Common Council of the City of Franklin does hereby ordain
as follows:

Section 1 That the 2023 Budget for the General Fund be amended as follows:

General Fund
0211 Inspection Services Various Personnel Accounts Increase $66,000
0199 Contingency Salaries FT Increase $36,600
0521 Recreation Senior Citizen Travel Increase $6,611
0521 Recreation Senior Citizen Activities Increase $5,466

Section 2 That the 2023 Budget for the Capital Outlay Fund be amended as follows:

Capital Outlay Fund
0144 Information Services Software
0181 Municipal Buildings Furniture/Fixtures
0181 Municipal Buildings Furniture/Fixtures

Increase
Increase
Increase

$18,600
$185,000
$4,910

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Ordinance on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.



All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of>2023.

APPROVED:

John R Nelson, Mayor

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

Section 5

AYES NOESABSENT



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

2024 Property and Casualty Insurance Coverage

MEETING DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

The City of Franklin currently obtains its liability insurance plans from the League of Wisconsin
Municipalities Mutual Insurance Plan (LWMMI), with R&R Insurance serving as the agent, and its property
insurance plans from Chubb. LWMMI has served the City since 2004. The City's property insurance policies
have been with Chubb since 2016. For 2024, R&R Insurance is recommending the City remain with the
same carriers EXCEPT move the City's property and inland marine to MPIC and switch our Cyber-crime
policy to LWMMI instead ofCowbell. All coverages are summarized below.

Liability
The City carries a $10 Million limit of liability with LWMMI, with a $5,000 deductible. LWMMI began
offering the increased limit of liability option of $10 Million, up from the previous $6 Million limit, in 2019;
this increase in coverage eliminates the City's need to purchase an additional Umbrella policy. LWMMI also
provides Terrorism liability coverage automatically at no additional cost (up to the $10M limit). LWMMI
coverages for the City include General Liability, Police Professional Liability, Public Officials Liability,
Auto Liability, and Auto Physical Damage. With all of these combined, the total proposed liability package
premium for 2024 is $275,433; a $2,829 increase (+1.04%) from 2023.

For the 2024 Workers Compensation, the City's premium will decrease by $57,998 from the 2023 premium,
for a total proposed 2024 premium of $256,671, subject to reconciliation of final salaries and wages.
Workers Compensation is based on the State-calculated experience modification ratio for the last 3 years of
claims history, which for 2024 the City's experience modification ratio decreased from .81 to .68. LWMMI
continues to use United Heartland as its administrator for the Workers Compensation policy. Please note that
LWMMI will not write a policy without Workers Compensation. In addition, the workers compensation rates
are statutorily set and the full amount of LWMMI premiums are subject to potential annual dividends. The
2022 policy dividend, received in 2023, was $22,012 and the 2021 policy dividend, received in 2022, was
$37,425. Worker's Compensation premiums for the past five years were: $314,669 in 2023, $427,936 in
2022, $453,645 in 2021, $397,760 in 2020, and $425,971 in 2019.

The City also carries a Storage Tank liability policy with ACE American Insurance Company, with coverage
of $1,000,000 per incident/ $2,000,000 total policy aggregate limit, at a renewing cost of $4,838, which is
up $151 from the prior year. For Crime coverage, the City contracts with Hanover due to their expanded
coverage that includes Employee Theft, Forgery or Alteration, Inside the Premises Theft of Money &
Securities, Outside the Premises, Computer Fraud, Funds Transfer Fraud, and False Pretense. The proposed
crime renewal policy rate for 2024 with Hanover is $2,801, which is a $4 increase over the 2023 policy rate.

Property
R&R Insurance received two property quotes for the City's property policies; one from MPIC and one from
Chubb, who has been the City's property policy provider since 2016. R&R recommends the City bind its
2024 property policies with MPIC. MPIC provided a 2024 property quote for the City's buildings and
contents, property in the open, and contractor's equipment of $91,439, an increase of $1,303 from 2023.
Chubb's 2024 property quote was $96,161; a $6,025 increase over the 2023 premium. MPIC's property
premium is based on a $10,000 deductible for buildings/contents, a $5,000 deductible for property in the



open, and a $1,000 deductible for contractor's equipment; the same deductibles as the City's expiring policy.
For the Inland Marine policy, MPIC provided a 2024 premium of $9,677, a $3,667 decrease from the 2023
premium, compared to Chubb's 2024 premium quote of$14,508.

Due to the considerable cost savings, the Director of Administration agrees with R&R's recommendation to
move the City's property policies over to MPIC for 2024. Below are some coverage highlights provided by
MPIC:

• Blanket Plus coverage - Coverage up to 125% ofyour Total Insured Value for any loss
• Contactor' s Equipment coverage included for all items up to $25,000 - Additional coverage in excess

of $25,000 is provided if scheduled and endorsed to the policy.
• Valuable Records coverage with full coverage limits, once deductible is met
• $10,000,000 extra expense coverage; Additional coverage available
• $5,000,000 for Asbestos Cleanup, Abatement and Removal from a covered loss
• $5,000,000 Ordinance and Law Coverage
• $1,000,000 Coverage for Unscheduled Buildings and Property in the Open
• Newly Acquired Property - Included at no charge during the current policy period. Property must be

scheduled before the next renewal for continued coverage in future policy periods
• Coverage for Police Dogs and Horses up to $25,000; a $1,000 deductible applies to this coverage
• Automatic Builder's Risk coverage for projects up to $2,500,000 in value
• $2,000,000 coverage for Pollutants from a covered peril
• $5,000,000 Flood Coverage of for property not located in an "A" zoned flood plain per policy period
• $5,000,000 Earthquake Coverage per policy period
• $50,000 coverage per Fine Art item or collection included. Additional coverage available
• $2,500,000 in Builders Risk Coverage; Coverage up to $30,000,000 available by endorsement
• $50,000 coverage for Excavation, Grading and Filling
• $100,000 coverage Building Foundations and Footings
• Coverage for Trees and Shrubs damaged by any covered peril within 100' of a building
• $25,000 coverage for Fire Department Service Charges
• $50,000 coverage for Documentation of Loss Coverage
• $100,000 coverage for Architectural and Engineering Design
• Include $25,000 coverage for Computer Service Interruption
• Direct Damage from Utilities is a covered peril for Buildings, Personal Property and PITO
• $50,000 limited coverage for Fungus related to a covered peril, per policy period
• Emergency support equipment contained in/on emergency response vehicles subject to a $1,000

deductible.
• Coverage available for scheduled Pedestrian Bridges and piers and wharfs
• Terrorism Coverage Included

Cyber Crime Insurance
The City's Cyber-crime policy is currently with Cowbell Cyber Insurance which includes both first-party and
third-party cyber coverage. Cowbell was the only option for the City in 2023. LWMMI has advocated for
taking more ownership of this coverage and advanced their coverage form and pricing. Thus, R&R Insurance
is recommending the City move its Cyber-crime policy to LWMMI at a cost of $22,072, which is $9,704 less
than the 2023 premium. Cowbell's premium proposal for 2024 was $38,091, which is $6,315 more than the
2023 premium and $16,019 more than LWMMI's proposed premium quote. The Director of Administration
recommends binding the 2024 Cyber-crime insurance policy with LWMMI.



Summary
The Director of Administration recommends keeping the City's current liability and auto insurance policies
with LWMMI/R&R Insurance and subsidiary providers, moving the property and inland marine policies over
to MPIC, and moving the City's cyber-crime insurance policy to LWMMI.

The following table shows a summary of the 2023 premium costs and proposed 2024 premiums through
R&R Insurance/LWMMI and MPIC for the City's liability, property, and cyber-crime insurance policies. The
2024 total estimated cost for all liability, property, and cyber-crime coverages is $662,931, a decrease of
$67,082 from 2023.

Coverage 2023 Cost 2024 Cost Carrier
Property Insurance
Buildings/BPP/PITO/Mobile $103,480 $101,116 2024 MPIC
Equipment/ Boiler & w/Terrorism w/Terrorism
Machinery/Inland Marine
Liability Insurance $10MLimit $10MLimit
General Liability 91,350 86,591 R&R Ins.ILWMMI
Police Professional 42,638 43,325 R&R Ins.ILWMMI
Public Officials 52,612 55,447 R&R Ins.ILWMMI
Auto Liability 28,102 29,843 R&R Ins.ILWMMI
Auto Physical Damage 57,902 60,227 R&R Ins.ILWMMI
Crime & Monies/Securities 2,797 2,801 R&R Ins./Hanover
Storage Tank 4,687 4,838 R&R Ins./ACE
Workers Compensation 314,669 256,671 R&R Ins./United Heartland
Cyber Insurance Policy 31,776 22,072 2024LWMMI
Subtotal-Liability Insurance $626,533 $561,815 R&R Ins.ILWMMI
Total - Property & Liability $730,013 $662,931 R&R/LWMMI & MPIC

The 2024 Insurance budget includes a total amount of $778,850 for insurance coverage. Furthermore, note
that the City annually receives a dividend check from the League of Wisconsin Municipalities, which was
$22,012 for the 2022 policy dividend. The 2023 policy year dividend check will be received in July/August
of 2024. As such, it is expected that there are sufficient appropriations to fund the proposed policies as noted
in the above table. Please note that final costs for the year will vary as, for example, new vehicles and
equipment are added or removed from coverage throughout the year.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the Director of Administration to renew and execute the City's casualty insurance plans
with R&R Insurance/League of Wisconsin Municipalities Mutual Insurance (LWMMI), MPIC, Hanover, and
ACE American Insurance Company for 2024, as noted in the table above, for an estimated total annual
premium of $662,931, and to further authorize the payment of premiums in accordance with or as required
by said policy documents.

DOA KH



Insured Name City of Franklin
Scott Huubregtse / Karlie Davis Premium Comparison
Effective 01/01/2024-01/01/2025

Pnor Year Current Year - By Companies Quoting
Company LWMMI LWMMI
Year 2023 2024 Difference
Coverages
General Liability $91,350 00 $86,591 00 -$4,759 00
Police Prof Liability $42,638 00 $43,325 00 $687 00
Public Officials Liability $52,612 00 $55,447 00 $2,835 00
Auto Liability $28,102 00 $29,843 00 $1,741 00
Auto Physical Damage $57,90200 $60,22700 $2 325 00

Package Total $272,604.00 $275,433.00 $2,829.00

Property $90,136 00 Chubb $91,439 00 MP/G $1,303 00
Inland Manne $13,344 00 chubb $9,677 00 MPIC -$3,667 00
Cyber $31 776 00 Cowbell $22,072 00 LWMMI -$9,704 00
Cnme $2,797 00 Hanover $2,801 00 Hanover $4 00
Tank $4,687 00 ACE $4,838 00 AGE $151 00

Other Coverages Subtotal $142,740.00 $130,827.00 -$11,913.00

Workers Compensation $314,669 00 $256,671 00 -$57,998 00

Estimated Premium $730,013.00 $662,931.00 -$67,082.00

Exposure changes
2023 2024 Difference

Package Changes
Total Payroll $19,001,000 $19,658,000 657,000
# of Full Time Police Officers 64 64 -
Number of Vehicle 123 128 5
Total Vehicle Values $9,818,939 $10 278,743 459 804
Population 36646 35,785 -861

Property (See Additional Page)

Chubb
Property Annual premum $96 161
Inland Marine Annual premum $14 508

Work Com (See additional naae)

Cyber
Cowbell Annual premium $38,091

3



APPROVAL

REPORTS &
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

AUTHORIZE STAFF TO SOLICIT
EQUIPMENT CONSIDERED IN THE 2024
HIGHWAY EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT

AND CAPITAL OUTLAY FUNDS

MEETING DATE

12/19/23
ITEM NUMBER

BACKGROUND
Within the approved 2024 Public Works Department budget, in the Capital Outlay and
Equipment Replacement Funds, is the replacement of the following pieces of equipment:

Front End Loader (1)
One-Ton Dump Truck with Plow & Salt Spreader (1)

Pnce quotes will be solicited by Department of Public Works staff and approved by both the
Board of Public Works and Common Council

Due to the anticipated increases in pricing and current delays in manufacturing expected in
2024, we would like to begin the process of securing quotes in early January mn hopes of
receiving the equipment by Summer 2024.

OPTIONS
Authorize Department of Public Works staff to solcrt quotes for the above equipment Quotes
will be sent to the Board of Public Works for review & approval, and the recommendation will
be sent to the Common Council for approval.

FISCAL NOTE
These purchases are included in the 2024 approved budget as indicated above The total
amount budgeted for these items rs approximately $600,000 00.

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize Department of Public Works staff to solicit quotes for equipment considered in the
2024 Highway budgets for the Board of Public Works to review and approve, and send to
Common Council for final approval.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Authorization for Department of Public Works staff to solicit equipment considered mn the 2024
Highway Equipment Replacement and Capital Outlay Funds

DPW KS/ams
DPW(L )/DPW/2024 BudgetCapItal Outlay & EquipmentReplacement Funds



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL
Reports and

Recommendations

REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
COUNCIL ACTION 12/19/2023

A motion to approve the Director of Health ITEM NUMBER
and Human Services to sign the University
of Wisconsin La Crosse affiliation agreement
to host a volunteer student intern in 2024. ( 3

Background: The City of Franklin Health Department finds value in educational partnerships
for student internship and volunteer experiences benefiting both students and the city directly.
This education affiliation agreement outlines the Franklin Health Department to serve as the
host site for a 560 hour UW La Crosse student internship experience. The internship will take
place in January of 2024 through May of 2024.

The student workplan focuses on and will lend enhancement to Franklin Health Department
priorities as identified in the Franklin Community Health Improvement Plan.

Fiscal Note: The student internship will consist of 560 volunteer hours by a UW La Crosse
student enrolled in their final semester of the Public Health and Community Health Education
Bachelor Program.

The affiliation agreement has been sent to the City of Franklin legal counsel for review with
no changes recommended.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to approve the Director of Health and Human Services to sign the University of Wisconsin
La Crosse affiliation agreement to host a volunteer student intern in 2024.

Health Department: LG



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

}
REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize Promotion and Wage Adjustment for
Marion Eeks to
Principal Planner

(Grade Level 9; Hourly Rate of $3S)
-Account 01-0621-S111

MEETING DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

Marion Eeks, an Associate Planner for the City, has demonstrated exceptional skill and unwavering commitment
to the role of Planner over the past four years. Marion is grateful for the support received and appreciates the
promotion consideration.

Attached are relevant documents, including job descriptions for Marion's current role and the Principal Planner
position, for reference.

Marion has illustrated the ability to work independently and constructively, which is especially noteworthy as the
department operated without a dedicated planning manager for more than half of her tenure. This sustained
demonstration of expertise and skills has significantly contributed to the overall stability of the department.

Notably, Marion has continued to pursue professional development, obtaining certifications as a member of the
American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP) and National Charette Institute Certified Charette Planner and
Manager.

Currently, Marion is undertaking many responsibilities associated with the Principal Planner position. Examples
include drafting new ordinances and revising the UDO for development applications, contributing to the UDO
update, and supporting the Environmental and Parks Commissions in proposing changes to the UDO and
Municipal Code.

Marion's contributions to the Parkland Acquisition Study with Vandewalle and Associates are key
accomplishments. Overseeing the contract, working through drafts, coordinating data input, and leading the
adoption process through the Parks Commission up to Common Council showcase her comprehensive skills.

Beyond Marion's current responsibilities, she consistently goes above and beyond to support the department and
the City. She plays an instrumental part in maintaining team efficiency, providing valuable ideas and feedback,
training interns and administrative staff, and supporting the group in their work. Marion has also taken on special
projects like the "CAV" to assist the City in maintaining good standing with FEMA, involving behind-the-scenes
work with GIS to optimize BS & A for floodplain review and developing procedures to address floodplain
encroachments and resolve violations.

The Director of Administration believes that Marion is well-prepared for the additional responsibilities of a
Principal Planner, and Marion looks forward to contributing further to Franklin's success.



Fiscal Impact
The Planning Department has had unfilled positions within their department on and off for a few years, including
a Planning Manager currently. As a result, the department has a surplus in its full-time salary account (01-0621
5111 ). The surplus is enough to cover the additional money.

Marion's hourly rate is currently $32 33. This promotion would increase her hourly rate to $35 an hour, bringing
her to the bottom range of the grade level 9.

Assumptions
Changes may be made in 2024 based on the results of a city-wide comprehensive study.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to authorize the promotion and increase in grade levels for Marion Eeks from Associate Planner Grade
Level 7 ($28.21/hr.) to Principal Planner Grade Level 9 ($35/hr.). The annual increase is estimated at $5,553,
with a yearly salary of $72,800.

DOA - KH



Job Title:

Department:

Reports To:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Planner II

Community Development

Planning Manager

17

Exempt

Joel Dietl, Planning Manager

February 12, 2009

Common Council Resolution 2009-6527

3/3/2009

Summary Under the general direction and supervision of the Planning Manager, plans, reviews and designs
development of land areas for projects such as parks and other recreational facilities, highways, and parkways,
hospitals, schools, land subdivisions, and commercial, industrial, and residential sites by performing the
followmg duties.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities
Generally performs such duties and responsibilities as indicated below relative to issues and topics of standard
to moderate complexity, reqmring interpretation and application of general rules, standards, policies and codes.

Provides technical assistance in responding to inquiries of citizens, developers and builders.

Reviews development plans in accordance with City plans, policies and codes, and proper planning principles.

Compiles and analyzes data on such site conditions as geographic location; soil, vegetation, and rock features;
drainage; and location of structures for preparation of environmental impact report and development of
landscaping plans.

Inspects construction work in progress to ensure compliance with approved plans.

Provides staff support for code enforcement in accordance with City code enforcement polic1es.

Provides input toward preparing and updating development and land use related plans, policies and ordinances.

Attends meetings of boards, commissions, and committees as directed. Provide technical ass1stance as needed.

Accomplishes planning and zoning studies, as assigned, and provide recommendations when necessary.



Updates and maintain the City Development section of the Franklin City website, as directed.

Provides technical support for economic development projects.

Supervisory Responsibilities
This job has no supervisory responsibilities.

Qualifications To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required.
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.

Education and Experience
Bachelor's degree in Urban Planning or a related field and a minimum of 2 years related professional planning
experience is required. A Master's degree in a related field or AICP certification, along with 1 year of related
professional planning experience, would be considered equivalent.

Language Skills
Ability to read, analyze, and mterpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures,
maps, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business correspondence, and procedure manuals.
Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers,
and the general public.

Mathematical Skills
Ability to work with mathematical concepts such as fundamentals of plane and solid geometry and
trigonometry. Ability to apply concepts such as fractions, percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical
situations.

Reasoning Ability
Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables 1n situations where only limited
standardization exists. Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furm1shed in written, oral, diagram, or
schedule form.

Technical Skills
Ability to read, analyze and interpret maps, aerial photographs, site plans, engmeering drawings, etc.

Computer Skills
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have knowledge of Geographic Information Systems
software, Microsoft Word, and Microsoft Excel software.

Other Skills and Abilities
Ability to exercise knowledge of general principles, practices and techniques of municipal planning.

Ability to demonstrate general knowledge of planning and zoning legislation.

Ability to understand environmental awareness and issues, and the ability to determine an estimated wetland and
woodland boundary by Corp of Engineers or Department of Natural Resources guidelines preferred.



Certificates, Licenses, Registrations
A valid driver's license is required.

Physical Demands The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made
to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Work is performed mostly in office settmgs. Some outdoor work is required in the inspection of various land
use properties, developments, and construction sites. Hand-eye coordination is necessary to operate computers
and various pieces of office equipment.

While performing the duties of this Job, the employee is regularly reqmred to talk; hear; sit; use hands and
fingers to handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. The employee must
occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision,
distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception and the ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee occasionally works mn outside weather conditions. The
employee is occasionally exposed to warm and/or humid conditions, and fumes or airborne particles. The noise
level in the work environment is usually quet in the office, and moderate in the field.

Miscellaneous The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may
be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the
work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee and is
subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change.



Job Title:

Department:

Reports To:

Salary Level:

FLSA Status:

Prepared By:

Prepared Date:

Approved By:

Approved Date:

CITY OF FRANKLIN
Job Description

Senior Planner

Community Development

Planning Manager

19

Exempt

Joel Dietl, Planning Manager

February 12, 2009

Common Council Resolution 2009-6527

3/3/2009

Summary Under the general direction and supervision of the Planning Manager, plans, reviews and designs
development of land areas for projects such as parks and other recreational facilities, highways, and parkways,
hospitals, schools, land subdivisions, and commercial, industrial, and residential sites by performing the following
duties.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities
Performs such duties and responsibilities as indicated below on complex issues and topics requiring interpretation
and application of rules, standards, policies and codes.

Provides technical assistance in responding to inquiries of citizens, developers and builders.

Drafts new ordinances and ordinance amendments in accordance with City policy and adopted plans, as directed.

Reviews development plans in accordance with City plans, policies and codes, and proper planning principles.

Compiles and analyzes data on such site conditions as geographic location; soil, vegetation, and rock features;
drainage; and location of structures for preparation of environmental impact report and development of
landscaping plans.

Inspects construction work in progress to ensure compliance with approved plans.

Provides staff support for code enforcement in accordance with City code enforcement policies.

Prepares and updates development and land use related plans, policies and ordinances.

Attends meetings of boards, commissions, and committees as directed. Provides technical assistance as needed.



Accomplishes planning and zoning studies, as assigned, and provides recommendations when necessary.

Provides technical support for economic development projects.

Supervisory Responsibilities
Responsible for coordinating the work activities and work load for the Planning Intern.

Qualifications To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability required.
Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.

Education and Experience
Master's degree in Urban Planning or a related field and a minimum of 4 years related professional planning
experience required. A Bachelor's degree in Urban Planning or a related field with AICP certification is
considered equivalent to a Masters degree.

Language Skills
Ability to read, analyze, and interpret general business periodicals, professional journals, technical procedures,
maps, or governmental regulations. Ability to write reports, business correspondence, and procedure manuals.
Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from groups of managers, clients, customers,
and the general public.

Mathematical Skills
Ability to work with mathematical concepts such as fundamentals of plane and solid geometry and trigonometry.
Ability to apply concepts such as fractions, percentages, ratios, and proportions to practical situations.

Reasoning Ability
Ability to solve practical problems and deal with a variety of concrete variables in situations where only limited
standardization exists. Ability to interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule
form.

Technical Skills
Ability to read, analyze and interpret maps, aerial photographs, site plans, engineering drawings, etc.

Computer Skills
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have knowledge of Geographic Information Systems
software, Microsoft Word and Microsoft Excel software.

Other Skills and Abilities
Ability to exercise knowledge of general principles, practices and techniques ofmunicipal planning.

Ability to demonstrate general knowledge of planning and zoning legislation.

Ability to understand environmental awareness and issues, and the ability to determine an estimated wetland and
woodland boundary by Corp ofEngineers or Department ofNatural Resources guidelines preferred.

Certificates, Licenses, Registrations



A valid driver's license is required.

Physical Demands The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made
to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

Work is performed mostly in office settings. Some outdoor work is required in the inspection ofvarious land use
properties, developments, and construction sites. Hand-eye coordination is necessary to operate computers and
various pieces of office equipment.

While performing the duties of this Job, the employee is regularly required to talk; hear; sit; use hands and fingers
to handle, feel or operate objects, tools, or controls; and reach with hands and arms. The employee is occasionally
required to stand and walk. The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 10 pounds. Specific vision
abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, color vision, peripheral vision, depth perception
and the ability to adjust focus.

Work Environment The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.

While performing the duties of this job, the employee occasionally works in outside weather conditions. The
employee is occasionally exposed to warm and/or humid conditions, and fumes or airborne particles. The noise
level in the work environment is usually quiet in the office, and moderate in the field.

Miscellaneous The duties listed above are intended only as illustrations of the various types of work that may be
performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the work is
similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

The job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee and is
subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change.



APPROVAL

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Annual Market Adjustment, Market Adjustment to
Wage and Salary Rates, and Progress to Market
Wage Adjustment for Non-Represented Employees

MEETING DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

3l.

BACKGROUND
Franklin's Classification and Compensation Plan, which was implemented at the end of 2015, identified the
following three potential annual adjustments to employee wage rates:

1. Market Adjustment to Wage and Salary Rates: The Annual Market Adjustment changes the overall pay plan
structure. Individual wage rates then need to be adjusted at a rate equal to the Annual Market Adjustment to
allow each employee to maintain their position in the market. This action does not advance employees within
their range but attempts to keep employees at an equitable wage to the cost of living and with our comparable
cities.

2. Progress-to-Market-Rate Adjustments: Identifies the portion of a merit increase that an employee is eligible
for annually unless otherwise directed by the Common Council, based upon where the employees are within
their applicable Salary Range.

Note: This is conceptually similar to a step increase in some plans. Franklin's increases are graduated, as
follows, depending upon an employee's current position in the range:

• Below 30% in the applicable salary range= 2.25% adjustment,
• Below the Midpoint, from 30% up to less than 50% in the range = 1.5% adjustment, and
• From Midpoint up to Market Rate, from 50% up to less than 65% in the range= .75% adjustment

3. Merit Performance Increases: With the upcoming implementation of an improved performance evaluation
system, additional funding would be available, based upon the performance evaluation results, to those
individuals performing above a satisfactory level.

Funding included in the 2024 budget for the above-noted pay adjustments for categories #1 and #2 is
approximately $317,020, including the corresponding benefit costs. The planned breakdown is (1)
Approximately $251,074 for the 3% market adjustment for non-represented employees and (2) approximately
$65,946 for the progress-to-market-rate adjustment. Additional funds are budgeted in 2024 and carryover from
2023 and 2022 for the merit performance increases; however, those funds are not part of this approval request.
Rather, the funds will be requested when the Common Council authorizes the merit program.

ANALYSIS
Comparable City Wage Increases
A five-year review of our comparable communities, as determined in our Classification & Compensation Study,
has been completed yearly except for 2023. The recommended increase for 2024 is a little below the average of
the comparable municipalities of approximately 3.21 % and a median of 3.5%. Most communities are also
implementing their increases in January 2024. Franklin is still lagging somewhat on a five-year rolling average
for the increase and the overall wages paid.



Franklin needs to consider the pay of comparable cities, as the pool of employees drawn upon by the majority of
these cities are the same as those Franklin works to attract vacancies, and, with the workforce becoming more
mobile, competition for staff is more competitive than ever.

Classification and Compensation Plan-Continued Implementation
Regarding the Classification and Compensation Plan, which was implemented in late 2015, the execution of the
plan did not immediately place employees at their designated market rate if they were below it, even if they
were productive, longstanding employees while allowing those over their market rate to retain their current level
of pay. Instead, it laid out a plan for those employees to progress slowly to their market rate, based on the
details in the second item in the Background section above, which makes this piece of the increase critical to
continue moving those employees toward their established market rate.

Merit Increases
As noted above, merit increases were part of the planned wage increase mix for 2021. However, there was not
an established, approved merit-based plan in place, so these budgeted funds were requested and approved for
carryover to 2022 and again to 2023, and a carryover request will be forthcoming in 2024 to allow staff time to
create a prudent merit program. With several competing priorities, this initiative was not accomplished in 2022
or 2023 but is high on the priority list for 2024, along with a refresh to the 2015 Classification and
Compensation Study, which is already in progress. Staff will bring a draft plan forth when it is ready for the
Personnel Committee and Common Council consideration. Please note that there is flexibility with this item,
and it will be structured to work within the confines of the 2024 Budget Plan.

Finally, as set forth within the adopted policy for the pay plan, all wage increases are subject to each employee
receiving a performance review grade of at least "Standard" or better, which will be confirmed and documented
by the department heads since there is not yet a formal appraisal process in place. As the plan requires, only
employees who successfully complete their job duties are considered for any of the above-noted increases. A
formal appraisal process will also be created.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the Council authorize the 3% market adjustment to both the salary schedule and wages
and the progress to market adjustment, as outlined above.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to approve a 2024 Annual Market Adjustment to the Pay Ranges of the Compensation Plan and a
Market Adjustment to Wage and Salary Rates, both by 3%, along with a Progress to Market Wage Adjustment,
for non-represented employees effective with the start of the pay period with a pay date of January 12, 2024, and
authorize Human Resources to incorporate the new Salary Ranges into the Employee Handbook.

DOA - KH



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Authorize the Director ofAdministration to
Enter into An Agreementwith ClearGov,
Which Includes a Termination at Any Time
Without Penalty Clause to Lock in 2023
Rates for Software ThatWould Be

Implemented for the City by the 2025 Budget
Season or Sooner.

MEETING DATE
12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

The Finance Department utilizes countless Microsoft Excel spreadsheets, Word documents, PowerPoint, Adobe
Acrobat, and BS&A to develop and produce the annual budget. While the budget team takes great effort and
care to provide an accurate budget, the current process is an arduous, time-consuming task that is manually
driven and prone to possible errors. To streamline the annual budgeting process and produce a more user
friendly and approachable budget document, the budget team evaluated software options offered by ClearGov
that would allow for automated workflow, centralized data, and enhanced communication of the budget to the
community.

ClearGov's Budget Cycle Management software will allow the Finance Department to collaborate more
effectively with other departments, centralize our data into fewer locations that will decrease the chance for
mistakes, formula errors, and version confusion, and provide an interactive digital budget for our citizens. The
software will also allow Finance and all departments to budget more effectively for capital projects. ClearGov's
annual software subscription fee for the full Budget Cycle Management software includes five modules (Capital
Budgeting, Personnel Budgeting, Operational Budgeting, Digital Budget Book, and Transparency) for $37,100
and a one-time fee of $11,475.

ClearGov was awarded a contract for Business/Financial Management Software by the national purchasing
cooperative, BuyBoard, using a competitive procurement process that meets the City's procurement policies.
Staff recommends approval of a contract with ClearGov for Budget Management Software for $48,575. This
software will dramatically reduce time and, in some cases, remove redundancy, countless spreadsheets, human
error, and a belabored budget forecasting process utilized by the Directors ofFinance and Administration that is
currently estimated to be a 6-month process. Furthermore, ClearGov will keep the City in compliance with all
laws as they pertain to the software functions and create a transparent and up-to-date snapshot and
downloadable document of the City's budget, projects, departments, Capital Improvement Plans, and more at
any time.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

Motion to Authorize the Director of Administration to Enter Into An Agreement with ClearGov, Which
Includes a Termination at Any Time Without Penalty Clause to Lock in 2023 Rates for Software That Would
Be Implemented for the City by the 2025 Budget Season or Sooner.

DOA-KH



lClearGo
2 Mill & Main; Suite 630; Maynard, MA 01754

Service Order

Created by George Hoermann

Contact Phone (203) 246-3611

Contact Email ghoermann@cleargov.com

Order Date

Order valid If signed by

Dec 1, 2023

Dec 31, 2023

Customer Information
Customer The City of Franklin, Wisconsin Contact Kelly Hersh Billing Contact Danielle Brown

Address 9229 W. Loomis Road Title Director of Administration Title Director of Finance

City, St, Zip Franklin, WI 53132 Email khersh@franklinwi.gov Email DBrown@franklinwi.gov

Phone (414) 425-7500 PO # (tf any)

The Services you will receive and the Fees for those Services are...
Set up Services Tier/Rate Service Fees

ClearGov Setup. Includes act ivation, onboarding and training for ClearGov solutions Tier 2 $ 16,200.00

ClearGov Setup: BCM Bundle Discount - Discount for bundled BCM solutions Tier 2 $ (4,725.00)

Total ClearGov Setup Service Fee - Billed ONE-TIME $ 11,475.00

Subscription Services Tier Service Fees

ClearGov BCM Operational Budgeting - Civic Edition Tier 2 $ 13,300.00

ClearGov BCM Personnel Budgeting - Civic Edition Tier 2 $ 12,100.00

ClearGov BCM Capital Budgeting - CiVic Edition Tier 2 $ 9,800.00

ClearGov BCM Digital Budget Book - Civic Edition Tier 2 $ 8,100.00

ClearGov BCM Transparency - Civic Edition Tier 2 $ 7,300.00

ClearGov ClearPlans - Civic Edition Tier 2 $ 8,100.00

ClearGov BCM Full Suite Bundle Promotion (Offer expires on December 31, 2023) Tier 2 $ (21,600.00)

Total ClearGov Subscription Service Fee - Billed ANNUALLY IN ADVANCE $ 37,100.00

ClearGov will provide your Services according to this schedule...
Period Start Date End Date Description

Setup Jan 1, 2025 Jan l, 2025 ClearGov Setup Services
Initial Jan 1, 2025 Dec 31, 2027 ClearGov Subscription Services

To be clear, you will be billed as follows..
Billing Date(s) Amount(s) Notes

Jan l, 2025 $11,475.00 One Time Setup Fee

Jan l, 2025 $37,100.00 Annual Subscription Fee
Additional subscription vears and/or renewals wll be bulled annually mn accordance wth prtcma and terms set forth herein

Billing Terms and Conditions

Valid Until Dec 31, 2023 Pricing set forth herein is valid only if ClearGov Service Order is executed on or before this date.

Payment Net30 All invoices are due Net 30 days from the date of invoice.

Initial Period 3% per annum During the Initial Service Period, the Annual Subscription Service Fee shall automatically increase by this amount.Rate Increase
Rate Increase 6% per annum After the Initial Service Period, the Annual Subscription Serice Fee shall automatically increase by this amount.



General Terms & Conditions
Customer Satisfaction During the first thirty (30) days of the Service, Customer shall have the option to terminate the Service, by providing

Guarantee written notice. In the event that Customer exercises this customer satisfact ion guarantee option, such termination shall
become effect ive immediately and Customer shall be eligible for a full refund of the applicable Service Fees.
ClearGov and Customer mutually agree to the ClearGov Service activation and onboarding process set forth in the

Statement of Work attached Statement of Work. Please note that ClearGov will not act ivate and/or implement services for any Customer with
outstandina balance past due over 90 days for any previous subscription services.
The Service Fees and Billing amounts set forth above in this ClearGov Service Order DO NOT include applicable taxes. In

Taxes accordance with the laws of the applicable state, in the event that sales, use or other taxes apply to this transaction,
ClearGov shall include such taxes on applicable invoices and Customer is solely responsible for such taxes, unless
documentation is Provided to ClearGov demonstratinQ Customer's exemption from such taxes.
Subject to the termination rights and obligations set forth in the ClearGov BCM Service Agreement, this ClearGov Service
Order commences upon the Order Date set forth herein and shall continue until the completion of the Service Period(s)

Term & Termination for the Service(s) set forth herein. Each Service shall commence upon the Start Date set forth herein and shall continue
until the completion of the applicable Service Period. To be clear, Customer shall have the option to Terminate this
Service Order on an annual basis by providing notice at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the then current Annual
Term.
After the Initial Period, the Service Period for any ClearGov Annual Subscription Services shall automatically renew for

Auto-Renewal successive annual periods (each an "AnnualTerm"), unless either Party provides written notice of its desire not to renew
at least sixty (60) days prior to the end of the then current Annual Term.
Th is ClearGov Service Order is subject to the approval of the Franklin City Council (the "Board") as set forth herein. In the

Cancellation Option event that the Board does not approve this Service Order at its December 2024 meeting, Customer shall have the option
to terminate this Service Order immediately by providing written notice. In the event that Customer exercises this option,
Customer shall have no payment obliqation under this Service Order.
This ClearGov Service Order shall become binding upon execution by both Part ies. The signature herein affirms your
commitment to pay for the Service(s) ordered in accordance with the terms set forth in this ClearGov Service Order and

Agreement also acknowledges that you have read and agree to the terms and conditions set forth in the ClearGov BCM Service
Agreement found at the following URL: http.//www,ClearGoy,com/terms-and-conditions. This Service Order incorporates
by reference the terms of such ClearGov BCM Service Agreement.

Customer
Signature

Name Kelly Hersh

Title Director of Administration

ClearGov, Inc.

Signature

Name Bryan A. Burdick

Title President

Please e-mail signed Service Order to Orders@ClearGov.com or Fax to (774) 759-3045

Customer Upgrades (ClearGov internal use only)
This Service Order ls a Customer Upgrade I No I IfYes: Original Service Order Date I



Statement of Work

This Statement of Work outlines the roles and responsibilities by both ClearGov and Customer required for the activation and onboarding of the ClearGov
Service. ClearGov will begin this onboarding process upon execution of this Service Order. All onboarding services and communications will be provided
throu h remote methods - email, hone, and web conferencin .

ClearGov Responsibilities

- ClearGov will act ivate ClearGov Service subscription(s) as of the applicable Start Date(s). ClearGov will create the initial Admin User account, and the
Customer Admin User will be responsible for creating additional User accounts.

- ClearGov will assign an Implementation Manager (IM) responsible for managing the activation and onboarding process. ClearGov IM will coordinate with
other ClearGov resources, as necessary.

- ClearGov IM will provide a Kickoff Call scheduling link to the Customer's Primary Contact. Customer should schedule Kickoff Call within two weeks after the
Service Order has been executed.

- If Customer is subscribing to any products that require data onboarding:
- ClearGov IM will provide a Data Discovery Call scheduling link to the Customer's Primary Contact. Customer should schedule Data Discovery Call based on

the availability of Customer's staff.
- ClearGov will provide Customer with financial data requirements and instruct ions, based on the ClearGov Service subscription(s).
- ClearGov will review financial data fi les and confirm that data is complete, or request additional information, if necessary. Once complete financial data

files have been received, ClearGov will format the data, upload it to the ClearGov platform and complete an initial mapping of the data.
- After initial mapping, ClearGov will schedule a Data Review call with a ClearGov Data Onboarding Consultant (DOC), who will present how the data was

mapped, ask for feedback, and address open questions. Depending upon Customer feedback and the complexity of data mapping requests, there may be
additional follow-up calls or emails required to complete the data onboarding process.

- ClearGov will inform Customer of all training, learning, and support options. ClearGov recommends all Users attend ClearGov Academy training sessions
and/or read Support Center articles before using the ClearGov Service to ensure a quick ramp and success. As needed, ClearGov will design and deliver
customized remote training and configuration workshops for Admins and one for End Users - via video conference - and these sessions will be recorded for
future reference.

- ClearGov will make commercially reasonable efforts to complete the onboarding/activation process in a timely fashion, provided Customer submits financial
data fi les and responds to review and approval requests by ClearGov in a similarly timely fashion. Any delay by Customer in meeting these deliverable
requirements may result in a delayed data onboarding process. Any such delay shall not affect or change the Service Period(s) as set forth in the applicable
Service Order.

Customer Responsibilities

- Customer's Primary Contact will coordinate the necessary personnel to attend the Kickoff and Data Discovery Calls within two weeks after the Service Order
has been executed. If Customer needs to change the date/time of either of these calls, the Primary Contact will notify the ClearGov IM at least one business
day in advance.

- If Customer is subscribing to any products that require data onboarding.
- Customer will provide a complete set of requested financial data files (revenue, expense, chart of accounts, etc.) to ClearGov in accordance with the

requirements provided by ClearGov.
- Customer's Primary Contact will coordinate the necessary personnel to attend the Data Discovery and Data Review calls. It is recommended that all

stakeholders with input on how data should be mapped should attend. Based on these calls and any subsequent internal review, Customer shall provide a
detailed list of data mapping requirements and requested changes to data mapping drafts in a timely manner, and Customer will approve the final data
mapping, once completed to Customer's satisfact ion.

- Customer will complete recommended on-demand training modules in advance of customized training & configuration workshops.

- Customer shall be solely responsible for importing and/or inputting applicable text narrative, custom graphics, performance metrics, capital requests,
personnel data, and other such information for capital budget, personnel budget, budget books, projects, dashboards, etc.



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
COUNCIL ACTION 12/19/2023

Request Council Approval and Adoption of a ITEM NUMBER
Newly Created Job Description for DPW Deputy
Clerk Position and to Promote Andrea Stormoen to

DPW Deputy Clerk. .33,

Background:
Please see the attachments, particularly the memo from DPW Superintendent Kevin Schlueter, who is attending
to speak to this request.

Requested Action:
The Director of Administration and the Superintendent ofDPW are requesting approval and adoption of the
newly created job description for a DPW Deputy Clerk. We intend to fill this position immediately by
promoting Andrea Stormoen. Andrea has been completing these duties and requesting this action for over five
years, as documented in the attached memos, emails, appeal, and job analysis questionnaire. Director Hersh
desires to compensate Andrea Stormoen for her dedication, perseverance, and hard work, going above and
beyond her current classification to do what is necessary to aid the Superintendent of DPW and her coworkers.

This new position is ranked accordingly by duties that score 425 points, putting this position in line with the
Deputy Clerk for Clerk Services at salary level 6.

Fiscal Note:
The DPW Deputy Clerk position is a salary grade 6. Staff requests Andrea Stormoen be promoted to DPW
Deputy Clerk and her salary be adjusted to $27.92 an hour from $25 97. This is a 7.5% increase.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to Approve and adopt the newly created job description for a DPW Deputy Clerk Position and to
Promote Andrea Stormoen into this New Position as she has been completing these duties for five or more
years, as documented in the attached memos, emails, appeal, and job analysis questionnaire.

DOA-KH



gs
Franklin
tf

WISCONSIN

City of Franklin

Department ofPublic Works

MEMORANDUM FROM DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

DATE: November 18, 2023

TO: Board of Public Works

FROM: Kevin Schlueter, Superintendent

SUBJECT: Authorization of Re-Classification & Promotion of DPWAdministrative
Clerk

I would like to thank you for your time and assistance with helping the DPW Department,
myself, our supervisors, and Andrea to correct an issue that has taken us approximately
5 years to resolve.

A little backstory: The original Class & Comp study was conducted in 2015. During the
time of the study, the previous Secretary was out of the office intermittently on personal
leave and, shortly thereafter, vacated her jobwith the City after 15+ years of service. We
believe the original Class & Comp paperwork was submitted using outdated information
at best, including a 2004 job description which was not only 11 years outdated but also
highly unreflective of the job duties that this position was responsible for in 2015. We
also experienced the retirement of not one, but two superintendents shortly thereafter.

Between 2018 and 2023, the request to reclassify this position to a more appropriate
classification was brought to two different City Administrators. Mark Luberda requested
an appeal of the original 2015 decision, at which time he resigned shortly after, leaving
this as an outstanding issue that he had not completed. We re-approached the next City
Administrator, Peggy Steeno, with this task. After having Andrea and myself re-write the
appeal several times (with items she preferred included/excluded), Ms. Steeno then
resigned unexpectedly just short of seeing this issue all the way through fruition. We are
very happy to have the new City Administrator making this issue a priority, as five years
is a long time to be under-classified and under-compensated for work that is already being
done by this staff member. The decision to appropriately reclassify this position has had
the approval the DPW Superintendent & the City Engineering during this entire process.

In 2017, Andrea Stormoen transferred to the Department of Public Works after 10 years
with the Franklin Police Department and an additional 3 years with the Franklin City



Clerk's Office. She brought with her a vast knowledge of the City itself, including
infrastructure & residents, City services offered, familiarity with city departments, city
officials, and City procedures, and her advanced communications abilities.

Her role is unique in the sense that she is not only an Administrative Assistant to the
Public Works facility itself, but she also operates as a coordinator for the Mechanics
Garage, Construction division, and Forestry & Parks divisions. She IS the City's sign
shop - making all logos, street signs, park signs, and traffic signs for the entire City 
from designing the signs to spec, to using a cutting machine & hydraulic press. She also
operates, in part, as our account guru & Human Resource advisor for the department, as
she leads all City departments in volume of invoice entry, purchase ordering, & parts
ordering, as well as providing assistance to the DPW staff with their health benefits, open
enrollment information, and assistance with setting up apps & log-ins.

After I took over as Superintendent in 2018, we restructured areas of our department to
allow for better efficiency & service both internally and to the residents of Franklin. We
were able to give Andrea more supervisory type responsibilities in-house, giving myself
and the Assistant Superintendent more capability of being out in the field to supervisor
DPW operations at the job sites. She sets her schedule and completes her own workload
with little supervision, and is able to hand out job duties and tasks to other DPW
employees. She is currently training one Equipment Operator on the sign making
operations, as she is the only employee in the City with this capability, as well as training
another supervisor in Accounts Payable financial modules. She has also taken on the
task of creating & editing the DPW budget under my supervision, including all required
documents. Andrea has taken on additional functions of a Confidential Secretary, which
includes parts of the hiring & termination process & paperwork. She has spearheaded
and implemented a program for DPW Employee work ID's in coordination with the Police
Department (using the PD's ID equipment). Andrea operates as a DPW "public
information spokesperson", especially with newer technology & social media. She is the
administrator of our Facebook Page which allows us to reach out to residents & visitors
to Franklin with more information than ever before. She actively monitors the Franklin
and surrounding community social media pages, and will often give information to
residents in the Franklin Facebook Groups both after-hours and on weekends.

I cannot express enough how having Andrea in this position, functioning in the way that
it is currently functioning, is crucial to our department running smoothly. For lack of better
words, we would be much less effective without her and the role she has taken on in this
department & in the City. With her specialized skills in the trade of sign making, as well
as the sheer volume of work she has to do as the sole administrative person in our
department of 22 employees (as demonstrated in the BS&A numbers), I sincerely hope
that we can rectify her position to the proper category. Thank you so much for your
consideration in helping us compensate her, and this position, appropriately!

Sincerely,

Kevin Schlueter, DPW Superintendent



EMPLOYEE APPEAL FORM

City of Franklln, Wisconsin

IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION

NAME: A i'\d.re C\ :s+o,-IV1D e. n Jos TITLE: Ad,rA, n fJ -ss -r - 7JPW
NAME OF IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR:

· 1--t /l) ;n o,row
HIS/HER TITLE: L.
Dre@tor ot n uedrn.

Appeals are considered within four categories:

Internal Equity: you believe your position has been gradedlncorrectly compared to other positions in the
organization

External Competitiveness: you believe the salary range assigned to your job grade is inappropriate compared to
similar organizations

Job Tltle Recommendation: you believe the recommended job title for your position is inappropriate

Other: you are appealing an aspect of the study not covered by the three categories above

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

Please select a category for your appeal below and explain your reason(s) for making the appeal. If you are appealing
in more than one category, please use the following sections as needed.

City of Franklin ail tu all,lo Us7z 50Cot174c 0ne Page 1
a /1 cl( d..1..-5, 9 I} -sirr'-1 lU 1.-i.. re.6/' cRsy 1> 11}_J'--11Ii e C! rh.; 's
{i u .S ·f 011,1 $ :5/1:), Cloe:J /' Ivy c:1 :5 ~ .::,f-oh1 1 /:-; 1 € -1-c

{1c)tl-f 'd

CATEGORY: ..l.r\ -t-e r AcL l Eq v L +y --./- o+h e ,-

REASON FOR-~PPEAL: -rn. t '2:. ~ c:. ~ l -hOn has 3P--ln_~ d. a.aol.Lonc_( (e5po0$1 6 l ( L h/
t(\ +h ~ u\ For-Ma....-t, o{'I tech fl o 'o9y' a<$ "ti.--f J I nc...locLno the ft9%

I Rt«nsroto th :q tve cperatuoS(3ie_ \
c) A0..11,Lt()l".'.:)"TTC<..-tor 1() th Gs ':'>L-f:':)i e.,::J for D?w+ (..e.e:t·uleu5([)
_3 PdanStator /'eakor F Frank DP ta@loo k pa_q e__ ,

········································································~--~·········L/ .. Df .t. ra.,.10 r" o--/' -n, e,_ /) e w .S-<. <! t-1 r -/'1 {lu_/M✓ ra... s l/S--1 e..;VJ a+ b /'c>lcJ
CATEGORY: - A -- 7\_ { • .I ./ I I

_j c L.) - bob d<- v,C! e "'1 ))tI-f t:_ I uS< r - C'o /J 11J 1-E -f es , roy s stco.cect2,
asoNroR APA G.%?', /uszrc of aso 3tare frcdsv9@st eyes

( (! (Jra.__i 7.),a..t.J -t Co C"Y-) ·-I- f-t., <! t:. book... l~j tL (c a tl ✓Cl,J.
7.T am otso +/he col4Curb+he @t tat uses Y6prates

(>1tl. c. h I I) .t t'..t-/ 1 1ne. lvda,c; ih~ SI iJI) /lo__c;o <3<..' ll-u1 q IJ/14, c lune! {l/Jcl l)lj_drt.2<.,.i !((',!,.p;--P5.S;
·············••fa••·········--'········...l·····•J■■■••···--'······························at this oot hoe,T co asa 6a4Ct hag'<



-1-.tv-l- e. «oat aoet( aod Jo6 tte 'ecomanciton

6F' c~__\_\. c,..f -t-h iL C..\. ty_ re...cc,cn ( zed ? esoder apart f\ll .e.,r\ + s
pee/fire, DP), I aw a ontq Pestars ao pa(class44
CATEGORY:. e cent4an fdwstratu@ fssStcnt pa(alas ± 3.
-L o ·p-e.. l""O....-\. .c.._ , n .su~, l \ 0-r- t CL<::.:.~ to f'I i-tl> --t·\r\ a Stat pa-(@ta tl <-I; w t-t- h

&6t6Mk%1#P.2{)paces.«@ coos<es.erdaro, er
Y • ..J.... c....09 access -lo persona rs nd da

ch as redact adade pots,ftp(oq- prsonat data tog, 
c a- 5>cortqnfo Bet sqste)yd@-ltr4 reportsthe He is
..L a.1>1 c..,, 1 so -/h1. or,{'f vs,(_ r ,. I' Gou Sp ct, t Gouof.e_ --rtia -f , s nat a,rt+ J
pa i( (I /ass If £/.

Type"your name and the date below, then save this form asa Word document with your last name in the file name
and email it to your supervisor. If using a printed copy of this form, sign and date it and then deliver to your
supervisor.

EMPLOYEE'S SIGNATURE OR TYPED NAME DATE [8,, nl Som»tt S708

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR AND/OR DEPARTMENT HEAD
Please provide your comments below. If using a printed copy of the form and additional space is needed, please use
the back of this form or attach an additional sheet.

Do you agree with the employee's appeal(s)? Please explain.

Type your name and the date below, then email this form ti<> your Department Head (if applicable) or to the Human
Resources Coordinator. If using a printed copy of this form, sign and date it before forwarding.

SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE OR TYPED NAME DATE

If Supervisor isn't Department Head, Department Head should review this form as well.

[have read the supervisor's comments above and substantially concur.
D1 have read the above and have the following comments:

Type your name and the date below, then email this form to the Human Resources Manager. If using a printed copy
of this form, sign and date it before forwarding.

DEPARTMENT HEAD'S SIGNATURE OR TYPED NAME

City of Franklin

DATE

Page 2



EMPLOYEE JOB ANALYSIS QUESTIONNAIRE (JAQ)

City of Franklin, Wisconsin

/DENT/FICATION INFORMA T/ON

NAME: Andrea M Stormoen

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE WITH EMPLOYER: 19

YEARS OF EXPERIENCE ON THIS JOB: 6

YOUR YEARS OF EXPERIENCE IN THIS FIELD:

6

NAME OF IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR:
Kevin Schlueter

DATE: 10/26/23

JOB TITLE: Administrative Assistant

YOUR JOB IS: FULL TIME []PART TME []

YOUR EDUCATION:

[lHeh sch. [JAssoc. Deg. Jach. Dee. [l as. eg.

HIS/HER TITLE:
Superintendent

INSTRUCTIONS
The purpose of this questionnaire is to obtain additional information about your job that may not be included in your
current job description. Please answer each question thoughtfully and frankly. After you have finished your portion of
the questionnaire, give it to your supervisor, who will complete his/her section.

Job Description: Please review your job description. Are there any major changes (additions and/or deletions) that
need to be made? ~ Yes D No If yes, please explain: Previous job description was last updated in 2004.
Please see updated, revised job description.

lf you do not have a ob description, please respond to the following questions regarding the primary function and [ob
tasks associated with your position:

Summarize the major purpose or primary function of your job in three or four sentences.

Job Tasks: Please list your Job duties. Try to place your duties in their order of importance, and group "like" tasks
together (e.g. "clerical duties including word processing, opening mail, filing, etc." or e.g. "front desk responsibilities
Including greeting visitors, answering telephones and routing calls, etc.").

Job Duty
1.

2.

3.

4.



5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Feel free to add more numbers/duties 1f necessary.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

1. Education and Training: In your opinion, what kind of education and training is necessary to perform your job?

D Level of knowledge that is below what is normally attained through high school graduation.
D High school diploma (GED) or equivalent.
D High school, plus elementary technical training, acquired through one year or less of technical or business

school.
[] Extensive technical or specialized training such as would be acquired by an Associate's Degree or two years of

technical or business school.
Extensive technical or specialized trammng such as would be acquired by an Associate's Degree or two years of
technical or business school, plus two or more certifications in incumbent's field.
Completion of four-year college degree program.
Additional professional level of education beyond a four-year college program, such as a CPA or Professional
Engineer (P.E.) tramnmng.

[] completion of graduate coursework equal to a Master's Degree or higher.

lf a specific certificate or license is mandated by an outside agency to perform your duties, name the certificate or
license: Required initial and yearly training for CAD Graphic Design Software & sign cutting machine.
Initial & yearly training, successfully passing a test& probationary period to use Digger's Hotline
PropPortal, with continuing compliance monitoring.

What special skills, knowledge, and abilities are required to perform your job? Please list: Microsoft programs
(Word, Excel), Computer Aided Design (CoralDraw program - signs), Sign Cutting Machine
training/experience (Summa Cutter), graphic media experience. Design programs for media (Canva
design software), Proficient in windows based data programs (modules for complaint processing,

□
□□



budgeting, purchase order entry & invoice entry). Budget entry & accouting experience. Experience in
accounts payable/receivable & tax exempt processes, basic technical experience for rebooting modem,
firewall, & battery backup equipment. Experience in fuel systems & fleet management & maintenance,
with ability to order & differentiate vehicle & equipment components. Supervisory skills, including
ability to train others on equipment used for the above.

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

2. Years of Experience: How much previous work experience do you feel 1s necessary to perform your job?

JEss THAN 1 YEAR 01 TO 3 YEARS IZ!4 TO 6 YEARS 07 TO 10 YEARS □MORE THAN 10 YEARS

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

3. Independent Judgment and Decision Making: How much discretion do you have mn making decisions with or
without the input or direction of your supervisor?

0 Little discretion or independent judgment exercised.
[] some discretion or judgment exercised, but supervisor 1s normally available.
[] Job often requires making decsons in absence of specific policies and/or guidance from supervisor, but some

direct guidance is received from supervisor.
[] Hgh level of discretion with decsons restricted only by broad Organization-wide policies and little direct

guidance from superiors.
0 Very high level of discretion with decisions only restricted by the broadest policies of the Organization.

If you make an erroneous decision, what impact would this decision have on your work unit, department, and/or the
Organization?

0 Minor: Some inconvenience and delays but little cost in terms oftime, money, or public/employee good will.
[] Moderate: Significant costs in time, money, or public/employee good will would be incurred. Delays in important

proJects/schedules hkely.
[] serious: Important goals would not be achieved and the financial, employee, or public relations posture of the

Organization would be seriously affected.
0 Very Serious: Critical goals and objectives would be adversely and very seriously affected .

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

4. Responsibility for Policy Development: Does your job require you to participate in the development of policies for
your unit/division/department/the Organization?

□□IZI
□
□
□

Position involves only the execution of policies or use of existing procedures.
Position involves some participation in the development of policies and procedures for the department only.
Position involves some development of policies/procedures, as well as the interpretation and execution of
broader policies in the department.
Position involves the primary responsibility for the development of policies and procedures for a division or
organizational component of a department, as well as the interpretation, execution and recommendation of
changes to department policies.
Position involves s1gnif1cant responsibility for major input/development of departmental policies and procedures,
plus occasional participation in the development of policies which affect other departments in the organization.
Position involves the primary responsibility for the development of departmental policies and procedures and
regular participation in the development of policies that affect other departments and occasionally involves
participation in the development of organization-wide policies.

Give some examples of the types of policies you've written or been a part of creating:

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••



5. Planning: How much latitude do you have to set your own daily work schedule and pnonties for a given workday?

[] Position requires that my daily work load and activities are assigned to me by my supervisor.
D Position requires that I plan my own daily work load and work independently according to established procedures

or standards.
IZI Position requires that I plan my own daily work load and those of others in the department (first-level

supervision).
[]osrtion requires an above average ability to analyze data and develop departmental plans, including plans where

a number of difficult, technical and/or administrative problems must be addressed (Manager/D1vis1on level
supervision).

D Position requires a high level of analytical ability to develop plans for a department or complex situation,
including plans that involve integrating/involving/impacting other departments (Department Head level
supervision).

How much planning do you do for others in the department?

scheduling: [] Yes []No Assigning of Duties/Jobs: [] Yes []No

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

6. Contacts with Others: In the course of performing your job, what contacts with people in your department, other
departments within the organization, and/or people from outside the organization are you required to make?

[] Position involves interaction wrth fellow workers on routine matters with relatively little public contact.
D Position involves frequent internal and external contact, but generally on routine matters such as furnishing or

obtaining information.
[] Poston involves frequent internal contact and regular contact with outsiders generally on routine matters,

including contacts with 1rate outsiders which require some public relations skull for taking complaints for others to
follow up upon.

D Position involves frequent internal and external contacts which require public relations skills in handling
complaints. Contacts involve non-routine problems and require in-depth discussion and/or persuasion in order
to gain concurrence or to resolve the problem.

IZI Position involves frequent internal and external contacts which require skill mn dealing with, and influencing
others, and initiating changes in policy/procedures to address the issue so as to avoid having to deal with the
issue again in the future.
] eosrtion involves frequent internal and external contacts in which I act as the spokesperson for the department

and may be authorized to make commitments on behalf of the department.
[] Posion involves frequent internal and external contacts where I represent the organization and am authorized

to make commitments in matters of critical interest to the Organization.

With which internal indrvuduals or groups do you have the most contact? Police Dept, Fire Dept, Engineering,
S&W, Alderpersons/Mayor (all city employees for vehicle maintenance & fueling)

With which external individuals or groups do you have the most contact? Residents/Citizens, Equipment & Fleet
Maintenance Vendors, Sales & Supplies personnel

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

7. Supervision Given: Do you supervise or assign work to other employees? IZ!Yes D No

If yes:

[] Position is responsible for assigning work to an employee or employees, without actmg ma supervisory role.
D Positron is responsible for the supervision of one full time or several part time employees.
[] ostion is responsible for the supervision of two to five full time (or full time equivalent) employees.



□□
□
□

Position is responsible for the supervision of six to 15 full time (or full time equivalent) employees.
Position is responsible for direct and/or indirect supervision of 16 to 29 full time (or full time equivalent)
employees.
Position is responsible for direct and/or indirect superv1s1on of 30 to 50 full time (or full time equivalent)
employees.
Position 1s responsible for direct and/or indirect supervision of more than 51 full time (or full time equivalent)
employees .

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

8. Physical Demands: Please describe any physical demands required to perform your Job.

Demand No Yes How often?
(rarely, occasionally or daily)

Lifting up to 20 pounds □ g D
Lifting 20-50 pounds □ a w
Lifting 50+ pounds □ a 0
Climbing □ ~ 0
Walking □ a D
Kneeling □ ~ w
Crouching □ a D
Crawling ~ □
Bending □ a D
Sitting □ ~ D
Prolonged Standing ~ □
Prolonged Visual Concentration □ g D

D
D

D

Condition No Yes

Lighting-dimness or brightness lZI □
Dust □ g
Heat lZI □
Cold a □
Odors □ lZI
Noise □ 3
V1brat1on 53 □
Wetness/Hum1d1ty ~ □
Toxic Agents lZI □
Electrical Currents a □
Heavy Machinery a □
Violence ~ □
Disease I □
Smoke 3 □
Other 1 □

Unpleasant or Hazardous Conditions: Please describe any unpleasant or hazardous conditions you are exposed to m
performing your job and how often you are exposed to those conditions. Include only those conditions which are
directly related to your work rather than specific work area conditions.

How Often?
(rarely, occasionally or daily)

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

9. Use of Technology: Please check the level of technology needed for you to perform your job:

D Pos1t1on has no responsibility for, or use of, technology.



D Position has some basic use of computers for word processing/data entry and some use of the telephone, copier,
etc.

D Position has daily use of computers for word processing/data entry and use of the telephone, fax machine, copier,
etc.

D Position has daily use of computers, the Internet, Smartphones, etc. to create databases, spreadsheets, or reports.
t8J Position provides routine consultation and technology support for everyday computer programming and/or

software requests/questions to others in the organization (applications super user). Or, may
use/repair/troubleshoot specialized software such as GIS, SCADA or various pieces of equipment such as HVAC,
lighting, gas flares, blowers, engines, heavy equipment, large vehicles (vacuum trucks, street sweepers, fire
apparatus) and/or medical equipment.

[_] Position is responsible for advanced computer programming, maintenance, trammng, and purchasing of items such
as computers, printers, scanners, etc., for the computer system for the organization (IT personnel).

[] Position is responsible for system security, as well as the overall direction and supervision of the staff that are
responsible for the computer and technology needs of the organization, including responsibility for developing
technology policies for the organization (IT personnel) .

•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••

10. Comments/Additional Information: Feel free to add additional information below. If using a printed copy of this
form, use the back of the form to add your comments.

Type your name and the date below, then save this form as a Word document with your last name and job title in the
file name and email it to your supervisor with a copy to Dana Zahn at dzahn@franklinwi.gov. lf using a printed copy
of this form, sign and date it and then deliver to your supervisor.

Andrea M Storrnoen

EMPLOYEE'S SIGNATURE OR TYPED NAME

10/26/2023

DATE

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR AND/OR DEPARTMENT HEAD
Please provide your comments below. If using a printed copy of the form and add1t1onal space is needed, please use
the back of this form or attach an additional sheet. Please do not mark in employee's portion of the questionnaire.

1. Do you agree with the employee's answers to all of the above questions? If not, please explain. Yes

2. List any job duties or assignments which the employee performs which are in addition to those listed on the Job
description or thus form.

3. How long has this employee worked for you? 6 Years

4. Additional comments from the employee's immediate supervisor: None

Type your name and the date below, then email this form to your Department Head (if applicable) or to Dana Zahn in
Human Resources dzahn@franklinwi.gov. If using a printed copy of this form, sign and date it before forwarding.

Kevin Schlueter

SUPERVISOR'S SIGNATURE OR TYPED NAME DATE

11/03/23



If Supervisor isn't Department Head, Department Head should review this form as well.

[]I have read the above and substantially concur.
[]I have read the above and have the following comments:

Type your name and the date below, and then email this form to Dana Zahn in Human Resources at
dzahn@franklinwi.gov. If using a printed copy of this form, sign and date it before forwarding.

DEPARTMENTHEADSIGNATURE OR TYPEDNAME DATE



APPROVAL

REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an
Agreement to Continue Professional Environmental
Engineering Services to Monitor Compliance at the

Metro Recycling & Disposal Facility to December 31,
2024, with JSA Environmental, Inc.

MEETING
DATE

December 19, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

JSA Environmental, Inc. has been providing landfill monitoring services at the Metro landfill for the past 19
years. The last annual contract expires December 31, 2023. Attached is a draft contract to renew the terms of
the 2023 agreement for 2024; rates therein and terms thereof have not changed from last year. Waste
Management of Wisconsin, Inc. is obligated to provide reimbursement for the contract cost pursuant to Article
IV.24.B. of the WWMI Metro Landfill Facility Greenspace Protection and Limited Landfill Expansion
Agreement dated August 16, 2010. The contract price is a cost not to exceed $20,000.00, as adjusted by the
consumer price index as set forth in the Agreement.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

A motion to adopt A Resolution Authorizing Certain Officials to Execute an Agreement to Continue
Professional Environmental Engineering Services to Monitor Compliance at the Metro Recycling & Disposal
Facility to December 31, 2024, with JSA Environmental, Inc.

Legal Services Dept.: jw



ENVIRONMENTAL

22me

December 13, 2023

Project No: 1036.10066
Jesse Wesolowski, Esq
Attorney to the City of Franklin
11402 W. Church Street
Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

Re: 2024 JSA Environmental Professional Services for the City of Franklin

Dear Jesse;

We, JSA Environmental (JSA), would like to continue to offer our Professional Services to the City of
Franklin. We consider the City of Franklin to be a Legacy Client and offer rates that are greatly
reduced (-60%) from our Standard Rates. Attached is a copy of our Legacy Rates for 2024, which
mirrors the rates charged since 2020; whenJSA last raised its Legacy Rates. There is one exception, we
are raising our mileage reimbursable fee to $0.66 from $0.63
Also attached, please find our "Scope of Professional Services". JSA currently audits the WMWI
Metro Facility twice per month and reports directly to the Waste Facility Monitoring Committee, and
its Chair; Marvin Wolff.

Our Principal Engineer supplies the majority of services to the City of Franklin. He now has more
than 15 years of experience auditing the operation and reviewing the design of the WMWl Metro
Facility as well as over 30 years total experience in environmental engineering and consulting.

I, as Principal Engineer, and my staff; greatly appreciate the experience and the continued opportunity
to serve the City of Franklin. Ifyou, or the City of Franklin, have any questions or comments regarding
our current or future services, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Thank you,

Jo-Walter Spear,Jr., P.E., S.C.JSA Environmental, Principal Engineer

2410 N. PALMER STREET
MILWAUKEE, WI 53212-3606



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT METRO RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL
FACILITY DURING OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

This Standard Agreement for Services (the
"AGREEMENT") is between JSA Environmental, Inc., a
Subchapter S corporation organized pursuant to
Wisconsin Law (CONSULTANT), and the City of Franklin,
a municipal corporation organized pursuant to
Wisconsin Law (CLIENT).

ARTICLE 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The CONSULTANT shall provide consulting services (the "Services") as described in Attachment
A An in1t1al draft of the Auditor's Manual shall be provided to the Metro Recycling & Disposal
Fac1lIty Monitoring Committee by CONSULTANT within 7 (all days shall be calendar days) days
of the date of notice and authorization to CONSULTANT to proceed CONSULTANT shall further
respond to any Committee requirements upon such Auditor's Manual within 7 days of receipt
Odor monitoring Services shall commence wthin 7 days of the Monitoring Committee's approval
of the Auditor's Manual Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in Attachment A, all
auditing reports shall additionally be provded by CONSULTANT to the Monitoring Committee,
reports to the City of Franklin shall be to the City Clerk, and all reports prepared in the ordinary
course of business shall be delivered electronically, except for quarterly reports, which shall be
delivered mn paper form to the Monitoring Committee and the City Clerk Electronic transmissions
of all reports shall be made by CONSULTANT within 24 hours of the completions of such reports
Initial odor complaint mapping shall be completed by CONSULTANT concurrent wth the
completion of the Auditor's Manual Hours budgeted for operations and construction auditing
within Attachment A include and are sufficient to allow for the provision of professional advice by
CONSULTANT upon the request of CLIENT, as to available remedies or available remedial
action, which may be necessary to cure any occurrences or conditions disclosed upon audit

ARTICLE 2. COMPENSATION

Compensation to be paid by_CLIENT to the CONSULTANT is descnbed in Attachment A
Notw1thstand1ng anything to the contrary set forth in Attachment A, CONSULTANT shall provide
those Services and those Service hours per Task for such total compensation and expenses as
shall not exceed those "TOTAL" amounts as are specifically allocated to such Tasks,
respectively, in Attachment A Such TOTAL amounts include all costs for labor, overhead, G&A,
benefits, taxes, profit and all actual reasonable expenses, which shall be in such amounts and as
set forth upon the "Standard Rates and Condrtons" schedule contained within Attachment A
Total compensation and expenses for all landfill operations auditing Servces (including odor
monitoring) to be provided annually, commencing January 1, 2024, shall not exceed $20,000 00,
as adJusted by the consumer pnce index as set forth in theWMWI Metro Landfill Facility
Greenspace Protection and L1m1ted Landfill Expansion Agreement dated August 16, 2010, at
Article IV 24 B

1



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT METRO RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL
FACILITY DURING OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

ARTICLE 3. TERMS OF PAYMENT

Payment by CLIENT to CONSULTANT shall be monthly, based on the invoicing provided by
CONSULTANT

A. INVOICING
The CONSULTANT shall submit 1tem1zed invoices to CLIENT for progress payments once each
month during the progress of the Services Such invoices wll represent the value of the
completed Services, and will be prepared in such form and supported by documentation as
CLIENT may reasonably require

B. PAYMENTS
CLIENT will review and approve invoices for payment CLIENT will make payment to the
CONSULTANT within thirty (30) days after receipt of the invoice Progress payments to
CONSULTANT will not constitute acceptance of the Services

C.LIENS
CONSULTANT will promptly pay for all services, labor, material, and equipment used or
employed in the Services, and will maintain all materials, equipment, structures, buildings,
premises, and other subject matter hereof free and clear of mechanic's or other hens

ARTICLE 4. OBLIGATION OF CONSULTANT

A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
CONSULTANT 1s an independent contractor and will maintain complete control of and
respons1b1hty for its employees, subcontractors, and agents The CONSULTANT shall also be
solely responsible for the means and methods for carrying out the Services

B. REPORTING
CONSULTANT shall, tf requested by CLIENT, submit with its monthly invoice, progress reports,
in a form acceptable to CLIENT

C. PERFORMANCE
The standard of care applicable to CONSULTANT Services will be the degree of skill and
diligence normally employed by others performing the same or s1m1lar Services and that of a
professional engineer in Southeastern Wisconsmn The CONSULTANT will reperform any
Services not meeting thus standard without additional compensation

D. WORKING FILES
CONSULTANT wll maintain files containing all work documentation including calculations,
assumptions, interpretations of regulations, sources of information, and other raw data required mn
the performance of this AGREEMENT CONSULTANT will provide copies of the information
contained in its working files to CLIENT upon request of CLIENT and at the CLIENT'S cost All
copies of information and data given to CONSULTANT by CLIENT or generated by
CONSULTANT in performance of the Services will be delivered by the CONSULTANT to CLIENT
upon termination of the AGREEMENT CONSULTANT may retain one copy of any
documentation pertaining to the Services performed after the termination of thIs AGREEMENT

E. HOLD HARMLESS
CONSULTANT shall and hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, hold harmless and release CLIENT

2



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT METRO RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL
FACILITY DURING OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

(including its directors, officers, employees, representatives and agents) for any and all losses,
demands, damages, claims, costs and expenses (mcludmg reasonable attorney's fees and costs)
relating to or resulting from bodily mJury or death, and for damage to property during or related to
the Services under this AGREEMENT, provided, however, this release shall not be effective as to
the extent that any such bodily mJury or death or damage to property resulted from gross
negligence or willful misconduct of CLIENT

F. CODES, LAWS, AND REGULATIONS
CONSULTANT will comply with all applicable codes, laws, regulations, standards, and
ordinances m force during the term of this AGREEMENT CLIENT shall provide copies of local
ordinances and agreements pertammg to the site to CONSULTANT

G. PERMITS, LICENSES, AND FEES
CONSULTANT will obtain and pay for all permits and licenses required by law that are associated
with the CONSULTANT'S performance of the Services and will give all necessary notices

H. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, mamtam insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance earner at least equal to the minimum hm1ts set forth below

A General/Commercial Liability $2,000,000 per each occurrence for bodily mnyury,
personal mJury, and property damage
$4,000,000 per general aggregate,

CITY shall be named as an addtttonal msured on a
pnmary, non-contnbutory basts

B Automobile Liability $1,000,000 combined single Immrt

CITYshall be named as an addtttonal msured on a
pnmary, non-contnbutory basts

C Contractor's Pollution L1ab11ity $1,000,000 per occurrence
$2,000,000 aggregate

CITY shall be named as an addtttonal msured on a
pnmary, non-contnbutory basts

D Worker's Compensation and Statutory
Employers' Liability

Contractor wt/I provide a waiver of subrogation and/or
any nghts of recovery allowed under any workers'
compensation law

E Professional Liability (Errors & $2,000,000 single limit
Omissions)

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying sad protection and defining the terms of the policy Issued, which shall

3



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT METRO RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL
FACILITY DURING OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

specify that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to
CLIENT, and naming CLIENT as an additional insured as required above

I. ACCESS TO RECORDS
The CONSULTANT will maintain accounting records, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and practices, to substantiate all invoiced amounts Unless otherwise
provided mn a Task Order sand records wll be available for examination by CLIENT during
CONSULTANT'S normal business hours for a period of three (3) years after CONSULTANT'S
final invoice to the extent required to verify the costs incurred hereunder

J. SUSPENSION OF WORK
The CONSULTANT will, upon written notice from CLIENT, suspend, delay or interrupt all or a part
of the Services In such event, CONSULTANT will resume the Services upon written notice from
CLIENT, and an appropriate extension of time will be mutually agreed upon and added to
CONSULTANT'S time of performance CLIENT will reimburse CONSULTANT for reasonable
termination and start up costs should work be suspended, interrupted or delayed unless due to
the wrongful act or om1ss1on of CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT or its duties of skill and
diligence

K. WORKING RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN WASTE MANAGEMENT OF WISCONSIN, Inc., J
Spear Associates, Inc. AND THE CITY OF FRANKLIN
During the term of this AGREEMENT no CONSULTANT employee or subconsultant working
under this AGREEMENT shall knowingly perform any work forWaste Management of Wisconsin,
Inc or any of its subs1d1aries No CONSULTANT employee or subconsultant who has done work
for Waste Management of Wisconsin, Inc within two years of this AGREEMENT shall be
assigned to work under this AGREEMENT

L. CONFLICT OF INTEREST
CONSULTANT warrants that nerther rt nor any of its affihates, their officers, employees or agents,
have any financial or other personal interest that would confhct in any manner with the
performance of the services under this AGREEMENT and that neither 1t nor any of its affiliates,
their officers, employees or agents, will acquire directly or indirectly any such interest
CONSULTANT warrants that rt will immediately notify CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict of
Interest arises or becomes known to CONSULTANT Upon receipt of such notification, review
and written approval ts required from CLIENT for the CONSULTANT to continue to perform work
under this AGREEMENT

M. CONSULTANT'S PERSONNEL AT THE SUBJECT SITE
The presence of duties of CONSULTANT'S personnel at the subJect site, whether as ons1te
representatives or otherwise, do not make CONSULTANT or its personnel in any way responsible
for those duties that belong to the CLIENT and/or contractors, or other ent1t1es, and do not relieve
the contractors or any other entity of their obligations, duties, and responsibilities, Including, but
not limited to, all construction/operation methods, means, techniques, sequences, and
procedures necessary for coordinating and completing all portions of work mn accordance with the
Contract Documents and any health and safety precautions required by such act1v1t1es.
CONSULTANT and its personnel have no authority to exercise control over any contractor or
other entity or their employees mn connection with their work or any health and safety precautions
and have no duty for inspecting, noting, observing, correcting, or reporting on health and safety
def1c1enc1es of the contractor or other entity or any other persons at the site other than
CONSULTANT'S own personnel

4



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT METRO RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL
FACILITY DURING OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

The presence of CONSULTANT'S personnel at the subject site 1s for the purpose of providing
CLIENT a greater degree of confidence that the complete work will confirm to the applicable s1t1ng
agreements and local and state laws, rules, codes, orders, and ordinances and that the integrity
of the terms as reflected in the applicable siting agreements and local and state laws, rules,
codes, orders, and ordinances have been implemented and preserved by the contractors
CONSULTANT neither guarantees the performance of the contractors nor assumes respons1b1l1ty
for contractor's failure to perform their work in accordance with the applicable siting agreements
and local and state laws, rules, codes, orders, and ordinances

ARTICLE 5. OBLIGATIONS OF CLIENT

A. TIMELY REVIEW
CLIENT will examine the CONSULTANT'S studies, reports, proposals, and other related
documents and render dec1s1ons required by CONSULTANT a timely manner

B. PROMPT NOTICE
CLIENT will give written notice to CONSULTANT whenever CLIENT observes or becomes aware
of any development that affects the scope or timing of CONSULTANT Services, or any defect in
the work of the CONSULTANT

C. CHANGES
CLIENT may, by written order only, make changes, revisions, additions, or deletions (collectively
hereinafter called "changes") in the Services CONSULTANT will 1mmed1ately, upon knowledge
of any potential changes (Including actions, inactions, and written or oral communications) that do
not conform to the authorized method of directing changes specified herein, notify CLIENT of
such changes and wll request written disposition The CONSULTANT wll not proceed with any
changes unless notifed to proceed in writing by CLIENT Nothing herein wll be construed as
relieving the CONSULTANT of its obligations to perform, including without limitation, the failure of
the parties to agree upon the CONSULTANT entitlement to, or the amount of, any adjustment in
time or compensation Any claim by the CONSULTANT for an adjustment under this paragraph
must be preceded by CONSULTANT'S written notice to CLIENT prior to performing any work or
changes that such work or changes will require add1t1onal payment to that contemplated by this
AGREEMENT If the Services are reduced by changes, such action will not constitute a claim for
damages based on loss of ant1c1pated profits

D. AUTHORITY OF CLIENT
The authority and responsibility of CLIENT are lmted to the provisions set forth in thIs
AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 6. GENERAL LEGAL PROVISIONS

A. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION
All prices, rates, designs, reports, data, services, spec1ficat1ons, and other information related to
the Services contain and comprise proprietary and company confidential information of CLIENT,
and potentially other teaming partners Except for the purpose hereof, CONSULTANT shall not
publish or disclose to any third party or make use of such information during or at any time
following the expiration or earler termination hereof except tf such disclosure is required by
CLIENT, order of a court of competent jurisd1ct1on, or otherwise required by applicable law

5



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT METRO RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL
FACILITY DURING OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

B. ASSIGNMENTS
Neither party shall have the power to or wll assign any of the duties or rights or any clamm arising
out of or related to this AGREEMENT, whether ansmg m tort, contract or otherwise, without the
written consent of the other party Any unauthorized assignment 1s void and unenforceable
These conditions and the entire AGREEMENT are binding on the heirs, successors, and assigns
of the parties hereto

C. WAIVERS
No waiver by either party of any default by the other party mn the performance of any prov1s1on of
this AGREEMENT will operate as, or be construed as, a waiver of any future default, whether like
or different in character

D. FORCE MAJEURE
Neither party to this AGREEMENT will be liable to the other party for delays in performing the
Services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from such delays, that may result from labor
strikes, nots, war, and acts of governmental authorities, extraordinary weather condrtions or other
natural catastrophe, or any cause beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party

E. AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED
Verbal authorization by CLIENT, followed by confirming letter to CONSULTANT will be
authonzat1on for CONSULTANT to proceed with the Services

F. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES
This AGREEMENT gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than the CONSULTANT and
CLIENT and has no third party beneficiaries

G. JURISDICTION
The laws of the State of Wisconsin shall govern the validity of this AGREEMENT its interpretation
and performance, and any other claims related to it The venue for any dispute shall be the
CIrcurt Court for Milwaukee County The prevailing party in any such litigation shall be entitled to
be awarded its reasonable attorney's fees

H. SEVERABILITY AND SURVIVAL
If any of the Prov1s1ons contained m this AGREEMENT are held invalid, illegal, or unenforceable
the unenforceability of the other remaining provisions shall not be impaired thereby Limitations of
liability, indemnities, and other express representations shall survive termination of th1s
AGREEMENT for any cause

I. TERMINATION

(1) TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

CLIENT, for its convenience, may, effective forthwith upon any notice, terminate all or part of this
AGREEMENT In such event the CONSULTANT will be entitled to compensation for the Services
competently performed up to the date of termination The CONSULTANT' will not be entitled to
compensation for profit on the Services not performed

(2) TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

CLIENT may, by written notice, terminate the whole or any part of the AGREEMENT for default m

6



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT METRO RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL
FACILITY DURING OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

the event that the CONSULTANT fails to perform any of the provIsIons of this AGREEMENT, or
fails to make progress as to endanger performance of the AGREEMENT in accordance with its
terms, or, m the opinion of CLIENT, becomes financially or legally incapable of completing the
Services and does not correct such to CLIENT'S reasonable sat1sfact1on within a period of seven
(7) working days after receipt of notice from CLIENT specifying such failure

lf after notice of termination, rt is determined for any reason that the CONSULTANT was not in
default or that the default was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same
as If the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

In the event of termination for default, the CONSULTANT will not be entitled to termination
expenses Regardless of the cause of termmnaton the CONSULTANT shall deliver legible copies
of all completed or partially completed work products and instruments of service including, but not
limited to laboratory, field or other notes log book pages, terminal data, computations and
designs

The rghts and remedies of CLIENT provided mn ths Article will not be exclusive and are mn
addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity or under thus AGREEMENT

J. DELAYS AND EXTENSION OF TIME

If the CONSULTANT Is delayed in the progress of the Services by any act or neglect of CLIENT
or by any separate teaming partner, or by strikes, lockouts, fire, unusual weather cond1t1ons, or
unavoidable casualties, the CONSULTANT will, within twenty-four (24) hours of the start of the
occurrence give notice to CLIENT of the cause of the potential delay and estimate the possible
time extension involved Due to the tme sensitive nature of the Services bring provided by
CONSULTANT any extension or delays in CONSULTANT'S performance must be negotiated by
the parties such that CLIENT can still meet deadlines which are established by entities that are
not parties to this AGREEMENT No extension of time will be granted to the CONSULTANT for
delays occurring to parts of the Services that have no measurable impact on the completion of
the Services under this AGREEMENT No extension of time will be considered for weather
conditions normal to the area in which the Services are being performed Unusual weather
cond1t1ons 1f determined by CLIENT to be of a seventy that would stop all progress may be
considered as cause for an extension of completion time Delays in delivery of equipment or
material purchased by the CONSULTANT or its subcontractors will not be considered as a Just
cause for delay The CONSULTANT will be fully responsible for the timely ordering, scheduling,
expediting, and/or delivery of all equipment, materials, and personnel

K. TERM OF AGREEMENT
The AGREEMENT shall extend to and expire upon December 31, 2024 This term may be
extended by mutual consent of both parties

ARTICLE 7. NOTICES

For the purposes of this agreement, notices will be by United States Mail to

For the CLIENT

City of Franklin

9229 West Loomis Road

For the CONSULTANT

JSA Environmental, Inc

2410 N Palmer Street
7



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES TO MONITOR
COMPLIANCE AT METRO RECYCLING AND DISPOSAL
FACILITY DURING OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION

Franklin, Wisconsin 53132

ATTN Glen E Morrow, City Engineer

Milwaukee, WI 53212

ATTN Jo-Walter Spear, Jr,P E

ARTICLE 8. SIGNATURES AND ATTACHMENTS

A. The following attachments are made part of this AGREEMENT Attachment A

B. This AGREEMENT executed in duplicate original, represents the entire AGREEMENT
between the parties, supersedes all prior agreements and understandings and may be changed
only by a written amendment executed by both parties

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the
dates set forth below and delivered and effective theday of December, 2023

Approved for JSA Environmental, Inc.

By _

Name Jo-Walter Spear, Jr,P E

Title Project Manager

Date

Approved as to form

By _

Name Jesse A Wesolowski

Title City Attorney

Date

Accepted for City of Franklin

By-----------

Name John R Nelson

Title Mayor

Date

By------------

Name Karen L Kastenson

Title City Clerk

Date

By------------

Name Danielle L Brown

Title Director of Finance & Treasurer

Date

8



JSAEnvironmental, Inc. ([SA) Scope ofProfessional
Engineering Services to The City ofFranklin, WI

LANDFILL OPERATIONS AUDITING
The scope of services has been broken down into the following tasks:

Task 1 Auditor'sManual
The auditor's manual is reviewed and updated, annually. The budget for this task assumes one hour to

review and update the manual.
Deliverables: Auditors Manual

Task 2 Operations and Construction Audit
JSA auditors will perform audits oflandfill operations and any construction activities occurring during
the audit. The audit of operations will include, but not be limited to, observation of waste receipt;
weigh-in, placement and compaction ofwastes; the application of cover materials and cover integrity;
odor monitoring (on-site and off-site ); leachate management, including leachate recirculation,
evaporation, and disposal; landfill gas recovery system operations; flare stability and consistency;
vegetation observations for signs oflandfill gas or leachate stress; and other necessary operations for the
facility. To maximize the efficiency of the audits, JSA has prepared an audit form that encompasses
regulatory, permit, and contractual requirements, as well as other standards of practice in the solid
waste industry. JSA has used this form, or one similar to it, at other facilities. JSA will provide the City
of Franklin, Metro Waste Disposal and Recycling Monitoring Committee (Committee) and Metro
Waste Disposal and Recycling Facility(Metro) with an audit report following each site visit. Particular
attention will be paid to activities and procedures that do not conform the contract between Metro and
the City of Franklin (City). We will provide our findings and recommendations to the Committee in
writing.

Inspection of operations will be conducted during each site visit, as appropriate. Construction
continues at a landfill after the major actions of building new cells. The addition of a new landfill gas

recovery well, placement of incremental cap areas, erosion damage repairs and other construction
activities will be observed if they are in process during the audit.
Our team has extensive experience in all aspects of landfill construction and operation and will draw

upon our Project Manager's experience with landfill construction and operations, with the support of
our Principal, who has over 30 years oflandfill construction and operations experience. We will use our
experience to anticipate problems and to keep the City fully informed of the project status.



Our budget for this task is based on the assumption that one team member will spend 3 to 4 hours at
the site each week, with senior review of the audit reports.
During periods of intense or complex construction, the audits may consume more time than anticipated
above. Our experience in other audit situations is that there are opportunities to manage the total
budget to prevent budget over runs at the project level.
Deliverables: Copy of landfill operations audit report following each site visit, including a copy of the
landfill construction audit report for construction activity occurring during the audit; Year End Report

Task 3 OdorMonitoring
JSA will conduct Odor Monitoring before and during every audit event at the Metro site. A course
about the landfill has been defined for the limits of odor monitoring and the results of each event are
recorded upon a map that is included in the Audit report. JSA also maintains an online database of all
odors reported and their geographic location about the Metro site.
Deliverables: Copy of the Odor Monitoring Map with every Audit Report, provide and maintain
database of odor complaints.

Task 4 EnvironmentalMonitoring and Data Analysis
At the direction of the City or the Committee, JSA will review and evaluate groundwater quality and
surface water quality data, groundwater elevation data, leachate quality data; and landfill gas data
provided by Metro to the City or the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR). This
evaluation will include both a general trend analysis and a trend analysis that relates to the background
data.

If our team identifies significant changes or anomalies in the groundwater or surface water data, we will
evaluate the impact of the landfill on those changes and notify the City. At the request of the City, we
will identify appropriate mitigation actions and present these actions in a technical memorandum for
the City's review.

Deliverables: Quarterly and Annual review of Metro's analysis of groundwater and surface water
quality and an assessment of the numerical results; a memorandum summarizing the observation
during a quarterly groundwater and surface water monitoring event; quarterly and annual review of
Metro's sampling and analysis oflandfill gas and an assessment of the numerical results; and a
memorandum summarizing the observation during a landfill gas monitoring event.

Task 5 Facility Closure and Post-Closure CareMonitoring
At the direction of the City, JSA will make independent annual determinations of the funding level
(+30% or -50%) necessary to close the landfill and to monitor and maintain it for a period of 30-years

following closure. This level will be compared to the current balance of the facility closure, monitoring,
and maintenance funds or current calculations of that fund, by Metro. We will provide a written



assessment to the City indicating whether sufficient funds have been set aside.
Deliverable: Annual written report assessing funding requirements for closure and post-closure

monitoring.

Task 6 Attendance at Landfill Committee Meetings
JSA will attend the Committee Meetings in order to address questions from members of the
committee. Typically, the Auditor and/or an engineer will attend the meeting, based on our
understanding of committee concerns. We request to be placed on the agenda early in the meeting and
will attend for a period of one hour at no cost to the City. Ifwe are requested to remain after the hour,
the City will be billed for the time at the regular hourly rate of our attendees. The budget for this task
assumes that we will spend no more than one hour at the meetings.
Deliverable: Documentation as requested by the committee at prior meetings, if any.

Task 7Additional Services as Requested
JSA is prepared to perform a variety of tasks for the duration of the contract period not specifically
addressed in the scope of services. Our experience suggests that the flexibility offered by this
arrangement will be extremely valuable to the City. Because of the variety of situations that are
encountered in the course oflandfill construction and operation, there are services that may be
requested that can not be envisioned at the time the scope of services is written. The following list is
not a proposal for additional services, but a short lists of examples of services we have been asked to
provide during an audit contract that were not envisioned in the contract:

•
•
•

•

•

•
Consultation regarding storm water and erosion control when problems occur,
Consultation regarding alternative daily cover,
Consultation regarding the Operator's plans to meet new regulations including air quality, gas

management, and NPDES regulations,
Consultation regarding Operator proposals to change environmental monitoring plans,

Solid waste market assessment and consultation,
Consultation on the effectiveness and selection oflandfill deodorants,
Consultation on and the preparation of comments regarding legislation or regulation that
effects landfill operation or impacts the agreement between the community and the landfill

Deliverable: Deliverable and level-of-effort for activities under this Task will be developed on a case by

case basis as requestedby the City



ENVIRONMENTAL
2410 N PALMER STREET

MILWAUKEE, WI 53212-3600 ---..htr..•J

Rates and Conditions
For Legacy Clients

2024

Title
Principal Engineer

Administration

Engineering Technician

Rate
$ 95.00

$ 55.00

$ 55.00

Mileage is billed at $ 0.66 per mile and travel is billed at one-half the traveler's hourly rate. Copies are billed

at $ 0.15 per page for letters, memoranda, reports, etc and $0.85 for color letter sized. Drawings are billed

at$ 1.50 per square foot of drawing for black and white and$ 8.00 per square foot for color All other direct

expenses are itemized on our invoice. Invoicing will include any disposable supplies or special equipment,

as applicable. Clients will be provided with a secure Intranet page, for the receipt and maintenance of

deliverables and other documents. Our secure intranet page Is also available for collaborative document

development and review A 10 % surcharge will be applied to all expenses to cover administration and

management. Each client invoice is assessed an hour ofAdministrative Services to recover accounting and

billing costs.

JSA Environmental charges time on the basis of the nearest hour for engineers and planners and the

nearest ¼ hour for graphics, CAD, and Administrative personnel. Invoicing Is done at least once each

month, either around the middle of the month or the end of the month, based on client preference. Invoices

will be submitted within ten (10) days of the close of the billing period and are payable upon receipt. Should

invoices be issued outside of this schedule, they are due and payable upon receipt JSA reserves the right

to assess late charges of 5 0% of the principal per month against all invoices not paid within 60 days of

issuance. In addition, work on the project by BSA may be suspended and data, reports and/or other

products withheld, should invoices not be paid within 45 days Invoices are due and payable upon receipt

Invoices paid within fifteen (15) days of issuance are elgble for a 2 5% discount, which maybe taken by the

client when making payment.



STATE OF WISCONSIN CITY OF FRANKLIN

RESOLUTION NO. 2023

MILWAUKEE COUNTY

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT TO CONTINUE PROFESSIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING

SERVICES TO MONITOR COMPLIANCE AT THE METRO RECYCLING &
DISPOSAL FACILITY TO DECEMBER 31, 2024, WITH

JSA ENVIRONMENTAL, INC.

WHEREAS, JSA Environmental, Inc. having proposed to provide continued services
as previously approved by the Common Council for the monitoring of the Metro Recycling
& Disposal Facility landfill operations, for compliance with applicable state and local laws,
codes, rules, orders and ordinances and siting agreements, to the end of the year 2024, the
cost of such services being reimbursable to the City pursuant to Article IVB. of the WMWI
Metro Landfill Facility Greenspace Protection and Limited Landfill Expansion Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council having considered such proposal and the resources
currently available to obtain such monitoring services, and the benefit to the Community
from the provision of such services and having found such proposal to be reasonable.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of
the City of Franklin, Wisconsin, that the agreement for professional environmental
engineering services Standard Agreement for Services to Monitor Compliance at Metro
Recycling and Disposal Facility During Operations and Construction, with JSA
Environmental, Inc., as previously extended by the Common Council to December 31, 2023,
be further extended to December 31, 2024, to provide services limited to bi-monthly audits,
reports thereon and government meeting attendance limited to one hour each meeting, and
such prior contract terms as may be applicable thereto, at cost not to exceed $20,000.00, as
adjusted by the consumer price index as set forth in the WMWI Metro Landfill Facility
Greenspace Protection and Limited Landfill Expansion Agreement dated August 16, 2010, at
Article IV.24.B., and all in such form and content as annexed hereto, be and the same is
hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and the same are
hereby authorized to execute and deliver such agreement.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
day of,2023.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Franklin this day of>2023.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-
Page 2

ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor



APPROVAL

~

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-
2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE 2023

ANNUAL BUDGET FORTHE SEWER FUND TO
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL AUTO EQUIPMENT
APPROPRIATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
PURCHASE OF A UTILITY VEHICLE IN THE

AMOUNT OF $59,784.50

MEETING DATE

Decemher 19, 2023

ITEM NUMBER

G. 35.

BACKGROUND
A Franklin Utilities vehicle was involved in an accident in September, 2023. Insurance has
totaled the vehicle and the City received a payment of $36,620 on October 12, 2023. The
payment was split 50/50 in both the Water Utility Fund and the Sewer Utility Fund. A
replacement vehicle has been located through Hiller Ford using the State of Wisconsin
Municipal "Discount" bid contract price.

ANALYSIS
The vehicle involved in the accident was a 2008 diesel Ford F550 with a crane and utility boxes
in the bed. The truck was purchased in June 2008 for $70,442.

On December 19, 2023, the Board of Water Commissioners will consider the replacement as
the Water Utility will pay for 50% of the expense. Common Council has control of the Sewer
Utility and will pay the other 50% of the expense.

$69,995.00 2023 Chassis
$46,876.00 11-ft Service Body with Crane
82.698.00Drawer Units Front Compartment
$119,569.00 Total Purchase

$59,784.50
$59,784.50

Water Utility Cost (50%)
Sewer Utility Cost (50%)

$18,310 has been receipted in the Sewer Utility Fund as a reimbursement from insurance.

Because of the timing of this purchase, the Board of Public Works has not considered this
purchase, as is customary in Franklin.

FISCAL NOTE

The Sewer and Water Utilities have sufficient funds to cover the unscheduled purchase.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Adopt Ordinance No. 2023- an Ordinance to Amend Ordinance 2022-2521, an Ordinance
adopting the 2023 Annual Budget for the Sewer Fund to provide additional auto equipment
appropriations associated with the purchase of a utility vehicle in the amount of $59,784.50.

Finance Dept - DB



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2022-2521, AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING
THE 2023 ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE SEWER FUND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL
AUTO EQUIPMENT APPROPRIATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PURCHASE OF A

UTILITY VEHICLE IN THE AMOUNT OF $59,784.50

WHEREAS, on November 15, 2022, the Common Council adopted the 2023 Annual
Budget; and

WHEREAS, in September, 2023, a Franklin Utilities vehicle was involved in an accident
where the City of Franklin was not at fault; and

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin Insurance has totaled the vehicle and the City received a
payment of $36,620 on October 12, 2023 and that payment was split 50/50 between the Sewer
Utility Fund and the Water Utility Fund; and

WHEREAS, a replacement vehicle has been located using the State of Wisconsin
Municipal "Discount" bid contract price; and

WHEREAS, timing of the purchase of a new utility vehicle is limited; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin as follows:

Section 1 The 2023 Budget for the Sewer Fund shall be amended as follows:

Sewer Fund
0731 Capital Outlay Auto Equipment Increase $59,784.50

Section 2

Section 3

Section 4

Pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 65.90(5)(ar), the City Clerk is hereby directed to post a
notice of this budget amendment within fifteen days of adoption of this
Resolution on the City's web site.

The terms and provisions of this ordinance are severable. Should any term or
provision of this ordinance be found to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction, or otherwise be legally invalid or fail under the applicable rules of
law to take effect and be in force, the remaining terms and provisions shall
remain in full force and effect.

All ordinances and parts of ordinances in contravention to this ordinance are
hereby repealed.

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
thisday of2023.



ATTEST:

Karen L. Kastenson, City Clerk

APPROVED:

John R. Nelson, Mayor

AYES NOES-- ABSENT



"pg"""
REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

A Resolution to Purchase a
2023 Ford R550 Super Chassis XL VS Diesel with
Additional Equipment from Hiller Ford, Inc. for
$119,569.00 from the Sewer and Water Utilities

MEETING DATE
12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER
All Districts

BACKGROUND
A Franklin Utilities vehicle was involved in an accident on September 124, 2023. Insurance
has totaled the vehicle and is sending payment of $36,620. A replacement vehicle has been
located through Hiller Ford using the State of Wisconsin Municipal "Discount" bid contract
pnce.

ANALYSIS
The vehicle involved in the accident was a 2008 diesel Ford F550 with a crane and utility boxes
in the bed. The truck was purchased in June 2008 for $70,442.

On December 19, 2023, the Board of Water Commissioners will consider the replacement as
the Water Utility will pay for 50% of the expense. Common Council has control of the Sewer
Utility and will pay the other 50% of the expense.

$69,995.00 2023 Chassis
$46,876.00 11-f Service Body with Crane

$2,698.00 Drawer Units Front Compartment--~------
$119,569.00 Total Purchase

($36,620.00)
$82,949.00

$41,474.50
$41,474.50

Insurance from totaled 82008 Vehicle
Net Cost ofNew Vehicle

Water Utility Cost (50%)
Sewer Utility Cost (50%)

Because of the timing of this purchase, the Board of Public Works has not considered this
purchase, as is customary in Franklin.

FISCAL NOTE
The Sewer and Water Utilities have sufficient funds to cover the unscheduled purchase.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
Adopt Resolution 2023- a resolution to purchase a 2023 Ford F550 Super Chassis XL
V8 Diesel with additional equipment from Hiller Ford, Inc. for $119,569.00 from the Sewer
and Water Utilities.

Engineering Department



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL•
REPORTS AND

RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR
COUNCIL ACTION

Evaluation and Recommendations by the Director
ofAdministration for Proposed Tax Assessment
Services. The Common Council may enter closed
session pursuant to Wis. Stat.§ 19.85(l)(e),

Considering the Deliberating or Negotiating the
Purchasing of Public Properties, the Investing of

Public Funds, or Conducting Other Specified Public
Business, Whenever Competitive or Bargaining

Reasons Require a Closed Session.

COUNCIL ACTIONREQUESTED

MEETING DATE
12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

A motion, with regard to the Evaluation and Recommendations by the Director of Administration for Proposed
Tax Assessment Services. The Common Council may enter closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 19.85(l)(e),
Considering the Deliberating or Negotiating the Purchasing of Public Properties, the Investing of Public Funds,
or Conducting Other Specified Public Business, Whenever Competitive or Bargaining Reasons Require a
Closed Session, and to reenter open session at the same place thereafter to act on such matters discussed therein
as it deems appropriate.

DOA-KH



BLANK PAGE



APPROVAL

LICENSES AND

PERMITS

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES

MEETING DATE

12/19/23

ITEM NUMBER

H.

See attached License Committee Meeting Minutes from the License Committee Meeting of
December 19, 2023.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Approval of the minutes of the License Committee Meeting of December 19, 2023.

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE



414-425-7500
License Committee Agenda*

Franklin City Hall Aldermen's Room
9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, WI

December 19, 2023 - 6:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order & Roll Call Time:
2. Applicant Interviews & Decisions

Recommendations
Type/ Time Applicant Information Approve Hold Deny

Operator Michael Anders
2023-2024 Iron Mike's
New

Operator Tracey Deak
2023-2024 Swiss Street Pub & Grille
New

Operator Eric Johnson
2023-2024 Tuckaway Country Club
New

Operator Meagan Kehoe
2023-2024 The Rock Sports Complex
New

3. Adjournment Time:

*Notice is given that a majority of the Common Council may attend this meeting to gather information about an agenda item over which they have
decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of the Common Council per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even

though the Common Council will not take formal action at this meeting.



APPROVAL

Bills

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

Vouchers and Payroll Approval

MEETING DATE

12/19/2023

ITEM NUMBER

I

Attached are vouchers dated December 1, 2023 through December 14, 2023, Nos. 195236 through Nos.
195433 in the amount of$ 2,229,481.25. Also included in this listing are EFT's Nos. 5527 through EFT
Nos. 5537, Library vouchers totaling$ 1,280.33 and Water Utility vouchers totaling$ 30,299.49. Voided
checks in the amount of$ (1,275.48) are separately listed.

Early release disbursements dated December 1, 2023 through December 13, 2023 in the amount of
$ 634,969.09 are provided on a separate listing and are also included in the complete disbursement listing.
These payments have been released as authorized under Resolutions 2013-6920, 2015-7062 and 2022-7834.

The net payroll dated December 15, 2023 is$ 490,029.56, previously estimated at$ 465,000. Payroll
deductions dated December 15, 2023 are$ 248,060.79, previously estimated at$ 250,000.

The estimated payroll for December 29, 2023 is$ 468,000 with estimated deductions and matching
payments of$ 457,000.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion approving the following

• City vouchers with an ending date of December 14, 2023 in the amount of $ 2,229,481.25

• Payroll dated December 15, 2023 in the amount of$ 490,029.56 and payments of the various payroll
deductions in the amount of$ 248,060.79, plus City matching payments and

• Estimated payroll dated December 29, 2023 in the amount of$ 468,000 and payments of the various
payroll deductions in the amount of$ 457,000, plus City matching payments.

ROLL CALL VOTE NEEDED

Fmance Dept - SB/CH


